
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION AGENDA
Monday, December 04, 2023 - 6:00 PM

City Council Chambers

All public meetings of the City of Newport will be held in the City Council Chambers of the
Newport City Hall, 169 SW Coast Highway, Newport. The meeting location is accessible to
persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter, or for other accommodations, should be
made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Erik Glover, City Recorder at
541.574.0613, or e.glover@newportoregon.gov.

All meetings are live-streamed at https://newportoregon.gov, and broadcast on Charter Channel
190. Anyone wishing to provide written public comment should send the comment to
publiccomment@newportoregon.gov. Public comment must be received four hours prior to a
scheduled meeting. For example, if a meeting is to be held at 3:00 P.M., the deadline to submit
written comment is 11:00 A.M. If a meeting is scheduled to occur before noon, the written
comment must be submitted by 5:00 P.M. the previous day.
To provide virtual public comment during a city meeting, a request must be made to the meeting
staff at least 24 hours prior to the start of the meeting. This provision applies only to public
comment and presenters outside the area and/or unable to physically attend an in person
meeting.

The agenda may be amended during the meeting to add or delete items, change the order of
agenda items, or discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting.

1.  CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT

1

mailto:e.glover@newportoregon.gov
https://newportoregon.gov/


This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any item
not listed on the agenda. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person with a
maximum of 15 minutes for all items. Speakers may not yield their time to others

4.  PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS
Any formal proclamations or recognitions by the Mayor and Council can be placed in this

section. Brief presentations to the City Council of five minutes or less are also included in
this part of the agenda.

4.A Oath of  Off ice Police Sergeant Steve Hallmark

5.  CONSENT CALENDAR
The consent calendar consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a

single action. Any Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda removed and
considered separately on request.

5.A Receipt  of  Links for Video/Audio Files for All Meet ing Minutes
Received/Approved by City Council 
Video Links for Minutes to be approved 12-04-2023.pdf

5.B Approval of  City Council Regular and Work Session Minutes 
11-06-2023 City Council Work Session Minutes- Final.pdf
11-06-2023 City Council Minutes-Final.pdf
11-20-2023 City Council Work Session Minutes- Final.pdf
11-20-2023 City Council Minutes-Final.pdf

5.C Receipt  of  Approved Committee Minutes 
60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 01-23-23.docx.pdf
60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 02-27-23.pdf
60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 03-27-23.docx.pdf
60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 05-22-23.docx.pdf
60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 06-26-23.pdf
60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 08-28-23.docx.pdf
60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 09-25-23.docx.pdf
10-17-2023 water supply conservation and management minutes-final.pdf

6.  PUBLIC HEARING
This is an opportunity for members of the audience to provide testimony/comments on the

specific issue being considered by the City Council. Comments will be limited to three (3)
minutes per person.

6.A Public Hearing and Possible Considerat ion of  a Purchase and Sale Agreement

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2314495/Video_Links_for_Minutes_to_be_approved_12-04-2023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2310790/11-06-2023_City_Council_Work_Session_Minutes-_Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2312442/11-06-2023_City_Council_Minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2310789/11-20-2023_City_Council_Work_Session_Minutes-_Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2321169/11-20-2023_City_Council_Minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313892/Advisory_Committee_Minutes_01-23-23.docx.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313893/Advisory_Committee_Minutes_02-27-23.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313894/Advisory_Committee_Minutes_03-27-23.docx.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313895/Advisory_Committee_Minutes_05-22-23.docx.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313896/Advisory_Committee_Minutes_06-26-23.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313898/Advisory_Committee_Minutes_08-28-23.docx.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313899/Advisory_Committee_Minutes_09-25-23.docx.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313914/10-17-2023_water_supply_minutes-final.pdf


for the Abbey Street Pier Building Located at  669 SW Bay Boulevard

City Manager's Report 
Staff Report.pdf
Draft Commercial Real Estate Sales Agreement.pdf
Abbey Street Dock  Access Easement_120423.pdf
Abbey Street Pier Fire Supression Easement_120423.pdf
Hearing Notice.pdf
DSL Lease 11546-ML.pdf
DSL License 23348-LI.pdf
Abbey St Pier Legal Descriptions and Exhibits.pdf
P221296 Appraisal_Addenda.pdf

6.B Public Hearing and Possible Act ion to Determine Certain City-Owned Parcels
of Tideland are Surplus to the City’s Needs and Should Be Sold to the Yakona
Nature Preserve and Placed in Conservancy
City Manager's Report 
Staff Report.pdf
Tidelands Map.pdf
Tax Lot Property Records.pdf
City Vesting Deed.pdf
Excerpt of Council Meeting Minutes 1.6.96.pdf
Barton Proposal.pdf
Yakona Backgrounder.pdf
Sample Deed Restriction.pdf
Hearing Notice No. 1.pdf
Testimony from Mark Arnold.pdf

7.  COMMUNICATIONS
Any agenda items requested by Mayor, City Council Members, City Attorney, or any

presentations by boards or commissions, other government agencies, and general public
will be placed on this part of the agenda. 

7.A From Erik Jensen, Jensen Strategies –  Discussion of  Schedule for Execut ive
Recruitment of  the City Manager

City Manager's Report 
Community Meeting graphic.png

7.B Communicat ion from the Parks and Recreat ion Advisory Committee -- Annual
Progress Report  on the Parks System Master Plan

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2314062/PH-_Abbey_Street_Building.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313568/Staff_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313173/Draft_Commercial_Real_Estate_Sales_Agreement.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313649/Abbey_Street_Dock__Access_Easement_120423.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313669/Abbey_Street_Pier_Fire_Supression_Easement_120423.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313182/Hearing_Notice.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313176/DSL_Lease_11546-ML.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313177/DSL_License_23348-LI.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313179/Abbey_St_Pier_Legal_Descriptions_and_Exhibits.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313181/P221296_Appraisal_Addenda.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2314054/PH-_Tideland_Property.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2309204/Staff_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2309205/Tidelands.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2309206/appraisal_cards.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2309207/City_Vesting_Deed.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2309208/Excerpt_of_Minutes_1.6.96.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2309209/Barton_Proposal.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2309211/Yakona_Backgrounder.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2309212/Sample_Deed_Restriction.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2309213/Hearing_Notice_No._1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2319763/Testimony_from_Mark_Arnold.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2314111/Comm-_Jensen_Strategies.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313070/Meeting_graphic_v3__003_.pdf


City Manager's Report 
2023 PMP Update from P&R Committee

7.C Communicat ion from the City Attorney -- Request for Payment of  up to 40
Hours of  Accrued Vacat ion Time 

City Manager's Report 
Allen Email Vacation Carryover.pdf
David Allen Vacation carryover exception request.pdf

8.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT
All matters requiring approval of the City Council originating from the City Manager and

departments will be included in this section. This section will also include any status
reports for the City Council’s information.

8.A Considerat ion of  Resolut ion No. 4001, Relat ing to the Applicat ion of  SDC
Charges to the Conversion of  Commercial Buildings for Resident ial Use
City Manager's Report 
Staff Report.pdf
Draft Resolution No. 4001 - SDCs for Commercial to Residential Conversions.pdf
HB2984 Enrolled.pdf
NMC Chapter 12.15 - System Development Charges.pdf

8.B Considerat ion of  Adopt ion of  Order Number 2023– 2, an Order Acknowledging
the Withdrawal of  Condit ional Use Permit  Applicat ion No. 7CUP-21 for the
Lincoln County Animal Shelter

City Manager's Report 
Staff Report.pdf
Draft Order 2023-2 - Withdrawal of CUP application.pdf

8.C Report  and Appropriat ion of  Funding for Repairs for the Oceanview Drive
Slide Under Limited Emergency 2023 –  2
City Manager's Report 
2023-02_Declaration Original.pdf
2023-02_Declaration Updated with Extensions.pdf
Staff Report (12-4-23).pdf
MITIGATION LIMITS (Attachment A).pdf
Rock Armoring Cross Section (Attachment B).pdf
Storm Replacement (Attachment C).pdf

4

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2314093/Comm-_Parks_and_Rec_Progress_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2308693/2023_PMP_Update_for_Council.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2314286/Comm-_City_Attorney_Request.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2307592/Allen_Email_Vacation_Carryover.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2307594/David_Allen_Vacation_carryover_exception_request.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2314142/CM-_Resolution_4001__SDC_Charges.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2304606/Staff_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2304607/Resolution_No._4001_-_SDCs_for_Commercial_to_Residential_Conversions.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2304608/HB2984.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2304609/NMC_CHAPTER_12.15.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2314284/CM-_Consideration_of_Adoption_of_Order-_Animal_Shelter.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2307676/Staff_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2307677/Draft_Order_2023-2_-_Withdrawal_of_CUP_application.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313937/CM-_Report_on_Oceanview_Drive_Emergency.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2310801/2023-02_Declaration_of_Limited_Emergency_NW_Oceanview_Drive_SN_Signed_11-2023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2312425/2023-02_Declaration_of_Limited_Emergency_NW_Oceanview_Drive_SN_Signed_11-2023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2315704/Staff_Report__12-4-23_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2315705/MITIGATION_LIMITS__Attachment_A_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2315706/Rock_Armoring_Cross_Section__Attachment_B_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2315707/Storm_Replacement__Attachment_C_.pdf


8.D Report  and Possible Act ion on SAIF Dividend for Workers Compensat ion

City Manager's Report 

8.E Report  and Possible Act ion for Conversion to a Four-Day, Ten-Hour Work
Week for General Off ice and Other Departmental Work
City Manager's Report 
Staff Report.pdf
11-20-2023 Memo Regarding 4-10-Compressed Work Week.pdf
1.6.22_Memo_to_Council_-_Discussion_on_Current_Staffing_Levels.pdf

8.F Report  on Per -- and Polyf luoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) Lit igat ion
City Manager's Report 
David Allen Email PFAS Rev.pdf
3M - Summary Notice.pdf
DuPont - Summary Notice.pdf

8.G Report  on the Budget Calendar for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2024 and
Ending June 30, 2025
City Manager's Report 
Staff Report on Budget Calendar for 2024-25.pdf
2024-25 Budget Calendar  11-29-23.pdf

9.  REPORT FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL
This section of the agenda is where the Mayor and Council can report any activities or discuss

issues of concern.

9.A Mayor and Council Reports 
Hall Council Report .pdf

10.  PUBLIC COMMENT  
This is an additional opportunity for members of the audience to provide public comment.

Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person with a maximum of 15 minutes
for all items. Speakers may not yield their time to others.

11.  ADJOURNMENT

5

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2314331/CM-_Compensation_Dividend.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2314327/CM-_Report_on_Four_Day_Work_Week.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2319826/Staff_Report_-_Report_on_Conversion_to_Compressed_Work_Week_for_Various_City_Facilities_and_Departments.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2308903/11-20-2023_Memo_Regarding_4-10-Compressed_Work_Week.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2310796/1.6.22_Memo_to_Council_-_Discussion_on_Current_Staffing_Levels.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2319230/CM-PFAS_settlement.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313954/David_Allen_Email_PFAS_Rev.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313955/3M_-_Summary_Notice__1_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2313956/DuPont_-_Summary_Notice__1_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2314278/CM-_Report_on_the_Budget_Calendar.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2310763/Staff_Report_on_Budget_Calendar_for_2024-25.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2310754/2024-25_Budget_Calendar__11-29-23.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2312483/Hall_Council_Report_.pdf


11-6-2023 - City Council Work Session Minutes 

 Link:  https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1146 

 

11-06-2023 - City Council Minutes 

 Link:  https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1147 

 

11-20-2023 - City Council Work Session Minutes 

 Link: https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1156 

 

11-20-2023 – City Council Minutes 

 Link: https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1157 

 

1-23-2023 - 60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 

 Link: https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/964 

 

2-27-2023 - 60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 

 Link:  https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/986 

 

3-27-2023 - 60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 

 Link: https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1005 

 

5-22-2023 - 60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 

 Link: https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1044 

 

6-26-2023 - 60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 

 Link: https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1062 

 

8-28-2023 - 60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 

 Link: https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1098 

 

9-25-2023 – 60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 

 Link: https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1115 

 

10-17-2023—Water Supply Management Conservation Work Group 

 Link: https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1127 

 

6

https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1146
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1147
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1156
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1157
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/964
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/986
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1005
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1044
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1062
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1098
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1115
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1127


 
Newport City Council Work Session Minutes                        
Page 1 of 2 
November 06, 2023 

City of Newport  
City Council Work Session Minutes 

November 06, 2023 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY 
NEWPORT 

Time Start: 4:00 P.M.     Time End: 5:39 P.M. 

MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Mayor Kaplan Spencer Nebel, City Manager 
Councilor Emond Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder  
Councilor Botello Steve Baugher, Finance Director 
Councilor Goebel David Allen, City Attorney  
Councilor Hall Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director 
Councilor Parker  
Councilor Jacobi  

 
AGENDA TITLE ACTIONS 

Work Session  
City Manager’s Report Nebel presented the written City Manager Report 

advising tonight’s meeting would be a general 
meeting with PUD, interviews of executive search 
firm for City Manager recruitment and an 
executive session.  

Meeting with Members of the Board of 
Directors of Central Lincoln People’s Utility 
District to discuss issues of mutual 
interest    

Nebel advised the City raised a variety of 
requests/issues in the past, the PUD board 
suggested communicating directly with the 
Council. Executive team and board members 
of the Lincoln County PUD were in attendance 
and Council and PUD did introductions. Ty 
Hillebrand; General Manager, Mark Freeman; 
Director of Employee Customer & Community 
Services, Brandon Hignite; Director of Shared 
Services, Paul Davies; Vice President of the 
Board, Peter Gitner; PUD Attorney.  
 
Hillebrand reported the PUD serves 41,000 
meters, 110 miles of the Oregon coast and is 
publicly owned. He advised the franchise 
agreement expired in 2018 and the PUD has been 
operating under previous agreement terms since it 
expired. Ultimately the City requests/demands 
were not acceptable to the PUD staff and board, 
and thus item is unresolved.   Hillebrand reported 
the requests were going to place a lot of additional 
costs on rate payers which was not a choice the 
PUD was interested in. Nebel reported the 
requests included Council priorities such as line 
undergrounding, and dark sky initiative. Brief 

7



 
Newport City Council Work Session Minutes                        
Page 2 of 2 
November 06, 2023 

discussion on Big Creek Transmission Line, ADA 
retrofit upon power pole replacement, and PUD 
planned outage system was heard. Nebel 
reported that the City would schedule a future 
work session for the Council to discuss 
priorities/requests and whether Council wishes to 
retain the list or modify items.   

Authorization of a Contract with an Executive 
Consultant for Recruitment of the City 
Manager 

Nebel advised that the Council would be 
conducting interviews in the work session, and 
selecting in the regular meeting tonight. Nebel 
handed out proposal rating/scoring forms to the 
Council, and detailed the proposal and selection 
process. Interviews with Strategic Government 
Resources/SGR, Prothman, Jensen, and GMP 
were scheduled. Nebel noted that Prothman was 
not able to do an interview, but would like their 
submitted proposal scored. Council held 
discussion about the proposals and interviews. 
Nebel reported the goal was for the scoring sheets 
to be done independent, and then the full Council 
to make a choice in the regular meeting. 
 

Scheduling an Executive Session Pursuant to 
ORS 192.660(2)(e) to Discuss Real Property 
Transactions 

MOTION was made by Hall, seconded by Jacobi 
to move that the City Council schedule an 
executive session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(e) 
to discuss real property transactions to 
immediately follow the close of the November 6, 
2023 work session. MOTION carried unanimously 
in a voice vote.  

 
       

8



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 1 of 6 
November 06, 2023 

City of Newport  
City Council Minutes 
November 06, 2023 

 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 6:22 P.M.     Time End: 9:19 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 

COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Mayor Kaplan Spencer Nebel, City Manager 

Councilor Emond Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 

Councilor Botello David Allen, City Attorney 

Councilor Goebel Jason Malloy, Police Chief  

Councilor Hall Rob Murphy, Fire Chief  

Councilor Parker Steve Baugher, Finance Director  

Councilor Jacobi Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director 

 

AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 
REGULAR MEETING 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
a. Roll Call 

 
b. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

 
None.  
 
Council, staff and the audience participated in the 
pledge of allegiance.  

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 None  

PROCLAMATION, PRESENTATIONS AND 

SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS  

a. Presentation by Restore Oregon by Rachel 

Browning, Board President 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Browning spoke and presented a Powerpoint on 
Restore Oregon, and the Main Street Program in 
Oregon. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
a. Ratify the Mayor's Appointment of Christina 

Simonsen, Wayne Patterson as Local Business 
Representative, Jim Patrick as Area Resident, 
Laurie Sanders, Jack Weber as General Public 
representative of the City Center Revitalization 
Workgroup for terms expiring 14 months from 
appointment date 

b. Receipt of Approved Committee Meeting Minutes 
Consisting of:   
September 20, 2023 Parking Advisory Minutes  
 September 25, 2023 Planning Commission 
Regular Session Minutes 
October 09, 2023 Planning Commission Work 
Session Minutes 
August 2023 Bicycle, and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee Minutes 

 
Glover read the consent calendar.  
  
MOTION made by Parker, seconded by Jacobi to 
approve the consent calendar. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote.  

9



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 2 of 6 
November 06, 2023 

June 2023 Bicycle, and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee Minutes 
October 7, 2023 Audit Committee Minutes 
January 31, 2022 Audit Committee Minutes 
February 23, 2022 Audit Committee Minutes 
April 26, 2022 Audit Committee Minutes 
July 21, 2022 Audit Committee Minutes 
October 20, 2022 Audit Committee Minutes 
February 23, 2023 Audit Committee Minutes 
July 21, 2023 Audit Committee Minutes   
 
  

PUBLIC HEARING  
Public Hearing and Consideration of Whether it is in the 
Public Interest to Add a Purchase Option to the City of 
Newport's Airport Property Lease with McWatkins, LLC 
 
a. CITY MANAGER REPORT – Spencer Nebel  

 
b. Public Hearing open 

 
c. Public Comment 

 
d. Public Hearing closed 
 
e. Council Decision 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Hearing and Potential Adoption of Resolution 
No. 3997, a Resolution 
Providing for a Supplemental Budget and Making 
Appropriation/Total 
Requirement Changes for Fiscal Year 2023 – 2024 
 
 
a. CITY MANAGER REPORT – Spencer Nebel  

 
b. Public Hearing open 

 
c. Public Comment 

 
d. Public Hearing closed 

 
e. Council Decision 

 
 
 
 
 
Nebel presented the written City Manager report.  
 
Kaplan opened the public hearing at 06:46 P.M.  
 
None was heard.  
 
Kaplan closed the public hearing at 06:47 P.M 
 
Council held discussion on the item. Tokos 
reported that lease payments are still due on any 
lease areas not purchased.  
 
It was noted a letter received from Alen 
Wells/McWatkins realtor seemed rather pointed 
and uncivil. 
 
MOTION was made by Goebel, seconded by 
Jacobi to move to find that it is in the public 
interest to add the proposed purchase option to 
the City of Newport airport property land lease 
with McWatkins, LLC and authorizes the City  
Manager execute the said amendment. 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Nebel presented the written City Manager report.  
 
Kaplan opened the hearing at 7:02 P.M.  
 
None was heard.  
 
Kaplan closed the hearing at 7:02 P.M.  
 

10



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 3 of 6 
November 06, 2023 

 Matt Hall, Water Distribution Senior Worker and 
Direct Responsible Charge for the Water 
Distribution System was present to speak. Matt 
Hall Reported the current 2009 vac truck arrived 
to water distribution used, and is used almost daily 
across multiple situations to include most 
emergencies, maintenance costs are excessive 
and many parts are obsolete.  He advised the 
proposed model is also capable of operation by 
one person, which would help out the under 
staffed crews.  
 
MOTION was made by Parker, seconded by 
Jacobi to move to adopt Resolution No. 3997, a 
resolution adopting a supplemental budget for  
Fiscal Year 2023 – 2024 making appropriation 
increases and changes for Fiscal Year  
2023 – 2024, incorporating attachment “A” as part 
of the resolution. 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote.  

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Communication from the Discover Newport Committee 
Regarding Request for a Budget Adjustment 
 

f.  

 
 
Nebel presented the written City Manager Report.  
 
Wayne Patterson, Greater Newport Chamber of 
Commerce Director, Lauren Pahl, Chamber 
Marketing Manager, and Maggie Conrad, Event 
Director, and Janell Goplen, of the Discover 
Newport Committee were present to speak.  
 
Chamber provided a brief summary of the funding 
ask, the various budget funds of the City related to 
the subject and proposed projects for the budget. 
Council held discussion on the item.  
 
MOTION was made by Goebel, seconded by 
Jacobi to move to increase the appropriation for 
the Discovery Newport Program from  
$500,000 to $742,240 with this requirement that a 
report/plan for the $100,000 for beautification line 
item be presented to Council before expenditure, 
with the change being reflected in a future 
supplemental budget.  

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  
a. Report and Possible Action Regarding 

Declaration of a Limited Emergency to Repair 
Damage Caused by a Slide on Oceanview Drive 
 
 
 
 
 
 

b. Authorization to Execute a Grant Contract with 
Oregon Parks and Recreation (OPRD) Local 
Government Grant Program (LGGP) for a Large 

 
Nebel presented the City Manager report.  
 
MOTION was made by Hall, seconded by Emond 
to move to extend the limited emergency on 
Oceanview Drive to facilitate repairs to  
stabilize ground utilities, restore the embankment 
and conduct street repairs to November 21, 2023. 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
Parker advised he would be stepping off the dias, 
and abstaining from participation due to a 
potential conflict of interest by his employment 

11



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 4 of 6 
November 06, 2023 

Grant for Agate Beach Neighborhood and Dog 
Park 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
c. Adoption of Resolution No. 3998, a Resolution 

Authorizing the Use of General Fund Money for 
Equipment Purchases with the Water Fund and 
Stormwater Fund Reimbursing the General 
Fund Over a Five-Year Payment Schedule 

 
 
 

 

d. Adoption of Resolution No. 3999, a Resolution 
Providing for a Payment Schedule and Related 
Interest Rate Between the Agate Beach Closure 
Fund and the Public Parking Fund for the 
Bayfront Parking Implementation Project 
 

 

 

 

e. Scheduling a Public Hearing on Resolution No. 
4000, a Resolution Setting Fees and Terms for 
Use of Certain Public Parking Areas Along the 
Bayfront 

 
 
 
 

 

 

f. Referring to the Voters an Ordinance Increasing 
the City Gas Tax 

with the State Parks Department. It was noted he 
didn’t have to, due to him not benefiting 
financially.  
 
MOTION was made by Jacobi, seconded by 
Emond to excuse Councilor Parker from 
voting/discussion on this item. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote, with Parker 
abstaining.  
 
Nebel presented the City Manager Report.  
 
MOTION was made by Jacobi, seconded by 
Botello to move to authorize the City Manager to 
execute a local government grant program 
agreement with the Oregon Parks and Recreation 
Department for the Agate Beach Neighborhood 
and Dog Park improvements with the maximum 
reimbursement being $390,000 and our local 
match being $260,000 for total project cost of 
$650,000. MOTION carried unanimously in a 
voice vote, with Parker abstaining.  
 
 Nebel presented the City Manager report.  
 
MOTION was made by Emond, seconded by 
Botello to move to adopt Resolution No.3998, a 
resolution setting payment of interfund loan 
between the General Fund and the Water and 
Stormwater Funds for the purchase of a vac truck. 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
 
Nebel presented the City Manager report.  
 
MOTION was made by Goebel, seconded by 
Parker to move to adopt Resolution No. 3999, a 
resolution setting payment of an interfund loan  
between the Agate Beach Closure Fund and the 
Public Parking Fund for the Parking  
Study Implementation Project. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
Nebel presented the City Manager report. Tokos 
presented the staff report and answered questions 
from Council.  
MOTION by Parker, seconded by Emond to move 
to schedule a public hearing on set November 20, 
2023 to consider resolution  
number 4000, a resolution setting fees and terms 
for use for certain public parking areas  
on the Bayfront. MOTION carried unanimously in 
a voice vote.  
 
Nebel presented the City Manager report.  

12



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 5 of 6 
November 06, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

g. Discussion on the Possible Banning of the Sale 
of Fireworks in the City of Newport 
 

 

 

h. Report on the Status of Council Priorities for the 
2023 – 2024 Goals and Objectives for the First 
Quarter of the Fiscal Year 
 

 Council held discussion, it was noted it was 
presented to the voters with a prepared food tax 
and it seems clearer to have dollars to invest in 
roads. Nebel advised City staff are prohibited from 
advocating for a measure when on ballot, Council 
is not. Council clarified they wanted it called the 
road maintenance tax, and the text needed some 
wordsmithing, but it was the general Council 
consensus to proceed.  
 
Murphy presented a summary. Council asked 
questions, and held discussion. Murphy advised 
he would have a draft ordinance for the next 
meeting.   
 
 
Nebel presented the City Manager report. Council 
held discussion.  

LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD  
a. Authorization to Purchase a 2023 Super 

Products 12-yard Hydrovac Jetter Truck in 
the Total Amount of $584,000 from Western 
Systems through the Sourcewell Collective 
Purchasing Agreement #101221-SPL 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
b. Authorization of a Contract with an 

Executive Consultant for Recruitment of the 
City Manager 
 
 

 
Kaplan opened LCRB at 8:53 P.M.  
 
MOTION was made by Emond, seconded by 
Goebel to move to authorize  
the purchase of a 2023 Super Products 12-yard 
hydrovac truck through Sourcewell  
Collective Purchasing Agreement #101221-SPL 
from Western Systems in the amount of 
$584,000. MOTION carried unanimously in a 
voice vote.  
 
 
Nebel advised the tabulations were calculated 
Jensen scored highest, GMP 2nd, SGR 3rd, and 
Prothman last. Council held discussion on the 
proposals and interviews.  
 
MOTION was made by Jacobi, seconded by 
Goebel to hire Jensen as search company for next 
City Manager.  It was noted motion didn’t match 
report, so it was withdrawn.  
 
MOTION made by Jacobi, seconded by Parker to 
move to direct the City Manager and City Attorney 
to enter into an agreement with  
Jensen Strategies to provide city manager 
recruitment assistance to the City Council  
following legal review by the City Attorney. 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
Kaplan closed LCRB at 09:08 P.M.  
 
 
 
 

13



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 6 of 6 
November 06, 2023 

REPORT FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL  
 

a. Mayor and Council Reports 
 

 

 
 
Councilor Parker shared that he recently saw a 
Youtube video with first amendment auditors, and 
wanted to say that Glover looked very 
professional, and did a good job.  
Parker inquired about any updates on a recently 
stolen Pride Flag, Nebel advised no further 
updates. Parker requested that Staff contact 
Sustainable NW to learn why NOAA declined to 
support a recent request for funds, and put on a 
future agenda.  
 
Goebel requested a get-well card for Veronica 
Lundell be purchased for signature at an 
upcoming Council meeting. He advised she was 
putting up banners for Nye Beach and fell off a 
ladder. Nebel advised it was not a City program, 
but work in City ROW on a community project. 
Hall reported Lundell fundraiser for medical 
expenses raised $17,000 so far.  
 
Hall requested an update on library security. 
Nebel advised Library Director Kimberly will be 
presenting a draft of facility rules at an upcoming 
meeting for Council action, whereby those who 
break rules can be trespassed by staff. If 
someone returns after trespass warning they are 
subject to arrest.  
Brief discussion on parking at library.  
 
Hall detailed an upcoming event at the Performing 
Arts Center regarding arts as an economic engine. 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
  

a. Janelle Goplen- Newport, Oregon 

Advised she recently performed a search and 
discovered that search results for Newport, 
Oregon had news items for Mayor Sawyer as first 
result, but noted second was fireworks in Newport, 
which was surprising, as she expected Seafood 
and Wine to be ranked higher 

 
       

14



 
Newport City Council Work Session Minutes                        
Page 1 of 1 
November 20, 2023 

City of Newport  
City Council Work Session Minutes 

November 20, 2023 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY 
NEWPORT 

Time Start: 3:42 P.M.     Time End: 4:27 P.M. 

MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Mayor Kaplan Spencer Nebel, City Manager 
Councilor Botello Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder  
Councilor Goebel Barb James, HR Director 
Councilor Emond Laura Kimberly, Library Director 
Councilor Hall   
Councilor Jacobi  
Councilor Parker  

 
AGENDA TITLE ACTIONS 

Work Session  
City Manager’s Report  Nebel presented the written City Manager Report.    
Bilingual Position Nebel advised the first version of this position was 

primarily bilingual/translation focused, but has 
evolved to being a community outreach position. 
The current goal was to modify the Library 
Director position to serve this function, and create 
an Assistant Library Director to take on some of 
the current Library Director responsibilities. 
Council held discussion on the item and it was the 
general consensus to proceed.    

Climate Action Plan   Nebel reported a survey went out to Council members, 
three were received, and the survey answers were 
polar opposites on what to prioritize in the plan, and 
what to exclude, so ranking would happen tonight. 
Council held a verbal discussion and voted on priorities 
in the plan, staffing challenges were noted. It was 
advised some of the items don’t have a fit in a climate 
action plan.  Nebel reported he would modify the draft 
in-line with Council selection/discussion tonight, and 
bring a draft plan back at the first or second meeting in 
January of 2024 for Council approval/adoption.  
 

Scheduling an Executive Session Pursuant to ORS 
192.660(2)(h) to Consult with Counsel Concerning 
the Legal Rights and Duties of a Public Body with 
Regard to Current Litigation or Litigation Likely to 
be Filed 

MOTION was made by Hall, seconded by Emond to 
move to schedule an executive session pursuant to 
ORS 192.660(2)(h) to consult with Counsel concerning 
the legal rights and duties of a public body with regard 
to current litigation immediately following the close of 
the November 20, 2023 work session. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote.  

 
     

15



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 1 of 7 
November 20, 2023 

City of Newport  
City Council Minutes 
November 20, 2023 

 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 6:12 P.M.     Time End: 9:35 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 

COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Mayor Kaplan Spencer Nebel, City Manager 

Councilor Emond Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 

Councilor Botello David Allen, City Attorney 

Councilor Goebel Jason Malloy, Police Chief  

Councilor Hall Rob Murphy, Fire Chief  

Councilor Parker Steve Baugher, Finance Director  

Councilor Jacobi Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director 

 Laura Kimberly, Library Director 

 

AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
a. Roll Call 

 
b. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

 
None.  
 
Council, staff and the audience participated in the 
pledge of allegiance.  

PUBLIC COMMENT 
a. Martin Desmond- Newport, Oregon 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

b. Robert Hoefs- Newport, Oregon  
 

Spoke reporting he was the Treasurer for Harbor 
Village Mobile Home Park, detailed the CREP 
(Community Renewable Energy Program) grants 
available from the state and encouraged the City 
to apply for the third round of funding. Nebel 
reported he would be happy to set a meeting with 
Desmond to discuss.  

Spoke regarding 402 SW Bay Blvd, and his desire 
to have a vacation rental approved here. Brief 
discussion was held on the subject and the 
current waiting list.  

PROCLAMATION, PRESENTATIONS AND 

SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS  

 

 
 

 
None 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
a. Receipt of Approved Committee Meeting Minutes 

Consisting of:   
October 18, 2023 Parking Advisory Minutes  
October 23, 2023 Planning Commission Regular 
Session Minutes 
October 23, 2023 Planning Commission Work 
Session  Minutes 

 
Glover read the consent calendar.  
 
Brief discussion was held on the minutes, and the 
conversion to action minutes on Nov 1, 2023.  
Hall requested links to video files for consent 
calendar minutes items. Glover referenced a 
separate attachment could be made for that 
purpose, but not within the minutes.  

16



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 2 of 7 
November 20, 2023 

October 10, 2023 Park and Recreation Committee 
Minutes 
September 6, 2023 Park and Recreation 
Committee Minutes  
 
  

  
MOTION made by Goebel, seconded by Emond 
to approve the consent calendar. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote.  

PUBLIC HEARING  
Public Hearing and Potential Adoption of Resolution 
No. 4000, a Resolution Setting Fees and Terms for Use 
of Certain Public Parking Areas Along the Bayfront  
 
a. CITY MANAGER REPORT – Spencer Nebel  

 
b. Public Hearing open 

 
c. Public Comment 

 
d. Public Hearing closed 
 
e. Council Decision 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Nebel presented the written City Manager report.  
 
Kaplan opened the public hearing at 06:29 P.M.  
 
None was heard.  
 
Kaplan closed the public hearing at 06:30P.M 
 
Council held discussion, requested clarification 
regarding 4 hour signage, and rest of year is 16. 
Tokos detailed the parameters. Concern 
regarding parking on holidays was heard. Tokos 
advised from May to October parking is paid on 
the Bayfront to include holidays, but the City 
Manager can provide coupons. Nebel advised 
holidays are busiest on the Bayfront and likely the 
biggest time needing turnover.  
 
MOTION was made by Emond, seconded by 
Jacobi move to adopt Resolution No. 4000, a 
resolution setting fees and terms for use for 
certain public parking areas on the Bayfront. 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
Council advised the signs are confusing, 
especially loading zone signs. Requested the 
addition of only, or striking the word parking.  
 
MOTION by Parker, seconded by Goebel to move 
to amend the red signs to remove the word 
parking from the 60 and 20 minute loading signs. 
MOTION carried unanimously.   

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Communication from the HB 4123 Homeless Strategic 
Plan Committee from Ernest Stephen of Morant Mcleod  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Nebel presented the written City Manager Report.  
 
Ernest Stephens of Morant Mcleod attended via 
zoom and gave a Powerpoint presentation of a 
draft five-year plan for homeless items in Newport.  
 
Council held discussion on the item, and 
exchanged commentary.  
 
 
 

17



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 3 of 7 
November 20, 2023 

Communication from the Airport Committee Regarding 
Authorization to Terminate Hangar Lease 3252 with 
Michael and Michelle Monsanto for Hangar 
Site 3 and Authorize a New Lease with LBL Properties, 
LLC. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Communication from Councilor Parker and Update of 
various issues from an 
email dated October 22, 2023 

a.  

Nebel presented the written City Manager report.  
 
Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director was present 
to speak. He advised the newest version of the 
lease template would be used. Allen reported 
section 11 was modified.  
Nebel advised the motion would be changed from 
his report, due to guidance from Allen.  
 
MOTION was made by Jacobi, seconded by 
Emond to move to consent to the sale of the 
hangar on Hangar Site 3 to LBL Properties, LLC, 
and enter into a land lease with LBL Properties 
LLC for a new initial lease term of 15 years, and to 
terminate the existing land lease with Michael and 
Michele Monsanto effective on the date of the new 
lease with LBL Properties LLC. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
 
Nebel presented the written City Manager report. 
He reported that a report on the Oceanview Traffic 
study will be brought back in January of 2024, in a 
combined discussion with new speed rules from 
the State of Oregon, and a discussion of 58th and 
Biggs.  
 
Question about NW 58th and Biggs was 
referenced. Tokos advised a traffic study was not 
being done, but rather a condition of the CUP 
whereby City wanted the developer to do an 
engineering assessment of if traffic calming 
measures and stop controls are warranted at 
intersections.  
 
Parker thanked Nebel for the report and advised 
he would discuss items with him at a later date.  

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  
a. Report on House Bill 2984 Related to the 

Assessment of System Development Charges 
when Commercial Buildings are Converted to 
Residential Use  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Nebel presented the City Manager report.  
 
Discussion was held, questions regarding 
amounts with a conversion from commercial was 
heard. Tokos reported the max SDC credit period 
was 10 years, and this is formula based and 
depends upon the additional impact to system.  
 
MOTION was made by Kaplan, seconded by 
Goebel move to direct City Administration to 
prepare a resolution for consideration at the  
December 4 Council meeting to confirm that the 
City's existing system development  
charge methodology applies to the conversion of 
commercial buildings for residential use. MOTION 
carried unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
 

18



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 4 of 7 
November 20, 2023 

b. Authorization of a Memorandum of 
Understanding Between the Oregon Department 
of Human Services, the City of Newport, and 
Lincoln County for the Placement of Two 
Connex Storage Containers at the Municipal 
Airport 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c. Review of Rules of Conduct for the City of 
Newport Municipal Library  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

d. Report on Draft Ordinance Restricting the Sale 
and Use of Fireworks within the City of Newport 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Nebel presented the City Manager Report.  
 
Del Lockwood, Emergency Management 
Coordinator was present to speak.  
 
It was reported that the connex boxes contain 
emergency supplies, exercise will take place in 
May 2024 similar to a recent one at the Tillamook 
Airport.   
 
MOTION was made by Goebel, seconded by 
Botello to move to authorize the City Manager to 
sign a memorandum of understanding with the  
Department of Human Services and Lincoln 
County to accept emergency supplies to be  
stored at the Newport Municipal Airport. MOTION 
carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 
 Nebel presented the City Manager report, 
advising these rules take effect 30 days after 
adoption.  
 
Kimberly provided a brief report detailing a review 
of other community library rules to arrive at these 
approved by the Library Advisory Board.  Allen 
detailed a summary of the rules.  It was 
referenced to change vaporizing to vaping. Allen 
detailed the code may control that. Nebel advised 
having the rules numbered, would be a good 
change.  
 
MOTION was made by Parker, seconded by 
Emond to move to formally receive the draft Rules 
of Conduct for the Newport Municipal Library  
and offer no substantive objections/changes to the 
rules as proposed. 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
Nebel presented the City Manager report.  
 
Rob Murphy, Fire Chief was present to speak.  
Jason Malloy, Police Chief was present to speak.  
 
Discussion was held, concerns regarding 
enforcement was heard. Question regarding 
number of fireworks related fires was heard. 
Murphy advised in the last year no fires in 
Newport, one in Waldport the agency responded 
to though.  
 
Murphy advised from memory it is typically one or 
two a year, and a mix of legal and illegal fireworks 
causations.  
 

19



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 5 of 7 
November 20, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

e. Authorization of Funding for the July 4, 2024 
Fireworks Display 
 

 

 

 

 

f. Report on Composition of Membership for the 
Airport Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

g. Report on Workplace Culture Initiatives 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MOTION was made by Jacobi, seconded by Hall 
to move to request that an ordinance be drafted to 
amend Newport Municipal Code 8.20.020 
prohibiting the sale, possession and use of 
fireworks within the City of Newport except for 
permitted shows, with a public hearing being 
scheduled January 2 at 6 PM on the proposed 
ordinance. 
MOTION carried in a voice vote, with Parker and 
Goebel opposed.  
 
References to the cultural importance of fireworks 
was heard, and an exception for July 4 yearly 
date. Discussion about not supporting an 
ordinance with limited enforcement ability was 
heard. Discussion about restricting sale only was 
heard.  
 
 
Nebel presented the City Manager report.  
 
MOTION was made by Parker, seconded by 
Emond to move to authorize the City Manager to 
commit $50,000 for the 2024 Fourth of July 
fireworks show. MOTION carried unanimously in a 
voice vote.  
 
Nebel presented the City Manager report.  
 
Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director was present 
to speak. He advised that overtime the committee 
has shifted towards 6 out of 7 members being 
lease holders at the airport, and he felt it was 
important to have a diverse mix of viewpoints from 
the community.  Discussion about obtaining 
LatinX, business, commercial and tourism reps 
was heard.  It was general consensus of the 
Council to explore a representative conversion 
model, with NOAA rep, Coast Guard rep, and 
Lifeflight rep as possible options.   
 
 
Nebel presented the City Manager report.  
Detailed some of the primary items, creation of 
longevity pay, increasing match on retirement and 
reducing vesting period to 5 years full vest to 
match PERS, and conversion to 4/10 compressed 
work week, given the fact City offices are closed 
on Fridays already. Question about paid 
family/maternity leave was heard, Nebel advised 
Newport already has an extensive program 
between FMLA/OFLA, Paid Leave Oregon and 
Sick Time.  Question about being open five days a 
week, on a 10 hour schedule was referenced. 
Nebel advised that the City is already closed 
Friday, reduced energy/utility cost is experienced 

20



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 6 of 7 
November 20, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

h. Report on Holiday Tree Lighting 
 

 

 

i. Status of the Oceanview Drive Slide Limited 
Emergency 2023-2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

with a 4 day schedule and having employees 
working with no supervisor might not be the best.  
Discussion was held, Council requested the DEI 
section at the beginning be reviewed. 
Hybrid/remote work schedules was referenced as 
a possible missing piece, to allow folks to adjust 
hours to their needs. Question about 4/10 City 
office hours allowing for greater public 
access/extended hours was heard, Nebel advised 
the goal was to stay open until 6 P.M.  
 
Nebel requested Council to review the list in 
detail, and send him any final thoughts as the 
document would be placed in final form soon and 
used for as a planning document.  
 
It was the general Council consensus to proceed. 
 
Nebel provided information on the annual holiday 
tree lighting.   
 
 
 
Nebel presented the City Manager report  
 
Motion was made by Jacobi, seconded by Emond 
to move to extend the emergency declaration for 
Oceanview Drive (#2023-2) to January 3, 2024. 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote.  

LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD  
a. Authorization to Execute Task Order No. 22 

with HDR Engineering in an Amount Not to 
Exceed $5,900,000 for Detailed Dam Design 
Services  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Kaplan opened LCRB at 9:18 P.M.  
 
Verena Winter, Senior Project Manager/Project 
Engineer with HDR was present to speak.  
 
Council discussion was held. It was referenced 
that it would be nice to move LCRB items earlier 
in the agenda as the meeting was long Council 
was weary, and being asked to spend a lot of 
money. Nebel advised LCRB consent calendar 
was attempted previously, many items were 
pulled off for discussion which meant public 
hearings were delayed, and folks wanting to 
speak had to sit through a longer meeting.  
 
It was the general Council consensus to schedule 
a work session regarding meeting protocols in the 
near future.  
 
Winter presented a summary of the data and staff 
report It was noted that of the $14 million 

21



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 7 of 7 
November 20, 2023 

allotment, the City has spent some of the funds, 
this request was from the original $14 million 
award.  Winter detailed what 30% milestone 
looked like, being an environmental permit, prep 
work done, and NEPA with the Army Corps of 
Engineers. Allen detailed Task Order 21, with the 
attached scope of work.  
 
MOTION was made by Parker, seconded by 
Botello to move to authorize the City Manager to 
execute Task Order No. 22 with HDR Engineering  
for continued detailed design services for the Big 
Creek Dam in an amount not to exceed  
$5,900,000 MOTION carried unanimously in a 
voice vote.  
 
 
Kaplan closed LCRB at 09:30 P.M.  
 
 
 
 

REPORT FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL  
 

a. Mayor and Council Reports 
 

 

 
 
Hall inquired about dates for the January goal 
setting, due to some expected work schedule 
conflicts. Nebel advised the budget calendar will 
be at the December meeting, which will include 
budget and goal setting dates.  

PUBLIC COMMENT  
  

a. Auston Stromberg - Newport, Oregon 

Shared that he appreciated the Council for all the 
work that they do. Spoke on fireworks in Newport 
advising that airborne fireworks are already illegal, 
fireworks on the beach is already illegal, and if 
Council does any further fireworks bans it will take 
fireworks away from regular people and children 
trying to safely enjoy them. Ultimately, what will 
happen is concerned citizens will call law 
enforcement on people enjoying a few fireworks 
with the children.  

 
       

22



 
 

 
 
 

 
January 23, 2023 

2:30 p.m. 
Newport, Oregon 

 
Call to Order 
Chair Ann Way called the meeting to order at 2:44 p.m. 
60+ Advisory Committee Agenda 
The 60+ Advisory Committee met on the above date and time in the Council Chambers of Newport City 
Hall. Roll call:  Ann Way, Bryn McCornack,Terrie Murphy, Vicki Bock, Council Liaison CM Hall.  
 
Staff in attendance: Sonia Graham 
Absent: Don Jay, Steve Lovas 
Guest: Shelly Thompson 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

Approval of Minutes – November 28, 2022 
Bryn McCornack moved to approve minutes for. Terrie seconded. All in favor. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
Advisory Committee Member Interview – Shelly Thompson  
Move to approve Shelly as new Advisory committee member: Vicki Bock. Second: Terrie. All in favor. 
 
At the last meeting the committee voted to approve Steve Lovas and Brenda Starr. Brenda has 
withdrawn from the Committee. 
 
FY 2022-2023 Committee Goal Report  
 
Goal #1: Overall goal to improve healthy living opportunities through evidence-based programs. 
Would like to work with Oceanview Senior Living to expand offerings for Walk with Ease program 
funded through grants. Bryn drove to Seattle last week to pick up donation of 50 Meta Portal Go’s. 
Portable tablets with camera that tracks people as they move, can be provided to homebound 
individuals with a hot spot and they can join program with a push of a button. Go’s are battery 
operated and portable. Also received donation of 20 Meta Portals – larger screen with electrical cord. 
Will enable greater participation for mobility challenged. Donations received from Tech Soup. Bryn will 
be writing an article about them for NRPA.  
 
Goal #2: Been an active group. Includes Terrie, Ann, and Vicki on workgroup. Been trying to get 
tamale feed going. Will have to be pushed into March. Working on host program even though goal for 
next year. Vicki to report on workgroup that was formed. Plan to have four shifts with someone by 
door all the time Monday through Friday. Will have a badge to identify host, Vicki working to acquire 
badge. Terrie working on putting together logo indicating inclusiveness. Discussed badges with that 
logo. Ann suggested badges be kept simple. Agreed that badges should be about business card size. 
Vicki can get five badges for $35. Ann will trust Vicki, Terrie, and Sonia’s judgment on design. Will be 
simple design. 
Terrie helped Ann create lunch ticket for free lunch and one-day pass to 60+ Center. Attaching ticket 
with monthly schedule and dropped at Veterans Services Office and at American Legion. None have 
been used yet. Will try for a couple of months, but want it to be productive. Ann spoke with VSO and 
American Legion and asked it be given to someone over age 60 and different person each week. 

23



Tickets ready for next month. Ann waiting for February schedule of activities to distribute next bunch. 
May need to brainstorm another way to reach population if this doesn’t work.  
Terrie prepared clipboard for hosts with map of 60+ Center on it. All host has to do is get nametag and 
clipboard and sit down. Simple and easy to use. Bryn requested that we make sure lunch tickets say 
“complimentary” not “free”.  
CM Hall conducted a well-attended presentation regarding LGBTQ+ Terminology. Vicki suggested we 
hold more of that type. We talked at one time about doing something quarterly. Need to get it scheduled 
to make sure it works with CM’s schedule. CM teaches next LGBTQ+ class in Spring term. Could be 
opportunity to make a group project. Class is four hour in-person class, 3-7 p.m. on Thursdays. Would 
be way for students to participate as a panel. Sonia willing to stay open for evening events as long as 
she is able to be there. CMs class starts in late March. Late April, or early May would work best for the 
panel. 
Workgroup trying to find posters, stickers, etc. to create inclusive signage. Ann was given names of 
people to speak to for resources. CM suggested look at programming from communities that target 
seniors and are very inclusive (e.g. Miami, Key West, The Villages, etc.) Also working on creating 
sticker with gay pride banner with inclusive words. CM recommended using updated flag with side 
triangle, welcome symbol for black, brown, trans, and non-binary communities as well. 
Collected 202 pairs of socks and 75 pounds of hygiene products for drive that was donated to Grace 
Wins Haven. Great story and picture in NewsTimes. 
 
Goal #3: Still waiting for meeting with Don and Sonia to discuss what outlines prefer. All current 
procedures typed and with Sonia for proofing. 
 
Goal #4: All committee members currently 60+ Activity Center members. 
 
Goal #5: Improve community engagement for 60+ Activity Center. Don working on this, he has been 
out for personal reasons, no current updates. 
Vicki asked about discounts for Rec Center. Many people come to the 60+ Activity Center to get the 
discount at Rec Center. Everybody is welcomed and offered a tour. Sometimes people just want the 
discount, often they are pleasantly surprised by what is offered here. Vicki suggested we have flyer 
posted to let members know about the discount at the Rec Center. Also, Vicki checked on free 
membership for cancer survivors. She verified that does exist, but for three months only. There is also 
Silver & Fit, Silver Sneakers, and Renew Active that offer free members through some insurance 
programs. 
 
Supervisor’s Report 
Attached reports are from months of December and January. Staring tomorrow, Sonia has new Tuesday 
employee in office. Dorinda is City Hall employee and will be working full days Tuesdays. Leadership 
Lincoln meal planning committee working with Keith Barnes, Veterans Service Officer to offer birthday 
meals each month to fight senior isolation. Leadership Lincoln was excited about it. Will also do a couple 
of special bigger community meals, to be planned. Sonia been working on reports due, put in budget 
request for building attendant and additional office staff. Capital equipment expense request due on 
Friday. Hoping to request budget for full-building sound system to be able to make announcements in 
case of emergency. Currently working with Enterprise Fleet Rentals to determine cost of wheelchair 
accessible van through City fleet as a lease.  
CM asked if we have assisted hearing devices for people with hearing challenges to use. There are 
probably grants that exist to help with this sort of thing. At 75 years of age, half the population have 
some hearing loss. May be a good goal for equity and inclusion. 
 
Public Comments  
No public comments have been brought forward.  
 
Bryn announced seminar on Social Accountability Funding webinar sponsored by Samaritan on 
Wednesday, January 25. On Feb. 15, Oregon Community Foundation will have webinar to talk about 
changes in grant process.  
 
  

24



Establish Next Agenda and Meeting Date 
 
Next meeting will be on Monday, February 27 at 2:30 p.m. 
 
Sonia requested that Fee Schedule be added to agenda to discuss with Committee. CM will not able to 
attend.  
 
Between February and March there will be an additional orientation meeting once the new committee 
member has been approved. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:45 pm. 

25



 
 

 
 
 

 
February 27, 2023 

2:30 p.m. 
Newport, Oregon 

 
Call to Order 
Chair Ann Way called the meeting to order at 2:32 p.m. 
60+ Advisory Committee Agenda 
The 60+ Advisory Committee met on the above date and time in the Council Chambers of Newport City 
Hall. Roll call:  Ann Way, Bryn McCornack, Terrie Murphy, Vicki Bock, Shelly Thompson, Steve Lovas  
 
Staff in attendance: Sonia Graham, Mike Cavanaugh 
Absent: Don Jay, City Liaison CM Hall 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

Approval of Minutes – January 23, 2023 
Bryn McCornack moved to approve minutes. Terrie seconded. All in favor. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
FY 2022-2023 Committee Goal Report  
Using new layout 
 
Goal #1: Bryn is still working on Fit & Strong training. Goal is to offer one additional EBI. Moving on 
with other parks and rec depts that are interested in the universal script. She will be speaking at the 
OSU Extension quarterly meeting for instructors to talk about what doing with pilot, script, and 
PowerPoint for Walk with Ease. 
 
Goal #2: Working on goal has been challenge. Tried to work with Veterans Services giving out 
complementary lunch tickets to Veterans Services and American Legion and no one in two months 
has taken up the opportunity. Sonia will speak with Veterans Services to see if there is some way the 
committee can help with other activities in conjunction with 60+ Center. 
Tamale feed – something keeps happening when schedule event. Suggested around Cinco de Mayo, 
have not heard back from person arranging with. 
Vicki leading workgroup. Ann has done several shifts as host and can talk to that. Getting someone to 
man the host position for hours at a time is not easy to find. Vicki will volunteer several shifts when 
she returns from Mexico and see how busy she is. Ann has been serving as host on Wednesdays 
from 1:30-3:00. She is enjoying it. She talks to everyone who comes in the door and up the stairs after 
exercise class. Glad that Sonia pushed for it and glad she is doing it. Great program and want to 
continue it. May want to change the times. Mike offered that we can run an attendance report based 
on the day and hours to identify the busy times. 
Other part of goal is to focus on diversity. Terrie working on posters. She has some set up, Ann wants 
to make sure that Vicki sees them since she is leading workgroup. Last month it was recommended to 
research other senior centers’ marketing. Other places mean other things when identified as senior 
center including adult day care. Mostly found pictures similar to ours with older white women. When 
looking at Miami, Fl., found pictures that had some diversity with men, non-white men, men doing 
things like building birdhouses. Not an issue that is unique to us, pretty widespread issue. Ann found 
on the Miami site, a picture of a sign made out of wood that said “Welcome to our friendly, fabulous 
facility” Ann would like to find someone who can make the sign, she will help with painting and provide 
the wood. She also suggests that we have a second person sitting by the West door to greet people. 
Steve added that he volunteered at a senior center when he was a teen in New York and even with all 

26



the diversity in the community, the people who used the senior center were the older white women, 
seems to be a ubiquitous issue.  
 
Goal #3: Ann has the policies at home and would like to get them done. Sonia indicated which format 
she would prefer. Procedures have all been typed, about 1/3 are in the “Done” pile. 
 
Goal #4: All committee members currently 60+ Activity Center members. 
 
Goal #5: Don’s goal. Have not heard from Don recently. Terrie working with Don on the goal. Terrie 
has not spoken with Don in months. Sonia added that Terrie has been making posters for activities, 
posters for the bulletin board.  
Mike added that Goal #5 ties directly with Goal #2, seem to mesh well. 
 
Fee Schedule Review 
Mike reported that recommendations from the Recreation Business Plan that was developed are 
being used to complete a fee analysis across the entire department. The 60+ Center is fairly simple 
as one price allows access to everything. Mike in series of several meetings with City Manager to 
review data collected. Fee analysis comparing direct costs of what it takes to run an activity. Using 
LERN model that Parks and Rec staff recently completed training in. A lot of the items that are in the 
black can be attributed to the 60+ Center. The changes that will come from the analysis have not yet 
been finalized. 
Sonia shared that one of the items learned in the LERN training is to round up or down for round 
numbers. Hoping to implement at least rounding the nearest quarter. Also hoping to add a new fee 
just for social access to the Center. Right now one fee allows access to everything, classes, etc. 
Sonia would like feedback/input on charging one low fee, maybe $10 just for access to the lounge, a 
separate fee for all access to include classes. Goal is to have more affordable way for everybody to 
be able to participate. Ann added that when she has been in the Center, she sees several people who 
come regularly just to sit in the lounge. $10/year is a good deal for a warm, social outlet. If this 
happens it would be July 1.  
Steve is on the Budget Committee. Steve asked why do we want less reliance on the General Fund 
when it is currently balancing? Mike responded, general principles and to be good stewards of the 
taxpayers’ dollars. Most subsidies used to cover overhead. Want community to provide input on how 
much should be subsidized. Is each program a community or an individual benefit? If it’s an individual 
benefit, it should not be as subsidized. Currently our fee structure dependent on CPI. Fees have 
strictly reflected CPI, not costs for each individual program. Want to make sure fees are responsibly 
structured.  
Mike commends the 60+ Center because trips are all in the black. Fuel increases have been factored 
in. 
 
Supervisor’s Report 
Friends of the 60+ Activity Center received a $2,500 donation from First Interstate Bank earmarked for 
the community meals. Some of the funds will be used for monthly birthday meals that will start in April. 
Veteran’s Service Office has $800 that will be used towards the monthly birthday meals.  
Dorinda Howden is working Tuesdays from 8:00 – 5:00 and has filled in for emergencies when Judy 
was not able to come in. 
Jalene Case has offered 9 complementary assessments and three 2-hour workshops to review for the 
Advisory Committee and 60+ Center staff. Ann thanked committee members for completing the 
assessments. She is excited to see how the group can use the assessments. 
Ann asked Sonia for the contact information for Michael Meagher, who did a presentation on wood 
carving, if he can help make the wooden sign that Ann mentioned earlier.  
 
Public Comments  
No public comments have been brought forward.  
 
 

27



Establish Next Agenda and Meeting Date 
 
Next meeting will be on Monday, March 27 at 2:30 p.m. From 12:30 – 2:00 p.m. on March 27 will be the 
Advisory Committee Orientation session at the 60+ Activity Center. Terrie has prepared new member 
packets that have been distributed. Will not read document line for line, expect everyone to read 
beforehand. Sonia will give a tour of the Center first. 
Ann concerned about committee members who are assigned to goals but do not work on them. Would 
like to discuss guidelines for attendance requirements, something for committee to discuss. Mike will 
look at City code to see if there are City attendance requirements. Thinks it’s just a matter of having a 
conversation with the committee member.  
Bryn asked Mike about a joint meeting between the 60+ Center Advisory Committee and the Parks and 
Rec Advisory Committee – had one several years ago. Mike agreed it is a good idea, it is on the Parks 
and Rec Advisory Committee annual calendar to have a joint committee meeting. One of their goals is 
to offer more support to the 60+ and Aquatic Center. Parks and Rec Advisory Committee meets on the 
first Wednesday at 5:30 p.m. Mike will research when joint meeting is scheduled. 
Mike mentioned previous discussions with the Library to offer all-access passes for people to check out 
from library to use at the Rec & Aquatic Center and at the 60+ Center. 
Ann asked Shelly and Steve what goals they would like to work on. Shelly would like to work on Goal 
#2 – Diversity. Steve will think about it and let the committee know which goal he is interested in next 
month. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:28 pm. 

28



 
 

 
 
 

 
March 27, 2023 

2:30 p.m. 
Newport, Oregon 

 
Call to Order 
Chair Ann Way called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m. 
60+ Advisory Committee Agenda 
The 60+ Advisory Committee met on the above date and time in the Council Chambers of Newport City 
Hall. Roll call:  Ann Way, Bryn McCornack, Terrie Murphy, Shelly Thompson, Steve Lovas  
 
Staff in attendance: Sonia Graham, Mike Cavanaugh 
Absent: Don Jay, City Liaison Beatrice Botello 
 
Vicki Bock submitted resignation effective immediately. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

Approval of Minutes – February 27, 2023 
Bryn McCornack moved to approve minutes. Terrie seconded. All in favor. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
FY 2022-2023 Committee Goal Report  
Goals show City Strategy – where directly ties to Vision 2040. 
 
Goal #1: First objective to add one more evidence-based program. Last week Bryn met with Karen, 
the trainer for Living Well with Chronic Conditions. Will have an instructor training here in Newport in 
late Spring, early Summer with the goal of starting a class in Fall or Winter of 2023. Instructor training 
is a four—day eight-hour training session. Each class requires two workshop facilitators.  Bryn did a 
presentation about the hybrid program working on to State of Oregon Walk with Ease facilitators. It 
went well, she has a link to the presentation for those interested. We will continue with the hope of 
having other facilitators in Oregon move to a hybrid offering.  
Next WWE begins in May. Bryn and Sonia working on strategies for increasing enrollment. Working to 
put together a master plan for promotion. 
Objective #5 – explore feasibility of a reciprocal referral relationship contract with UniteUs. Mike will 
check with Spencer.  
 
Goal #2: Increase diversity, equity and inclusion. Five-year goal, this is year two. Been working 
constantly on trying to get other people, who don’t look like us to come to the 60+ Center and be 
comfortable coming to participate. The first objective is to develop a strategy – we have not done this 
yet. Ann will set appointment to sit down with Sonia and develop a strategy. 
Identify outreach strategies – we have done this, but need to do it again and write them down. We 
have, but have not identified anything with them. 
We have stopped offering the complimentary lunches to Veterans (cards that were given to VSO and 
American Legion) because in two months, no one has redeemed one yet. Sonia is working with 
Veterans Services, we will participate with those efforts to hopefully be able to help Veterans that 
way. 
The tamale feed is supposed to happen sometime towards the end of May. Have not heard back from 
Alex yet to confirm, offered Tuesday, May 23 from 9:00 – 2:00.  Been logistical problems in the past, 
hopefully this will happen. 

29



Outreach to homeless population through Grace Wins. Sonia will be offering a bbq on June 11. Ann 
invites all committee to come. Will need a food handlers card if handling food. Shelly said to count  
her in. There will be facilities for restroom and handwashing provided. 
The goal for next year is the host program. Ann finding it very enjoyable coming in Wednesdays. 
Calling people by their names makes them feel good. There’s at least two people every week she 
knows she makes happy. Vicki had been the lead, Terrie will take over as lead. 
 
Goal #3: Policies and procedures. The policies Ann typed up sitting on Sonia’s desk. She had been 
hoping to turn them around and return to Ann today. She is actively reviewing and will get to Ann 
soon. All current procedures have gone through the process. Sonia has picked out format she wants 
to use for policies. There’s not too many, most come from the City of Newport. Ann hopes to get 
through first round in the next two months. 
 
Goal #4: Completed 
 
Goal #5: Terrie has been making trip posters for the board and also for classes. Been changing them 
up and making them bright, interesting, and fun to make people take notice. Okay to give Terrie 
information early to have Terrie create posters. 
 
Steve Lovas would like to work on policies and procedures goal. 
Shelly had said she wants to be part of Goal #2, she was not listed. 
 
Committee Member Attendance and Participation  
Brought this up last month concerning members that we have not seen for months. Not able to get 
report from head of workgroup for Goal #5 because that committee member has been absent for 
months.  
 
Advisory Committee member orientation earlier today. Brochure says that board members “attend 
periodic committee meetings.” Bryn made motion that “Committee members attend 75% of advisory 
committee meetings and provide reasonable notice when they will be absent.” Terrie seconded. 
Discussion: Not sure if 75% is reasonable or useable number. Also not sure what reasonable notice to 
attend is, but have had issue when don’t have a quorum, so would like notice. Ann pointed out that 
notice should be provided to Sonia if member cannot attend meeting. 75% of would be eight meetings 
per year.  
Normally when have issues with other committees, we have a discussion with the committee member. 
If it’s going to be a consistent issue, setting a hardline is reasonable. Sonia had talked to the absent 
member who had been traveling. He was going to come talk to her but she has not since heard from 
him. 
It’s not unreasonable to expect people to attend. If you can’t do your job, you can’t do your job.  
75% is not unreasonable. Within that 75% there will be times you cannot attend, but you need to let 
someone know. 
Mike suggested that instead of a motion the language be drafted and added to the bylaws for the 
committee. The City Attorney would need to take a look at it before it gets approved. It has to go 
under committee bylaws.  
There are general bylaws for all City committees. This would be a change just for this committee. 
Once approved, would need to go to City Council. 
Bryn would like to be on workgroup to draft the language. Steve will also help. They will draft 
something, bring back to this committee, and then pass along. 
Bryn moved to table the motion. Will create workgroup and report back at next meeting. Shelly 
seconded. All in favor. 
 
Fee Schedule Review 
Mike discussing fees. Meeting with staff tomorrow. Have made progress with fee analysis, few more 
pieces to go through. Will provide analysis to City Council workgroup on April 3 and will share with 
committee how that went. 
Using the LERN pricing formula and the Greenplay resource allocation recovery pyramid method to 
determine costs allocated per activity and price accordingly.  

30



Most likely will present two ways of building price structure. Activities and programs using pyramid 
method. For memberships and passes more analyzing what is done in regional area with local 
competitors. Set fees that are comparable, not pricing anyone out of market. Hope to stay more 
balanced with new fees. 
Not being subsidized from General Fund at all would leave only Aquatic Center. It would shut down 
75% of activities.  
This discussion happened previously in 2009 in conjunction with the 2009 business plan. The 
recommendation at the time was to move in this direction of cost recovery. City Council in 2009 
decided not to make that move.  
Suggested that the 60+ Activity Center look at offering a “Pay it Forward” membership structure where 
people pay more than an annual membership to pay for someone who is not able to pay the fee. One 
idea Mike is working on is how to keep scholarship funds sustainable, maybe with a surcharge in fees. 
Would create a more sustainable scholarship program.  
Ann suggested that instead of stopping any program because of low attendance, first take a look into 
why people are not coming. There might be a reason that is not obvious on the surface. That is part of 
what was discussed in the LERN program. Try a program three times and try to determine why it did 
not work.  
 
Supervisor’s Report 
Bryn and Sonia went to Corvallis for a SOAR/SPRINT incubator. Really good training session from 
around Oregon. Different sessions talking about DEI, how to make inclusive programs. There was a 
pane from ARC about what makes them feel welcome, not welcome, what kind of advertising they would 
respond to.  
Was able to talk to others about their fee structures. Will share with Mike. 
Working with Veterans Office. Veterans Appreciation lunch on May 5, part of Loyalty Days. If anyone 
can come help serve, would be greatly appreciated.  
Volunteer Appreciation lunch on April 18, committee members all attended. 
April 19 is the first of monthly birthday lunches, also working with Veterans Service Office. Idea was to 
address isolation and loneliness. Will be for anyone who has a birthday in the month of April. Anyone 
who is able to come help is welcome. Bingo at 11:00, lunch at noon. 
Terrie working hard on organizing the next Job and Volunteer Fair that will be held on April 25. 
Sonia will be on KNPT with Keith Barnes on April 6 to talk about Birthday lunch. 
Ann reminded members to include any volunteering done for 60+ Center that comes out of this, even if 
not directly related to goal work, in reporting of hours volunteered. 
No comment on submitted report. When ran membership numbers last month, were a little over 1,100 
members. Watching numbers monthly and they continue to increase. Also adding one or two items to 
the calendar every week. Sonia’s goal to have so many items on calendar that we have to print on a 
larger 11x17 calendar to fit everything in. 
Ann contacted Michael Meagher about creating wood sign. Ann does not currently have email at home, 
but she has not heard from him since. He had indicated interest. Sign will say “Welcome to our 
Fabulous, Friendly Community.” 
He did attend Author Fair previous Saturday and Michael mentioned he was working with Ann on the 
sign. Also, Author Fair well attended with about 30 people and 12 authors. 
Steve suggested Sonia report on number of members added or deducted each month. 
 
Public Comments  
No public comments have been brought forward.  
 
Establish Next Agenda and Meeting Date 
Next meeting will be on Monday, April 24 at 2:30 p.m.  
Steve and Bryn will report on language for attendance policy. 
Sonia requested that people consider potential committee members who people might suggest apply. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:26 pm. 

31



 
 

 
 
 

 
May 22, 2023 

2:30 p.m. 
Newport, Oregon 

 
Call to Order 
Chair Ann Way called the meeting to order at 2:32 p.m. 
60+ Advisory Committee Agenda 
The 60+ Advisory Committee met on the above date and time in the Council Chambers of Newport City 
Hall. Roll call:  Ann Way, Bryn McCornack, Terrie Murphy, Shelly Thompson, Steve Lovas  
 
Staff in attendance: Mike Cavanaugh 
City Liaison CM Hall 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

Approval of Minutes – March 27, 2023 
Terrie Murphy moved to approve minutes. Steve Lovas seconded. All in favor. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
FY 2022-2023 Committee Goal Report  
 
Goal #2: Ann and Sonia developed a strategy. Something like “Identify the key people in the local 
community organizations who will help us to expand this goal.” Includes the tribe, Alex, about four-five 
local organizations. As of today, have inclusion flags that CM had explained to us on the doors at the 
60+ Activity Center. Also got flags from neighbor at Bloom that are hanging. Excited that we are now 
open and accepting of everybody. 
Tamale feed was supposed to happen tomorrow (May 23), finally heard back from person who was 
supposed to offer today. Sonia and Ann had already decided to cancel since we had not heard back. 
Message was sent four weeks ago, and 3-4 more messages had been sent since then that were not 
responded to. 
Ann and Bryn been working with the Veterans. They attended the Veterans lunch and come to 
Veterans Birthday lunch which is on the fourth Wednesday of the month. Encourage everyone to 
attend. 
CM used to work with Veterans. She suggested a Veterans panel around Veterans Day where people 
can share their experiences. Shelly recommended we see if Keith Barnes, VSO has something similar 
already set up that he could share with us. 
Ann and Terrie worked the booth at Bloom, had an ABC’s of Fun wheel where people listed 
something fun we do at the 60+ Activity Center in exchange for a prize. They went with about two 
dozen tee-shirts, only brought back about 3-4.  Also had six flowers to give away and six day passes. 
 
Goal #1: Bryn made a presentation on March 21 to Walk with Ease facilitators in Oregon. Talked 
about how to reduce isolation in older adults and suicide prevention. On April 14, she did a 
presentation on loneliness for Samaritan clinicians. She spoke about how isolation affects mental 
health and talked about the hybrid program. Also did presentation at Newport Library with Sonia on 
April 11 talking about different things available at the 60+ Activity Center. New patron signed up from 
that talk and is participating in the Walk with Ease program. Bryn working with Keith to encourage 
Veterans to participate to reduce isolation. Have hotspots they can use to be included from home. 
Bryn is hoping to speak at Oceanview about the program (Shelly said they will set a date for her to do 
so.). 
 

32



Goal #3: Form workgroup to work on policies and procedures. Ann suggested to Sonia to complete 
three policies and procedures a day before she starts work or before she goes home to bite off an 
easy chunk at a time. Sonia did complete some.  
 
Goal #4: Completed 
 
Goal #5: Improve community engagement to users of the facility – ongoing. Terrie stated getting new 
members all the time, and many renewing. Terrie is making posters for upcoming activities. Exciting 
to be getting new members. Ann said she knows we get at least one new member every Wednesday 
when she is there. 
Host program: Ann will be moving to Florence sometime in the next few months. Ann has every 
intention of fulfilling her commitment to the Advisory Committee. She has been hosting every 
Wednesday since the first of January. People are getting used to her, she is having a lot of fun. 
People look for her, often sit down and chat. Observer of committee meeting talked to Ann while she 
was hosting. Vicki was going to get name tags, that did not happen. Ann does not know of anyplace 
local to get name tags. Host program will not continue after she leaves unless we can get people to 
volunteer. People have said they would volunteer when they get through surgeries. We have 
advertised the host program on the board and in Sonia’s newsletters, but no one has taken us up on it 
yet. Bryn could do Wednesdays from noon to 1:30. 
 
Committee Member Attendance and Participation  
Workgroup of Bryn and Steve. Drafted a draft policy and sent to Sonia. It is not written to beat people 
up over the head, it’s more of guidance for attendance. Sonia reviewed and sent to Ann. Ann had a 
couple of changes. One was to make it 10-12 meetings per year to attend. Something about 
members, needs to say “current board members.” Mike suggested we put it on the next month 
agenda for review. Bryn has a copy – attendance guidance of committee. Other change is that when 
have workgroup meetings, need to let leader of workgroup know if board member cannot attend, not 
Sonia. Typically, don’t meet one month in the summer, and often do not meet in December.  
 
Supervisor’s Report 
Sonia has been super busy, hard to set a meeting with her. March and April reports attached to agenda.  
 
Public Comments  
No public comments have been brought forward.  
 
Establish Next Agenda and Meeting Date 
Next meeting will be on Monday, June 26 at 2:30 p.m. Committee goal reports. 
 
The Budget Committee is meeting tomorrow night. Steve met with Sonia to review capital expense 
requests that Sonia requested. Steve will be her voice. 
 
CM loved the Volunteer Appreciation event and really appreciates Sonia’s newsletters. 
 
Mike made sure committee is aware that there is a new proposed fee for lounge use only.  
 
Adjournment 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:07 pm. 

33



 
 

 
 
 

 
June 26, 2023 

2:30 p.m. 
Newport, Oregon 

Call to Order 
Chair Ann Way called the meeting to order at 2:37 p.m. 
60+ Advisory Committee Agenda 
The 60+ Advisory Committee met on the above date and time in the Council Chambers of Newport City 
Hall. Roll call:  Ann Way, Bryn McCornack, Terrie Murphy, Steve Lovas  
Absent: Shelly Thompson 
 
Staff in attendance: Sonia Graham 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
Approval of Minutes – May 22, 2023 
Bryn McCornack moved to approve minutes. Steve Lovas seconded. All in favor. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
FY 2022-2023 Committee Goal Report  
 
Goal #1: Revision of 2023 Goal #1 for FY 2022/2023. Fit & Strong Training has been postponed until 
2023/2024 goal cycle. Added an equitable Fit & Strong hybrid class to the roster. First class 
completed June 28, 2023. 
Objective 2 – Just one addition to continue in 2023/2024 goal cycle. 
Objective 3 – On June 23, finalizing presentation to NRPA with 60+, Corvallis Community Center, and 
Samaritan. Scheduled to present to NRPA meeting in July 2023. 
Objective 4 – From March 2023-June 2023, no electronic referrals from Samaritan have been 
received. 
Objective 5 – Sonia and Mike working on 
 
Next month, goals will be for new year. Everything achieved will be gone from list of goals.  
 
Goal #2: First objective to develop a strategy. Sonia and Ann have not yet met to do. Ann will get 
something to Sonia. 
Objective 2 – The office staff has been translating flyers into Spanish. 
Objective 3 – Nothing new happening. Continuing monthly birthday lunch on 4th Wednesday of the 
month. Encourage people to come serve lunch. More and more young veterans coming in. Tamale 
feed on way back burner for now. Ann did not receive a response until the day before the event, Ann 
and Sonia had already agreed to cancel the previous Friday. 
 
Goal #3: Form workgroup to work on policies and procedures. Nothing has happened in last month. 
Sonia will get policies and procedures that need to be fixed. Everything given to Sonia, just need to be 
updated. Close to being done. This will be an annual procedure to review policies and procedures. 
When Ann leaves, everything will be on 60+ Computer for updating.  
Should updating policies and procedures go on 2023/2024 goals calendar. It will be because it was 
not completed. Will be a discussion with Sonia how she wants updates to happen. There will be a 
sheet at the front of the notebook with dates for renewal and review of policies and procedures. 
 
Goal #4: Completed 
 
Goal #5: Terrie been working on this. She has been putting up all kinds of flyers and posters on the 
board. 

34



Steve attended a ribbon cutting at the Willamette Valley Cancer Institute, suggested we reach out to 
them as their clientele would likely be interested in the 60+ Activity Center. 
 
Committee Member Interview  
Kathleen Kuebbing applying to rejoin. Kathy was on the Advisory Committee a few years ago. After 
questions, answers and discussions, Bryn McCornack moved to approve Kathy Kuebbing to the 60+ 
Activity Center Advisory Committee pursuant to City Council approval. Terrie Murphy seconded. All in 
favor. 
 
Advisory Committee By-Laws Update 
Rather than look at this as an amendment to the by-laws, will present it as a guideline. Purpose to 
establish guidelines without being punitive. Added word “workgroup” to #4. Also, change 11 meetings 
to 10-12 meetings (sometimes skip once in summer and once in December, but may not always do 
so.) 
As opposed to making this a part of the by-laws, this will be included with letter that is given to new 
Advisory Committee members.  
 
Public Comments  
No public comments have been brought forward.  
 
Supervisor’s Report 
Report for May attached to agenda. Completed workshops that Jalene Case offered. Very good 
information about communication styles and how to work better together. Sonia sharing worksheets at 
monthly staff meetings and staff spending time talking about it. Veterans appreciation lunch was great 
in May. Sonia just graduated from Leadership Lincoln. Assisted with David’s Chair fundraiser. Office 
staff helped gather donations, about $3,800 raised. At this time we are next in line to receive a chair. 
Currently have 1,175 members compared to 893 this time in 2019. Just added another 3 or 4 activities 
to the calendar for July. People continue to submit ideas for how to make the Center more vibrant. 
Sonia and Terrie will have a table at the Senior Fair at the Lincoln County Fair. Bryn will come help as 
well. Sonia hoping to bring Judy and Christine to the Fair as well. 
Budget update: Approved for some requests. Funding received to remove the wallpaper, repair, and 
paint the walls in the lounge and hallway. Sonia hoping to get some people to assist with colors and 
design. 
Also approved budget for landscaping. Sonia hoping to work with patrons to form work parties and get 
assistance with planning and design. 
Not approved funding for flooring. Will be moving forward with plans for remodel. Will be having all 
new plans drawn up. The north side 2nd Street entrance was not designed to be ADA accessible. Mike 
has already spoken with Spencer and got agreement that if we are going to do the remodel, 
everything should be ADA accessible. Sonia developing a survey with items of interest to get input 
preference from patrons about suggestions.  
There was new signage put up in parking lot. Less reason for people to not know that it is 60+ Activity 
Center parking only. 
 
Ann added that she spoke with Michael Meagher about making wooden signs. She told him she 
wants them to be inviting, welcoming, and encouraging diversity. One sign will be by check-in 
machine by 2nd St. entrance. The other will go between multi-purpose room door and plastic sign. 
Michael is donating the materials and his time, no charge. He will make the letters different colors for 
the word “friendly.” The sign will say “Welcome to our fabulous, friendly community.” He will make and 
install them for us. 
 
Establish Next Agenda and Meeting Date 
Committee agreed to not meet in July, 2023. 
Next meeting will be on Monday, August 28 at 2:30 p.m.  
 
Adjournment 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:30 pm. 

35



 
 

 
 
 

 
August 28, 2023 

2:30 p.m. 
Newport, Oregon 

Call to Order 
Chair Ann Way called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m. 
60+ Advisory Committee Agenda 
The 60+ Advisory Committee met on the above date and time in the Council Chambers of Newport City 
Hall. Roll call:  Ann Way, Bryn McCornack, Terrie Murphy, Steve Lovas  
Absent: Shelly Thompson 
 
Staff in attendance: Judy Cook filled in for Sonia Graham and Mike Cavanaugh 
Guests in attendance: Kathy Kuebbing, Craig Hansen 
 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
Committee Member Interview  
Craig Hansen applying to rejoin. After questions, answers and discussions, the committee voted half 
in favor, half opposed, to accepting Craig onto the committee. According to Roberts Rules of Order, 
the guidelines which this committee follows, a vote that is not approved by a majority of voting 
members fails. The committee failed to accept Craig onto the committee. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
Approval of Minutes – May 22, 2023 
Bryn McCornack moved to approve minutes. Steve Lovas seconded. All in favor. 
 
FY 2022-2023 Committee Goal Final Report  
No questions regarding submitted final report (attached to agenda) 
  
FY 2023-2024 Committee Goal Report 
Goal #1: 

• Target date of June, 2024 to have a second evidence-based program on the roster. 
• Working with two additional rec centers and community centers to get Lebanon up and running 

with Walk with Ease in coordination with OSU Extension. 
• Final oral presentation given to DST regarding lessons learned from Samaritan, NRPA, and 

60+ partnership. Final report due in November 2023. 
• Review registration and referral process – looking for process that does not need a separate 

report for each program. 
• Mike and Sonia responsible for researching Unitus contract. 

Adding one objective to explore Medicaid and Medicare reimbursements for evidence-based 
programs. IN conversation with Alicia Bublitz and Theresa Young. Also meeting with Jennifer 
Valentine from OR Health Authority. 
 
Goal #2: Terrie working with Ann on goal. 

• Ann has not yet met with Sonia. 
• Still working on translating everything into Spanish. 
• Have reached out to underserved communities and are continuing to work on that. 
• Have not met with tribe yet. Ann and Terrie have discussed and need to talk again about best 

way to do that. 
• Working with Veterans. Have the lunch the last Wednesday of every month. 
• Check with Sonia to volunteer to help with lunch. 

36



 
Goal #3: Ann and Steve 

• Ann does not have ability to sit and work on a computer right now. Only about seven or eight 
policies left for her to review. When complete it will be moved to the 60+ Activity Center for 
keeping. 

• Sonia has list of new policies and procedures to work on. Steve will be more involved with 
those. 

 
Goal #4: Terrie and Shelly 

• Been bringing in a lot of renewals and building membership up. 
 
Goal #5: Ann and Terrie 

• Ann has not hosted in about a month, Kathy has been. 

• Guidelines for host completed, needs to be updated. 

• Still working on signing up volunteers for hosting. 

• Sign – Michael will not accept payment. Ann will follow up with him. 
 
Supervisor’s Report 
June and July reports attached.  
Sonia not in attendance, if you have questions, address her.  
Positive comments regarding Friday emails and number of volunteer hours. Committee please get 
hours to Judy. 
 
Public Comments  
No public comments have been brought forward.  
Terrie mentioned several events scheduled: 

• Health Fair on October 20 
 
Establish Next Agenda and Meeting Date 
Next meeting will be on Monday, September 25 at 2:30 p.m.  
 
Adjournment 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:20 pm. 

37



 
 

 
 
 

 
September 25, 2023 

2:30 p.m. 
Newport, Oregon 

Call to Order 
Chair Ann Way called the meeting to order at 2:33 p.m. 
60+ Advisory Committee Agenda 
The 60+ Advisory Committee met on the above date and time in the Council Chambers of Newport City 
Hall. Roll call:  Ann Way, Bryn McCornack, Kathy Kuebbing, Terrie Murphy, Shelly Thompson 
Absent: Steve Lovas  
 
Staff in attendance: Sonia Graham, Mike Cavanaugh 
City Liaison: CM Hall 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
Approval of Minutes – August 28, 2023 
Bryn distributed the report that she read into the minutes at the previous meeting. An update of the 
goals for Fiscal Year 2023/2024. 
 
Bryn McCornack moved to approve minutes as written with updated amendment to goal #1 for 
2023/2024. Terrie Murphy seconded. All in favor. 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
FY 2023-2024 Committee Goal Report 
Goal #1: 

• Bryn in conversations with CCO for Samaritan regarding Medicaid reimbursements. 60+ would 
be a sub-contractor providing services. 

 
Goal #2: Ann and Terrie 

• Ann will be working on this week. The first objective not yet done. She will work on it and pass 
it by Sonia. 

• Have not yet finished outreach strategies for community members. 
• Terrie and Ann been speaking about reaching out to Siletz Tribe. Terrie gave Ann some 

names, Ann will reach out this week. She would like to invite them to do a presentation. Shelly 
offered assistance with contacting Siletz tribe, she has a couple of employees who are tribal 
elders. Shelly also suggested we invite a tribal elder to be on the Advisory Committee. 

 
Goal #3: Ann, Steve, and Kathy 

• Goal is ongoing because policies and procedures need to be reviewed on an annual basis. 
• Ann is hoping to type or fix the rest of the policies and procedures this week. 

 
Goal #4: Terrie and Shelly 

• Having a volunteer lunch and strategy meeting Wednesday, September 26 to honor volunteers 
and discuss strategies. 

• All Advisory Committee members invited. Person who was co-organizing and person who was 
going to bbq are both not able to attend. Need assistance between 11:00-11:30, Ann will come 
help. Purpose to get ideas from volunteers about what we can do better. Sharing input and 
ideas among volunteers. Bryn invited people down to see what’s going on with new equipment 
at end of luncheon. 

38



• Ann asked about objective to obtain immediate feedback on activities and events. Sonia thinks 
that goal had to do with using the scan machine to conduct surveys. Not sure if that is feasible. 
60+ is conducting quarterly surveys with all classes and info provided to instructors.  

• Last objective to create an automated process to renew membership. Jenny, former office 
clerk, used to contact people whose memberships were expiring. Sonia just asked Christine, 
new office clerk, to contact anybody whose memberships are expiring soon. Not automated, 
but calling everybody. Sonia believes this is why numbers are so high, currently at 1206 
members. Print off report in CivicRec currently. Sonia has not begun to work on automating the 
process. CivicRec should be able to send out an automated report and Christine can make 
follow-up calls. 

 
Goal #5: Ann and Terrie 

• Ongoing goal because always want the Center to be a welcoming environment 

• Ann has not heard from Michael about the wooden signs. She will send him an email to follow 
up. 

• Ann will update the host schedule for the rest of the year. So far it is only her and Kathy 
Kuebbing who have acted as hosts. 

• Goal when we do a remodel is to have the reception desk in the center of the room so 
everybody who enters will feel welcomed. 

• Terrie does ask people to be hosts when they say they want to volunteer. 
 
Distributed goal report was not up to date. Ann reviewed each goal to have the correct Advisory 
Committee members assigned to each goal. 

• Goal 1 – Bryn she will still be responsible and is fine with the goal as written with the addition of 
Medicaid/Medicare 

• Goal 2 – Ann will continue, Kathy, and 60+ staff 

• Goal 3 – Ann, Steve 

• Goal 4 – Terrie, Kathy, Shelly 

• Goal 5 – Ann, Terrie, Kathy 
Ann will send two months’ worth of notes for the next meeting. Bryn will send Ann what she has 
electronically. 
 
Next month need to start thinking about goals. Start working on goals in October and November 
because don’t have a December meeting. Mike needs to have goals off to City Council soon. 
We come up with goals and try to match them to Vision 2040. It’s not required but a good thing to do. 
We come up with goals and then objectives and members decide what they want to help with. 
Most of the meeting will be taken up with goal work.  
We sign off and send to the City who approves. 
We don’t start working on new goals until July, 2024. We can begin work sooner, but not required. 
 
Newport Parks & Rec Advisory Committee 
Supposed to have someone here to talk about a survey. Sonia sends a survey every quarter, not sure 
it is necessary. 
Sonia clarified that her survey is specifically about the specific classes from the students enrolled. 
Person who was supposed to be here probably couldn’t get off work. She is copied on notes and 
agendas for P&R Advisory Committee. She understands that the P&R committee wants to know how 
to best help us out.  
Mike added that the goal is to have a larger group approach to projects and goals to make sure that 
we are moving forward together. Parks and Rec Advisory Committee trying to think outside the box. 
Charlie Brown taking up the lead from the Parks and Rec side.  
Clarified that it’s okay for committee members to meet together socially or for outside meetings as 
long as there is not a quorum present. 

39



Mike tries to get each division manager to report to Parks and Rec Advisory Committee at least once 
per year so they hear directly what’s going on.  
October 10, November 1, and December 6 are the next three Parks and Rec Advisory Committee 
meetings. Ann will try to attend if she can. 
Anyone can come and watch as a visitor, meetings are open to the public. 
 
Supervisor’s Report 
August Supervisor’s report was attached to packet. Report on September activities: 

• 60+ and Parks and Rec hosted a fantastic event in conjunction with Newport Pride on 
September 23. 60+ hosted Drag Bingo which was very well attended. 

• Final hike of the year at Heceta Head last Thursday. Just getting too cold and wet now. Next 
year will form two groups, one beginner, one advanced. 

• Volunteer Appreciation lunch next week. 
• Events coming up October and November 
• September 27 is monthly birthday lunch. Could use a dishwasher and someone to serve food if 

they have their food handlers’ card. 
• Halloween there will be a Halloween party held by Association. 
• Started working on Community Thanksgiving meal. If anybody wants to assist, let Sonia know. 

Lt. Michele from Salvation Army working on sourcing food. Members of 2022/2023 Leadership 
Lincoln meal planning group helping out as well. Meal will be on Sunday, November 19. There 
will be specific tasks on Saturday, November 18 for volunteers to sign up for. There will be two 
seatings, meals on wheels will deliver, volunteers will be fed between meals. Julia Dobies will 
manage kitchen again and MOW chef and cook will also be helping. 

 
City Liaison CM Hall Comments 
When looking over 2023/2024 goals, can’t think of better example of meeting many goals at once than 
the Newport Pride. It meant everything that the staff didn’t just show up, they showed up as allies for all 
the events, even outside the Rec Center and 60+ Center. 
Many thanks to the volunteers who were wrangled to help out. City services and facilities were made a 
safe space – critical to how LGBTQIA community is perceived in community. Shout out to Frank Perdue 
who was a big help as well. Destination Newport committee helped fund Pride, meant quite a bit. 
This morning City Council met to interview candidates for vacant City Council position. Robert Emond 
was selected to fill the vacant position that opened with Jan Kaplan became Newport Mayor. Now have 
a full City Council again. 
 
Applicant, Craig was not approved onto the Advisory Committee by way of a tie vote the previous month. 
Craig was informed and is fine with the decision. Bryn added that Craig is in the Center on a regular 
basis and hopes that he does stay connected and share the temperature of what people are saying 
since he is there. Terrie also invited Craig to join one of the other committees – Association or Friends. 
The Newport Senior Citizens Activity Association is having its annual meeting on November 15, Ann 
has it on her calendar to attend. Everyone is invited. 
 
Public Comments  
No public comments have been brought forward.  
 
Establish Next Agenda and Meeting Date 
Next meeting will be on Monday, October 23 at 2:30 p.m.  
Will begin conversation about goals. Starting with current goals, then discuss adding new goals. 
 
Adjournment 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:24 pm. 

40



Page 1 of 7 
October 17, 2023 

Water Supply Management and Conservation Workgroup 
Newport, Oregon  

 
 
 

 October 17, 2023 
1:09 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
Water Supply Management and Conservation Workgroup Meeting  
 
The workgroup met on the above date and time in the City Council Chambers of the 
Newport City Hall. Mid-Coast Water Shed – Mike Broili; Oregon Coast Community Forest 
– Jay Fineman; Customer Keven Shreeve; Civil West Engineering Restaurant/retail 
representative- Jason Pond; Rogue Brewing, John Moody; Pacific Seafood, Mark 
Saelens, Board of Director for the SWCD via zoom.  Mayor/Council Liaison- Jan Kaplan. 
City Staff in attendance were: Assistant City Manager/City Recorder, Erik Glover, Spencer 
Nebel; City Manager, City Engineer, Aaron Collett, Water Treatment Plant Supervisor, 
Steve Stewart, Matt Hall; Water Distribution Senior.   
 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Glover called the meeting to order at 01:09 P.M.  

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
  Water Demand Analysis Presented to City Council- Glover provided a summary of the 
report, and Broili asked about 2010 drop, Nebel reported the drop was likely due to 
economic conditions. Moody advised that it seemed to be a decline in production for 
seafood processors likely related to economic conditions.  
 

Broili asked did the report consider climate change when this document went to 
Council. Broili referenced if things get out of hand the coast seems like the place to go, 
which would increase water demand. Nebel detailed there only being so much 
developable space in the distribution system, due to so many possible places for City 
expansion, unless UGB expansions are considered. Stewart reported that climate change 
was not a hot topic back between 2007-2018 or so, so it would maybe likely not be 
considered.  
 

Glover detailed that the production is down to 2015 levels of production. Nebel said 
surimi production was down this year, would be a likely culprit. Moody reported fish plants 
ran 2-3 months this year, stopped first week of August. Nebel reported good news is using 
less water, the bad news is water revenues are down due to selling less water. Nebel 
reported that water is trending downward this year, the largest explanation is declines in 
fish producers, second issue is as water rates increase folks are mindful and more 
conservative. Nebel said stopped pumping on Siletz in early in August, off for a month 
and then came back on to meet demand.  
 

Broili asked what surimi wasn't running. Moody said this is not normal, market 
conditions are down. Russia put a lot of pollock surimi on the market which tanked prices.  

41



Page 2 of 7 
October 17, 2023 

Water Supply Management and Conservation Workgroup 
Newport, Oregon  

 
 
 

Shreeve referenced that this document talks about what was produced, but does not see 
data related to water loss. Nebel said we have that data, it is recorded in Finance and will 
come back in a presentable format at the next meeting for the group. Moody held a 
discussion about operating time period for the seafood production plants. Stewart 
reported water use was different for H&G and surimi production. Moody said higher. 
 

Glover provided a summary of 2007 water master plan and the loss ratio referenced 
then.  
Broili reported he would like to know what the number looks like now.  Stewart reported 
there is a minimum or guideline for water loss ratio, it is more of a minimum if you are 
going after funding. Saelens used to say nationally it was not uncommon to have 25-30%, 
if Newport was at  16% back then, and we can document we are still there that’s a pretty 
good number. Given that 0 is not attainable. Moody inquired if in that 16% is the City fire 
department use included? Nebel reported he'd have to look at the methodology used, to 
calculate what it is now.  Stewart reported various city facilities are not in the grand total 
of water sold. It is not billed, so not regarded as sold. Meter is read though. Stewart 
reported that the fire chief will start sending him monthly use for fire purposes, which 
should be tracked. Moody reported if you don't know what is used, its hard to track water 
loss ratio. Hall shared that all the buildings are metered, which are read. But the water 
usage is just not billed.  
 

Saelens you look at the projected trend of water you need, and series of things to 
conserve water which comes at the aspect of not making money, and the new dam. He 
inquired if the City is looking at how the dam replacement will relate to sustainable water 
in Newport, and how the project will ease that situation?  Nebel reported lower reservoir 
storage doesn't really count as it is more of a leveling pond. Saelens shared it would be 
interesting to know if the dam comes online in 2030, and how much of that buffer is 
projected water use compared to if City didn't have it.  He shared there didn’t appear to 
be an easy solution for this one, but given the conundrum of reducing water use, but also 
having to sell water to pay for the fixed infrastructure costs. He advised it may be good to 
look into a program similar to the Blue Sky power program, where people pay more for 
electricity generated from renewable sources, if they want to pay for stabilizing water 
supply source or something.  

Water Rate Structure/Variable Rate Discussion. Glover presented the written staff 
report which said Staff has attached the current Newport water rates, “23-24 Newport 
Water Rates”, “Water Meter Flow Rates”, “Water Rate Example”, “Water Use 
Comparison”. Under the Water Use Comparison attachment, Staff pulled information from 
the annual water use reporting of the State of Oregon. The idea was to locate cities of 
similar and larger sizes, and other coastal communities, to determine if any information 
on water use could be discerned. Please keep in mind that this is a very rudimentary 
comparison. Does not necessarily reflect finished water, any population increase due to 
tourist/seasonal population increases, any amounts pumped but not delivered, any 
required releases from impoundments/reservoirs, water line breaks, evaporation, fire 

42



Page 3 of 7 
October 17, 2023 

Water Supply Management and Conservation Workgroup 
Newport, Oregon  

 
 
 

response, or potential water sales to another entity outside of the entity in question. 
Looking at the data the average water use is around 899 million gallons for the cities 
surveyed. In previous meetings of the workgroup, a water rate structure with conservation 
in mind was referenced. During research on this agenda item, Staff located an article: 
Conservation Water Rates for Residential Customers 
https://fwrj.com/techarticles/0810%20tech1.pdf This article seemed to share a good 
amount of information related to the topic. As indicated in the article, rate structuring is a 
difficult topic. Staff performed a very rudimentary example of what something like that 
could look like. With the Water Meter Flow rates attachment, you will note as meter size 
increases the GPM which can be diverted from the system increases as size increases, 
which is not earth shattering. It did seem apparent though, that a user with a larger meter 
pays more as a fixed/base rate, due to the fact that their actual and potential use carries 
a larger burden to the water infrastructure. Newport’s current rates structure has a close 
variant of this, and was set by a previous water rate study. For purposes of this example, 
Staff took the current residential and commercial fixed charge for ¾” meter and scaled it 
up based upon meter size, and potential increase in max GPM over the ¾ meter size. 
Staff also setup a quick conservation minded pricing tier.  

Under this example, water charges increase as consumption increases over set tiers. 
The EPA has some further information Understanding Your Water Bill | US EPA 
https://www.epa.gov/watersense/understanding-your-water-bill Under this kind of pricing 
model the increase in unit charge, rewards any efforts a user can make to conserve water, 
such as fixing a leaking internal or external water fixture, or installing higher efficiency 
fixtures. Generally fixed and variable rates are established by a rate study, Newport’s was 
last done in 2018. One option that may could come out of this discussion is a 
recommendation to the Newport City Council to conduct a water system rate study, with 
an emphasis on evaluating the potential of a conservation minded rate structure for water 
user fees. One idea that is not necessarily directly related to the topic, is a potential 
community challenge related to water conservation methods. An example being an 
announcement of the opportunity, and a challenge to water users where they receive 
some of prize or recognition for their unique or standard measures for saving water. It 
could be structured such as the largest total amount of gallons saved on a monthly/annual 
basis, or largest percent reduction in use in a monthly or annual basis. It seems like it 
might could be a novel and fun way to incorporate the goals of the workgroup through a 
recommendation to the City Council. 

 
Broil referenced that conservation reduces cash flow, depending upon to run the 

system. Nebel shared that on the rate discussion there is a number of things which come 
into play you pay the same rate amount for water, for 1000 gal as 100,000 water used. 
Historically, rates were almost structured where there was a lower rate for higher usage 
of water it was encouraged to facilitate industrial development. The other option some 
places are implementing a rate which increases in tiers, as the value of water increases, 
it can have some significant increases on bills. Nebel our water system is supported 

43



Page 4 of 7 
October 17, 2023 

Water Supply Management and Conservation Workgroup 
Newport, Oregon  

 
 
 

entirely by rates which are charged, of those costs most of the cost are fixed for the 
infrastructure. He shared he committee may want to make a report on this concept.  

Broili shared that Saelens spoke to setting rates before, and the struggle which was 
had to come up with an equitable way to offset the costs. Moody reported that 10% of 
Pacific Seafood overhead right now is water cost, the company is making strong efforts 
to reduce use, but it is still a sizeable sum of money.  Pond reported that a big portion of 
Rogue Brewing costs is water as overhead, but will have to verify the percentage.  

Nebel reported the current base rate buys no water used. The philosophy in utility 
rates is there are fixed costs regardless of if you use 1,000 or 100,000 gallons of water, 
which is the purpose of the base rate.  Nebel reported the last rate study was done by 
FCS Group, who evaluated rates, to establish three classes of properties. Saelens asked 
when did rate study get done. Nebel reported he thought was about 5 years ago.  

Saelens shared with fixed costs a utility needs to collect enough in base rate for costs, 
and then compare and contrast if I’m well off to own a second home I don't want to have 
to pay a high base rate because I am paying something I am not using. But yet I am getting 
something of value, any time I come here I can come and turn on the faucet and water 
comes out. He shared is he advocating taking a look at does it make sense to charge a 
higher base rate and more flat water usage charges. Or if it makes sense to look at 
increasing the usage cost, and reducing the base rate. He reported that he didn’t really 
worry about if the City charges $20 or $40 dollars a month for base rate, he can afford it 
and likes living here, but unfortunately in other situations it makes a big difference for 
people.   

Nebel reported the City has lower rates for low income qualified people, they have to 
apply through Community Services Consortium. He advised the City charges a 1% 
franchise fee to cover the costs for those folks. There is not a lot of people that need that 
help, but it is an option.  

 
Discussion of Glover staff report. Discussion of other water systems around Oregon.   

 
Group reported this is difficult for them to comprehend, as a subject. Glover reported this 
is why a professional rate study would be used if the group made the recommendation to 
City Council.  

 
Broili asked what percentage of meters are smart read. Hall reported meters all are 

now digital or radio read. Broili detailed Seal Rock Water District info on water usage 
alerts. Nebel advised Newport also has that same app, and the City sent out a lot of 
materials during the implementation. The work group requested that Finance present the 
water smart alert system at the next meeting. Hall reported the City had the Water Smart 
system which sends out auto alerts, if customers/accounts are registered. He advised 
some of the meters are not able to be tower read, so they are read by drive by which does 
not report instantaneously. Current digital meters are read at the 15 minute time frame, in 
most of Newport automatically. Broili inquired if the City would notice if a leak occurs on 
someone’s property?  

44



Page 5 of 7 
October 17, 2023 

Water Supply Management and Conservation Workgroup 
Newport, Oregon  

 
 
 

Hall advised that if Neptune 360 is used it would red flag the water usage, not 
necessarily an audible alert though. If finance checks that data daily then they could call, 
but that may not be practicable. Moody reported his company has gotten calls from 
Finance several times reporting on a potential leak. Nebel asked what percent of town is 
tower read, verses drive by. Hall reported around 85% as a guess, and 15% which are 
drive by monthly. Pond inquired what would be observed if a main had a leak? Hall 
reported that the City does not have the technology for alerts on main leaks. Pond 
reported he observed one by the lighthouse recently. Hall reported that leaks do tend to 
occur in areas of ground movement in Newport.  

 
Discussion on Voluntary Curtailment/Drought Press Releases. Glover provided a 

summary of the press releases sent out regarding a stage one voluntary water 
curtailment.  Broili reported he also saw traffic/road signs, but only one at north and east 
not south. Nebel reported that was correct, because the City only owns two signs.  Stewart 
reported that many people said they didn't know we are in drought until the signs went 
out, and appear to be one of the best ways to get that information out.   
Kaplan referenced that many people auto pay bill and don't open mail. Nebel shared City 
is now emailing out all notices to email accounts of customers.  Broili reported the Lincoln 
Alert System may be an option. Kaplan reported it may be good to see how to connect 
with the alert system. Pond shared that engagement with the local schools may be good 
regarding droughts. The youth would likely take the information back home.  
 

Moody asked how much water Newport uses per day in the summer. Stewart advised 
that 3 million gallons a day was typical.  
Saelens shared that it was interesting folks didn't know we were in drought. Originally 
forecasts projected a 77% of normal precipitation in July, when they did future update it 
was only at 25% of July normal precipitation.  

Broili reported that the City needs to ferret out ways to react to these issues, as if we 
know something is happening and can't convey that to the public it doesn't help. Saelens 
reported another previous hot button issue, was a summer time exemption for garden 
rates. The assumption was during these months it was going to the yard, and not the 
sewer system so sewer gallonage was not charged. He advised it is important that 
frequently reminding users watering a yard is a luxury in summer. Nebel reported the City 
did eliminate the summer watering exemption which was a painful process, but was the 
best decision for a variety of reasons.   

Discussion on Outsourced Committee Management. Nebel reported the City 
continues to have staffing issues across departments. We have someone starting 
November 6th as Deputy City Recorder, which is critical in support of committees. He 
advised the City is still recruiting Public Works Director, the Operations Public Works 
Director has been out of work for an extended period. He reported that Broili and he 
discussed bringing someone in to provide technical support to the work group and putting 
it into a report regarding conservation for the City. Nebel advised he didn't think it will be 
a huge cost, the City has some funding we can use to put towards having someone assist. 

45



Page 6 of 7 
October 17, 2023 

Water Supply Management and Conservation Workgroup 
Newport, Oregon  

 
 
 

We want them to help facilitate these meetings, and draft a report which goes to 
administration and council as the end result of the work group. Nebel advised the City has 
had a challenge trying to maintain the level of support internally, so the consultant could 
help. Broili reported the person could take on other tasks, such as in redoing the 
conservation and management document which is 6-7 years past due on renewal, and 
the funding for the water protection plan.  

Nebel reported that part of the Water Management and Conservation Plan is being 
picked up in the Water Master plan, so he sees the work group fitting into that analysis for 
a recommendation.  Broili advised that at least two of the people who would be about fill 
the consultant role, review and create the documents, and the water protection plan, and 
they would oversee the group which fit under one umbrella.  

Nebel reported the Council last night authorized agreement for source water protection 
plan, and a consultant will be selected.  Collett reported he is unsure if the water supply 
group would be involved in the effort or not. Broili reported he has been involved in 3 of 
them, and part of the process is an advisory group for the community.  

Nebel advised the City may want to select a consultant for the source water protection 
plan, and may want to see about having extra work outside of the grant for the additional 
time needed to support the water management and conservation workgroup. Broili 
reported that in his view the water master plan, and water management and conservation 
plan fits into those efforts as well and should be included.  

Discussion about Beneficial Use of Treated Effluent Water. Glover advised that he 
was thinking about one mission of the workgroup being a way to figure out how to 
conserve water, and got to thinking about beneficial use of effluent water. He advised it 
would likely not be a direct savings as water is still being used, but it would be water 
recycled for non-potable sources, instead of using potable water for that purpose, such 
as flushing toilets. He provided a summary sharing that he felt beneficial use for irrigation 
of a forest area by the wastewater treatment plant, a greenhouse, or using it for non-
potable/ toilet flushing in special situations should be reviewed.  Brief discussion was held 
about possible beneficial uses of treated effluent water.  

Broili advised he would agree that it could be used for something like irrigation golf 
courses, and a number of different opportunities for that.  He reported he has extensive 
experience with rainwater harvesting, and is not necessarily a smart technology unless 
used for flushing toilets, due to being there when you don’t need it, and not being there 
when you need it for irrigation purposes. Shreeve reported that in some instances, 
communities have switched to a new water system and abandoned the old one to be used 
for effluent/purple pipe systems.  

Saelens inquired if the City line does line run down HWY 101, and is it easily 
accessible. He advised a demo of the idea for something like irrigating of a City park, may 
make sense.   Nebel reported the effluent line would have to be evaluated to see if that is 
possible or not, by evaluating the line maps. Nebel reported staff would be reviewing the 

46



Page 7 of 7 
October 17, 2023 

Water Supply Management and Conservation Workgroup 
Newport, Oregon  

 
 
 

effluent line route.  Moody reported seafood processors have to use potable water. Pond 
reported brewers also had to use potable water.  

Broili inquired as to if the City effluent is treated to such a degree to be in contact with? 
Nebel reported he would need to evaluate that information.  

Broili reported he would like to see PFAS on a future agenda.  Stewart reported the City 
is extensively testing, and has zero in treated water, and is also not finding PFAS or lithium 
in finished water, but it seemed likely to be present in wastewater though.   
 

Report on Source Water Protection Grant and Watershed Acquisition.  Nebel gave a 

summary, advised group is not being invited to submit a full proposal on watershed 

acquisition through NOAA. Requests likely exceeded funds available, and review panel 

didn't feel it was as competitive as others. He advised Sustainable NW is pursuing other 

funding sources. Broili shared he is disappointed, but encourages City to keep moving 

forward on it. Nebel reported it is an important goal of the council.  

Fineman reported he is happy to hear it is a goal of Council. He attended DEQ 

meeting at community college recently, watershed protection is a big effort right now 

across agencies. Nebel shared some of the criteria which hurts us is the protection of 

natural resources, they don't view reservoir as a natural resource. I believe legislation is 

passed to consider drinking water as an important resource to protect as well.  Unsure 

how it will work through the state now. Broili inquired if City has identified the area to 

include in this effort. Nebel shared primarily most of our watershed is commercial forest 

owned. He added he thought acquisition is likely much easier when dealing with a 

handful of large landowners, than with a huge number of small land owners. Nebel 

reported it is cheaper to buy land when it has been cutover, although it does not retain 

as much moisture.  

Fineman shared he has heard some direction of a regional plan. Nebel advised the 

NOAA plan wouldn't allow us as an individual City to do it, so we did it regionally with 

others through Sustainable NW. Broili added there are funds available for creating 

management plans. Nebel shared the City was applying for that, but got penalized 

because it was a drinking water reservoir versus other drinking water impacts. Saelens 

reported that Sustainable NW is already planning on this, is disappointed it didn't work. 

But there is still a community forest program through USFS. It is not as large, but ODF 

has a program which pays half of the costs, up to a max of $400,000.   

PUBLIC COMMENT 
None was heard.   

ADJOURNMENT 
 
  There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 02:56 P.M.  

47



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: December 4, 2023 
 
Agenda Item: 
Public Hearing and Possible Consideration of a Purchase and Sale Agreement for the 
Abbey Street Pier Building Located at 669 SW. Bay Boulevard. 

 
Background: 
Following a public hearing on June 20, 2023, the City Council determined that the Abbey 
Street Pier building at 669 SW Bay Boulevard was no longer needed for public use and it 
was in the public's interest to sell the building. On August 7, 2023, the City Council 
selected Freddy Saxton of Advantage Real Estate, to market the property for sale on 
behalf of the City. The listing price for the property was $729,000. An offer was received 
from Ocean Bento, LLC, in the amount of $692,550. The City Council authorized a counter 
offer at $710,000. That counter offer has been accepted.  
 
Newport Municipal Code Section 2.25.040(f ) sets out the process the City must follow for 
the direct sale of property to an interested party. Notice has been placed regarding the 
sale. On November 24 a copy of the sales agreement setting out the nature and general 
terms of the proposed sale, including an appraisal or other evidence of market value, is 
to be fully disclosed at the public hearing. In addition, there are easements that will need 
to be put into place to provide access to the public pier, which the city will be retaining, 
and to allow the City to continue to use a mechanical room in the building. This room 
contains the controls for fire suppression system installed to protect the dock. Other 
documents with the Department of State Lands lease the and license for the public access 
dock will also need to be updated. 
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend the Mayor conduct a public hearing on the direct sale of the Abbey Street 
Pier building at 669 SW Bay Boulevard to Ocean Bento, LLC, in the amount of $710,000 
subject to the attached commercial real estate sales agreement. 
 
Following the public hearing, and considering any public comment, I recommend the City 
Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to approve the commercial real estate sales agreement for the Abbey Street Pier 
building at 669 SW Bay Boulevard and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
necessary documents to complete the transaction, including execution of necessary 
easements,  subject to review and approval by the City Attorney. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
Proceeds from the sale will be directed to the City’s Land Reserve Fund.  

48



Alternatives:  
Seek changes to the sales agreement, hold off on pursuing a financial sale, or as 
suggested by the City Council.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

49



Page 1 of 1 

        

         
 
        
        

            Date: December 4, 2023 

 
Title: Public Hearing to Consider a Purchase and Sale Agreement Setting Out the Terms of Sale of the 
Abbey Street Pier Building at 669 SW Bay Blvd 
 

Prepared by: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Director    
 

Recommended Motions:  I move to approve the commercial real estate sales agreement for the Abbey 
Street Pier Building at 669 SW Bay Blvd, and authorize the City Manager to execute the necessary 
documents to complete the transaction, subject to review and approval by the City Attorney. 
 

Background Information:  At its June 20, 2023 meeting, the City Council determined that the Abbey 
Street Pier Building at 669 SW Bay Blvd is no longer needed for public use, and that it is in the public 
interest to sell the building. The City Council further directed the City Manager to seek proposals from 
qualified real estate brokers to market the property for sale.  At its August 7, 2023 meeting, the City 
Council selected Freddy Saxton, Advantage Real Estate, to market the property for sale on behalf of 
the City.  The property was since advertised for sale with a listing price of $729,000.  On October 26, 
2023, an offer was received from Ocean Bento, LLC in the amount of $692,550.  The City Council 
authorized a counter offer at $710,000 and that counter offer was accepted. 
 

Newport Municipal Code (NMC) Section 2.25.040(F) sets out the process the City must follow for the 
direct sale of property to an interested party.  Notice of the proposed sale must be published in a 
newspaper of general circulation at least five days prior to the hearing.  That occurred on November 24, 
2023 (enclosed).  A copy of the sales agreement setting out the nature and general terms of the  
proposed sale, including an appraisal or other evidence of market value of the property, shall be fully 
disclosed at the public hearing. 
 
With this sale, an easement will need to be put in place to provide access to the public dock which the 
City will be retaining since the real property in front of the dock would be sold with the Abbey Street Pier 
Building.  Additionally, a second easement will be needed to allow the City to continue to use the 
mechanical room in the building.  The mechanical room contains the controls for the fire suppression 
system installed to protect the dock.  Draft language for both easements is enclosed.  The Department of 
State Lands lease for the commercial building, and license for the public access dock, will also need to be 
updated.  Copies of the existing lease and license are enclosed, as are legal descriptions by Civil West 
Engineering illustrating the new in-water lease areas. 
 
Fiscal Notes:  Proceeds from the sale would be directed to the City land account for future land 
purchases, unless an alternative use of the funds is identified by Council. 
 

Alternatives:  Move forward with the potential sale, seek changes to the sales agreement, hold off on 
pursuing a potential sale, or as suggested by Council. 
 

Attachments:   
Draft Commercial Real Estate Sales Agreement 
Draft Public Dock Access Easement 
Draft Fire Suppression System Easement 
DSL Lease 11546-ML 
DSL License 23348-LI 
Updated lease/license legal descriptions 
Appraisal 
Public hearing notice 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

50



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E18C6DF-8F6A-41B6-8D71-FCCABAE1B636

11/8/2023 | 3:46 PM PST

51



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E18C6DF-8F6A-41B6-8D71-FCCABAE1B636

52



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E18C6DF-8F6A-41B6-8D71-FCCABAE1B636

53



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E18C6DF-8F6A-41B6-8D71-FCCABAE1B636

54



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E18C6DF-8F6A-41B6-8D71-FCCABAE1B636

55



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E18C6DF-8F6A-41B6-8D71-FCCABAE1B636

56



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E18C6DF-8F6A-41B6-8D71-FCCABAE1B636

57



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E18C6DF-8F6A-41B6-8D71-FCCABAE1B636

58



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E18C6DF-8F6A-41B6-8D71-FCCABAE1B636

59



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E18C6DF-8F6A-41B6-8D71-FCCABAE1B636

60



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E18C6DF-8F6A-41B6-8D71-FCCABAE1B636

X

11/8/2023 | 3:46 PM PST

083010/27/2023

61



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E18C6DF-8F6A-41B6-8D71-FCCABAE1B636

11/8/2023 | 3:46 PM PST

62



Sale Agreement #______________   

Form 2.1 · Counteroffer to Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement · Version 2023-2                                                      Page 1 of 1 

Copyright © 2023 Oregon REALTORS®. This form is for use exclusively by Oregon REALTORS® 
Report unauthorized use to Oregon REALTORS® at 503-587-8884 

2.1 COUNTEROFFER TO REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

1. Property Address or Description:        1 

2. Names of Parties to this Agreement: 2 
Buyer      Seller        3 
Buyer       Seller        4 
Buyer        Seller        5 
Buyer       Seller        6 

3. Description of Addendum. 7 

SELLER Counteroffer #      . This Counteroffer is a rejection of (check one) Buyer’s Offer Buyer’s Counteroffer #       and 8 
is an offer by Seller to enter into an agreement with Buyer on the terms below.  Seller may withdraw this Counteroffer by giving Buyer 9 
oral or written notice of withdrawal prior to Mutual Acceptance. 10 

BUYER Counteroffer #      . This Counteroffer is a rejection of Seller’s Counteroffer #      and is an offer by Buyer to enter into 11 
an agreement with Seller on the terms below.  Buyer may withdraw this Counteroffer by giving Seller oral or written notice of 12 
withdrawal prior to Mutual Acceptance . 13 

4. Counteroffer. The Parties accept all of the terms and conditions contained in the above Offer or Counteroffer with the following 14 
changes (Parties can attach documents reflecting the changes if desired):  15 
                    16 
               17 
               18 
               19 
               20 
                21 
               22 
               23 
                24 
               25 
               26 
               27 
               28 
                29 

5. Deadline. This Counteroffer expires on          [Date] at          a.m. p.m. (Deadline).  30 
The offeree may accept the Counteroffer only by selecting “Accept” in Section 6 below and delivering a true, signed copy of this 31 
Counteroffer form to the offeror prior to Deadline. If acceptance occurs after Deadline, the Parties must complete Form 2.3 Late 32 
Acceptance Addendum in order for the Agreement to be binding on the Parties. 33 

6. Response:  ACCEPTS   REJECTS    COUNTERS Counteroffer (use new Form 2.1 for Counter-Offer terms).  34 

7. Signatures. 35 
By signing below, the Parties agree to the terms of this addendum and make it part of the above referenced Sale Agreement: 36 

Buyer’s Signature                                                                                                           Date & Time                                                      . 37 
Buyer’s Signature                                                                                                           Date & Time                                                               . 38 
Buyer’s Signature                                                                                                           Date & Time                                                               . 39 
Buyer’s Signature                                                                                                           Date & Time                                                               . 40 

Seller’s Signature                                                                                                           Date & Time                                                               . 41 
Seller’s Signature                                                                                                           Date & Time                                                               . 42 
Seller’s Signature                                                                                                           Date & Time                                                               . 43 
Seller’s Signature                                                                                                           Date & Time                                                               . 44 

10202023DC

669 SW Bay Blvd., Newport, OR 97365

Ocean Bento LLC City of Newport Oregon

4 1 4

1) Purchase price is $710,000.00

2) Subject to buyer providing acceptable proof of liquid cash funds within 2 business days of

mutual acceptance.

3) Seller response deadline to original offer is extended to 11/10/2023 at 5:00 PM.

11/10/2023 8:00 4

Created by Freddy Saxton with SkySlope® Forms

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E18C6DF-8F6A-41B6-8D71-FCCABAE1B636

11/8/2023 | 3:46 PM PST

63



64



$6,925.00

8M.F.ls, A{C, * trSMAND r$$rt r {

. - ". N.qWpert,-9r9sQn. -,_i.,:!'nui srn:* iji.;*is Giicilii;:: ' "-'" "" "^.. ".1,1t-14t29?3

i )it .ji:l!);ri !d" I/ u $, lo!n,1") iuld s*.\ crall,!,, f r(xlt)s( to l).r-v to llrr: r:rdcr 0f ..WgS!gm -Ti![q &"Escfpw. NgWpO!'j,..Q.R

..1 .i.r\i'rI ,,i,r"g ;.'5 1)i,iri\ :{, i_'r r6arlc) ?qS SW gga_sJ HWy, Sqile_100, Nglvp-e(, OR 973^6-5

llr(' t;;il1 rrl Sixthousand nine hundredtwenty-five.and no/1OO
.. r' :.: 1i :.:,.1:, .) :\ r..r!., ' 0.00 .. l!.r(r,EiJ,..;.111;1,1111ir,,nl
t1,i,t ii, pirij ,rt xhrr !i'lij\{ilri: r,r.i1i;ri'r. - nOt appliCable - ,_. -.

lr ilr,r nrrlr i, pjnia.i ilt tJr-,1;:l;:il
.)i,. ilrLrli ttjr:l\- i'\'i,ii thr$tlr:tlr strit.:l a' iflln
'{ ,r: lJri't i!'iiti.:rr! "dr_\ :iFtr\.ii, }s tri-.-i }i{:.Hi,i or dr'ltrL:rl

*l:6

11t',t412023 __

DOL-l.ARS.
-.- urrtil paitl- I'rirrr la drrond, rnterrlt

., J1.,..ir..: ;,...il,j',\i,.r l{, f_nri,ri tI!. iir!lr
l.irc nrtmix.rn.I nt'.rue to rhd lulder's reanrmable rttorrcy fcs

rllorn(y f[ct courl({) rn

.rli ,r!: iti, A\, ii !!Vli,:; r;t.:iS fotlr,! rrAY 6E rlf,.Pr-tlfilict $ ll{ A\Y Fi}ffV Oq eY ANY ELECTflCVC C}tl VECHA\ICAL MEANS

'.. l$i$ lq) $li vUsr; NE.tS tas IrUALiSslfi St rSf, ItrFti). OF1 wtr.tlffirssss ls

65



 

Page 1 of 4 – EASEMENT – Abbey Street Public Dock Access and Utility Easement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

After recording return to: 

City of Newport 

Attn: City Recorder 

169 SW Coast Hwy. 

Newport, OR  97365 

 

 

 

EASEMENT 

 

_______________________________, hereinafter called “Grantor,” hereby gives, grants and conveys to 

the City of Newport, an Oregon Municipal Corporation in Lincoln County, Oregon, hereinafter called 

“Grantee,” an easement over certain real property owned by Grantor, said easement being more 

particularly described below and illustrated on the schematic drawing attached as Exhibit A: 

 
AN EASEMENT OVER A PORTION OF REAL PROPERTY IDENTIFIED IN BOOK 245, PAGES 2077-

2083 OF THE DEED RECORDS OF LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON, MORE PARTICULARLY 

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMENCING AT A POINT, CALLED THE “INITIAL POINT” THAT IS LOCATED AT THE 

NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 6 BLOCK 2 IN THE ORIGINAL TOWN OF NEWPORT OREGON, AT 

THE MOST EASTERLY CORNER OF LINCOLN COUNTY TAX LOT 4500; THENCE SOUTH 64⁰ 00’ 

50” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET TO THE MOST WESTERLY CORNER OF LINCOLN 

COUNTY TAX LOT 1300; THENCE NORTH 25⁰ 59’ 10” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 52.00 FEET TO 

THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 64⁰ 00’ 50” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 15.00 

FEET; THENCE NORTH 25⁰ 59’ 10” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 28.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 64⁰ 

00’ 50” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 25⁰ 59’ 10” WEST, FOR A 

DISTANCE OF 28.00 FEET TO SAID TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 420.00 SQUARE 

FEET MORE OR LESS. 
 

PURPOSE; USE:  The easement encompasses a portion of an existing public access dock owned and 

maintained by Grantee, and subject to a public recreation facility license with the Oregon Department of 

State Lands.  Its purpose is to facilitate continued use of the dock by the public once the adjacent 

commercial building is sold and no longer in public ownership.  Grantee, its employees, contractors, 

agents, invitees and the public shall have a right of access over, under, and above the real property 

described herein, including the right of Grantee to construct, maintain, inspect, repair, replace, renovate or 

remove material related to maintaining and improving the dock and appurtenant utilities. 

 

TYPE OF EASEMENT:  The easement granted by Grantor to Grantee is perpetual. 

 

GRANTOR RESERVATION: Grantor, its heirs, successors, and assigns retain all water, mineral and 

other rights not specifically granted herein, so long as Grantor, its heirs, successors, and assigns do not 

interfere with the uses allowed by this Easement when exercising such rights. 

 

66



 

Page 2 of 4 – EASEMENT – Abbey Street Public Dock Access and Utility Easement 

CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS:  Grantee, its employees, contractors, agents 

and invitees shall have the right to enter upon the easement to construct, maintain, inspect, repair, replace, 

renovate or remove material as needed to accomplish the purposes of the easement.  Grantee shall be 

responsible for all maintenance and repairs of the dock and any appurtenant improvements constructed 

within the easement.  In the event damage is caused to Grantor's property by Grantees employees, 

contractors, agents or invitees, Grantee shall promptly, at Grantee's expense, make necessary repairs to 

restore the property to the condition existing prior to the damage.  If Grantee fails to make such repairs 

promptly, Grantor may make such repairs and shall have a claim against Grantee for the cost of such 

repairs. 

 

INDEMNIFICATION:  Grantee shall, to the extent permitted by the Oregon Constitution and applicable 

Oregon law, hold Grantor harmless, and to indemnify and defend Grantor from any loss, claim or liability 

arising out of Grantee’s use of the easement after the date of the execution and acceptance of this 

easement, including reimbursement for Grantor’s attorney fees in defending any such claim. 
 

ATTORNEY FEES:  In the event any suit or action is filed to enforce any of the terms or conditions or 

omissions under this agreement, the losing party shall pay to the prevailing party the prevailing party’s 

costs and attorney fees, including attorney fees on any appeal. 
 

SUBJECT TO ENCUMBERANCES:  This easement is granted subject to easements and 

encumbrances of record, provided, however, that this provision shall not relieve the Grantee from any of 

Grantee’s obligations and responsibilities under this easement. 
 

CONSIDERATION:  The true and actual consideration for this easement is other than a monetary 

payment. 
 

BINDING EFFECT:  This easement and the covenants contained herein shall run with the property 

described herein and be binding on the heirs, successors and assigns of the parties.  This easement will not 

be considered abandoned until Grantee has declared the easement abandoned and no longer in use, and 

releases this easement in a duly executed and recorded Release of Easement. 

 

MODIFICATION:  Any agreement or modification which affects or modifies the terms of the easement, 

including its use or obligations herein, shall be binding on the parties only if evidenced in writing, duly 

signed by Grantor, Grantee, theirs heirs, successors, or assigns, in a document the form of which would be 

received and recorded by Lincoln County, Oregon.  

 
 

IN WITNESS whereof the parties have executed this instrument as of the date opposite their 

names. 

 

 

Grantor: 

 

_______________________________________  
 

______(Name)__________, dated ___________  

67



 

Page 3 of 4 – EASEMENT – Abbey Street Public Dock Access and Utility Easement 

 

STATE OF OREGON  ) 

) ss  

County of Lincoln  ) 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of _______________, 2023 by 

_____(Grantor Name)____________. 

 

     ___________________________________ 

Notary Public for Oregon 

My commission expires: _______________ 

 

 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT 

 

The City of Newport, Oregon, does hereby accept the above-described easement this ____ day of 

________________, 2023.  

      ___________________________________ 

Spencer R. Nebel, City Manager  

 

 

STATE OF OREGON  ) 

) ss  

County of Lincoln  ) 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of _______________, 2023 by 

Spencer R. Nebel as City Manager of the City of Newport. 

 

     ___________________________________ 

Notary Public for Oregon 

My commission expires: _______________ 
 

68



 

Page 4 of 4 – EASEMENT – Abbey Street Public Dock Access and Utility Easement 

 

69



 

Page 1 of 4 – EASEMENT – Abbey Street Pier Building Fires Suppression System Easement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

After recording return to: 

City of Newport 

Attn: City Recorder 

169 SW Coast Hwy. 

Newport, OR  97365 

 

 

 

EASEMENT 

 

_______________________________, hereinafter called “Grantor,” hereby gives, grants and conveys to 

the City of Newport, an Oregon Municipal Corporation in Lincoln County, Oregon, hereinafter called 

“Grantee,” an easement over certain real property owned by Grantor, said easement being more 

particularly described below and illustrated on the schematic drawing attached as Exhibit A: 

 
AN EASEMENT OVER REAL PROPERTY IDENTIFIED IN BOOK 245, PAGES 2077-2083 OF THE 

DEED RECORDS OF LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS ALL 

OF THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF GROUND LYING AND BEING BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES 

HARBOR LINE AND THE EASTERLY LINE OF BAY BOULEVARD OF THE CITY OF NEWPORT, 

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF BAY BOULEVARD THAT IS DULY 

OPPOSITE THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 IN THE ORIGINAL TOWN OF 

NEWPORT, OREGON; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF BAY BOULEVARD IN A 

SOUTHWESTERLY DIRECTION A DISTANCE OF 80 FEET; THENCE IN A SOUTHEASTERLY 

DIRECTION AND AT RIGHT ANGLES WITH SAID BAY BOULEVARD TO THE UNITED STATES 

HARBOR LINE; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE SAID UNITED STATES HARBOR LINE 

80 FEET; THENCE AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

TOGETHER WITH: 

 

BUILDING AND DOCK IMPROVEMENTS SUBJECT TO A SUBMERSIBLE LAND LEASE WITH THE 

OREGON DEPARTMENT OF STATE LANDS MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMENCING AT A POINT, CALLED THE “INITIAL POINT” THAT IS LOCATED AT THE 

NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 6 OF BLOCK 2 IN THE ORIGINAL TOWN OF NEWPORT OREGON, 

AT THE MOST EASTERLY CORNER OF LINCOLN COUNTY TAX LOT 4500; THENCE SOUTH 64⁰ 

00’ 50” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET TO THE MOST WESTERLY CORNER OF LINCOLN 

COUNTY TAX LOT 1300; THENCE SOUTH 64⁰ 00’ 50” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO 

THE LINE OF PRE-FILL MEAN LOW TIDE BEING THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 

NORTH 25⁰ 59’ 10” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 52.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 64⁰ 00’ 50” EAST, A 

DISTANCE OF 50.50; THENCE SOUTH 17⁰ 32’ 03” EAST, 35.58 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 25⁰ 59’ 

10” WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 26.20 FEET; THENCE NORTH 64⁰ 00’ 50” WEST, A DISTANCE 

OF 75.00 FEET TO SAID TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING OF SAID DESCRIBED TRACT. CONTAINING 

3584 SQUARE FEET MORE OR LESS, AND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT “A” OF EXHIBIT A. 

70



 

Page 2 of 4 – EASEMENT – Abbey Street Pier Building Fires Suppression System Easement 

 

PURPOSE; USE:  The easement encompasses portions of the Abbey Street Pier Building at 669 SW 

Bay Boulevard situated above and below the harbor line.  A fire suppression system for the adjacent 

public access dock is contained inside a mechanical room located on the main floor of the building. The 

purpose of this easement is to provide Grantee, its employees, contractors, agents, and invitees, access to 

the mechanical room and other components of the premises to construct, maintain, inspect, repair, 

replace, renovate or remove material related to operation of the fire suppression system for the benefit of 

the public access dock once the Abbey Street Pier Building is sold and no longer in public ownership. 
 

TYPE OF EASEMENT:  The easement granted by Grantor to Grantee is perpetual. 

 

GRANTOR RESERVATION: Grantor, its heirs, successors, and assigns retain all water, mineral and 

other rights not specifically granted herein, so long as Grantor, its heirs, successors, and assigns do not 

interfere with the uses allowed by this Easement when exercising such rights. 

 

CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS:  Grantee, its employees, contractors, agents 

and invitees shall have the right to enter upon the easement to construct, maintain, inspect, repair, replace, 

renovate or remove material as needed to accomplish the purposes of the easement.  Grantee shall be 

responsible for all maintenance and repairs of the components of the fire suppression system within the 

easement that serve the public access dock.  In the event damage is caused to Grantor's property by 

Grantees employees, contractors, agents or invitees, Grantee shall promptly, at Grantee's expense, make 

necessary repairs to restore the property to the condition existing prior to the damage.  If Grantee fails to 

make such repairs promptly, Grantor may make such repairs and shall have a claim against Grantee for 

the cost of such repairs. 

 

INDEMNIFICATION:  Grantee shall, to the extent permitted by the Oregon Constitution and applicable 

Oregon law, hold Grantor harmless, and to indemnify and defend Grantor from any loss, claim or liability 

arising out of Grantee’s use of the easement after the date of the execution and acceptance of this 

easement, including reimbursement for Grantor’s attorney fees in defending any such claim. 
 

ATTORNEY FEES:  In the event any suit or action is filed to enforce any of the terms or conditions or 

omissions under this agreement, the losing party shall pay to the prevailing party the prevailing party’s 

costs and attorney fees, including attorney fees on any appeal. 
 

SUBJECT TO ENCUMBERANCES:  This easement is granted subject to easements and 

encumbrances of record, provided, however, that this provision shall not relieve the Grantee from any of 

Grantee’s obligations and responsibilities under this easement. 
 

CONSIDERATION:  The true and actual consideration for this easement is other than a monetary 

payment. 
 

BINDING EFFECT:  This easement and the covenants contained herein shall run with the property 

described herein and be binding on the heirs, successors and assigns of the parties.  This easement will not 

be considered abandoned until Grantee has declared the easement abandoned and no longer in use, and 

releases this easement in a duly executed and recorded Release of Easement. 

 

MODIFICATION:  Any agreement or modification which affects or modifies the terms of the easement, 

including its use or obligations herein, shall be binding on the parties only if evidenced in writing, duly 

signed by Grantor, Grantee, theirs heirs, successors, or assigns, in a document the form of which would be 

received and recorded by Lincoln County, Oregon.  

 

 
 

71



 

Page 3 of 4 – EASEMENT – Abbey Street Pier Building Fires Suppression System Easement 

IN WITNESS whereof the parties have executed this instrument as of the date opposite their 

names. 

 

 

Grantor: 

 

_______________________________________  
 

______(Name)__________, dated ___________  

 

 

 

STATE OF OREGON  ) 

) ss  

County of Lincoln  ) 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of _______________, 2023 by 

_____(Grantor Name)____________. 

 

     ___________________________________ 

Notary Public for Oregon 

My commission expires: _______________ 

 

 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT 

 

The City of Newport, Oregon, does hereby accept the above-described easement this ____ day of 

________________, 2023.  

      ___________________________________ 

Spencer R. Nebel, City Manager  

 

 

STATE OF OREGON  ) 

) ss  

County of Lincoln  ) 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of _______________, 2023 by 

Spencer R. Nebel as City Manager of the City of Newport. 

 

     ___________________________________ 

Notary Public for Oregon 

My commission expires: _______________ 
 

 

 

72



 

Page 4 of 4 – EASEMENT – Abbey Street Pier Building Fires Suppression System Easement 

 

73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



STATE OF OREGON 
DEPARTMENT OF STATE LANDS 

Public Recreation Facility License 
23348-LI 

The STATE OF OREGON, by and through its Division of State Lands (STATE), 
GRANTOR, does hereby grant to City of Newport, LICENSEE, a License for the 
construction, maintenance, repair, and/or replacement of a public recreational facility for 
the specific purpose of public access dock (Abbey Street Pier)on the following described 
property, to wit: 

All state-owned submerged lands in the Yaquina Bay in Section 8, Township 11 
South, Range 11 West, Willamette Meridian, Lincoln County, Oregon, more 
particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at a point on the intersection of the Northerly line of Tax Lot 1300 
(Lincoln County Assessor's Map Number 11-11-8CA Newport) and the line of pre-fill 
Mean High Tide on the right bank of the Yaquina Bay; 

thence riverward along a line perpendicular to the thread of the stream to the line of 
pre-fill Mean Low Tide and the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING 

thence continuing riverward along said perpendicular line a distance of 75 feet, more 
or less; 

thence downstream and 75 feet parallel, more or less to said line of pre-fill Mean Low 
Tide a distance of 31 feet, more or less; 

thence shoreward along a line perpendicular to the thread of the stream a distance of 
75 feet, more or less to the line of pre-fill Mean Low Tide; 

thence upstream along said line of pre-fill Mean Low Tide a distance of 30 feet, more 
or less, to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING, containing 2,304 square feet (.05 
acres), more or less, and as shown on the attached Exhibit "A". 

95



1. LICENSE TERM AND RENEWAL 

The LICENSEE, subject to compliance with the terms and provisions of this 
License, shall have and hold the Licensed Premises for the purposes stated above for 
fifteen (15) years beginning December 1, 2015 and expiring on November 30, 2030. 

The LICENSEE Shall have an option to renew this License for an additional period 
of 15 years after the original and each renewal license term provided that Licensee has 
submitted a completed license renewal application form to State not less than one 
hundred and eighty (180) days prior to the License Expiration Date. Upon receipt of such 
application, this License shall be renewed by State unless: 

State determines, in its sole discretion, that Licensee has not complied with the terms of 
this License, the applicable statutes and Oregon Administrative Rules; or 

State determines that the renewal of this License for all or any portion of the License area 
would be contrary to local, state, or federal law, or would be inconsistent with the policies 
set forth in OAR 141-082-0260. 

2. CONSTRUCTION 

Construction in navigable waters shall conform to standards and specifications set 
by U.S. Army Corps of Engineers or U.S. Coast Guard for the project. The bed and banks 
of the waterway shall be restored to a condition acceptable to the STATE as soon as 
construction or maintenance is completed. Any blasting construction shall be performed 
according to the laws of the state. Underwater blasting permits are required under ORS 
509.140. 

3. PREVENTION OF WASTE, DAMAGE AND INJURY 

LICENSEE shall exercise reasonable diligence in its operation on and from said 
Licensed Premises; shall carry on all operations hereunder in a good and workmanlike 
manner having due regard for public safety and the prevention of waste and for the 
restoration and conservation of said Licensed Premises for future use, and shall take all 
reasonable steps to avoid damage to soil, timber, fish and fish habitat, wildlife and wildlife 
habitat and water quality of both ground water and surface water; shall make all 
reasonable efforts to minimize interference with existing navigational and recreational 
activities and scenic values; shall substantially restore the Licensed Premises to its 
original condition and shall do all things reasonably necessary to minimize erosion. 

License No: 23348-LI 
Page 2 of 7 

96



.4. HAZARDOUS WASTE 

LICENSEE shall refrain from storing on, or discharging from or onto, the Licensed 
Premises any hazardous wastes or toxic substances as defined in 42 USC§ 9601-9657, 
except as otherwise permitted by law. 

5. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 

LICENSEE shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, 
ordinances, rules and regulations in its use of the Licensed Premises. This License does 
not give LICENSEE permission to conduct any use on the Licensed Premises which is not 
in conformance with applicable land use requirements, and it is the LICENSEE's 
responsibility to determine and comply with those and all other requirements. 

LICENSEE shall use the Licensed Premises only in a manner, or for such 
purposes, that assure fair and nondiscriminatory treatment of all persons without respect 
to race, creed, color, religion, handicap, disability, age, gender or national origin. 

6. DELIVERY OF PREMISES 

Delivery of the Licensed Premises will occur upon the date of execution of this 
License. STA TE will not provide a survey or pay any costs of a survey to determine 
boundaries. It is the LICENSEE's responsibility to make an accurate determination of the 
boundaries. The legal description provided by STATE is drawn from an assessor's map 
and/or other data deemed to be reliable. If LICENSEE elects not to have a survey 
performed and a discrepancy or boundary overlap later becomes evident, STATE, at its 
discretion, may provide a corrected description of the Licensed Premises. 

7. ALTERATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS 

LICENSEE shall obtain the written consent from the STATE prior to making any 
alterations or additions to the Licensed Premises or improvements upon the Licensed 
Premises. Any removal/fill activity in the waters of the state shall require a permit from the 
Director in accordance with ORS 196-800 et seq. 

8. ACCESS TO PROPERTY AND RECORDS 

The STATE shall have access to the Licensed Premises at all reasonable times for 
the purpose of ensuring compliance with the terms and conditions of this License. The 
STATE shall have the right to examine pertinent records of LICENSEE for the purpose of 
ensuring compliance with the License. 

Public access to the navigable waters must be maintained. 

License No: 23348-LI 
Page 3 of 7 

97



,9. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 

LICENSEE agrees to make all repairs to the Licensed Premises which are 
necessary for the purposes set forth in this License. LICENSEE further agrees to 
maintain the Licensed Premises in reasonable safe condition during the period of this 
License. If LICENSEE fails to make the repairs required under this provision or fails to 
maintain the Licensed Premises in reasonably safe condition, STATE may revoke this 
License, provided LICENSEE fails to make the necessary repairs or perform the required 
maintenance within a reasonable time not to exceed thirty (30) days after written 
notification by ST A TE. 

10. ASSIGNMENT OR SUBLETTING 

LICENSEE shall not assign, mortgage, or sublet nor enter into any third party 
agreement respecting the License without first obtaining the prior written consent of 
STATE pursuant to the requirements of the applicable Oregon Administrative Rules. 
Requests must be in writing and must be received by STATE at least thirty (30) calendar 
days prior to the effective date of sublet or assignment. STATE reserves the right to 
condition its consent as it deems reasonably prudent, including the right to require 
changes to the terms of this License. 

11. DEFAULT, NOTICE AND CURE BY LICENSEE 

A default by the LICENSEE shall occur if any of the following shall occur and if said 
default shall continue and not be remedied within sixty (60) days after the STATE shall 
have given notice specifying the breach: 

a. LICENSEE charging the public for use of the Licensed Premises (a nominal 
charge for maintenance costs of the Licensed Premises may be allowed with written 
approval of the STATE). 

b. Failure of LICENSEE to comply with any term or condition imposed by the 
STATE in the License. 

c. Failure of LICENSEE to use the Licensed Premises for the purposes 
authorized under the terms of the License. 

d. LICENSEE maintaining a nuisance on the Licensed Premises. 

e. Failure by LICENSEE to remove any lien or encumbrances placed upon 
the Licensed Premises. 

License No: 23348-LI 
Page 4 of 7 

98



,12. TERMINATION UPON LICENSEE'S DEFAULT 

In the event of a default by LICENSEE, the License may be terminated at the 
option of STATE by thirty (30) days advance notice in writing to LICENSEE. In the event 
the License is terminated by either party, all remedies afforded under this License shall 
survive such termination. LICENSEE shall have sixty (60) days after date of termination 
to remove all fixtures and property from the Licensed Premises and to restore the 
Premises to its original (natural) condition. Failure to remove such items and restore the 
Premises within the sixty (60) day period will result in assignment of the file to the 
Department of Justice. 

13. TERMINATION UPON MUTUAL CONSENT 

This License may also be terminated by mutual written consent of LICENSEE and 
STATE. 

14. INDEMNIFICATION 

LICENSEE shall perform the services under this License as an independent entity. 
LICENSEE and STATE each shall be responsible, to the extent required by the Oregon 
Tort Claims Act (ORS 30.260-30.300), only for the acts, omissions or negligence of its 
own officers, employees or agents. 

15. RESERVATIONS 

The interest of LICENSEE under this License shall at all times be subject to 
STATE's right to grant rights-of-way in and over said Licensed Premises or a portion of the 
Licensed Premises for other purposes, including but not limited to, railroads, telegraph 
and telephone lines, pipelines, irrigation or other water canals and ditches, and to 
STATE's right to lease all or part of the Licensed Premises for the exploration, discovery, 
development and production of oil, gas, or minerals of any nature whatsoever, provided 
the right-of-way or lease does not unreasonably interfere with the purpose of this License. 

16. NON WAIVER 

Waiver by either party of strict performance of any term of this License on any 
occasion shall not be construed as a waiver nor prejudice either party's right to require 
strict performance of the same provision in the future or any other provision. 

17. PARTNERSHIP 

STATE is not a partner nor a joint venturer with LICENSEE in connection with this 
License and shall have no obligation with respect to LICENSEE's debts or other liabilities. 

License No: 23348-LI 
Page 5 of 7 

99



18. MERGER 

This License constitutes the entire agreement between the parties, and no oral 
statement, representation or agreement not herein expressed shall be binding upon any 
party. 

19. MODIFICATION 

This agreement may not be changed, altered or amended without mutual written 
consent of the parties. 

License No: 23348-LI 
Page 6 of7 

100



This License is granted in order that LICENSEE can provide public recreational 
utilization of the Licensed Premises at no charge to the public, however, a nominal fee 
may be charged to cover maintenance costs of the Licensed Premises. If the facility is not 
used in compliance with this condition, the License will automatically terminate and the 
land shall revert to STATE. 

I, d "fl. --
WIT,~ ES S the seal of the Department of State Lands affixed this __ l __ of f-f,,VI.U,C<f?<.:t , 
20&_. I 

STATE OF OREGON, acting by and 
through its Department of State Lands 

Authorized Signature/Printed Name 

LICENSEE 

Title 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

License No: 23348-LI 
Page 7 of 7 

101



I 

102



. 
• 

0 10 20 

Feet 

1 inch = 36 feet 
Map Projection: 

Orwon S!a!,;wide Lambert 
- Datum HAD83 
I ntemalional Feet 

Oregon Department of State Lands 
Land Management Division 

Legend 
A Legal Description Point 

Authorization Area 

This map depicts the approximate location and 
extent of a Depta rtment of State Lands, land 
Management DiVision authorizafron for use. 
This product is for informational purposes only 
and may not have been prepared for, or be 
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes. Users of this information should review 
or consult the primary data and information 
sources to ascertain the usability of the information. 

Exhibit A 

State of Oregon 
Department of State Lands 
775 Summer St, NE, Suite 10 
Salem, OR 97301 
503-986-5200 
www.oregon.gov/DSL 

Date: 11/30/2015 

103



This License is granted in order that LICENSEE can provide public recreational 
utilization of the Licensed Premises at no charge to the public, however, a nominal fee 
may be charged to cover maintenance costs of the Licensed Premises. If the facility is not 
used in compliance with this condition, the License will automatically terminate and the 
land shall revert to STATE. 

. '/-r~ 
WITNESS the seal of the Department of State Lands affixed this / '-- -
2of/i_. 

STATE OF OREGON, acting by and 
through its Department of State Lands 

0. 

LICENSEE 

Title 

of febrv"'-ry 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

License No: 23348-LI 
Page 7 of 7 

104



Department of State Lands Private Pier Lease - Tract A 

A Department of State Lands Private Pier Lease in a portion of Lincoln County Tax Lot 01300, map 
number 111108CA more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at a point, called the “initial point” that is located at the northeast corner of Lot 6 of Block 2 
in the original town of Newport Oregon, at the most easterly corner of Lincoln County Tax Lot 4500; thence 
South 64⁰ 00’ 50” East, a distance of 60.00 feet to the most westerly corner of Lincoln County tax lot 1300; 
thence South 64⁰ 00’ 50” East, a distance of 15.00 feet to the line of pre-fill mean low tide being the True 
Point of Beginning; thence North 25⁰ 59’ 10” East, a distance of 52.00 feet; thence South 64⁰ 00’ 50” East, 
a distance of 50.50; thence South 17⁰ 32’ 03” East, 35.58 feet; thence South 25⁰ 59’ 10” West, for a 
distance of 26.20 feet;  thence North 64⁰ 00’ 50” West, a distance of 75.00 feet to said true point of 
beginning of said described tract. Containing 3584 square feet more or less. 

Date: February 8, 2023 

Robert Boyer, PLS No.2270 
Civil West Engineering Services Inc. 
609 SW Hurbert St. 
Newport, OR 97365 
Phone: (503) 706-2790 

105



Drawn By:   
Date:  

CITY OF NEWPORT

EXHIBIT FOR TRACT "A" NEWPORT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON

CMJ/RJB
FEBRUARY, 2023

N

SCALE: 1" = 40'

BA
SI

S 
O

F 
BE

AR
IN

G
 - 

CS
 #

61
26

N 
25

° 5
9' 

10
" E

, 4
57

.1
4'

TRACT "A"

(3,583.86 SQ. FEET)

TRUE POINT OF
BEGINNING

FOUND MONUMENT

CALCULATED POSITION

EXHIBIT A
ABBY ST PIER - TAX LOT 01300

DEPARTMENT OF STATE LANDS PRIVATE PIER LEASE - TRACT A

BA
SI

S 
O

F 
BE

AR
IN

G
 - 

CS
 #

61
26

N 
25

° 5
9' 

10
" E

, 9
26

.2
5'

SE
 B

AY
 B

O
UL

EV
AR

D

YA
Q

UI
NA

 B
AY

FOUND 3" BRASS DISC - INSCRIBED GARRISON
HELD FOR POSITION
NEAR COAST GUARD GARAGE

INITIAL POINT

FOUND TACK IN LEAD PER CS #2860
NEAR NORTH CORNER OF FALL ST AND BAY BLVD
HELD FOR LINE FROM 3" BRASS DISC

NE CORNER
OF LOT 6 OF
BLOCK 2

106

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
2270

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND SURVEYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBERT J. BOYER

AutoCAD SHX Text
JULY 16, 1987

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE: 12-31-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE SIGNED: 2-8-2023



Department of State Lands Public Pier License - Tract B 

A Department of State Lands Public Pier License in the northeasterly portion of Lincoln County Tax Lot 
01300, map number 111108CA more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at a point, called the “initial point” that is located at the northeast corner of Lot 6 of Block 2 
in the original town of Newport Oregon, at the most easterly corner of Lincoln County Tax Lot 4500; thence 
South 64⁰ 00’ 50” East, a distance of 60.00 feet to the most westerly corner of Lincoln County tax lot 1300; 
thence South 64⁰ 00’ 50” East, a distance of 15.00 feet to the line of pre-fill mean low tide; Thence North 
25⁰ 59’ 10” East, a distance of 52.00 feet to the True Point of Beginning; thence South 64⁰ 00’ 50” East, a 
distance of 50.50 feet; thence South 17⁰ 32’ 03” East, a distance of 35.58 feet; thence North 25⁰ 59’ 10” 
East, a distance of 53.80 feet; thence North 64⁰ 00’ 50” West, for a distance of 75.00 feet;  thence South 
25⁰ 59’ 10” West, a distance of 28.00 feet to said true point of beginning. Containing 2416 square feet 
more or less. 

Date: February 8, 2023 

Robert Boyer, PLS No.2270 
Civil West Engineering Services Inc. 
609 SW Hurbert St. 
Newport, OR 97365 
Phone: (503) 706-2790 

107



Drawn By:   
Date:  

CITY OF NEWPORT

EXHIBIT FOR TRACT "B" NEWPORT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON

CMJ/RJB
FEBRUARY, 2023

N

SCALE: 1" = 40'

BA
SI

S 
O

F 
BE

AR
IN

G
 - 

CS
 #

61
26

S 
25

° 5
9' 

10
" W

, 4
57

.1
4'

TRACT "B"

(2,416.04 SQ. FEET)

TRUE POINT OF
BEGINNING

FOUND MONUMENT

CALCULATED POSITION

EXHIBIT A
ABBY ST PIER - TAX LOT 01300

DEPARTMENT OF STATE LANDS PUBLIC PIER LICENSE - TRACT B

BA
SI

S 
O

F 
BE

AR
IN

G
 - 

CS
 #

61
26

N 
25

° 5
9' 

10
" E

, 9
26

.2
5'

SE
 B

AY
 B

O
UL

EV
AR

D

YA
Q

UI
NA

 B
AY

FOUND 3" BRASS DISC - INSCRIBED GARRISON
HELD FOR POSITION
NEAR COAST GUARD GARAGE

INITIAL POINT

FOUND TACK IN LEAD PER CS #2860
NEAR NORTH CORNER OF FALL ST AND BAY BLVD
HELD FOR LINE FROM 3" BRASS DISC

NE CORNER
OF LOT 6 OF
BLOCK 2

108

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
2270

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND SURVEYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBERT J. BOYER

AutoCAD SHX Text
JULY 16, 1987

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE: 12-31-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE SIGNED: 2-8-2023



Cross Access Easement - Tract C 

An easement over a portion of property owned by the City of Newport per Book 245, pages 2077-2083 of 
the Deed Records of Lincoln County, Oregon.  
(Tax Lot #: 11-11-08-CA-01300) 

An easement in the northerly portion of Lincoln County Tax Lot 01300, map number 111108CA 
more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at a point, called the “initial point” that is located at the northeast corner of Lot 6 Block 2 in 
the original town of Newport Oregon, at the most easterly corner of Lincoln County Tax Lot 4500; thence 
South 64⁰ 00’ 50” East, a distance of 60.00 feet to the most westerly corner of Lincoln County tax lot 1300; 
thence North 25⁰ 59’ 10” East, a distance of 52.00 feet to the True Point of Beginning; thence South 64⁰ 
00’ 50” East, a distance of 15.00 feet; thence North 25⁰ 59’ 10” East, a distance of 28.00 feet; thence North 
64⁰ 00’ 50” West, a distance of 15.00 feet; thence South 25⁰ 59’ 10” West, for a distance of 28.00 feet to 
said true point of beginning. Containing 420.00 square feet more or less. 

Date: February 8, 2023 

Robert Boyer, PLS No.2270 
Civil West Engineering Services Inc. 
609 SW Hurbert St. 
Newport, OR 97365 
Phone: (503) 706-2790 

109



Drawn By:   
Date:  

CITY OF NEWPORT

EXHIBIT FOR TRACT "C" NEWPORT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON

CMJ/RJB
FEBRUARY, 2023

N

SCALE: 1" = 40'

EXHIBIT A
ABBY ST PIER - TAX LOT 01300

CROSS ACCESS EASEMENT - TRACT C

FOUND TACK IN LEAD PER CS #2860
NEAR NORTH CORNER OF FALL ST AND BAY BLVD
HELD FOR LINE FROM 3" BRASS DISC

FOUND 3" BRASS DISC - INSCRIBED GARRISON
HELD FOR POSITION
NEAR COAST GUARD GARAGE

TRACT "C"
(420.00 SQ. FEET)

TRUE POINT OF
BEGINNING

FOUND MONUMENT

CALCULATED POSITION

SE
 B

AY
 B

O
UL

EV
AR

D

YA
Q

UI
NA

 B
AY

INITIAL POINT

BA
SI

S 
O

F 
BE

AR
IN

G
 - 

CS
 #

61
26

N 
25

° 5
9' 

10
" E

, 9
26

.2
5'

BA
SI

S 
O

F 
BE

AR
IN

G
 - 

CS
 #

61
26

S 
25

° 5
9' 

10
" W

, 4
57

.1
4'

NE CORNER
OF LOT 6 OF
BLOCK 2

110

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
2270

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND SURVEYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBERT J. BOYER

AutoCAD SHX Text
JULY 16, 1987

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE: 12-31-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE SIGNED: 2-8-2023



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

VALUATION SERVICES 
Real Estate Appraisal 

Consulting 
Litigation 

Estate Planning 
Feasibility Analysis 

Rent Surveys 
 
 
 
 

PROPERTY TYPES 
Land 

Subdivisions 
Multi-Family 

Single-Family 
Industrial 

Office 
Medical  

Retail 
Public 

Religious 
Parks / Open Space 
Farms / Agricultural 

Specialty 
 
 
 
 

SERVING 
Oregon 

Washington 
Idaho 

Northern California 
 
 
 

Powell Banz Valuation, LLC 
1467 13th Street SE 

Salem, Oregon 97302 
 (503) 371-2403 voice 

(503) 371-2613 fax 
www.powellbanz.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 P o w e l l  B a n z  V a l u a t i o n , L L C  

 

R E A L  E S T A T E   
A P P R A I S A L  R E P O R T  

 
 

Photo taken November 2, 2022, #13200-2 

 
A B B E Y  S T R E E T  P I E R  B U I L D I N G  

669 SW Bay Boulevard 
Newport, Oregon 97365 

PO #: 22-026 
 

P R E P A R E D  F O R  
Derrick Tokos, AICP 

Community Development Director 
City of Newport 

169 SW Coast Highway 
Newport, Oregon 97365 

 
P R E P A R E D  B Y  

Katherine Powell Banz, MAI 
PBV File Number: P221296 

 
E F F E C T I V E  D A T E  O F  V A L U E  
“As If” Date of Value: November 2, 2022 

  

111

http://www.powellbanz.com/


  

1467 13th Street SE, Salem, Oregon 97302 
Voice: 503.371.2403 / Fax: 503.371.2613 

 jbanz@powellbanz.com / kbanz@powellbanz.com  

 
 
December 2, 2022 
 
 
Derrick Tokos, AICP 
Community Development Director 
City of Newport 
169 SW Coast Highway 
Newport, Oregon 97365 
 
RE: ABBEY STREET PIER BUILDING 

669 SW Bay Boulevard 
Newport, Oregon 97365 
PO #: 22-026 

Dear Mr. Tokos:  

As requested, the captioned property has been valued using generally 
accepted appraisal principles and practices. This appraisal report is 
intended to comply with the development and report requirements of the 
Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) and the 
Appraisal Institute. A copy of the signed professional service agreement is 
included in the Addenda.  

The subject is identified as the Abby Street Pier Building. Improvements 
consist of a two-story, 3,961 SF NRA retail building located along the 
Newport Bayfront. The improvement is situated on an estimated site area 
of 3,271 SF, with a portion of the site owned and the remainder leased from 
the Department of State Lands. The improvement shares a tax lot and 
leased land with a public pier; however, per the scope of work, this analysis 
considers the building and its supporting footprint only.  

The building is located on W-2 (Water-Related)-zoned land. It is operating 
at 28% occupancy; one of the three retail suites is currently leased on a 
month-to-month basis.  

The subject property was previously appraised by Powell Banz Valuation, LLC 
in a report (PBV Job #: P191293) dated August 9, 2019, just outside the prior 
three years.    

112

mailto:jbanz@powellbanz.com
mailto:kbanz@powellvaluation.com


 

POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 

Derrick Tokos, AICP December 2, 2022 
City of Newport Page 2 
 
 
Based upon my investigation and analysis of available information, the concluded value 
under the requested scenario, as of November 2, 2022, was:  

MARKET VALUE SCENARIO DATE VALUE 
“As If” Market Value – Leased Fee & Leasehold November 2, 2022 $600,000 
Estimated Marketing/Exposure Time One year or less  

 
This appraisal is based on the hypothetical condition that the subject improvements were 
partitioned from the surrounding public pier as of the date of value. 
The concluded value is predicated on the following extraordinary assumptions: 

• The appraiser’s estimated subject site size at partition completion, including the 
allocation between the leased and owned site components, is generally 
accurate; 

• The City of Newport will retain access to the mechanical room for pier 
maintenance. 

These assumptions may have affected the assignment results. If determined to be false, 
the value conclusion herein will need to be revisited. 
This appraisal is subject to the conditions and comments presented in this report.  If any 
questions arise concerning this report, please contact the undersigned. 

 

Sincerely, 
 
POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC 
 
 
 
 
 
Katherine Powell Banz, MAI 
OR State Certified General Appraiser 
No. C000897 
Expiration Date: August 31, 2024 
 
 
 
 
KPB:tgg  
Appraisal Report 
P221296 
 

113



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 

Transmittal Letter 

INTRODUCTION 
Executive Summary .............................................................................................................. 1 
Preliminary Appraisal Information ......................................................................................... 2 
Assumptions and Limiting Conditions .................................................................................... 9 

DESCRIPTION 
Subject Maps ...................................................................................................................... 12 
Description .......................................................................................................................... 15 
Subject Photographs ........................................................................................................... 35 
Site Plan ............................................................................................................................. 46 

MARKET ANALYSIS/HIGHEST & BEST USE 
Market Analysis/Highest & Best Use ................................................................................... 47 

VALUATION METHODS 
Valuation Methods .............................................................................................................. 56 

INCOME APPROACH 
Income Approach ................................................................................................................ 58 
Lease Comparable Tabulation Chart and Adjustment Grid ................................................. 68 
Lease Comparable Maps .................................................................................................... 69 
Income Approach Summation Table ................................................................................... 80 
Sales Comparison Approach ............................................................................................... 81 
Improved Sales Tabulation Chart and Adjustment Grid ....................................................... 91 
Improved Sales Maps ......................................................................................................... 92 

ANALYSIS OF VALUE CONCLUSIONS 
Analysis of Value Conclusions ............................................................................................ 96 

CERTIFICATION OF APPRAISAL 
Certification of Appraisal ..................................................................................................... 98 

 
ADDENDA 

Purchase Order – City of Newport 
Taxes, Assessment Data, Deed & Legal Description 
Department of State Lands Lease & Renewal Agreement 
Regional Description 
Appraiser Qualifications 
Appraiser Certification

114



P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022   1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

PROPERTY INFORMATION  

PO #:  22-026 
Property Name: Abbey Street Pier Building 
Address: 669 SW Bay Boulevard 

Newport, Oregon 97365 
Tax Account Number: Portions of: R357311, R366804, R530598 
Map/Tax Lot: Portions of: 11-11-08-CA-01300, 01300-L2, 

01300-L3  
Property Type: Retail 

Current Use: Multi-tenant retail building 
Owner of Record: City of Newport 

  
BUILDING CHARACTERISTICS  

Number of Buildings: 1 
Number of Tenants: 1 
Gross Building Area: 4,133 SF 
Net Rentable Area: 3,961 SF 
Percent Occupied: 28%  
Year Built: 1979 
Condition: Fair to average 
Substantial Deferred Maintenance: See narrative 

  
SITE CHARACTERISTICS  

Land Area—Approx. Owned: 613 SF 
Land Area—Approx. Leased: 2,658 SF 
Zoning Designation: W-2 (Water Related) 
Conforming Use: Yes 

  
HIGHEST AND BEST USE  

As if Vacant: Water/tourism-oriented retail use 
As Improved: Existing multi-tenant retail improvements 
Excess / Surplus Land: None 

  
VALUATION INFORMATION  

Cost Approach: Not Presented 
Income Approach: $600,000 
Sales Comparison Approach: $555,000 

  
VALUE CONCLUSION – LEASED FEE & LEASEHOLD 

 Effective Date of Value Value Conclusion 
Concluded “As If” Market Value: November 2, 2022 $600,000 
Allocation for Furniture, Fixtures and 
Equipment: 

 
None 

  

115



P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022   2 

PRELIMINARY APPRAISAL INFORMATION 

SCOPE OF WORK 
Scope of Work is defined in 2020-2021 USPAP (effective through December 31, 2022) as 
“the type and extent of research and analyses in an assignment.” The scope of work 
addresses the application and extent of the development process. It can include, but is 
not limited to: the extent to which the property is identified, the extent to which tangible 
property is inspected, the type and extent of data researched and the type and extent 
of analyses applied to arrive at opinions or conclusions. The seven items used in defining 
the scope of work and the proposed solution are discussed in detail below: 

This appraisal report is designed to inform the reader of all factors influencing the 
property’s value in a clear and concise manner. The Preliminary Appraisal Information 
sections provide an overview of the property and general information. The Description 
section starts with general regional issues and proceeds to more specific issues directly 
related to the property. The Highest and Best Use section establishes the premise upon 
which the property is valued.  

The goal of the appraiser is to produce a credible value conclusion. Credible is defined 
in 2020-2021 USPAP (effective through December 31, 2022) as “worthy of belief.”  

In order to conclude a credible market value opinion, the client and appraiser 
determined that the Valuation section focuses on the “as if” stabilized market value of 
the leased fee interest in the subject property with market rents in place. It describes the 
Income Capitalization and Sales Comparison Approaches, and includes comparable 
information, application of market information to the subject, and valuation analysis. The 
approaches utilized are reconciled into final value conclusions as applicable. 

Based on the analysis contained herein, the in-place lease is below market and there are 
two vacant suites. Adjustments to the stabilized value are considered within each 
approach, as needed, to result in the “as if” market value of the leased fee and leasehold 
estate.   

All comparable data has been verified by either a party to the transaction or an agent, 
unless otherwise identified. Supporting information is attached in the Addenda.  

The building shares a pier and tax lot with the adjacent public pier; however, the client is 
considering selling the building and supporting site but retaining the public pier via a 
partition. Per the scope of work, the following analysis considers the “as if” value 
assuming the building and supporting site were separate from the public pier. Further; 
note the underlying supporting site is partially owned and partially leased from the 
Department of State Lands (noting the pier extends out into the waterway). 

A survey or other precise measurements of the supporting site size was not provided; 
therefore, the appraiser estimated this area using measurements obtained at the time of 
inspection and via Google Earth. This appraisal assumes the measurements are 
reasonably correct and reflect the area the ownership would partition for the building’s 
supporting site. If the measured area is determined to be false, the value conclusions will 
need to be revisited. 

CLIENT AND INTENDED USER 
The client and intended user for this appraisal is the City of Newport. 

116



PRELIMINARY APPRAISAL INFORMATION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  3 

OTHER INTENDED USERS 
Other intended users include the client’s legal and accounting professionals.  

INTENDED USE 
The purpose of this appraisal is to estimate market value, in leased fee, under the 
applicable scenario, as described in this report. 

Without prior written approval from the author, the intended use of this report is limited to 
decision-making regarding a potential sale of the subject property by the client. All other 
uses are expressly prohibited. Reliance on this report by anyone other than the client for 
a purpose not set forth above is prohibited. The author’s responsibility is limited to the 
client. If you are not the stated intended user contact our office to have an appraisal 
customized for your needs. 

TYPE OF VALUE 
The “As If” Value represents the value of the subject, under hypothetical condition(s) 
contrary to what is known by the appraiser to exist as of the date of inspection. 

INSPECTION DATE 
November 2, 2022 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF VALUE 
As If Market Value:  November 2, 2022 

DATE OF REPORT 
December 2, 2022 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS 
The subject is identified as the Abby Street Pier Building. Improvements consist of a two-
story, 3,961 SF NRA retail building located along the Newport Bayfront. The improvement 
is situated on an estimated site area of 3,271 SF, with a portion of the site owned and the 
remainder leased from the Department of State Lands. The improvement shares a tax lot 
and leased land with a public pier; however, per the scope of work, this analysis considers 
the building and its supporting footprint only.  

The building is located on W-2 (Water-Related)-zoned land. It is operating at 28% 
occupancy; one of the three retail suites is currently leased on a month-to-month basis.  

  

117



PRELIMINARY APPRAISAL INFORMATION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  4 

ASSIGNMENT CONDITIONS 
 An interior and exterior inspection of the subject.  

 Interviewing the subject's property representative, Derrick Tokos, Community 
Development Director, City of Newport.  

 Inspecting of the subject property neighborhood. 

 Gathering and confirming lease comparables and improved sales from the 
immediate area and competing marketplaces. 

 Inspecting the exterior of all comparables utilized in person or via 
photographs. 

 Reviewing the subject’s income and expense history as provided by the 
property representative. 

 Highest and best use analysis. 

 The application of the Income Capitalization and Sales Comparison 
Approaches to arrive at an indication of value for the subject property.  

 A review of the written report. 

APPRAISER ASSISTANCE 
Tyson Giza, Appraiser Assistant #AA03308 (expires July 26, 2023), aided in the following 
aspects of this appraisal assignment as outlined in ACLB Administrative Rules (OAR) 161-
025-0030: 

 Definition of the appraisal problem (A). 

 Preliminary analysis, selection and collection of applicable data (B). 

 Analysis of the subject property (C). 

 Conducting a Highest and Best Use analysis (D). 

 Estimating value of the subject property using the applicable approaches of 
value – the Income and Sales Comparison Approaches (F). 

 Reconciliation of each value estimate to arrive at a final estimate of value (G). 

 Reporting estimate(s) of value(s) as defined (H). 

All work performed by Tyson Giza has been directed, reviewed and approved by 
Katherine Powell Banz, MAI.  
  

118



PRELIMINARY APPRAISAL INFORMATION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  5 

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE 
This definition is in compliance with the OCC (Office of the Comptroller of the Currency), 
FDIC (Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation), FIRREA (Federal Institutions Reform, 
Recovery, and Enforcement Act), and USPAP (Uniform Standards of Professional 
Appraisal Practice) as adopted by the Appraisal Foundation and the Appraisal Institute. 
This definition complies with the 2020-2021 USPAP (effective through December 31, 2022) 
regulations. 

Market Value, as defined by The Appraisal of Real Estate, 15th Edition as published by the 
Appraisal Institute is: 

“The most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open 
market under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting 
prudently and knowledgeably, and assuming the price is not affected by undue 
stimulus. Implicit in this definition are the consummation of a sale as of a specified 
date and the passing of title from seller to buyer under conditions whereby: 

1. Buyer and seller are typically motivated; 

2. Both parties are well informed or well advised, and acting in what they consider 
their best interests; 

3. A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market; 

4. Payment is made in terms of cash in United States dollars or in terms of financial 
arrangements comparable thereto; and 

5. The price represents the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected 
by special or creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone 
associated with the sale.”1 

PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED 
Leased Fee Interest, which is defined by The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 7th Edition 
(2022), Appraisal Institute, as: 

The ownership interest held by the lessor, which includes the right to receive the contract 
rent specified in the lease plus the reversionary right when the lease expires. 

Leasehold Estate: the right held by the lessee to use and occupy real estate for a stated 
term and under the conditions specified in the lease. 

• Sandwich Leasehold Estate: the interest held by the sandwich leaseholder when 
the property is subleased to another party; a type of leasehold estate. 

• Subleasehold Estate: the right to occupy and use property that results when the 
lessee in a prior lease conveys (i.e., subleases) the right of use and occupancy to 
another, the sublessee; also known as a subleasehold interest. 

SPECIFIED FINANCING 
Cash to seller, with or without financing; considered to be cash equivalent. 

                                                
1 The Appraisal of Real Estate, 15th Edition. Chicago: Appraisal Institute, 2020. 

119



PRELIMINARY APPRAISAL INFORMATION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  6 

OWNERSHIP AND SALES HISTORY ANALYSIS 
According to Lincoln County Assessor’s records, the subject property is currently vested 
under the ownership of THE CITY OF NEWPORT. The most recent transaction occurred June 
11, 1992 between the NEWPORT URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (Grantor) and THE CITY OF 
NEWPORT (Grantee) for a recorded consideration of $0 in Warranty Deed 245-2077; this 
transaction was between governmental parties.  

No transactions involving the subject have occurred in the last three years and the 
property is not currently listed for sale.  

ASSESSMENT AND TAX INFORMATION 
Annual real estate taxes levied by the Lincoln County Assessor’s Office are summarized 
on the following table:  

 
Note that the subject reflects only a portion of the above tax lots in the “as if” scenario. 
The City of Newport is tax-exempt; however, the Abbey Street Pier Building’s three retail 
tenants are all taxed and billed individually for this expense based on their shares of the 
leased space. Tax account R530598 (Lattas of Oregon Inc.; the first floor glass fusing 
space) are delinquent on their taxes, with the unpaid 2021/2022 tax reported on the 
above chart. 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
Please refer to the Addenda for a full legal description. 

INSPECTION 
Date of Inspection: November 2, 2022 
Property Representative: Paul (last name unknown), City of Newport Facilities 

Department 
Powell Banz Valuation, LLC: Katherine Powell Banz, MAI (exterior only; interior via 

photographs and prior 2019 inspection) 
 Jonathan B. Banz, MAI, AI-GRS 
 Tyson Giza  
Extent of Inspection: A physical interior and exterior inspection was 

performed. The interior of the glass retail space on the 
first floor was not accessible; it was inspected from the 
exterior through the storefront windows.  

Tax Assessed 2022/2023 Unpaid Tax
Account Tax Lot Land Improvements Total Value (M50) Taxes Taxes* Rate
R357311 11-11-08-CA-01300 $245,770 $651,460 $897,230 $0 $0.00 $0.00 $18.1165
R366804 11-11-08-CA-01300-L2 $24,830 $86,850 $111,680 $65,580 $1,118.87 $0.00 $18.1165
R530598 11-11-08-CA-01300-L3 $60,010 $207,350 $267,360 $157,260 $2,766.05 $1,563.31 $18.1165

Total $330,610 $945,660 $1,276,270 $222,840 $3,884.92 $1,563.31
Source: Lincoln County Assessor's Office
RMV as of July 2022, certified October 2022 by Lincoln County
*Unpaid taxes excludes taxes owed for 2022/2023

Real Market Value

120



PRELIMINARY APPRAISAL INFORMATION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  7 

SOURCES OF INFORMATION 
The following sources were contacted to obtain relevant information: 

 Source 
   

Information 

Derrick Tokos, Community Development 
Director, City of Newport 

Subject information including lease 
documents and operating statements.  

Lincoln County Assessor's Office Subject data; tax information. 
City of Newport Planning Department Zoning information. 
Realquest Subject data, comparable research. 
Multiple brokers and real estate professionals Local area data; comparable confirmation. 
Regional Multiple Listing Service  Comparable research. 
Flex Multiple Listing Service  Comparable research. 
LoopNet Comparable research. 
CoStar Comparable research. 
County Deed Records Comparable research. 

COMPETENCY RULE 
I am aware of the competency rule as detailed in USPAP, and with my understanding, I 
possess the education, knowledge, technical skills, and practical experience to 
complete this assignment competently, in conformance with the stated regulations. I 
have appraised numerous retail properties in Newport, along the Oregon Coast, and 
throughout the State of Oregon in recent years. 

PERSONAL PROPERTY, FIXTURES, AND INTANGIBLE ITEMS 
No personal property, trade fixtures, or intangible items were included in this valuation. 

USE OF RECOGNIZED APPRAISAL APPROACHES 
This report utilizes two of the three recognized valuation methods: the Income 
Capitalization and Sales Comparison Approaches to value.  

The Cost Approach is reliable when the improvements are new, nearly new or proposed. 
The subject was built in 1979. The Cost Approach was considered, but ultimately not 
developed due to the age of the improvements and the subjective nature of reliably 
estimating depreciation, which may conclude a value inconsistent with the primary 
approaches.  The exclusion of this approach does not compromise the validity of the 
value conclusions contained herein. 

UNAVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION 
All information necessary to develop an estimate of value of the subject property was 
available to the appraiser, except for a survey with the actual leased and owned subject 
site areas, and a precise subject supporting site area. Per the scope of work, the subject’s 
supporting site area has been estimated utilizing on-site measurements and Google Earth 
aerial measurements.  

121



PRELIMINARY APPRAISAL INFORMATION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  8 

EXPOSURE TIME AND MARKETING PERIOD 
Exposure time is defined within the 2020-2021 USPAP (effective through December 31, 
2022) as: 

The estimated length of time the property interest being appraised would have 
been offered on the market prior to the hypothetical consummation of a sale at 
market value on the effective date of the appraisal; a retrospective estimate 
based upon an analysis of past events assuming a competitive and open market. 

Exposure time is best established upon the experience of recent comparable sales. The 
sales indicate a standard exposure period of one year or less for appropriately priced 
properties similar to the subject.  

Marketing period is very similar to exposure time, but reflects a projected time period to 
sell the property, rather than a retrospective estimate.  

Based on the subject property type and the data presented herein, a similar marketing 
period of one year or less remains reasonable. 

 
 

122



P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022   9 

ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 

This appraisal is subject to the following assumptions and limiting conditions: 

HYPOTHETICAL CONDITIONS 
A hypothetical condition is a condition that is contrary to the facts, and yet will be used 
to value a property. An example of a hypothetical condition would be assuming a larger 
amount of land than actually exists to arrive at a value. 

This appraisal is based on the hypothetical condition that the subject improvements were 
partitioned from the surrounding public pier as of the date of value.  

EXTRAORDINARY ASSUMPTIONS 
An extraordinary assumption is an assumption made that does not exist, but could 
reasonably exist.  

The concluded value is predicated on the following extraordinary assumptions: 
• The appraiser’s estimated subject site size at partition completion, including the 

allocation between the leased and owned site components, is generally 
accurate; 

• The City of Newport will retain access to the mechanical room for pier 
maintenance. 

These assumptions may have affected the assignment results. If determined to be false, 
the value conclusion herein will need to be revisited. 

ORDINARY ASSUMPTIONS 
The analysis assumes that the Lincoln County Assessor’s office legal description 
accurately represents the subject property. A survey has not been provided to the 
appraiser. If further verification is required, a survey by a registered surveyor is advised. 

I assume no responsibility for matters legal in character, nor do I render any opinion as to 
title, which is assumed to be marketable. 

All existing liens, encumbrances, and assessments have been disregarded, unless 
otherwise noted, and the property is appraised as though free and clear, under 
responsible ownership, and competent management. 

The exhibits in this report are included to assist the reader in visualizing the property. I have 
made no survey of the property and assume no responsibility in connection with such 
matters. 

Unless otherwise noted herein, it is assumed that there are no encroachments, zoning, or 
restrictive violations pertinent to the subject property. 

This report is not a real property inspection; the appraiser only performed a visual 
inspection of accessible areas and this appraisal cannot be relied upon to disclose 
conditions and/or defects in the property. 

The appraiser assumes no responsibility for determining if the property requires 
environmental approval by the appropriate governing agencies, nor if it is in violation 
thereof, unless noted. 

123



ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  10 

Information presented in this report has been obtained from reliable sources, and it is 
assumed that the information is accurate. 

This report shall be used for its intended purpose only, and by the parties to whom it is 
addressed. Possession of the report does not include the right of publication. 

Simply because a borrower or third party may receive a copy of the appraisal, does not 
mean that the borrower or third party is an Intended User as that term is defined in USPAP. 

The appraiser may not be required to give testimony or to appear in court by reason of 
this appraisal, with reference to the property in question, unless prior arrangements have 
been made. 

The statements of value and all conclusions shall apply as of the dates shown herein. The 
appraiser has no present or contemplated future interest in the property that is not 
specifically disclosed in this report. 

Neither all, nor any part, of the contents of this report shall be conveyed to the public 
through advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media without the written 
consent or approval of the author. This applies particularly to value conclusions and to 
the identity of the appraiser and the firm with which the appraiser is connected. 

This report must be used in its entirety. Reliance on any portion of the report independent 
of others may lead the reader to erroneous conclusions regarding the property values. 
No portion of the report stands alone without approval from the author. 

The valuation stated herein assumes professional management and operation of the 
building(s) throughout the lifetime of the improvements, with an adequate maintenance 
and repair program. 

The valuation is based on the projection that the improvements will maintain a stabilized 
occupancy level over its economic life, with tenants paying market level rents. 

The liability of Powell Banz Valuation, LLC and employees is limited to the client only and 
only up to the amount of the fee actually received for the assignment. Further, there is 
no accountability, obligation, or liability to any third party. If this report is placed in the 
hands of anyone other than the client, the client shall make such party aware of all 
limiting conditions and assumptions of the assignment and related discussions. The 
appraiser is in no way responsible for any costs incurred to discover or correct any 
deficiency in the property. The appraiser assumes that there are no hidden or 
unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil, or structures that would render it more or 
less valuable. In the case of limited partnerships or syndication offerings or stock offerings 
in real estate, the client agrees that in case of lawsuit (brought by lender, partner, or part 
owner in any form of ownership, tenant, or any other party), any and all awards, 
settlements, or cost, regardless of outcome; the client will hold Powell Banz Valuation, LLC 
completely harmless. 

The appraiser is not qualified to detect the presence of toxic or hazardous substances or 
materials which may influence or be associated with the property or any adjacent 
properties. I have made no investigation or analysis as to the presence of such materials, 
and expressly disclaim any duty to note the presence of such materials.  

  

124



ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  11 

Therefore, irrespective of any degree of fault, Powell Banz Valuation, LLC and its 
principals, agents, and employees, shall not be liable for costs, expenses, damages, 
assessments, or penalties, or diminution in value, property damage, or personal injury 
(including death) resulting from or otherwise attributable to toxic or hazardous 
substances or materials, including without limitation hazardous waste, asbestos material, 
formaldehyde, or any smoke, vapors, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, toxic chemicals, liquids, 
solids, or gasses, waste materials or other irritants, contaminants, or pollutants. 

The appraiser assumes no responsibility for determining if the subject property complies 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), which prescribes specific building 
standards which may be applied differently to different buildings, depending on such 
factors as building age, historical significance, amenability to improvement, and costs of 
renovation. Powell Banz Valuation, LLC its principals, agents, and employees, shall not be 
liable for any costs, expenses, assessments, penalties, or diminution in value resulting from 
non-compliance. Except as otherwise noted herein, this appraisal assumes that the 
subject complies with all ADA standards appropriate to the subject improvements; if the 
subject is not in compliance, the eventual renovation costs and/or penalties would 
negatively impact the present value of the subject. If the necessary renovation costs, 
time period needed for renovation, and penalties for non-compliance (if any) were 
known today, appropriate deductions would be made to the value conclusion(s) 
reported herein. 

125



P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  12 

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH (LINCOLN COUNTY GIS MAP) 

 

Subject Tax Lot 
 
State of Oregon Land Lease Area 
 
 

126



P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  13 

REGIONAL MAP 

 

127



P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  14 

NEIGHBORHOOD MAP 

 

128



P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  15 

DESCRIPTION 

REGIONAL DESCRIPTION 
Please see the Addenda for a detailed description of the Central Coast Region.  

NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION 

 
A neighborhood is defined as a geographic area characterized by a similarity of users 
and/or uses within which any change has a direct and immediate effect on the subject 
and its value or marketability. The subject is located in Newport’s Bayfront on Yaquina 
Bay.  

The area is served by all public utilities, including water, sewer, electricity, natural gas, 
telephone, and cable television. Police and fire protection are by the City of Newport.  

Newport is heavily reliant on its tourism and seafood industries. The Bayfront area, which 
is east of Highway 101, consists of novelty retail shops and restaurants that cater to 
travelers as well as seafood processing facilities. The Hatfield Marine Science Center and 
the Oregon Coast Aquarium are major tourist attractions.  Both are located south of the 
subject’s immediate neighborhood, across the Yaquina Bay Bridge in South Beach. The 
Seafood and Wine Festival, which is held annually and sponsored by the City of Newport 
Chamber of Commerce, celebrated its 41st anniversary in 2019. This event takes place in 
February and is located just north of the Oregon Coast Aquarium, on OSU Drive. 

129



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  16 

Generally, Newport is situated along the length of the Highway 101 corridor, from NE 73rd 
Street on the north to SE 116th Street on the south. Newport’s west boundary is the Pacific 
Ocean. East of Highway 101, it generally dissolves into residential acreage and timber 
land. 

Highway 101 serves as the primary north/south transportation route through the city. It 
plays a major role in the local neighborhood due to the majority of commercial uses and 
city services aligned along it. Commercial development has grown up along both sides 
of the highway, including a wide variety of establishments catering to both travelers and 
local residents. The highway separates Newport into a tourist oriented west half and 
residential/heavy commercial uses on the east half. 

The City of Newport has worked in conjunction with ODOT to update its Transportation 
System Plan (TSP) for 2022 and added several new goals to the prior TSP completed in 
2012. One of the key opportunities noted in the TSP update is improving circulation along 
Oregon Coast Highway. Three circulation options were considered and evaluated based 
on their impact to the goals of the TSP and the objectives of the Northside Urban Renewal 
Area for the commercial core to improve traffic flow and reduce congestion.  

The option that scored highest under the aforementioned criterion was converting the 
existing highway into a two-way couplet that splits between Abbey Street from the south 
and Angle Street to the north, as depicted in the image below. The location of the 
subject site is depicted by the green star, showing its proximity to the potential change in 
circulation of the highway.  

Note that the other two circulation options, which include maintaining the existing two-
way highway with streetscape improvements or a longer couplet option that runs 
between Angle Street and Bayley Street further south, have not been eliminated from 
further consideration. City Council and the Planning Commission are scheduled to review 
the new TSP between November 21 and November 28, 2022. The entire City of Newport 
TSP can be reviewed at the following link: https://sites.jla.us.com/files/newport-
tsp/1657732384_newport-tsp-adoptiondraft-7-7-22-full-document.pdf?2336784eb9 

130

https://sites.jla.us.com/files/newport-tsp/1657732384_newport-tsp-adoptiondraft-7-7-22-full-document.pdf?2336784eb9
https://sites.jla.us.com/files/newport-tsp/1657732384_newport-tsp-adoptiondraft-7-7-22-full-document.pdf?2336784eb9


DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  17 

 
The primary east/west arterial is Highway 20 (Olive Street), which connects Newport to 
Corvallis, heading east. Two circulation options were considered for Highway 20 as part 
of the updated TSP: the first option maintains the existing alignment but includes several 
streetscape upgrades to enhance bicycle and pedestrian environment, while the 
second option consists of a couplet between NE Harney Street/SE Moore Drive and 
Highway 101. Through the quantitative/qualitative analysis and public outreach 
evaluation process, maintaining two-way traffic on the existing highway emerged as the 
preferred alternative.  

Within the city limits, Highway 20 becomes Olive Street and is primarily lined with 
commercial uses.  

Oregon Coast Community College relocated to SE Harborton Street, east of Mike Miller 
Park. The adjacent Wilder Village is a multi-phase mixed-use development. The 
green/sustainable community consists of residences, townhomes, cottages, and future 
phases will include apartments and office/retail uses. At the corner of Olive Street and 
Highway 101, a former auto dealership was demolished to make way for a new 
Walgreens that was completed in 2014. 

The Oregon Coast Aquarium opened in 1992 and is located on 23 AC adjacent to 
Yaquina Bay in the South Beach neighborhood of Newport. It is visited by nearly 500,000 
tourists annually. 

131



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  18 

The Oregon Museum of Science and Industry (OMSI) opened the Coastal Discovery 
Center at Camp Gray in 2016, an educational camp located on nearly 20 acres. The 
facility has three classrooms, over 150 bunk beds, and serves more than 5,000 people 
annually with year-round programming.  

Oregon State University’s Hatfield Marine Science Center (HSMC) is located on 49 acres 
leased from the Port. The research facility has approximately 75-100 students, 12-14 
faculty, and is visited by more the 150,000 tourists annually.  

In 2015, OSU announced a plan to construct a $50+ million, three-story, 72,000 SF Marine 
Studies Building.   

  
According to a March 13, 2018 article published on the OSU website 
(https://today.oregonstate.edu/news/osu-hold-ceremony-march-15-launch-
construction-new-marine-studies-building), the Gladys Valley Marine Studies Building is 
one of the first “vertical evacuation” sites for tsunamis in the United States. The facility 
includes a large academic and research core, connected to a separate community 
space, auditorium, and innovation laboratory. The roof is 47’ high and has been designed 
to serve as an evacuation area for up to 900 people. Construction began in March 2018 
and was completed in 2020. 

The Newport Student Housing report (prepared for Newport by EcoNorthwest in 
November 2014) states that the Hatfield expansion would create demand in Newport for 
an additional 165 to 260 dwelling units. The increase in the student population was 
expected to place additional strain on Newport’s low vacancy housing market. 

The Pacific Fleet of NOAA (National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration) relocated 
from Washington to the South Beach neighborhood of Newport. Construction began on 
the facility in January 2010 and was completed in mid-2011. The total cost of the project 
was estimated at $38 million, of which $19.5 million was provided by State of Oregon 
Lottery funds. NOAA is leasing the site from the Port of Newport under a 20-year lease at 
$2.4 million per year. 

132

https://today.oregonstate.edu/news/osu-hold-ceremony-march-15-launch-construction-new-marine-studies-building
https://today.oregonstate.edu/news/osu-hold-ceremony-march-15-launch-construction-new-marine-studies-building


DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  19 

In 2015, voters passed Ballot Measure 21-163, which issued a 20-year bond for up to $57 
million for the construction of a new 
hospital, built on the same site as 
the existing Samaritan Pacific 
Communities Hospital, a 25-bed 
critical access hospital located at 
the corner of SW 9th Street and SW 
Abbey Street. The project included 
three different construction phases, 
all of which have now been 
completed. Phase one began in 
early summer 2017 with the 
addition of a new 120,000 SF 
building.  

The existing hospital building remained open during initial phases of construction and was 
renovated. Samaritan Health, which operates the hospital, contributed another $11 
million toward the project. Phase two, which included complete renovation of an existing 
two-story building originally constructed in 1988, finished in late February 2020. The final 
phase included demolishing the original structure built in 1951 with construction of 
expanded parking along the front of the hospital. Construction for the final phase was 
completed in early 2021. 

In February 2021, Oregon State University announced a federal lease has been issued 
that will allow an OSU-
led project to operate 
the nation’s first 
offshore wave energy 
testing facility in 
federal waters. The 
estimated $80 million 
facility will be located 
6.9 miles off-shore 
southwest of Newport. 
The project is known as 
PacWave South and it 
will include both off- 
and on-shore 
components. The 
illustration at right, 
courtesy of OSU, 
depicts an artist’s rendering of the project.  

According to OSU: 

“PacWave South will be the first pre-permitted, full-scale, utility grid-connected wave 
energy test site in the United States. It is designed to allow wave energy developers the 
opportunity to test different technologies for harnessing the energy of ocean 
waves…Current timelines suggest construction could begin this summer, and the facility 
should be operational by 2023.” 

133



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  20 

New residential development includes the Wyndhaven Ridge Apartments at 1345 NE 
Lakewood Drive. The first phase was completed in July 2021 with additional phases to 
follow. The project required the developer to apply for a building height variance, which 
was approved by City of Newport’s Planning Commission. The project will total 78 new 
market-rate apartment units.  

Whaler Hotel, located at 155 SW Elizabeth Street, offers immediate beach access and is 
undergoing a 25-unit expansion based on a conditional use permit and design review 
approval granted in May of 2021.  

The future for residential and commercial property in Newport is strong over the long term.  
Buildable properties within the city limits have become scarce and the availability of 
adequate utilities to service new developments is questionable. This has raised the 
demand for both improved and unimproved properties. 

Overall, the Pacific Ocean and Yaquina Bay, ocean related commerce, including the 
fishing and tourism industries as well as oceanic research and education, has resulted in 
sustained market conditions and new development in past years. In the long-term, the 
economic security of the area is anticipated to continue. 

SITE DESCRIPTION 
Hazardous 
Waste/Asbestos 

Upon physical inspection of the site, no hazardous material 
was evident. I have made no independent investigation 
regarding this issue. This appraisal assumes the site is free of 
all hazardous waste and toxic materials. Please refer to the 
Assumptions and Limiting Conditions section regarding this 
issue.  

  
Current Use The site is improved with the Abbey Street Pier Building, a 

two-story retail building that is demised into three rentable 
units. The building was constructed in 1979, according to 
Lincoln County Assessor’s records. 

  
Site Size 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Per the scope of work, the subject is considered “as if” 
partitioned from the existing site, which includes a public 
pier, with only the supporting building site included.  

Based on the appraiser’s approximate measurements 
taken during the 2019 inspection, cross referenced with 
Google Earth aerial imagery, the subject’s total supporting 
site area, including the area beneath the second floor 
walkways but excluding the remainder of the public pier, is 
3,271 SF. 
The subject site includes an owned area (fronting Bay 
Boulevard) and a leased area (the area beneath the pier 
in Yaquina Bay, owned by the State of Oregon and leased 
from the Department of State Lands).  

 

134



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  21 

Site Size (continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Owned site area: According to measurements taken from 
the subject’s plat map, the larger parcel leased fee site size 
is 0.03 AC. This includes the area used as the public pier. Per 
the plat map, the larger site has a width of 80’. More 
specific site measurements were not available.  

A site area of 0.03 AC suggests that, prior to rounding, the 
actual square footage may range from 0.025 AC to 0.035 
AC, or 1,089 SF to 1,525 SF. Based on the larger site size width 
of 80’, this suggests a site depth of (1,089 SF / 80’) 13.6’ to 
(1,525 SF/80’) 19.1’. 

A rounded depth of 15’ is assumed for the larger leased fee 
parcel.  

Next, the subject’s building width, including the exterior 
second floor walkway, was considered. It totals 40’10”, or 
40.83 feet. Multiplying this total by the concluded rounded 
lot depth of 15’ results in an owned supporting site area, in 
leased fee, for the subject building improvement, of (40.83’ 
x 15’) 613 SF. The subject’s site ownership extends to the 
high water line, determined by the Oregon Department of 
State Lands and is subject to change due to natural shifts in 
water patterns. Further research is advised to determine the 
current actual water line and survey the subject’s lot depth 
and width for the supporting site. 

Leased site area: The subject’s total supporting site area is 
estimated to be 3,271 SF. Subtracting the previously 
calculated owned site area from the total site area results 
in a leased site area of (3,271 SF – 613 SF) 2,658 SF. The 
appraiser’s measurements for the total site area and 
leased/owned components are shown below. Note the 
drawing is approximate.  

135



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  22 

Site Size (continued) 

 
Department of State Lands Lease – The current lease term 
commenced in 2018 and carries an 18-year term; the lease 
rate is determined by a formula from the Department of 
State Lands on a per SF basis with annual 3% escalations. 
Because the actual lease includes the pier area, which is 
excluded from this report, the appraiser’s estimated leased 
area will be used herein. The 2022 lease rate is equal to 
$2,594.10. Based on the total leased area of 3,750 SF, this 
equates to $0.6918 per SF. Based on the subject supporting 
site’s calculated leased area (2,658 SF), this results in an 
annual lease expense of $1,839.  

 
  
Shape Irregular. 
  

State Lands Lease Per SF
Lease Rate 2022 lease rate $0.6918
x leased area - SUPPORTING SITE ONLY 2,658
2022 Department of State Lands Rent - Supporting Site Only $1,839

136



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  23 

Plat Map 

 
  
Map and Tax Lots Portions of 111108CA 01300 (owned), 1300-L2, & 1300-L3 

(leased).  
  
Topography Access to the site is level at street grade along its west 

boundary, then submerged under water along Yaquina 
Bay; the constructed pier results in a flat area for building 
development.  

  
Proximate Properties--  

 North Public pier, with Mo’s Seafood & Chowder Annex and fish 
processing facility beyond. 

 East Yaquina Bay.  

 South Pacific Seafood Plant and other commercial services along 
SW Bay Blvd. beyond.   

 West SW Bay Boulevard, with public parking lot and restrooms 
beyond.  

  
Utilities Public utilities, including water, sewer, garbage and 

electricity are available to the subject property. 
  
Street Improvements SW Bay Boulevard is an asphalt paved street improved with 

curbs, gutters, streetlights and sidewalks. It is a two-way, 
two-lane street running parallel to the bay front. Southwest 
and northwest of the subject, there is angled street parking 
along the west side of the street. 

  

137



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  24 

Exposure Good, the supporting site benefits from an estimated 40’10” 
of frontage along SW Bay Boulevard. The location is in-line, 
without corner exposure. However, it is near the heart of the 
Bay Boulevard retail corridor, which attracts significant 
pedestrian and car traffic from tourists.  

  
Accessibility Average; the site is accessible to pedestrians from Bay 

Boulevard; there is no on-site parking or curb cut access.  
  
Easements and 
Encumbrances 

A preliminary title report prepared by Western Title & Escrow 
and dated May 31, 2019 was provided for review. 
Encumbrances and easements include: 

• Lessees’ unpaid property taxes (discussed 
previously); 

• The rights of public and governmental bodies for 
fishing, navigation, and commerce in and to any 
portion of the subject land lying below the high 
water line of the Yaquina Bay; 

• The right, title, and interest of the State of Oregon in 
and to any portion lying below the high water line of 
Yaquina Bay. 

Upon reviewing county plat maps, there did not appear to 
be any other adverse easements, encroachments, or 
encumbrances relevant to the subject property. If 
questions arise regarding easements, encroachments, or 
encumbrances, further research is advised. 

  
Zoning and 
Comprehensive Plan 

  
  

138



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  25 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Zoning and 
Comprehensive Plan 
(continued) 

The site is zoned W-2 (Water Related) by the City of 
Newport. Per Section 14.03.040 of the Development Code, 
this zone is intended “to provide areas within and adjacent 
to the Yaquina Bay Shorelands for water-dependent, 
water-related, and other uses that are compatible or in 
conjunction with water-dependent and water-related 
uses.”  Allowed uses include: 

• Boat rentals, sport fishing, and charter boat services; 

• Docks, wharves, and piers; 

• Marinas, boat construction, repair and service, and 
boat fuel facilities; 

• Marine research and education facilities; 

• Seafood markets; 

• Bait, tackle, and sporting goods stores specializing in 
water-related merchandise. 

Further, all uses permitted in the C-2 district, including retail, 
are conditional uses in this zone. The subject’s retail uses are 
permitted as a conditional use.  
There are no minimum lot area, width, or setback 
requirements. The maximum building height is 35’. 

Per Section 14.14.040, off-street parking for retail uses must 
be provided at the rate of one space per 300 SF, or (4,133 
SF / 300 SF) 14 spaces. The subject has no on-site parking. 
However, the parking requirement may be met through off-
site parking located within 200 feet of the subject in a 
“satellite” lot; the public parking lot across the street 
qualifies, and results in the zone parking requirements being 
met. 

The complete zoning code can be located at the following 
City of Newport website address: 

https://www.newportoregon.gov/dept/adm/documents/
newportmunicipalcode.pdf 

139

https://www.newportoregon.gov/dept/adm/documents/newportmunicipalcode.pdf
https://www.newportoregon.gov/dept/adm/documents/newportmunicipalcode.pdf


DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  26 

  
Floodplain 
 

 

  
  
 According to the Federal Emergency Management 

Agency (FEMA), National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), 
Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), Community-Panel No. 
41041C0368E, dated October 18, 2019, the subject site lies 
in Zone AE, an area subject to inundation by the 1% annual 
chance flood hazard, with a base flood elevation of 13 
feet. However; it is assumed the subject’s pier is above the 
13 feet flood minimum. The property representative did not 
report that the subject is required to carry flood insurance; 
further research is advised to confirm the improvements are 
outside of the flood zone. 

  

140



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  27 

Seismic Hazard 
 

 

 
  
 According to the Oregon Department of Geology and 

Mineral Industries (DOGAMI), the data show the amount of 
shaking expected if a magnitude 9.0 Cascadia Subduction 
Zone (CSZ) earthquake occurs. A CSZ earthquake will 
create a local tsunami that will inundate the Oregon coast. 

The subject site will experience severe shaking in the event 
of seismic activity.  This data shows the strongest shaking 
expected to occur during an earthquake in a 500-year 
period.  The stronger the amount of shaking, the more 
structural damage will occur. 

This seismic rating is typical for the immediate area and 
larger region. 

  

141



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  28 

Tsunami Hazard 

 
  
 According to the DOGAMI Tsunami Inundation Map (TIM) 

above, the subject lies in an area subject to inundation by 
a “Small” tsunami from an 8.7 magnitude earthquake. 
The color shading in the map above corresponds to five 
earthquake scenarios (S, M, L, XL, and XXL), and the areas 
expected to be inundated by the resultant tsunamis. The 
inundation maps incorporate the most recent tsunami 
science available, including recent publications by 
colleagues studying the Cascadia Subduction Zone, 
updated computer simulation models using high-resolution 
LIDAR topographic data, and knowledge gained from 
recent earthquakes and tsunamis.  

  
Soils Soils are assumed to be stable, supporting the subject and 

neighborhood buildings. 
  
Site Rating Overall, noting the W-2 zoning designation and bayfront 

location with Yaquina Bay views and frontage, the site has 
a good rating for a water-dependent commercial use. The 
shape of the site is conducive to development as well, 
though the improvement must be constructed on a pier 
due to the sloping topography into the bay.  

142



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  29 

DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 (Photo taken November 2, 2022, #13200-2) 
  
Introduction The improvement description is primarily based upon a 

physical inspection of the property, an interview with 
the property representative, and assessor’s records. 

  
Hazardous 
Materials/Asbestos 
 

This appraisal assumes that the structure is free of all 
hazardous waste and toxic materials, including (but not 
limited to) asbestos. I have made no independent 
investigation regarding this issue. Please refer to the 
Assumptions and Limiting Conditions section regarding 
this issue. 

  
Current Use   The subject is the Abbey Street Pier Building, a two-story 

retail building constructed in 1979 as an urban 
revitalization project funded by the City of Newport. It 
is divided into three retail units, one of which is leased 
on a month-to-month basis. It is located adjacent to a 
public pier and fronts Yaquina Bay. 

  
  

143



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  30 

General Description The first floor is demised into two retail spaces.  

Latta’s of Oregon, Inc., D.B.A. the Art Glass Factory, 
leases the first floor street-fronting unit; it includes an 
open floor/display area, and tenant improvements 
include glass ovens, with a brick wall behind them. A 
break area in the corner includes a utility sink and 
counter. 

There is also a single restroom in the space; this restroom 
is shared with the east-adjacent tenant, with the east-
adjacent tenant accessing the space through a sliding 
door. The current rental rate is equal to $1,223/month 
($1.10/SF/mo.).  

The east, bay-facing space is now vacant and was 
most recently operating as an ice cream parlor. This 
space includes an open display/eating area, with 
counter and preparation space with sink. As noted, this 
space shares the restroom in the west-adjacent space. 
The tenant is no longer operating their business out of 
this space and was reportedly operating month-to-
month prior to closing their business. The last rent 
payment received from this tenant was on August 16, 
2022 for $600 ($1.00/SF/mo.).  

Exterior access along the north elevation leads to three 
single restrooms, only one of which is functional. There 
is also a mechanical room, which includes 
componentry for the pier’s fire suppression system. Per 
the client representative, the City of Newport would 
need to continue to retain access to this space 
subsequent to sale for continued maintenance of the 
public pier. This analysis assumes the City will continue 
to have access to the mechanical room at no charge, 
and the mechanical space is therefore not included in 
the net rentable area.  

Access to the second floor is via two exterior stairwells, 
with an upper exterior deck running from the east 
stairwell to the north stairwell. The second floor space is 
vacant and was formerly used as an art gallery. The 
space includes an open retail floor, with one single 
restroom and storage spaces. This space also benefits 
from panoramic views of Yaquina Bay and vaulted 
ceilings with exposed wood beams and wood 
paneling. Several signs of deferred maintenance 
including water damage were observed in this space. 
It would require an investment toward interior 
renovations to be returned to rentable condition.   

  

144



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  31 

Size According to building measurements taken at the time 
of inspection, the subject’s gross building area is shown 
below: 

 
Gross building area is 4,133 SF. This includes 62 SF of 
mechanical space, which houses the fire sprinkler room 
(which the City of Newport plans to retain access to 
and is therefore not considered rentable area). 

Net rentable area is 3,961 SF. Note: the lease 
documents do not have square footages for the 
spaces. Therefore, suite areas are determined from the 
appraiser’s measurements. 

There is a 20 SF common area restroom on the first floor, 
which is shared by the ice cream parlor and glass shop. 
Therefore, this space must be allocated proportionally 
between the first floor tenants: 

 
The subject also includes three exterior-accessed 
common area restrooms. These restrooms were 
formerly used as public restrooms, but, per the property 
representatives, they became too difficult to maintain 
and fostered illicit activities. The appraisers considered 
whether tenants and landlords would include the 
shared bathroom area in their common area 
calculation for net rentable area. However, noting that 
the existing tenants all have access to single restrooms, 
and also considering there is a public restroom to the 
west across the street at the public parking lot, it is 
concluded these restrooms would not be desirable to 
tenants and would not be counted in the tenants’ 
rentable area. The three single restrooms’ building area 
is considered with the mechanical space. 

  
  

First 
Floor (SF)

Second
Floor (SF)

Total 
(SF)

% of 
NRA

Ice cream parlor 595 0 595 15.02%
Glass Shop 1,097 0 1,097 27.70%
Former Art Gallery (Vacant) 0 2,249 2,249 56.78%
Usable Area 1,692 2,249 3,941 99.50%
Common Area Restrooms 20 0 20 0.50%
Net Rentable Area 1,712 3,961 100.00%
Exterior Restrooms 110 0 110 2.78%
Mechanical Space 62 0 62 1.57%
Gross Building Area 1,884 0 4,133 104.35%

Commercial Space USF
% of First 
Floor USF

x Common 
Area (SF)

Share of 
Comm. 
Area SF NRA

Ice Cream Parlor 595 35.17% 20 7 602
Glass Shop 1,097 64.83% 20 13 1,110
Total Tenant Share 1,692 100.00% 1,712

Tenant Pro Rata Share

145



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  32 

Site Coverage The site coverage is calculated below: 

 
This indicates a site coverage ratio of 57.60%, which is 
bracketed by the sales used in the Sales Comparison 
Approach.  

 
  
Foundation Wood pier. 
  
Exterior Walls Combination of board and batten and lap wood 

siding; per the property representatives, the west wall 
was replaced at a cost of $80,000 between 2016 and 
2018. At the time of inspection, damage was observed 
to the siding that had not been replaced, specifically 
along the north and east elevations. 

It is noted that wear and tear, particularly to the 
exterior, is common in Oregon coastal buildings, 
specifically noting the harsh storms, salt spray, and 
other inclement weather. 

  
Exterior Pedestrian Doors The first floor retail spaces have double storefront glass 

doors in aluminum frames; the second floor retail space 
is accessed via a single storefront glass door with 
aluminum frame. The mechanical and exterior-
accessed single restrooms all have metal doors in 
metal frames. 

  
Roof Structure Layered gable. 
  
Roof Cover Composite asphalt shingle; per the property 

representative, the roof was replaced in 2015/2016 at 
an estimated cost of $35,000. 

  
Insulation Assumed to be to code. 

First Floor Footprint 1,884
Site Area 3,271
Site Coverage Ratio 57.60%

SITE COVERAGE

2 90.16%
S 57.60%
5 41.64%
1 33.72%
4 20.51%
6 15.42%

3 14.25%

Site Coverage

146



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  33 

Heating and Air Conditioning Wall heaters; the fused glass tenant space has kilns 
which are the tenant’s property. 

  
Floor Coverings Floor coverings include: 

• Tile with tile base and walls in the exterior-
accessed single restrooms; 

• Sheet vinyl with a wood base in the ice cream 
parlor; 

• Vinyl tiles in the glass shop; 

• Oiled wood floors in the art gallery. 
  
Interior Walls Interior walls are generally textured and painted 

drywall. There are ceramic bricks around the kilns in the 
glass shop, and the exterior common area single 
restrooms have floor-to-ceiling ceramic tiles. 

  
Interior Doors Wood core. 
  
Ceiling First Floor: painted and textured drywall. 

Second Floor: vaulted, with stained wood planks and 
wood beams.  

  
Interior Lighting Lighting is generally fluorescent, with a combination of 

can, box, and ceiling-mounted fixtures. Per the 
property representative, the exterior lights were 
replaced with LED within the last five to six years.  

  
Plumbing Plumbing includes: 

• Three former public restrooms, each equipped 
with one toilet and one sink, which are accessed 
from the building exterior (only one is 
operational); 

• One single restroom on the first floor, located in 
the glass shop tenant suite and shared with the 
ice cream parlor tenant suite, and one single 
restroom on the second floor: both are 
improved with one toilet and one sink; 

• The first floor tenant suites also both have hand-
washing sinks in their main floor areas; the ice 
cream parlor also has a metal commercial sink.  

  
Elevator None. The subject’s second floor is accessed via two 

exterior stairwells.  

147



DESCRIPTION (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  34 

Life Safety The subject’s building improvement is not equipped 
with fire sprinkler protection. However, there is a 
sprinkler system under the larger pier. About 160’ of this 
system was repaired in the last year.  

  
Condition Fair to average. Finishes are dated and would benefit 

from updating; some deferred maintenance (as is 
typical with coastal buildings) was noted to the 
exterior, as well as water damage to a portion of 
second floor ceiling.  The subject reflects generally 
similar condition and quality to the majority of retail 
buildings along Bay Boulevard. 

  
Basement None. 
  
Building Age  
  

Actual Age The subject was constructed in 1979, according to 
county records. The actual age of the building is 43 
years.  

Effective Age  The effective age is 20 years based on visual 
observation.  

Total Economic Life  45 years per Marshall Valuation Service. 
Remaining Economic Life  25 years. 

  
Site Improvements and 
Landscaping 

The site is improved with a wood pier. There is no 
landscaping or other notable site improvements. The 
adjacent public pier area has landscaped planters 
and sitting areas and is popular as a fishing and relaxing 
space. 

  
Parking None on-site, as is typical with other buildings along the 

Bayfront. However, there is a public parking lot 
immediately west of the subject, with additional 
angled street parking along the west edge of Bay 
Boulevard.  

  
The preceding information is a basic description of the subject improvements.  This 
information is utilized in the valuation of the property.  Reliance has been placed upon 
information provided by the property representative, the on-site inspection and county 
records. It is assumed there are no hidden defects, and that all structural components 
are functional and operational, unless otherwise noted.  If questions arise regarding the 
integrity of the structure or their operational components, it may be necessary to 
consult additional professional resources. 

148



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  35 

SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 
NOVEMBER 2, 2022 

 

 
1. View southeast of north and west elevations. (13200-2) 

 
2. View east of west elevation. (13200-4) 

149



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS – NOVEMBER 2, 2022 (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  36 

 
3. View northeast of south and west elevations. (13200-5) 

 
4. View southwest from public pier of a portion of subject’s north elevation. 

(13200-47) 
 

150



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS – NOVEMBER 2, 2022 (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  37 

 
5. View south from public pier of the remaining area of north and west 

elevations. (13200-48) 

 
6. View west across public pier; subject at left. (13200-46)  

 

151



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS – NOVEMBER 2, 2022 (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  38 

 
7. View northeast of public pier from second floor walkway/deck area, 

Yaquina Bay beyond. (13200-34) 

 
8.  View east across Yaquina Bay from second floor walkway/deck area. 

(13200-14) 

 

152



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS – NOVEMBER 2, 2022 (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  39 

 
9. Street scene: view south along SW Bay Boulevard; subject at left.    

(13200-1) 

 
10.  Street scene: view north along SW Bay Boulevard; subject at right. 

(13200-6) 

 

153



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS – NOVEMBER 2, 2022 (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  40 

 
11.  Exterior restroom. (13200-10) 

 
12. Mechanical room. (13200-12) 

 

154



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS – NOVEMBER 2, 2022 (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  41 

 
13. Exterior stairwell along the north elevation providing access to second 

floor space. (13200-11) 

 
14. Second floor suite access. (13200-16) 

 

155



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS – NOVEMBER 2, 2022 (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  42 

 
15.  Interior view of vacant second floor space. (13200-19) 

 
16. Alternate view. (13200-29) 

 

156



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS – NOVEMBER 2, 2022 (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  43 

 
17. Private restroom. (13200-24) 

 
18.  Water damage observed on wall/ceiling. (13200-25) 

 

157



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS – NOVEMBER 2, 2022 (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  44 

 
19.  Interior view of former ice cream parlor. (13200-45) 

 
20.  Alternate view. (13200-39) 

 

158



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS – NOVEMBER 2, 2022 (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  45 

 
21.  Interior view of glass shop space (not accessible on day of inspection; 

observed through exterior window). (13200-53) 

 
22.  Alternate view. (13200-52) 

 

159



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  46 

BUILDING DIAGRAM  

 

160



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  47 

MARKET ANALYSIS/HIGHEST & BEST USE 

MARKET OVERVIEW 
Population According to the Portland State University Population 

Research Center, the most recent 2021 population in 
Newport is 10,591. 

Unemployment According to the State of Oregon Employment Department, 
the employment data as of October 2022 (most recent data 
available) reflects an unemployment rate of 5.2% in Lincoln 
County and 4.1% in the state of Oregon. 

MARKET CONSIDERATIONS 
The local retail/office market was surveyed using CoStar to 
determine recent trends. The search parameters included all 
office and retail properties along the Oregon coast greater than 
1,000 SF. A search was also made including only the subject’s 
immediate Lincoln County area; however, it yielded limited 
results. The surveyed area is shown on the map at right.  

Supply & Demand Conditions - Demand for office space is 
measured from the following indicators: (1) vacancy rate 
analysis (2) rent trends and (3) absorption. These items are 
addressed in the following narrative. 

CoStar reports current inventory of 1,838 buildings totaling 
about 14.3 million SF as shown on the following charts. 

 

 

 
According to CoStar, there is about 39,400 SF of new construction reported in the past 
year, with another 33,000 SF of new construction in progress. Overall, the market rent per 
SF is higher, the vacancy rate is lower, and net absorption is higher than the prior year’s 
average.  

161



MARKET ANALYSIS/HIGHEST & BEST USE (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  48 

Vacancy and Market Rent - The following chart illustrates changes in the average 
vacancy and rental rates per year for office and retail properties 1,000 SF and larger 
throughout the Oregon coast since 2012. 

 
Vacancy fell between 2017 and 2019; the 2020 increase reflects the ripple effects of the 
COVID-19 pandemic and its associated social distancing, remote work, and resulting 
office/retail downsizing. However, even at the 2020 peak, vacancy reached only 3.7%, 
which remains below the market accepted industry standard of 5.0%. Current vacancy 
measures 1.7%. However, it is noted that many coastal properties lease between owners 
and tenants without property managers and/or brokers. Given this, the vacancy rate 
reported by CoStar is likely understated, as the owner-listed spaces are frequently not 
catalogued on CoStar. 

Rental rates have steadily increased over the past five years, currently averaging 
$17.75/SF ($1.48/SF/month) over the prior one-year period. This reflects a strong increase 
over the prior year where rent rates averaged $17.51/SF ($1.46/SF/month). Continued 
increases in market rent are anticipated over the next year. However, as the rental rates 
reported are in nominal dollars, the current high inflation may reduce the real increase in 
rental rates. 

  

162



MARKET ANALYSIS/HIGHEST & BEST USE (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  49 

Absorption, Deliveries, & Vacancy – The chart below is based on office/retail properties 
in the surveyed market area.  

 
The survey period has seen positive net absorption in all years except 2020, when the 
COVID-19 pandemic stalled the positive trends. However, by 2021 and 2022 YTD, 
absorption is again strongly positive and exceeds new deliveries. 

Market activity is further illustrated on the Months to Lease chart below. 

 
Months to lease decreased sharply from 2018 to 2019, before climbing in 2020, with the 
onset of the COVID-19 pandemic. However, between 2021 and 2022, the months to lease 
mas declined again, to about seven months.   
  

163



MARKET ANALYSIS/HIGHEST & BEST USE (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  50 

Within a one-year period, the probability of leasing office/retail space is about 82%. The 
probability of leasing within 18 months is about 95%. This suggests there is a reasonable 
opportunity of leasing the subject property if offered for lease and its marketing period 
would likely be within the overall average. There is a 50% probability of leasing space in 
roughly six months. 

 
The subject’s largest space has experienced multiple consecutive years of vacancy. 
Given this, an absorption period of 12 months is estimated despite the statistics presented 
by Costar. This absorption period will be revisited in the lease-up cost analysis following 
the stabilized value conclusion.  

  

164



MARKET ANALYSIS/HIGHEST & BEST USE (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  51 

Sale Trends – The chart below illustrates the trends in average market sale price per SF 
and sales volume: 

 
According to the CoStar analytics, the average market sale price per SF for office and 
retail properties 1,000 SF and larger along the Oregon coast has increased steadily since 
2017, despite the COVID-19 pandemic. Between 2020 and 2022 YTD, the average sale 
price per SF has increased from about $152 per SF to about $170 per SF, an increase of 
about 11.8%, or about 0.35% per month. 
Market Participants were also interviewed regarding the coastal market and sale price 
appreciation in improved commercial properties. Lisa Anderson, broker with SMI 
Commercial Real Estate, noted the greater region has seen commercial price 
appreciation. However, she noted the lack of transactions in smaller markets makes it 
more difficult to ascertain the degree of price appreciation. She cited a retail property 
her firm sold in Waldport in 2021, and noted she was unsure if it would sell for significantly 
more today.  

Gail Stonebreaker with Windermere sold a restaurant in Gleneden Beach in September 
2021. She thought the commercial market was “a little” stronger than last year, and 
expected if she had the listing today, it would sell for slightly more.  

Alan Wells, broker with Commercial Associates, has sold/is currently marketing multiple 
office buildings in Newport in recent years. He noted one of his listings has been on the 
market for more than four years, but attributed that to the owner’s inflated expectations 
of market sale/lease prices on the coast, rather than a lack of demand. Diana Abbott 
with Martek Real Estate noted an office she sold in Newport was listed for five years before 
selling in 2021. However, she attributed the long listing period to the seller’s expectations, 
noting the seller rejected several offers during the listing period. The asymmetry of 
information can be common on the coast, which frequently has out-of-market investors 
and owners (such as from the Willamette Valley and Portland regions) coupled with local 
users. The coastal market consistently commands lower leasing and sale prices as 
compared to larger metro areas. 

For the purposes of this analysis, a rounded market conditions adjustment of 3.00% per 
year (0.25% per month) will be applied to the comparable improved sales through the 
date of value. 

165



MARKET ANALYSIS/HIGHEST & BEST USE (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  52 

Since 2018, sales volume has ranged from just under $50 million to over $125 million in 
2021. 2022 YTD is projected to have the lowest sales volume in the past 5 years.  

MARKETABILITY CONCLUSION 
Overall, the market for office/retail space along the Oregon Coast has experienced low 
vacancy in recent years, as well as decreasing marketing times and positive net 
absorption in 2022 YTD. Vacancy is projected to remain below the industry standard, 
generally reflecting frictional movement of tenants from one space to another, as 
opposed to tenants leaving the market altogether. Rents are forecasted to continue a 
steady climb in the coming years.  

STRENGTHS, WEAKNESSES, OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS (SWOT ANALYSIS) 
Strengths –  

The subject’s strengths include: 

• Location along Bay Boulevard surrounded by tourist-friendly retail services; 
• Waterfront view overlooking Yaquina Bay; 
• Multi-tenant design demised into three retail spaces that could cater to a variety 

of businesses; 

• Nearby public parking.  

Weaknesses –  

Weaknesses include: 

• The fair to average condition limits marketability and will likely require landlord 
paid TIs to entice tenants to occupy the vacant space.  

Opportunities –  
Opportunities include:  

• Assigning a local real estate broker to professionally market the vacant suites for 
lease and securing tenants to maximize income-generating ability.   

Threats –  
Threats include: 

• Prolonged vacancy due to building condition/quality.  

  

166



MARKET ANALYSIS/HIGHEST & BEST USE (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  53 

HIGHEST AND BEST USE 
Introduction 
Highest and best use is a market driven concept which identifies the most profitable and 
competitive use to which a property can be put. It is further defined as follows: 

“The reasonably probable and legal use of vacant land or an improved 
property, which is physically possible, appropriately supported, financially 
feasible, and that results in the highest value. The four criteria the highest and 
best use must meet are legal permissibility, physical possibility, financial feasibility, 
and maximum profitability.”2 

The concept of highest and best use is fundamental to real property value. In one 
application of the concept, a site is valued as though vacant and available for 
development to its highest and best use. In another application, the highest and best use 
of the property as improved is estimated. A site may have one highest and best use as 
though vacant, while the improved site may have another optimal use.3 

Highest and best use is essentially a market driven concept which identifies the ideal 
use(s) of a property which follow logical market criteria. It attempts to mirror the thinking 
of a buyer in the marketplace. Analysis pertaining to the legal, physical, financial and 
most productive uses of the site, both as though vacant and as improved, narrows 
development options to those best fitting the demand for the property. Once highest 
and best use is established, the appraisal process focuses on the identified sub-market, 
selecting parameters for meaningful analyses. 

The highest and best use of the subject land and improvements has been tested 
separately against the four criteria in the following analysis. 

Vacant Site 
Among all reasonable, alternative uses, the use that yields the highest present land value, 
after payments are made for labor, capital, and coordination. The use of a property based 
on the assumption that the parcel of land is vacant or can be made vacant by demolishing 
any improvements.4 

Legally Permissible - Legal factors influencing the subject are primarily zoning regulations 
and City ordinances. The subject site is zoned W-2 (Water-Related) by the City of 
Newport. As a vacant site, legal uses support a variety of water-related commercial 
uses; further, this zone allows conditional approval of all uses in the C-2 zone, which 
allows most retail/office uses, including hotels and general retail.  

Physically Possible - The physical characteristics of the site, notably the bayfront location, 
generally support any of the permitted uses, with no adverse conditions noted. 
Surrounding uses include other seafood processing facilities as well as retail 
development such as shops and restaurants aimed to attract tourists. Further, there is 
a State of Oregon Division of State Lands Submerged and Submersible Land Lease 
associated with site, allowing for construction of improvements into the bay, past the 
actual property boundary. This suggests a water related commercial use is the most 
likely use of the vacant site.   

                                                
2 The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, Fifth Edition. Chicago: Appraisal Institute, 2010. 
3 The Appraisal of Real Estate, Fourteenth Edition. Chicago: Appraisal Institute, 2013. 
4 The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, Fifth Edition. Chicago: Appraisal Institute, 2010. 

167



MARKET ANALYSIS/HIGHEST & BEST USE (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  54 

Financially Feasible - Due to the site’s physical characteristics, surrounding development, 
and legal considerations, the greatest financial return would likely come from an 
income producing property with a water-related use. The subject has good 
commercial potential based on surrounding land uses, the Yaquina Bay frontage, 
zoning, access, and frontage along Bay Boulevard in a corridor of tourist-oriented 
retail development. Therefore, development of the site with a legally and physically 
supported water-related commercial use is financially feasible.  

Maximally Productive - Legal and physical factors support a commercial use of the 
vacant site. Surrounding development, noting the heavy influence of tourism and 
subject’s Yaquina Bay and Bay Boulevard frontage, suggests a retail use is more 
feasible than office. Therefore, a water and tourism-related retail use accurately 
describes the maximally productive use of the site, as it represents a financially 
feasible, physically possible and legally permissible use.  

Marketability - Due to the subject’s Yaquina Bay location along Bay Boulevard in an area 
of intensive commercial/industrial development specifically catering to fish 
processing and tourism, the subject has high marketability for a commercial use 
consistent with the allowable uses of the W-2 zoning ordinance. Availability of similar 
commercial-related sites along Bay Boulevard is extremely limited. One previously 
developed site sold to a seafood company for redevelopment in 2015; the lack of 
sales activity of vacant sites is due to the area being predominantly built-up. 
Marketability factors support a water and tourism-related retail use.  

Because of the subject’s size and location, I anticipate a marketing period of one 
year, if listed at or near market value. This is consistent with marketing periods of similar 
properties in the subject’s market area. 

Highest and Best Use Conclusion As Vacant - Based upon past, present and prospective 
market activity in the subject’s market area, it is my opinion that a water and tourism-
related retail use is an adequate expression of the highest and best use of the vacant 
site. 

“AS IMPROVED” 
Highest and best use of a property as improved pertains to the use that should be made 
of an improved property in light of its improvements. 
Legally Permissible - The subject site is zoned W-2 (Water-Related) by the City of Newport. 

The existing multi-tenant retail use is a conditional use and meets all known 
developmental standards, noting the lack of on-site parking is supplemented by the 
public parking across the street.  

Physically Possible - The site is improved with the Abbey Street Pier Building, a 3,961 SF 
NRA multi-tenant retail building built in 1979 that reflects fair to average condition and 
quality. There is one current tenant that operates a glass retail shop. An ice cream 
parlor recently vacated the second ground floor space. There are also three 
individual restrooms accessible via exterior doors, and a mechanical room that 
houses the components for the pier’s fire suppression system. Physical characteristics 
support the existing multi-tenant retail use. 

  

168



MARKET ANALYSIS/HIGHEST & BEST USE (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  55 

Financially Feasible – With the ice cream parlor tenant vacating, the majority of the 
subject’s rentable area is vacant. Additionally, based on the analysis contained 
herein, the in-place lease rate for the glass shop is below market. In general, 
marketability factors suggest low vacancy and stable rents for tourist-oriented retail 
properties on the coast; however, the vacant spaces are not being actively marketed 
for lease by ownership, which has likely prolonged vacancy periods. Investing toward 
necessary maintenance/repairs and/or offering incentives in the form of free rent or 
landlord-paid TI’s may expedite the process of filling the vacant spaces and raising 
rents to market rates. Overall, the existing multi-tenant retail improvements are 
financially feasible. 

Maximally Productive - The maximally productive use is synonymous with the financially 
feasible use, the existing multi-tenant retail improvements.  

Marketability - The subject’s good quality and centralized location appeal to a broad 
tenant base. The marketability of the subject as a multi-tenant retail building has been 
discussed previously. Because of the subject’s size and location, I anticipate a 
marketing period of one year or less, if listed at or near market value. This is consistent 
with marketing periods of similar properties in the subject’s neighborhood. 

Highest and Best Use Conclusion As Improved - Based upon past, present and 
prospective activity in the market area, it is my opinion that the highest and best use 
of the subject as improved is adequately expressed by the existing multi-tenant retail 
improvements. 

169



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  56 

VALUATION METHODS 

SITE VALUE 
In valuing the subject site, as though vacant as of the effective date of this report, the 
Sales Comparison Approach is utilized. In this approach, recent sales and/or listings of 
similar sites are compared to the subject using the adjustment process (if appropriate) to 
indicate value. Where good market activity and data is available, this approach best 
reflects market behavior and provides a useful estimate of value for the subject land. 

COST APPROACH 
The Cost Approach is based upon the principle that the value of property is significantly 
related to its physical characteristics and that no one would pay more than the cost to 
build a like facility in today’s market on a comparable site. In this approach, the market 
value of the site is estimated and added to the depreciated value of the improvements. 
In addition, entrepreneurial profit is added. For proposed or newer properties, this 
approach may have significant relevance. For older properties or those with substantial 
depreciation, this approach has limited application. However, the Cost Approach may 
prove useful as an indication of potential supply, as measured by the amount of profit 
evident. These factors will be considered in addressing the emphasis placed on the Cost 
Approach. 

INCOME APPROACH 
This approach is predicated on the assumption that there is a definite relationship 
between the net income a property will earn and its value. Net income is the income 
generated before payment of any debt service. The process of converting it into value 
is called capitalization. Net income is divided by a capitalization rate. Factors such as risk, 
time, interest on the capital investment, upside potential and recapture of the 
depreciating asset are considered in the rate. Applying a capitalization rate based on 
indications from comparable sales reflects expectations of buyers and sellers in the 
market.  

Another capitalization concept employed with the Income Approach is the Discounted 
Cash Flow Analysis or yield capitalization. It is developed by projecting cash flows over a 
holding period assuming variations in income, expenses, lease terms, reversion rates and 
internal rates. The net present value of the cash flows is a method of measuring 
anticipated future benefits. 

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH 
This approach analyzes sales of comparable properties with regard to the nature and 
condition of each sale. Logical adjustments and/or comparisons are made for varying 
physical characteristics. For land value, a common denominator is a price per square 
foot or price per acre; for improved properties, it may be the price per square foot, price 
per unit, or a gross income multiplier. This approach develops a good indication of value 
when sales of similar properties have occurred. 

170



VALUATION METHODS (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  57 

RECONCILIATION 
This is the process by which the individual approach indications are weighed based on 
validity and applicability to the subject market. The indications often indicate different 
values. After factors influencing each approach are carefully considered (i.e. quality and 
quantity of data, sophistication of the market, etc.), a final point estimate of value is 
concluded. 

In this report the Income Capitalization and Sales Comparison Approaches will be utilized 
to value the subject property.  

The Cost Approach is excluded due the subjective nature of estimating depreciation in 
older properties. Its exclusion does not diminish the validity of the final value conclusion. 

 

171



 

P221197 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  58 

INCOME APPROACH 

The first step in the Income Approach is to analyze current income or estimate the 
subject's potential gross income. This process is accomplished through a comparison of 
the subject with rental properties in similar locations offering similar utility. Vacancy 
allowance and operating expenses are deducted, based on market analysis and 
support from the subject’s operating history. Finally, the resulting net operating income is 
converted to value using a capitalization rate. Then, adjustments may be made to 
establish the leased fee estate. 

POTENTIAL GROSS RENTAL INCOME 
To estimate market rent for the subject's rental space, the subject's actual rental 
achievements are compared with market rent comparables. 

ACTUAL LEASING – Only one of the three retail suites are occupied while the other two 
are vacant.  

Latta’s of Oregon, Inc. (glass shop) leases the Bay Boulevard-facing first floor retail space. 
Per the lease, the suite size is “about 1,108 SF”; the appraiser’s measurements indicate a 
suite size of 1,110 SF, with this size used herein. The lease commenced May 7, 2010, with 
two months’ free rent and an initial 10-year term, expiring May 6, 2020. The tenant is 
currently month to month. Base rent is $1,223/month ($1.10/SF).  
The lease structure is modified gross, with the tenant responsible for its own 
electric/garbage, real property taxes, janitorial, and interior maintenance. The landlord 
is responsible for fire and extended perils insurance, exterior maintenance, structural 
maintenance, management, payments to the underlying ground lease, and 
water/sewer. 

The other first floor retail space totals 602 rentable SF (including the space’s proportionate 
share of the common area single restroom) based on the appraiser’s measurements. This 
was most recently leased and used as an ice cream parlor; however, the final rent 
payment ($600) was received August 16, 2022 according to the property representative. 
The tenant has closed their business and the space is now effectively vacant.  

The entire second floor is also vacant. Rentable area is equal to 2,249 SF based on the 
appraiser’s measurements. It was most recently occupied and used as an art gallery; 
however, the space has been vacant for approximately two years.  

ANALYSIS OF COMPARABLES - The following analysis is conducted on a dollar per square 
foot per month basis, reflecting market behavior. The market rent is assigned to the 
rentable area of the space, which is typical in the market.  

The following presentation summarizes the comparables found to be most similar to the 
subject property. Although I performed a thorough search for comparables in the 
subject’s immediate Bayfront market, ultimately, the exploration yielded limited results. 
Therefore, the comparable search was expanded throughout the greater Central and 
North Oregon Coast, most notably to Lincoln City and Tillamook. Several brokers were 
interviewed and reported minimal activity for leasing retail space in Newport. Therefore 
the lease data does include some comparables for office space in the immediate area. 
Overall an adequate sampling of leases was found from which to compare to the 
subject.  

172



INCOME APPROACH (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  59 

Following the comparable discussion is a Lease Comparable Tabulation Chart and 
Adjustment Grid, which summarizes the leases used in this analysis. A Lease Comparable 
Location Map is also provided. The following narrative analyzes the comparables with 
respect to the subject. When necessary, the comparables have been adjusted to reflect 
a lease structure similar to the subject: modified gross with the tenants responsible for 
their share of real estate taxes, electricity, janitorial, and interior maintenance. The 
landlord is responsible for fire and extended perils insurance, water/sewer, exterior 
maintenance, and the underlying ground lease (as applicable). 

The comparable leases indicate an adjusted rental range from $1.11 to $2.08 per SF per 
month.  Each comparable is briefly discussed in the following narrative. 

173



 

P221197 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  60 

Multi-Tenant Commercial Property 

Comparable 1 
 

Lease Information 

Tenant Various 

Lease Type New 

Tenant Size 1,294 SF 

Start Date 2019 blended rates 

Lease Term 2 Years (24 Months) 

Rent $16.44/SF (Yr.) / $1.37/SF (Mo.) 

Expense Structure NNN 

Adjusted MG Rent $1.45/SF (Mo.) 
 

Property 

Type Retail 

Net Rentable Area (NRA) 3,882 SF 

Buildings 1 Building, 2 Floors 

Year Built 1999 

Zoning C-2 

Topography Level 

Corner Yes 
 

 

 

310 NW Coast St 
Newport, OR 97365 
 

 

County 
Lincoln 
 
 

Confirmation 

Name Chris Watkins 

Phone Number 541-265-2544 
 

Remarks 

This is a two-story multi-tenant commercial property located in 
the heart of the Nye Beach neighborhood in Newport. The 
building was constructed in 1999 and reflects good condition and 
quality. The site benefits from a non-signalized corner orientation.  

This is the 2019 blended lease rate for three tenants, including a 
candy shop and clothing store. Per the broker, two of the leases 
have two-year terms, with the remaining leases month-to-month. 
The structures are all triple net. 
 

  

174



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  61 

Office Building 

Comparable 2 
 

Lease Information 

Tenant Dr. Kenneth Bishop, Chiropractor 

Lease Type New 

Tenant Size 995 SF 

Start Date 12/1/2019 

Lease Term 3 Years (36 Months) 

Rent $15.67/SF (Yr.) / $1.31/SF (Mo.) 

Expense Structure Modified Gross: tenant pays 
electric/janitorial 

Adjusted MG Rent $1.11/SF (Mo.) 

Options/Extensions None 

Escalation Detail No escalation in Yr 2; $100/mo. 
escalation in Yr 3 

 

Property 

Type Office 

Gross Building Area (GBA) 8,933 SF 

Net Rentable Area (NRA) 8,933 SF 

Buildings 2 Buildings, 1 Floor 

Parking 16 Spaces (1.8/1,000 SF NRA) 

Year Built 1989 

Land Area 0.5136 Acres (22,374 SF) 

Site Coverage Ratio 26.58% 

FAR 0.40 

Building Class C 
 

 

 

530 NW 3rd St 
Newport, OR 97365 
 

 

County 
Lincoln 
 

APN 
R501032, 11-11-05-CC-
40002-00 01 
 

Confirmation 

Name Dr. Kenneth Bishop 

Phone Number 541-270-4309 

Affiliation Lessee 

Date 2/9/2022 
 

Remarks 

This reflects the lease to a chiropractor for a small office suite in 
Newport. Per the lessee, the lessor originally wanted $1,800 per 
month ($1.81/SF); the tenant and landlord eventually negotiated 
the resulting lease rate of $1,300/month. The landlord pays all 
expenses except for unit electric and janitorial. 
 

  

175



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  62 

Two-Tenant Retail w/ Drive Thru 

Comparable 3 
 

Lease Information 

Tenant Maria's Taqueria 

Tenant Type Restaurant 

Lease Type New 

Tenant Size 1,250 SF 

Start Date 2/1/2020 

Lease Term 5 Years (60 Months) 

Rent $24/SF (Yr.) / $2/SF (Mo.) 

Expense Structure NNN 

Adjusted MG Rent $2.08/SF (Mo.) 

Options/Extensions 1, 5-year 

Average Escalations 2% (Yr.) 

Escalation Detail Renewal is at change in CPI 
 

Property 

Type Retail 

Gross Building Area (GBA) 3,105 SF 

Net Rentable Area (NRA) 3,105 SF 

Buildings 1 Building, 1 Floor 

Parking 17 Spaces (5.5/1,000 SF NRA) 

Year Built 1995 (Renovated 2015) 

Land Area 0.4059 Acres (17,680 SF) 

Site Coverage Ratio 17.56% 

FAR 0.18 

Zoning C-H 

Shape Rectangular 

Topography Level 

Corner Yes 
 

 

 

1863 N Main Ave 
Tillamook, OR 97141 
 

 

County 
Tillamook 
 

APN 
1S0919-C0-00103 
 

Confirmation 

Name Michael Horwitz 

Company Capital Pacific 

Phone Number 425-736-3406 

Affiliation Broker 

Date 9/13/2022 
 

Remarks 

Fully occupied two-tenant retail property occupied by Subway (w/ 
drive thru) and Maria's Taqueria. Originally built in 1995. Recent 
updates include new HVAC, roof repairs, and a building expansion 
completed in 2015, and resealing of the parking lot in 2019. 
Exposure is at a non-signalized corner along Highway 101. 

This is the lease to a local taco shop of a former Taco Del Mar 
location. 
 

  

176



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  63 

Professional Office Building 

Comparable 4 
 

Lease Information 

Tenant Butler/Armstrong 

Tenant Type Office 

Lease Type Renewal 

Tenant Size 642 SF 

Start Date 1/1/2021 

Rent $14.04/SF (Yr.) / $1.17/SF (Mo.) 

Expense Structure MG - tenant pays taxes, utilities, 
janitorial 

Adjusted MG Rent $1.22/SF (Mo.) 

Options/Extensions None 

Escalation Detail None 
 

Property 

Type Office 

Gross Building Area (GBA) 4,400 SF 

Net Rentable Area (NRA) 4,400 SF 

Buildings 1 Building, 2 Floors 

Foundation Type Not Specified 

Parking 19 Spaces (4.3/1,000 SF NRA) 

Year Built 1997 

Land Area 0.16 Acres (6,970 SF) 

Site Coverage Ratio 31.56% 

FAR 0.63 
 

 

 

130 NE 4th St 
Newport, OR 97365 
 

 

County 
Lincoln 
 

APN 
11-11-05-DC-11500-00 
 

Confirmation 

Name Alan Wells 

Company Commercial Associates 

Phone Number 541-754-6320 

Affiliation Broker 

Date 9/9/2022 
 

Remarks 

This is the 2021 lease rate for a month-to-month office lease in a 
Newport office building. The tenant remains in the building in 
2022. 
 

  

177



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  64 

Mixed Use Commercial/Residential 
Building 

Comparable 5 
 

Lease Information 

Tenant Bayside Nutrition 

Tenant Type MG 

Lease Type New 

Tenant Size 1,268 SF 

Start Date 6/1/2022 

Lease Term 1 Year (12 Months) 

Rent $17.52/SF (Yr.) / $1.46/SF (Mo.) 

Expense Structure MG 

Adjusted MG Rent $1.36/SF (Mo.) 
 

Property 

Type Multi-Family, Retail 

Gross Building Area (GBA) 2,068 SF 

Net Rentable Area (NRA) 2,068 SF 

Buildings 1 Building, 2 Floors 

Year Built 1930 (Renovated Unknown) 

Land Area 0.17 Acres (7,405 SF) 

Site Coverage Ratio 17.12% 

FAR 0.28 

Shape Generally Rectangular 

Topography Level 

Corner No 
 

 

 

735 NW Beach Drive 
Newport, OR 97365 
 

 

County 
Lincoln 
 

APN 
11-11-05-CC-09900-00, 11-
11-05-CC-09800-00 
 

Confirmation 

Name Freddy Saxton 

Company Advantage Real Estate 

Phone Number 541-961-2085 

Affiliation Broker 

Date 11/23/2022 
 

Remarks 

Mixed use building with a 1,268 SF retail space on the ground 
floor and two apartment units on the second floor totaling an 
additional 800 SF. Located in the heart of Nye Beach. The separate 
75' x 75' vacant lot is zoned C-2 and all utilities available at the 
street. Built in 1930 but well maintained and reflecting average 
condition. Street parking only. 

Modified gross lease with the landlord paying taxes and building 
maintenance while the tenant pays all other expenses. The tenant 
leases the space on an annual basis and originally moved in to the 
space in June 2020. 
 

  

178



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  65 

Bar & Grill 
Comparable 6 
 

Lease Information 

Tenant The Sea Spritz 

Tenant Type Restaurant 

Lease Type New 

Tenant Size 2,558 SF 

Start Date 11/1/2022 

Lease Term 5 Years (60 Months) 

Rent $17.36/SF (Yr.) / $1.45/SF (Mo.) 

Expense Structure NNN 

Adjusted MG Rent $1.53/SF (Mo.) 

Options/Extensions None 

Escalation Detail Annual escalation of $50 - $100 
per month 

 

Property 

Type Retail, Restaurant 

Gross Building Area (GBA) 2,558 SF 

Net Rentable Area (NRA) 2,558 SF 

Buildings 1 Building, 1 Floor 

Parking 6 Spaces (2.3/1,000 SF NRA) 

Year Built 1950 (Renovated 2022 full 
renovation) 

Land Area 0.15 Acres (6,534 SF) 

Site Coverage Ratio 39.15% 

FAR 0.39 
 

 

 

1330 NE Hwy 101 
Lincoln City, OR 97367 
 

 

County 
Lincoln 
 

APN 
07-11-10-DC-03500-00 
 

Confirmation 

Name Korey Hazard 

Company Taylor & Taylor 

Phone Number 541-961-7519 

Affiliation Broker 

Date 9/12/2022 
 

Remarks 

This is the signed lease for a single-tenant bar and grill in Lincoln 
City. The broker reported the landlord completely remodeled and 
upgraded the space prior to securing the tenant. 
 

179



INCOME APPROACH (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  66 

The following narrative compares and contrasts the comparables relative to the subject 
property: 

• Expense Structure – The subject has a modified gross expense structure, in which 
the tenants are responsible for their share of real estate taxes, electricity, janitorial, 
and interior maintenance, while the landlord is responsible for fire and extended 
perils insurance, water/sewer, exterior maintenance, and the underlying ground 
lease (as applicable). The comparables have varying expense structures. All have 
been adjusted, as applicable, to the subject’s modified gross structure. 

• Location – The subject is located along Bay Boulevard in Newport, an area of 
intense commercial development. It is also located on the east side of Bay 
Boulevard and benefits from a waterfront view amenity overlooking Yaquina Bay. 
Given this, the comparables are generally considered inferior to the subject with 
regard to location to account for the view amenity.  

• Parking – The subject has no on-site parking but a public parking lot is located 
adjacent to the west. The comparables have on-site parking ranging between 2.3 
to 4.9 spaces per 1,000 SF, all deemed slightly superior. 

• Condition – The subject exhibits fair to average condition, with opportunities for 
updates. Comparables 1, 3, 5, and 6 are all deemed superior.   

• Quality – The subject reflects average quality and wood frame construction. 
Comparable 6 was recently remodeled/upgraded prior to the tenant moving in 
and is deemed superior regarding quality.  

• Utility – The subject possesses retail utility but could also be suitable for a service-
oriented office user. Comparables 3 and 6 are utilized as restaurants and possess 
commercial kitchens. The restaurant buildout is superior.  

• Size (SF) – The subject suites range in size from 602 to 2,249 SF. Comparable 5 is the 
largest space in the data set, which may have placed some downward pressure 
on its rent rate per SF, particularly when compared to the subject’s two ground 
floor suites. No other adjustments are necessary for size. 

LEASE RATE CONCLUSION 
The comparables are arrayed below, illustrating the subject’s competitive position. 

 

Based on the physical and locational factors affecting rent, the subject is bracketed by 
Comparables 4 and 5, suggesting a narrowed range of $1.22 to $1.36 per SF.  

Comparable Adjusted Rent/SF Indication
3 $2.08 High
6 $1.53 High
1 $1.45 High
5 $1.36 Slightly High

4 $1.22 Slightly Low
2 $1.11 Slightly Low

SUBJECT

Lease Comparable Array

180



INCOME APPROACH (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  67 

The subject benefits from its waterfront view amenity and location along Bay Boulevard, 
the primary commercial corridor for tourists where surrounding development includes a 
mix of retail/restaurant businesses and commercial fishing.  

Brodie Becksted, Principal Broker with Ocean Equity, was unaware of any recent leases 
in Newport but opined a rate range of $1.60 to $2.00/SF/month full service as a general 
rule of thumb for retail properties in the subject area.  

However, based on the in-place rent, the fair to average condition of the improvements, 
and the qualitative adjustments applied to the comparable leases, the subject property 
would likely garner market rents below the range indicated by Mr. Becksted.   

The glass shop space on the first floor (1,110 SF) has an in-place rent of $1.10/SF/month. 
No documentation was provided beyond the original lease agreement which expired in 
2020; the tenant is assumed to be operating month to month. The rent rate has escalated 
by approximately $115/month since the original lease commenced in 2010. Overall 
market rent near the middle of the narrowed range of $1.30/SF/month is concluded.  

The former ice cream parlor (602 SF) was being leased for $600/month ($1.00/SF/month) 
prior to the tenant vacating. Due to economies of scale, the small size would likely place 
upward pressure on the rental rate. It faces away from Bay Boulevard but has windows 
overlooking the pier and Yaquina Bay beyond. Overall market rent near the upper end 
of the narrowed range of $1.35/SF/month is concluded. 

The entire second floor space (2,249 SF) has been vacant for several years and was 
formerly utilized as an art gallery. The prolonged marketing period can likely be attributed 
to ownership opting not to professionally market the space for lease. This space is not 
ADA-accessible; however, it has excellent second floor views overlooking the Bay and 
has an open floor plan with unique architectural finishes, noting the vaulted ceilings and 
exposed wood beams, which could cater to a variety of uses. Considering the larger size 
compared to the first floor spaces, market rent near the low end of the overall range of 
$1.20/SF/month is concluded and will be applied.  

The rent conclusions for the respective suites indicate a blended market rent equal to 
$1.25/SF/month.  

 
Potential gross income is concluded following the Lease Comparable Tabulation Chart 
and Location Map. 

 

Potential Gross Income
Glass Shop (mkt) 1,110 SF  x $1.30 /SF    x 12 mo. = $17,316
Former Ice Cream Parlor (mkt) 602 SF  x $1.35 /SF    x 12 mo. = $9,752
Former Art Gallery (mkt) 2,249 SF  x $1.20 /SF    x 12 mo. = $32,386
PGI 3,961 SF  x $1.25 /SF    x 12 mo. = $59,454

181



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  68 

 LEASE COMPARABLE TABULATION CHART AND ADJUSTMENT GRID  

 
 

 
 
 
 

Characteristics Subject
Name Abby St. Pier Building

Address 669 SW Bay Blv d.

Newport, Oregon

Lease Date

Size (SF) 602 to 2,249

Rent/SF/Month

Rent/SF/Year

Expense Structure MG

Tenant Pays Taxes, elec, int. maint.
Term

Renewal

Escalation

Tenant Improv ements

Concessions
Rentable Building Area (SF) 3,961

Year Built 1979

Parking Ratio Street parking only

Rent Adjustment Description Adj (+/-) Description Adj (+/-) Description Adj (+/-) Description Adj (+/-) Description Adj (+/-) Description Adj (+/-)
Conditions of Lease Arm's Length $0.00 Arm's Length $0.00 Arm's Length $0.00 Arm's Length $0.00 Arm's Length $0.00 Arm's Length $0.00
Expense Structure MG $0.08 MG -$0.20 MG $0.08 MG $0.05 MG -$0.10 MG $0.08
Other (Parking; Amort. TIs) None $0.00 None $0.00 None $0.00 None $0.00 None $0.00 None $0.00
Market Conditions No Quantitativ e Adj. None $0.00 None $0.00 None $0.00 None $0.00 None $0.00 None $0.00
Adjusted Rent/SF/Mth $1.45 $1.11 $2.08 $1.22 $1.36 $1.53
Adjusted Rent/SF/Yr $17.40 $13.28 $24.96 $14.62 $16.35 $18.32

Qualitative Adjustment Comparison Rating (+/-) Comparison Rating (+/-) Comparison Rating (+/-) Comparison Rating (+/-) Comparison Rating (+/-) Comparison Rating (+/-)
Location Newport, Oregon Inferior - Inferior - Inferior - Inferior - Inferior - Inferior -
Parking Street parking only Superior +/= Superior +/= Superior +/= Superior +/= Superior +/= Superior +/=
Condition Fair to Av erage Superior + Similar = Superior + Similar = Superior + Superior +
Quality Av erage Similar = Similar = Similar = Similar = Similar = Superior +
Utility Retail Retail = Office = Restaurant + Office = Retail = Restaurant +
Size 602 to 2,249 Similar = Similar = Similar = Similar = Similar = Larger -/=

Comparability +/= -/= + + -/= +/= ++
Conclusion

Comparable 5

Newport, OR

1,268

$17.55

ins, utilities

None

None

3.9 spaces/1,000 SF

Slightly High Indicator

Various

Unknown
None

3,882
1999

4.9 spaces/1,000 SF

$1.37 Av erage

$16.44 Av erage

NNN
All expenses

2 Years / Month-to-Month

Various

Comparable 1
Multi-tenant Retail

310-316 NW Coast Street

Newport, Oregon

2019 Blended Lease Rate

1,294 Av erage

NNN
All expenses

5 years

1, 5-year

2%/year; renewal at CPI

None

2.3 spaces/1,000 SF

Slightly Low Indicator Slightly Low Indicator Slightly High Indicator High Indicator

4.5 spaces/1,000 SF

High Indicator

2.7 spaces/1,000 SF + street 2.3 spaces/1,000 SF

1989 1997 1930/renov ated 1950/2022 full renov ation1995

None

5,947 4,400 2,068 2,558

None

3,105

None None
None None None None; owner had finished reno

None

$100 in yr 3 N/A None annual: $50 - $100/month

N/A N/A

All expenses

3 years Month-to-month 1 year 5 years

Electric, janitorial Taxes, utiltiies, int. maint.

$17.36

MG MG MG NNN

$24.00$15.68 $14.02

2,558

$1.31 $1.17 $1.46 $1.45

1,250

$2.00

995 642

Dec-19 Jan-21 Jun-22 Nov -22Feb-20

Lincoln City, ORNewport, OR Newport, ORTillamook, OR

530 NW 3rd St, Suite A 130 NE 4th Street 735 NW Beach Driv e 1330 NE Hwy 101

Maria's Taqueria

1863 Main Av e N

Comparable 6
Chiropractor Office Butler/Armstrong Bayside Nutrition Bar & Grill

Comparable 3Comparable 2 Comparable 4

182



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  69 

LEASE COMPARABLE MAP 

 

183



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  70 

LEASE COMPARABLE DRIVE-TO MAP – COMP #1 

 

LEASE COMPARABLE DRIVE-TO MAP – COMP #2 

 

184



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  71 

LEASE COMPARABLE DRIVE-TO MAP – COMP #3 

 

LEASE COMPARABLE DRIVE-TO MAP – COMP #4 

 
  

185



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  72 

LEASE COMPARABLE DRIVE-TO MAP – COMP #5 

 

LEASE COMPARABLE DRIVE-TO MAP – COMP #6 

 

186



INCOME APPROACH (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  73 

POTENTIAL GROSS INCOME CONCLUSION 
Rental Income Conclusion -- Two sources were analyzed regarding appropriate market 
rent levels: the subject's actual leasing activity and rent comparables. Regarding the 
actual leasing activity, one of the three suites are occupied and the tenant is paying 
base rent equal to $1.10/SF/month. The rental rate has increased by just $115/month 
since the lease commenced in 2010, indicating it is below market. This was supported by 
the comparables and a market rent of $1.30/SF/month was concluded. The current 
tenant is secured on a short term lease that is effectively month-to-month; therefore, no 
rent loss is applied.   

Market rent for the two vacant suites were concluded at $1.35/SF/month for the smaller 
602 SF first floor space and $1.20/SF/month for the second floor space.  

Applying the concluded rents against the rentable area of 3,961 SF, results in a potential 
gross income, as detailed in the following chart, of: 

 

VACANCY AND CREDIT LOSS 
This expense category accounts for the time between tenants, and possible prolonged 
vacancies under slow market conditions. This assignment reflects the probable vacancy 
during the economic life of the property, not necessarily the current vacancy.  

Typical vacancy and credit loss allocations assigned by buyers and sellers of average 
quality, well-located commercial properties that have not experienced historical 
vacancy problems are 5%. As discussed in the Market Analysis, the subject’s market area 
has experienced recent vacancy rates well below the market standard of 5%, although 
the vacancy rates indicated by Costar may overstate the lack of supply as many lease 
agreements on the coast are signed between ownership and tenant with no broker 
representation.   

Based upon the above information and considering the subject has dealt with vacancy 
historically, a vacancy and credit loss allocation of 5.00% will be used. 

EFFECTIVE GROSS INCOME 
The effective gross income is calculated as follows: 

 

Potential Gross Income
Glass Shop (mkt) 1,110 SF  x $1.30 /SF    x 12 mo. = $17,316
Former Ice Cream Parlor (mkt) 602 SF  x $1.35 /SF    x 12 mo. = $9,752
Former Art Gallery (mkt) 2,249 SF  x $1.20 /SF    x 12 mo. = $32,386
PGI 3,961 SF  x $1.25 /SF    x 12 mo. = $59,454

Potential Gross Income = $59,454
Less, Vacancy & Credit Loss -5.0% x $59,454 = ($2,973)
Effective Gross Income $56,481

187



INCOME APPROACH (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  74 

ESTIMATED OPERATING EXPENSES 
The subject's estimated market rents have been based upon a modified gross expense 
structure, with the landlord responsible for fire and extended perils insurance, 
water/sewer, the Department of State Lands land lease, exterior repairs and 
maintenance, management and structural maintenance/reserves costs, which are 
discussed in the following narrative.  

Fire and Extended Perils Insurance -   
Properties similar to the subject incur 
insurance expenses ranging from less than 1% 
to 3% of effective gross income. The costs are 
dependent upon the property's size, age, 
condition, and construction characteristics. 
The property representative reported an 
actual expense of $2,544.58 ($0.64/SF) for the 
current year. This is above the expense 
comparables, which range from $0.17 to 
$0.36 per SF. However, none of the 
comparables are located on the Bayfront, 
which may result in an increased expense. 
Therefore, most emphasis is placed on the 
actual expense. For the purposes of this 
analysis, an expense of $2,545, or $0.64 per SF 
is concluded. The expense is equivalent to 
4.51% of EGI. 

 

  
Water/Sewer - Utility expenses can vary dramatically from year to year and from 
property to property. Per the property representative, average water usage in 
2021/2022 was 9,670 gallons of water usage per month. This is high noting the subject 
units’ use types. Commercial water/sewer comparables were found and range from 
$0.09 to $0.24 per SF, averaging $0.17 per SF. A water/sewer expense slightly above the 
comparables but below the subject’s actual expense of $0.25 per SF is concluded. 
  

 

Department of State Lands (DSL) Lease — A portion of the subject pier is located on 
land leased from the Department of State Lands. The original lease document reports 
a leased are of 3,750 SF, including the adjacent public pier. The lease was renewed in 
late 2018 for 18 years; the lease rate is based on a flat fee calculated by the DSL and 
escalating 3% per year.  

However; the subject’s leased area does not include the entire pier, and was previously 
calculated to be 2,658 SF. The Department of State Lands lease rate, for the subject 
supporting site only, is calculated below for 2022 and will be used herein: 

 
 

/year
Comparable 1 N/A
Comparable 2 $0.36
Comparable 3* $0.70
Comparable 4 $0.25
Comparable 5 $0.13
Comparable 6* $0.70
Comparable 7 $0.09
Comparable 8 $0.25
Comparable 9 $0.31
Comparable 10 $0.14
Comparable 11^ $0.81
Average $0.37
Average w/out Liability/EQ $0.22
* Liability Coverage Included.
^ includes Fire, EQ, Liability

FIRE/EXTENDED PERILS INSURANCE

State Lands Lease Per SF
Lease Rate 2022 lease rate $0.6918
x leased area - SUPPORTING SITE ONLY 2,658
2022 Department of State Lands Rent - Supporting Site Only $1,839

188



INCOME APPROACH (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  75 

Repairs and Maintenance – This expense 
category is typically dependent upon the 
property's size, age, condition, and 
construction characteristics. The subject’s 
actual repairs/maintenance expenditures 
were not provided. The property 
representative indicated no major repairs 
have been completed in recent years.  

Expense comparables for this expense are 
shown at right and range from $0.42 - $2.32 per 
SF, averaging $1.18/SF.  

Considering the subject’s fair to average 
condition and average wood-frame 
construction quality, and noting the landlord is 
responsible for exterior repairs and maintenance only, an expense of $.075 per SF is 
concluded. 
  
Management & Administration – The subject has been owner-managed, with no 
management expense reported.  Property management companies in the subject’s 
market area generally charge 2% to 6% of effective gross income for industrial and 
commercial properties. The management costs are dependent upon the property's 
size, number of tenants, and lease structure.  

Given the subject's three-tenant design, and modified gross expense structure, an 
expense of 3.00% of EGI is considered appropriate and will be used in this analysis.   
  
Reserves for Replacement - Reserves for replacement expense is not a typical annual 
cash expenditure, but rather, the annualized cost of major expenses in the future, such 
as the replacement of the roof cover, heating systems, asphalt paving, and other 
structural components. The reserves for replacement allowance buyers and sellers for 
this type of property typically allocate is 2 to 6% of effective gross income, depending 
on the age and condition of the facility.   

Based on the quality of the subject improvements, as well as the repairs and 
maintenance allocation already deducted, a reserve for replacement allocation of 
5.00% of EGI is reasonable. 

 

  

/year
Comparable 1 $0.74
Comparable 2 $1.60
Comparable 3 $1.58
Comparable 4 $0.94
Comparable 5 $1.32
Comparable 6 $0.42
Comparable 7 $0.64
Comparable 8 $1.00
Comparable 9 $2.32
Comparable 10 $1.09
Comparable 11 $1.32
Average $1.18

REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE

189



INCOME APPROACH (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  76 

Total Expenses are summarized below: 

 
Net operating income is summarized below: 

 

OVERALL CAPITALIZATION RATE 
The final step in the Income Approach is to capitalize the net operating income by an 
appropriate overall rate. Overall capitalization rates vary based upon many factors 
including age, quality, condition, strength of tenants, vacancy history, anticipated 
tenant turnover expenses, appreciation potential, and general perceived risk in 
maintaining the estimated stabilized net operating income of the property. 

The following chart summarizes market comparables. 

CAPITALIZATION RATE COMPARABLES 

 
  

$/SF $ % EGI
F&E Insurance $0.64 $2,545 4.51%
Water/Sewer $0.25 $990 1.75%
Land Lease $0.46 $1,839 3.26%
Repairs and Maintenance $0.75 $2,971 5.26%
Management $0.43 $1,694 3.00%
Reserves for Replacement $0.71 $2,824 5.00%

$3.25 $12,862 22.77%

Effective Gross Income $56,481
Less, Expenses ($12,862)
Net Operating Income $43,619
Per SF $11.01

Property Sale Year Size Sale
No Location Type Date Built (SF) Price NOI OAR Indicator
1 Coldwell Banker Office Single Tenant Jun-20 1946 3,277 $660,000 $40,546 6.14% Low

1815 NW Hwy 101 Prof. Office $201.40 $12
Lincoln City, OR

2 Avery Building Multi-tenant Dec-20 1994 20,740 $3,315,000 $245,287 7.40% High
120 NE Avery Street Office $159.84 $12
Newport, OR

3 Two Tenant Retail Multi-tenant Jan-21 1995 3,105 $1,125,000 $81,697 7.26% High
1863 Main Ave Retail $362.32 $26
Tillamook, OR

4 Multi-tenant Commercial Multi-tenant Jun-21 1985 4,800 $265,444 $17,591 6.63% High
440 NE Commercial Street Office/retail $55.30 $4
Waldport, OR

5 Multi-tenant Commercial Multi-tenant Nov-21 1984 24,899 $800,000 $57,928 7.24% High
1000 Main Ave N Office/retail $32.13 $2
Tillamook, OR

6 Two-tenant office building Multi-tenant Jan-22 1977 2,539 $378,500 $24,000 6.34% Low
14 SW Nye St Prof. Office $149.07 $9
Newport, OR

Min 6.14%
Max 7.40%

Average 6.84%

190



INCOME APPROACH (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  77 

The comparables indicate a range from 6.14% to 7.40%. The net operating income of 
each comparable is based on similar expense structure to that of the subject.  Each of 
the comparables has varying physical and financial characteristics and brackets the 
subject in terms of age, condition, quality, location, durability of income stream, and 
overall market appeal. Overall, these sales are reasonably comparable to the subject 
from an investor's perspective. All of the sales transacted during/after the COVID-19 
pandemic, suggesting they reflect changes in market conditions due to this event. 
Comparable 1 (6.14%) is the seller leaseback sale of a single tenant realtor office in 
Lincoln City. Per the broker (also an entity of the selling ownership), the in place lease 
(carried forward to the new ownership) was slightly below market, which provided 
upward potential for a higher renewal. It is a low indicator.  
Comparable 2 (7.40%) is the sale of a multi-tenant professional office building leased to 
government tenants (including the Oregon DHS). Its larger size placed upward pressure 
on the capitalization rate, noting the difficulty of leasing large offices in the Oregon coast 
market. It is a high indicator.  
Comparable 3 (7.26%) is the sale of a two-tenant retail property in Tillamook. Tenants 
included two restaurants (Subway and a local taco shop). The high NOI per SF increases 
investment risk, making this a high indicator. 
Comparable 4 (6.63%) is the sale of a multi-tenant office/retail strip center in Waldport. 
The low NOI per SF decreases risk (and also suggested there was upward potential from 
raising the in-place rents). However, this is offset by the inferior location and condition, 
making this a high indicator. 
Comparable 5 (7.24%) is the sale of a multi-tenant commercial building in Tillamook. Its 
tenant mix included a restaurant, retail, and offices in a strip-mall type development. In-
place rents were reportedly slightly below market. However, the large size for the local 
market increased risk, making this a high indicator. 
Comparable 6 (6.34%) is the sale of a two-tenant professional office building in Newport. 
The property benefited from upward potential from leasing out some additional 
basement storage (not reflected in the NOI at the time of sale) and renewing the in-
place tenants’ leases at slightly higher rates, making this a low indicator. NOTE: This 
property sold leased on month-to-month terms with the in-place tenants, who will be 
vacating for future owner-user occupancy. 

The comparables are arrayed below from high to low, illustrating the subject’s perceived 
placement amongst the array: 

 
The subject’s income stream has been based on market rent and expenses. The Bayfront 
location along Bay Boulevard in Newport in the heart of a destination retail area are 

Comparable OAR % Indication
1 7.40% High
6 7.26% High
4 7.24% High
5 6.63% High

3 6.34% Low
2 6.14% Low

Comparable Capitalization Rate Array

SUBJECT

191



INCOME APPROACH (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  78 

taken into consideration and present strong upside potential. The concluded market 
rents only consider a minor $10/SF TI allowance and have potential to rise if the landlord 
opts to invest further toward interior updates/renovations to the vacant spaces and 
implements a routine maintenance plan for the exterior.  

Concluding a capitalization rate of 6.50% based on comparable sales is reasonable 
considering all factors.  

INCOME CAPITALIZATION APPROACH CONCLUSION 
Dividing the estimated net operating income by the concluded overall capitalization 
rate, results in a stabilized market value of the subject property (assuming market rents), 
by the Income Capitalization Approach, of $670,000. 

 
Lease-up costs: 2,851 vacant SF – The previously concluded stabilized value assumes that 
the subject is operating at market lease rates and market occupancy.  

Two of the three retail suites totaling 2,851 SF were vacant and not being marketed for 
lease. Therefore; a deduction must be made for costs to the property owner to achieve 
stabilization. These costs include: 

• Rent loss over the lease up period to reach stabilized occupancy; 

• Leasing commissions (5% over 36-month term); 

A landlord-paid tenant improvement allowance of $10/SF will also likely be necessary to 
entice a tenant to lease the spaces, noting the fair to average condition.  

Overall, an absorption period of 12 months is estimated based on statistics presented in 
the Market Analysis and lease-up data. The lease-up analysis assumes the first floor retail 
space (602 SF) will be leased at the six-month period and the second floor space (2,249 
SF) will be absorbed in the final period at the end of the 12-month lease-up phase.  

 
Because the lease-up period is not greater than one year from the date of value, no 
discount is applied. Total lease-up costs are $69,394, or $70,000, rounded. 

Net Operating Income $43,619
Divided by OAR 6.50%
STABILIZED Market Value - Rounded $670,000
Per SF $169.15

Leasing Commissions: 5% over 5 year term
Tenant Improvements/SF: $10.00 TOTAL

Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct
PERIOD PERIOD PERIOD PERIOD PERIOD PERIOD PERIOD PERIOD PERIOD PERIOD PERIOD PERIOD

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Area to Absorb (SF): 2,851 2,851 2,851 2,851 2,851 2,851 2,249 2,249 2,249 2,249 2,249 0
2ND FLOOR SPACE 2,249 SF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,249
Rent Loss: $1.20 SF/Mo $2,699 $2,699 $2,699 $2,699 $2,699 $2,699 $2,699 $2,699 $2,699 $2,699 $2,699 $0 $29,687
Leasing Commissions: 5% 36 mo. Term $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,858 $4,858

Tenant Improvements: $10 per SF $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,490 $22,490
1ST FLOOR SPACE 602 SF 0 0 0 0 0 602 0 0 0 0 0 0
Rent Loss: $1.35 SF/Mo $813 $813 $813 $813 $813 $813 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,876
Leasing Commissions: 5% 36 mo. Term $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,463 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,463
Tenant Improvements: $10 per SF $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,020 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,020
TOTAL LEASE-UP COSTS: $69,394

2022 2023

192



INCOME APPROACH (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  79 

Deducting the costs to reach stabilization from the previously concluded stabilized value 
results in an “as if” market value in leased fee/leasehold, via the Income Approach, as 
of November 2, 2022, of ($670,000 - $70,000): 

$600,000 

193



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  80 

 INCOME APPROACH SUMMATION TABLE  

 
 

 
 
 

Potential Gross Income
Glass Shop (mkt) 1,110 SF  x $1.30 /SF    x 12 mo. = $17,316
Former Ice Cream Parlor (mkt) 602 SF  x $1.35 /SF    x 12 mo. = $9,752
Former Art Gallery (mkt) 2,249 SF  x $1.20 /SF    x 12 mo. = $32,386
PGI 3,961 SF  x $1.25 /SF    x 12 mo. = $59,454

Less, Vacancy and Credit Loss 5.0% = ($2,973)

Effective Gross Income = $56,481

$/SF $ % EGI
F&E Insurance $0.64 $2,545 4.51%
Water/Sewer $0.25 $990 1.75%
Land Lease $0.46 $1,839 3.26%
Repairs and Maintenance $0.75 $2,971 5.26%
Management $0.43 $1,694 3.00%
Reserves for Replacement $0.71 $2,824 5.00%

$3.25 $12,862 22.77%
Total Expenses = ($12,862)

Net Operating Income (NOI) = $43,619
Per SF = $11.01

NOI Divided By OAR = Value

$43,619 Divided By 6.50% = $671,062

Estimated Stabilized Market Value (Rounded) = $670,000
per SF $169.15

Lease-up Costs (Vacant SF) = -$70,000

Estimated "As If" Market Value (Rounded) = $600,000
per SF $151.48

Capitalization of Income

194



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  81 

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH 

In this section, the market value of the subject property will be estimated by direct 
comparison analysis, which compares improved sales to the subject property on a price 
per square foot basis. The price per square foot is based upon the physical characteristics 
of the property, and care must be taken in the comparable selection process. The 
comparables are analyzed considering such factors as location, site coverage/parking, 
exposure, access, condition, quality, utility, and size.   

A survey of the market area was conducted and included CoStar, LoopNet, Regional 
Multiple Listing Service, Flex Multiple Listing Service, County assessor’s records, and 
interviews with several local real estate professionals and developers familiar with the 
subject property type. A limited number of sales of retail properties with similar 
characteristics in the immediate Newport market were found. Therefore the search was 
expanded to include retail buildings north of the subject along the Oregon Coast, 
specifically in the markets of Pacific City and Lincoln City. One small commercial building 
built out as an office from the Newport market was also included. An adequate sampling 
of comparables sales was found, from which to conclude a credible value opinion. 
General analysis reflecting market behavior is utilized to determine which comparables 
are superior or inferior to the subject. This analysis establishes value parameters for the 
subject, allowing for a final conclusion of value. Following the comparable discussion is 
an Improved Sales Tabulation Chart and Adjustment Grid, which summarizes the sales 
used in this analysis. An Improved Sales Location Map is also provided. 

ADJUSTMENTS 
QUANTITATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 
Property Rights Conveyed – Properties are sold with a specific bundle of rights and 
typically reflect various forms of ownership interest.  This analysis generally focuses on the 
leased fee value of the property, assuming stabilized occupancy and market rents.  
Therefore, the comparable sales are analyzed on a leased fee basis. All of the 
comparables were purchased for future owner occupancy; no adjustment is necessary.   
Financing Terms – All of the comparable sales sold via conventional financing or cash, all 
assumed to be cash equivalent. No adjustment is necessary.  
Conditions of Sale – The comparables generally reflect arm’s length negotiations.  
Therefore, no adjustment is made. 

Market Conditions - The comparables indicate an unadjusted range in sale price of $128 
to $165 per SF, selling between December 2020 and September 2022. An adjustment for 
market conditions (time) is considered. As discussed in the Market Analysis, a positive 
market conditions adjustment of +0.25% per month is applied to the comparable sales 
through the date of value. 

QUALITATIVE ADJUSTMENTS – The comparables are compared and contrasted to the 
subject on a qualitative basis.  Categories include location, site coverage/parking, 
access, exposure, condition, quality, utility, and size. Each category is analyzed and the 
comparable is concluded to be similar, inferior or superior to the subject.  The categories 
are reconciled, resulting in reasonable, low or high indicators for the subject.  

The comparables are briefly discussed on the following pages, culminating in a 
conclusion of value. 

195



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  82 

Newport Retail Building 

Comparable 1 
 

Sale Information 

Buyer Luke & Christina Simonsen 

Seller George & Valerie Valenzuela 

Sale Date 12/4/2020 

Transaction Status Recorded 

Sale Price $400,000 $128  /SF NRA 

Analysis Price $423,000 $135  /SF NRA 

Rights Transferred Fee Simple 

Marketing Time 133 days 
 

Property 

Type Retail 

Gross Building Area (GBA) 3,136 SF 

Net Rentable Area (NRA) 3,136 SF 

Buildings 1 Building, 2 Floors 

Parking 7 Spaces (2.2/1,000 SF NRA) 

Year Built 1928 

Land Area 0.2135 Acres (9,300 SF) 

Site Coverage Ratio 22.67% 

FAR 0.34 

Shape Rectangular 

Topography Level to Sloping 

Corner Yes 
 

 

 

255 SW 9th Street 
Newport, OR 97365 
 

 

County 
Lincoln 
 

APN 
11-11-08-BD-14500-00, 11-
11-08-BD-14400-00 
 

Confirmation 

Name FlexMLS/Deed/local news outlets 
 

Remarks 

Converted residence historically used as a retail store on the first 
floor with an open floor plan that could cater to a variety of uses. 
Located along 9th Street, one block south of Oregon Coast 
Highway in Newport. Includes a 2BR/1BA apartment unit on the 
second floor. Seven off-street parking spaces are available along 
9th Street. 

This sold for -3.6% below the asking price after a marketing 
period of 133 days. The buyer is an owner user who will be re-
opening their brewery business (Bier One Brewing) into the 
property following completion of renovations over a six-month 
period between December 2020 and June 2021 after they vacated 
their former Newport location. 
 

  

196



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  83 

Single-tenant Retail Building 

Comparable 2 
 

Sale Information 

Buyer Tustumena LLC 

Seller Bainbridge Investments LLC 

Sale Date 2/25/2021 

Transaction Status Recorded 

Sale Price $415,000 $132  /SF NRA 

Analysis Price $436,788 $139  /SF NRA 

Rights Transferred Fee Simple 

Marketing Time 133 days 
 

Property 

Type Retail 

Gross Building Area (GBA) 3,142 SF 

Net Rentable Area (NRA) 3,142 SF 

Buildings 1 Building 

Foundation Type Not Specified 

Year Built 1925 (Renovated 2020) 

Land Area 0.08 Acres (3,485 SF) 

Site Coverage Ratio 90.16% 

FAR 0.90 

Shape L-Shaped 

Topography Level 

Corner Yes 
 

 

 

588 W Olive St 
Newport, OR 97365 
 

 

County 
Lincoln 
 

APN 
11-11-08-BB-03800-00 
 

Confirmation 

Name FlexMLS/Deed/local news sources 
 

Remarks 

Single-tenant retail building located in the Nye Beach 
neighborhood of Newport at the corner of Olive Street and High 
Street. Historically used as a discount retail store before 
undergoing renovations in 2019/2020 that included new siding, 
vinyl windows, ductless heating with A/C, new electrical, and 
updated insulation. Grandfathered retail use but the site is zoned 
residential. Street parking only. 

Sold for -2.4% below the asking price after a 133 day marketing 
period. The buyer is a future owner user who will complete their 
own interior renovations and convert the retail space into an 
aesthetic medicine treatment clinic. 
 

  

197



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  84 

Twist Wine Retail Building 

Comparable 3 
 

Sale Information 

Buyer HAT GIRL LLC 

Seller FROG PROPERTIES 

Sale Date 4/27/2021 

Transaction Status Recorded 

Sale Price $550,000 $153  /SF NRA 

Analysis Price $576,125 $160  /SF NRA 

Recording Number 2021-3765 

Rights Transferred Fee Simple 

Conditions of Sale Typical 

Marketing Time 1225 days 
 

Property 

Type Retail 

Gross Building Area (GBA) 3,600 SF 

Net Rentable Area (NRA) 3,600 SF 

Buildings 1 Building 

Parking 11 Spaces (3.1/1,000 SF NRA) 

Year Built 1998 

Land Area 0.29 Acres (12,632 SF) 

Site Coverage Ratio 14.25% 

FAR 0.28 

Zoning C-2 

Shape Generally Rectangular 

Topography Level 

Corner No 
 

 

 

34930 Brooten Road 
Pacific City, OR 97112 
 

 

County 
Tillamook 
 

APN 
4S1019-CC-07700, 4S1019-
CC-07800 
 

Confirmation 

Name VP for Dennis Regen 

Company Taylor & Taylor Realty 

Phone Number 541-992-16722 

Affiliation Broker 

Date 9/12/2022 
 

Remarks 

Two-story retail building located along Brooten Road in the 
beachfront town of Pacific City, situated approximately 30 minutes 
north of Lincoln City. Built in 1998 and reflects good condition. An 
asphalt-paved parking lot is positioned west of the improvements 
and striped for four spaces while an additional seven spaces in a 
gravel lot are located north of the building. Within walking 
distance of the beachfront. Formerly used as an art gallery but 
suitable for a variety of retail uses. 

This sold for -8.2% below the asking price after a multi-year 
marketing period. Per the broker representative, it was purchased 
for owner-occupancy for future use as a wine tasting shop. The 
seller was reportedly willing to wait for an offer they liked which 
resulted in the prolonged marketing period. 
 

  

198



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  85 

Pacific City Retail/Residential 
Building 

Comparable 4 
 

Sale Information 

Buyer Geoffrey & Patt Williams 

Seller Rick Lablue Living Trust 

Sale Date 10/12/2021 

Transaction Status Recorded 

Sale Price $535,000 $165  /SF NRA 

Analysis Price $552,388 $170  /SF NRA 

Rights Transferred Fee Simple 

Marketing Time 92 days 
 

Property 

Type Retail 

Gross Building Area (GBA) 3,245 SF 

Net Rentable Area (NRA) 3,245 SF 

Buildings 1 Building 

Parking 5 Spaces (1.5/1,000 SF NRA) 

Year Built 1994 

Land Area 0.22 Acres (9,583 SF) 

Site Coverage Ratio 20.51% 

FAR 0.34 

Zoning C-2 

Shape Generally Rectangular 

Topography Level 

Corner No 
 

 

 

35350 Brooten Rd 
Pacific City, OR 97112 
 

 

County 
Tillamook 
 

APN 
4S1030-BB-06200 
 

Confirmation 

Name FlexMLS/Deed/local news sources 
 

Remarks 

Commercial retail building with an upstairs 3BR/1BA apartment 
which includes a large deck facing the Nestucca River and Pacific 
Ocean beyond. Attached two-car carport in addition to off-street 
parking. Ground level retail space has an open floor plan with 
track lighting and carpet throughout. 

This sold for -2.7% below the asking price after a marketing 
period of 92 days. The buyers are the owners of the Pacific City 
Inn, an 18-unit hotel located adjacent to the north of the subject. 
The buyer's future plans for the property are unknown. 
 

  

199



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  86 

Two-tenant office 

Comparable 5 
 

Sale Information 

Buyer CHRISTIAN SCIENCE SOCIETY OF 
NEWPORT, OREGON 

Seller BRENNEMAN, JOHN D. & 
BRENNEMAN, JANET K. 

Sale Date 1/3/2022 

Transaction Status Recorded 

Sale Price $378,500 $149  /SF NRA 

Analysis Price $387,963 $153  /SF NRA 

Recording Number 2022-000019 

Rights Transferred Fee Simple 

Marketing Time 251 days 
 

Income Analysis 

Occupancy 100.0% 

Net Operating Income $24,000 $9.45  /SF NRA 

Cap Rate 6.34% 
 

Property 

Type Office 

Gross Building Area (GBA) 2,539 SF 

Net Rentable Area (NRA) 2,539 SF 

Buildings 1 Building, 1 Floor 

Parking 7 Spaces (2.8/1,000 SF NRA) 

Year Built 1977 

Land Area 0.14 Acres (6,098 SF) 

Site Coverage Ratio 41.64% 

FAR 0.42 
 

 

 

14 SW Nye St 
Newport, OR 97365 
 

 

County 
Lincoln 
 

APN 
11-11-08-BA-14301-00 
 

Confirmation 

Name Freddy Saxton 

Company Advantage Real Estate 

Phone Number 541-961-2085 

Affiliation Agent 

Date 2/11/2022 
 

Remarks 

Small commercial building located within close proximity to the 
courthouse, library, and post office in Newport, one block west of 
Oregon Coast Highway. It is demised into two spaces; a 1,464 SF 
space with a reception area, four private offices, and one 
bathroom, and a smaller 1,075 SF space. Seven off-street parking 
spaces. 

This sold to an owner-user; per the broker, the in-place office 
tenants (who had month-to-month lease terms at the time of 
sale) will be vacating and the buyer (a religious organization) will 
move in during Spring 2022. 
 

  

200



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  87 

Taft Retail Building 

Comparable 6 
 

Sale Information 

Buyer Taft Holdings LLC 

Seller Diamond Head Holdings 

Sale Date 9/7/2022 

Transaction Status Recorded 

Sale Price $362,000 $137  /SF NRA 

Analysis Price $363,810 $137  /SF NRA 

Rights Transferred Fee Simple 

Marketing Time 40 days 
 

Property 

Type Retail 

Gross Building Area (GBA) 2,652 SF 

Net Rentable Area (NRA) 2,652 SF 

Buildings 1 Building 

Parking 15 Spaces (5.7/1,000 SF NRA) 

Year Built 1930 

Land Area 0.24 Acres (10,454 SF) 

Site Coverage Ratio 15.42% 

FAR 0.25 

Zoning TVC 

Shape Rectangular 

Topography Level 

Corner No 
 

 

 

4756 SE Highway 101 
Lincoln City, OR 97367 
 

 

County 
Lincoln 
 

APN 
07-11-27-DC-01800-00, 07-
11-27-DC-01901-00 
 

Confirmation 

Name FlexMLS/Deed/local news sources 
 

Remarks 

Commercial retail building with frontage along Highway 101 in 
the Taft district of Lincoln City. Parking lot is striped to 
accommodate 15 vehicles. Ground floor was formerly used for 
CBD retail sales while the second floor consisted of a 2BD/1BR 
apartment. 

This property sold for $450,000 ($170/SF) in August 2021 but was 
then re-listed in July 2022 and re-sold for $362,000 ($137/SF). 
Between the August 2021 and July 2022 sales, ownership gutted 
the interior and had planned for a renovation before opting to re-
sell the property for unknown reasons. The new buyer is the co-
owner of the local restaurant Hilltop Inn.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

201



SALES COMPARISON APPROACH (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  88 

The following narrative compares and contrasts the comparables relative to the subject 
property based on: 

• Location – The subject is located in Newport. It benefits from its location along Bay 
Boulevard with a waterfront view amenity overlooking Yaquina Bay. All six 
comparables are deemed inferior to account for the waterfront view amenity.    

• Site Coverage/Parking – The subject’s site coverage (57.6%) is bracketed by the 
comparables. There is no off-street parking; however, a public parking lot is nearby 
and within walking distance. Five of the six comparables have superior site 
coverage ratios and offer off-street parking. Comparable 2 does not have off-
street parking and has a high site coverage ratio of 90.2%. The subject has several 
covered walking areas in addition to the presence of the adjacent public pier 
which is not factored into its site coverage and allows for increased pedestrian 
traffic in the area. Comparable 2 is deemed inferior due to the high site coverage.    

• Access/Exposure – The subject has adequate access and good exposure noting 
its frontage along Bay Boulevard. Comparable 1 and Comparable 5 have 
frontage along secondary connector streets and are deemed inferior with regard 
to exposure. The remaining comparables have exposure along primary arterials in 
their respective cities and no adjustments are applied.    

• Condition – The subject was constructed in 1979 and reflects fair to average 
condition. Comparables 3 and 4 were both constructed in the 1990’s and 
deemed superior. Comparable 2 underwent several renovations in 2019/2020 and 
it is also deemed superior. Comparable 6 was not gutted at the time of sale and 
is deemed inferior regarding condition.    

• Quality – The subject consists of wood-frame construction reflecting average 
quality. This is similar to all but Comparables 1 and 6, each of which were built 
between 1928 and 1930 and are dated structures that had not been adequately 
maintained prior to selling.  

• Utility – The subject reflects retail utility. Comparables 1 and 4 include residential 
components in the form of single apartment units on the upper floors. The income-
generating ability from the apartments is typically viewed as safer investments 
when compared office/retail properties due to the low vacancy. These are 
deemed slightly superior to account for the apartment components.  

• Size (SF) – The subject size is similar to the comparables, which range from 2,539 to 
3,600 SF NRA. Comparables 5 and 6 are each at least 33% smaller in size, which 
likely placed some upward pressure on the sale price per SF (superior).  

  

202



SALES COMPARISON APPROACH (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  89 

The comparables are arrayed below, illustrating the competitive position of the subject. 

 
Based on the physical and locational characteristics influencing value, the subject is 
bracketed by Comparables 5 and 3, suggesting a narrowed range of $153 to $160 per 
SF.  
Considering the subject’s qualitative characteristics, including the 1979 construction, 
retail utility, and location in Newport along Bay Boulevard with a waterfront view amenity 
overlooking Yaquina Bay, a rounded unit value of $158.00 per SF is concluded. This 
equates to a concluded stabilized market value for the subject of (3,961 SF x $158/SF) 
$625,838, rounded to $625,000. 

ANECDOTAL DATA 
Two sales occurred in September 2022 along Bay 
Boulevard in Newport that were improved with 
dilapidated structures and positioned on very small 
tax lots. Each property was purchased for land value 
according to the listing agent. Considering this, the 
sales were excluded as comparables but will be 
analyzed to provide further insight into the subject’s 
market value.  

• 620 SW Bay Boulevard (pictured at right) is a 
three-story, 6,300 SF retail structure positioned 
on a single tax lot totaling 2,614 SF of land area. 
It was purchased by an adjacent property 
owner as a teardown for future expansion of 
an existing restaurant (Mo’s Chowder House). 
The building was constructed in 1886 and 
historically had been used as a gift shop on the 
first floor. The September 2022 sale price of 
$446,250 reflects a land sale value of $171/SF.  

• The property adjacent to the north of 620 SW Bay Boulevard (TL 5200) was also 
acquired in a separate September 2022 transaction from a different seller by the 
same buyer who is planning the restaurant expansion. The property was improved 
with a small shack structure of no contributory value and also reflects a land sale. 
With a site size of 1,307 SF, the purchase price of $210,000 reflects a land sale value 
of $161/SF.  

Comparable Adjusted Price/SF Indication
4 $170 High
3 $160 High

5 $153 Low
2 $139 Low
6 $137 Low
1 $135 Low

Comparable Improved Sales Array

SUBJECT

203



SALES COMPARISON APPROACH (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  90 

The subject improvements are in fair to average condition yet still contribute value to the 
property due to the very small site size of 3,270 SF. The concluded stabilized market value 
of $625,000 reflects a sale price per land SF for the subject of $191/SF. This is above the 
recent land sale values along Bay Boulevard, which is warranted considering the superior 
condition of the subject improvements and the subject’s positioning on the east side of 
Bay Boulevard, with a more direct waterfront view. The concluded market value via the 
sale comparables is supported, but the Bay Boulevard sales do provide modest insight 
into market trends for properties in the subject’s immediate area.  

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH CONCLUSION  
After analyzing the comparable sales, the indicated stabilized market value via the Sales 
Comparison Approach, was ($158/SF x 3,961 SF) $625,000, rounded.  

Recall absorption costs to reach stabilization were estimated at the conclusion of the 
Income Approach to total -$70,000.   
Deducting the absorption costs from the stabilized value results in an “as if” market value 
of the leased fee interest via the Sales Comparison Approach of:  

 
$555,000 

 

 

Stabilized Value $625,000
Total Absorption Costs -$70,000
"As If" Leased Fee Value $555,000
per SF NRA $140.12

Leased Fee/Leasehold Market Value: Sales Approach

204



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  91 

 IMPROVED SALES TABULATION CHART AND ADJUSTMENT GRID  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Characteristics Subject
Name Abby St. Pier Building
Address 669 SW Bay Blv d.

Newport, Oregon
Sale Date
Sale Price
Price/SF (Unadjusted)

List Price
List Price v s. Sale Price (% change)
Days on Market
Site Area (SF) 3,271
Building Size (SF NRA) 3,961
Site Cov erage (%) 57.6%
Year Built 1979
Parking Street parking only

Buyer Motiv ation 

Value Adjustment Description Adj (+/-) Description Adj (+/-) Description Adj (+/-) Description Adj (+/-) Description Adj (+/-) Description Adj (+/-)
Property Rights Conv eyed Fee Simple $0 Fee Simple $0 Fee Simple $0 Fee Simple $0 Fee Simple $0 Fee Simple $0
Financing Terms Conv entional $0 Conv entional $0 Conv entional $0 Conv entional $0 Conv entional $0 Conv entional $0
Conditions of Sale Arm's Length $0 Arm's Length $0 Arm's Length $0 Arm's Length $0 Arm's Length $0 Arm's Length $0
Expenditures after purchase None $0 None $0 None $0 None $0 None $0 None $0
Transactional Adj - Subtotal $400,000 $415,000 $550,000 $535,000 $378,500 $362,000
Market Conditions +0.25% per month 5.75% $23,000 5.25% $21,788 4.75% $26,125 3.25% $17,388 2.50% $9,463 0.5% $1,810
Adjusted Price $423,000 $436,788 $576,125 $552,388 $387,963 $363,810
Adjusted Price/SF $135 $139 $160 $170 $153 $137
Qualitative Adjustment Comparison Rating (+/-) Comparison Rating (+/-) Comparison Rating (+/-) Comparison Rating (+/-) Comparison Rating (+/-) Comparison Rating (+/-)
Location Newport, Oregon Inferior - Inferior - Inferior - Inferior - Inferior - Inferior -
Site Cov erage (%)/Parking 57.6% |Street parking only Superior + Inferior - Superior + Superior + Superior + Superior +
Access/Exposure Bay Boulev ard Inferior - Similar = Similar = Similar = Inferior - Similar =
Condition Fair to Av erage Similar = Superior + Superior + Superior + Similar = Inferior -
Quality Av erage Inferior - Inferior - Similar = Similar = Inferior - Inferior -
Utility Retail Retail/Residential +/= Retail = Retail = Retail/Residential +/= Office = Retail =
Size (SF NRA) 3,961 Similar = Similar = Similar = Similar = Smaller + Smaller +
Comparability - -- + ++ - -
Conclusion Low Indicator High Indicator High Indicator Low Indicator Low Indicator
Confirmation
Source
Agent, Grantor or Grantee
Name
Phone/Email
Confirmed

$415,000

$598,876 $425,000 $399,000

$550,000 $378,500 $362,000

$153 $149 $137$132
$425,000

-8.2% -10.9% -9.3%

Comparable 1
Retail/Residential Building

255 SW 9th Street
Newport, OR

$400,000

$128
$415,000

FlexMLS

Dec-20

-3.6%
133

Owner-user

Feb-21 Oct-21Apr-21 Jan-22 Sep-22

Agent

$535,000

$165
$550,000

-2.7%
92

3,245
20.5%
1994

1.54 spaces/1,000 SF

Owner-user

FlexMLS
Agent

Freddy Saxton

Comparable 3 Comparable 5 Comparable 6Comparable 2
Newport Retail

588 W Oliv e Street
Pacific City, OR Newport, OR Lincoln City, OR

Twist Wine Retail Building Two-tenant office Taft Retail Building
34930 Brooten Road 14 SW Nye St 4756 SE Highway 101

Newport, OR

Comparable 4
Retail/Residential Building

35350 Brooten Road
Pacific City, OR

1,225 251 40
-2.4%
133

9,300 3,485 9,58312,632 6,098 10,454
3,1423,136 3,600 2,539 2,652

33.7% 14.2% 41.6% 15.4%90.2%

Owner-user Owner-user Owner-user

1928 1998 1977 1930
2.23 spaces/1,000 SF 3.06 spaces/1,000 SF 2.76 spaces/1,000 SF 5.66 spaces/1,000 SF

1925/2020 reno.
Street parking only

Owner-user

FlexMLS
Agent Agent Agent

FlexMLS FlexMLS

Low Indicator

FlexMLS
Agent

Phone Phone Phone Phone

Freddy Saxton VP for Dennis Regen Freddy Saxton VP for Dennis Regen
541-961-2085 541-992-1672 541-961-2085 541-992-1672

Freddy Saxton
541-961-2085

Phone Phone

541-961-2085

205



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  92 

IMPROVED SALES MAP 

 

206



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  93 

IMPROVED SALES DRIVE-TO MAP – COMP #1 

 

IMPROVED SALES DRIVE-TO MAP – COMP #2 

 

207



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  94 

IMPROVED SALES DRIVE-TO MAP – COMP #3 

 

IMPROVED SALES DRIVE-TO MAP – COMP #4 

 
  

208



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  95 

IMPROVED SALES DRIVE-TO MAP – COMP #5 

 

IMPROVED SALES DRIVE-TO MAP – COMP #6 

 

209



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  96 

ANALYSIS OF VALUE CONCLUSIONS 

The Analysis of Value Conclusions is the final step in the appraisal process and involves 
the weighing of the individual valuation techniques in relationship to their substantiation 
by market data, and the reliability of each valuation technique to the subject property. 

Indicated Values 
 Cost Approach: .................................................................................................. Not presented 

 Income Approach: ...................................................................................................... $600,000 

 Sales Comparison Approach: .................................................................................... $555,000 

The following analysis summarizes the conclusions and explains the amount of weight 
applied to each value indication. 

The Income Capitalization Approach to value is generally considered to be the best and 
most accurate measure of the value of income-producing properties, as the value 
estimate by this approach is based upon the premise that these properties are owned 
for their income-producing ability. In the case of the subject property, the improvements 
are being partially leased and the ownership position is receiving income. Two of the 
three retail suites were vacant while one space was being leased on a short-term 
agreement. Comparable information for market rent, vacancy and credit loss, and 
overall capitalization rates were good, with the estimate for each of these line items 
considered reliable. Considering this, and that it is a widely used approach by 
knowledgeable buyers and sellers when analyzing this type of property, the Income 
Capitalization Approach is given primary weight in this analysis. 

The Sales Comparison Approach included six comparable sales from which to derive a 
value indication for the subject property. The price per square foot unit of comparison 
based on comparable property sales was used in this analysis and was determined to be 
the best unit of comparison in this approach. Although most of the sales were relatively 
current, all six sales were acquired by owner users, whereas the subject’s most likely buyer 
is an investor based on its multi-tenant design, although the subject could potentially be 
renovated and owner-occupied if it were to be made available for sale, considering the 
lack of existing tenancy. No recent improved sales along Bay Boulevard with similar 
waterfront views were noted through market research. These factors limited the reliability 
of this approach and secondary emphasis is placed on it. It is noted that the comparable 
sales did provide valuable information regarding activity in the market and various 
investor expectations utilized in other sections of the report.  

  

210



ANALYSIS OF VALUE CONCLUSIONS (continued) 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  97 

With primary emphasis placed on the Income Capitalization Approach, generally 
supported by the Sales Comparison Approach, the concluded “as if” market value of 
the leased fee/leasehold interest in the subject property, as of November 2, 2022, was: 
 

SIX HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS 

$600,000 
 

This appraisal is based on the hypothetical condition that the subject improvements were 
partitioned from the surrounding public pier as of the date of value. 
The concluded value is predicated on the following extraordinary assumptions: 

• The appraiser’s estimated subject site size at partition completion, including the 
allocation between the leased and owned site components, is generally 
accurate; 

• The City of Newport will retain access to the mechanical room for pier 
maintenance. 

These assumptions may have affected the assignment results. If determined to be false, 
the value conclusion herein will need to be revisited. 

211



 

P221296 POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022  98 

CERTIFICATION OF APPRAISAL 

I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief: 

 The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct. 

 I have performed no services as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding 
the property that is the subject of this report within the three-year period 
immediately preceding acceptance of this agreement.   

 The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported 
assumptions and limiting conditions, and is my personal, unbiased professional 
analyses, opinions, and conclusions. 

 I have no present or prospective personal interest in the property that is the subject 
of this report, and no personal interest with respect to the parties involved. 

 I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the 
parties involved with this assignment. 

 My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or 
reporting predetermined results. 

 My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the 
development or reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors 
the cause of the client, the amount of the value opinion, the attainment of a 
stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event directly related to the 
intended use of this appraisal. 

 My analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been 
prepared, in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal 
Practice. 

 I, Katherine Powell Banz, MAI, have made a personal exterior inspection of the 
property that is the subject of this report. I have also inspected the interior via a 2019 
inspection and current photographs of the building interior. All comparable data 
included herein was inspected in person or via photographs.  

 Tyson Giza provided significant professional assistance to the person signing this 
report.  

 The reported analysis, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report 
has been prepared, in conformity with the Code of Professional Ethics and 
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute. 

 The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating 
to review by its duly authorized representatives. 

 As of the date of this report, I, Katherine Powell Banz, MAI, have completed the 
continuing education program for Designated Members of the Appraisal Institute. 

 
 
 

December 2, 2022 
Katherine Powell Banz, MAI  Date 
OR Certified General Real Estate Appraiser 
License No. C000897 
Expiration Date: August 31, 2024 

  

 

212



POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 

PURCHASE ORDER - CITY OF NEWPORT

213



Katherine Powell Banz, MAI

Powell Banz Valuation, LLC

10/4/2022
21

4



215



21
6



217



21
8



POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 

TAXES, ASSESSMENT DATA, DEED & LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
  

219



220



Property Owner Property Address 2022 In Process Real Market Value

R357311 CITY OF NEWPORT 669 SW BAY BLVD $897,230
2022 GENERAL INFORMATION

Property Status A Active

Property Type Commercial

Legal Description TWNSHP 11, RNG 11, ACRES 0.03,
PARTIALLY NON-ASSESSABLE, MISC 8-108
MF245-2077

Alternate Account Number - 

Neighborhood N226: BAY BOULEVARD BAYFRONT
COMMERCIAL

Map Number 11-11-08-CA-01300-00

Property Use 942: PART EX - CITY PROP

Levy Code Area 104

Zoning W-2

2022 OWNER INFORMATION

Owner Name CITY OF NEWPORT

Mailing Address CITY MANAGER 169 SW COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RELATED PROPERTIES

Linked Properties R366804, R530584,
R530598

EXEMPTIONS/DEFERRALS

EXEMPTION CODE EXEMPTION DESCRIPTION EXPIRATION YEAR

CITY CITY: CITY OWNED -

2022 IMPROVEMENTS  Expand/Collapse All

221

https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R530584
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R530598


2022 LAND SEGMENTS

STATE CODE SEGMENT TYPE LAND SIZE

L1 CSBF: COM DEV BAYFRONT SITE 0.01 Acres

L2 CSBF: COM DEV BAYFRONT SITE 0.02 Acres

L3 CSD: COMMERCIAL SITE DEVELOPMENT -

TOTALS 1306.80 Sq. ft / 0.03 acres

CERTIFIED / IN PROCESS VALUES

YEAR IMPROVEMENTS LAND RMV SPECIAL USE ASSESSED VALUE

2022 (In Process) $651,460 $245,770 $897,230 $0 $0

2021 $429,010 $237,140 $666,150 $0 $0

2020 $381,340 $215,590 $596,930 $0 $0

2019 $133,190 $108,500 $241,690 $0 $0

2018 $105,440 $108,500 $213,940 $0 $0

2017 $105,440 $108,500 $213,940 $0 $0

2016 $101,000 $108,500 $209,500 $0 $0

2015 $139,890 $138,000 $277,890 $0 $0

TOTAL TAXES DUE

 Improvement #1 Improvement Type

- C: COMMERCIAL

ID SEGMENT TYPE SEGMENT CLASS YEAR BUILT AREA DETAILS

1 Building - 1979 1,885  Details

2 Building - 1800 2,267  Details

222



Current Year Due

Past Years Due

Total Due

Payment History for R357311 not found.  
Please contact the Assessor's o�ce if you have further questions.

223



VALUE HISTORY

Year Land RMV Imp RMV Total RMV Total AV LSU Value

ASSESSMENT INFORMATION

Land Non-LSU:

Improvement:

RMV Total:

245,770

Prior AV:

AV +3%:

Except RMV:

CPR:

EX. MAV:

New M50 AV:

Land LSU:

LSU:651,460

SALES INFORMATION

BUILDING PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS

PARCEL COMMENTS EXEMPTIONS

Code Exempt RMVGenLink-  R366804-L, R530584-L, R530598-L; GenFlag- 2009 VALUE CHANGE,2016 VALUE CHANGE; GenCom- 2016-17 JV#370 VALUE
ADJ ONLY, ENTERED 3-21-16. 2016-17 JV#364 LESS PTN TO NEW TL1300-L1 (EXN), ENTE; Prop-Note- ABBEY ST. PIER; Land- CITY OF
NEWPORT;PARTIALLY NON ASSESSABLE/ADVALOREM//BALANCE ON R366804,R530598,R530599,FROM TERMINATED R530599,FROM
TERMINATED R530599

Total LSU:Total Acres: 0.030 Total Market Land Value: 245,770

Date Type Sale Price Adj Sale Price Validity Inst. Type Sale Ref

Type Appraiser Issue Date Date Checked % Comp Comment

Prior MAV:

OWNER NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS

CITY OF NEWPORT
CITY MANAGER
169 SW COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR  97365

PROPERTY SITUS ADDRESS

669 SW BAY BLVD
Maintenance Area: 5-09

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

TWNSHP 11, RNG 11, ACRES 0.03, PARTIALLY
NON-ASSESSABLE, MISC 8-108 MF245-2077

Acres: 0.03 Sqft: 1379

Effective Acres: 0.03

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION

Owner Comment: PER CITY OF NEWPORT LETTER

Prop Class:

Related Accts:

Zoning:

Code Area:

942

P308325, P527347, R530584,
P69095, R366804, P528991,

104

NBH Code: N226

Prop Type Code: COM

Last Appr Date:

Appraiser:

Road Access: PVD,CB,SW

Exceptions

Code Amount MethodYear
RC 355240 42020CITY

LAND SPECIAL USE

Code SAV Unt Pr MSAV Unt Pr LSU

MARKET LAND INFORMATION

Type Table Method Acres Base Value Adjustment Code - % NBHD % Total Adj % Final Value

CSBF: COM DEV BAYFRONT SITE5BFF FF 0.010 108,500 123,690

CSBF: COM DEV BAYFRONT SITE5BFF FF 0.020 171,500 PRO-59 115,350

CSD: COMMERCIAL SITE DEVELOPMENOSC LT 5,000 EFF-200,PRO-59 6,730

Property ID: Map and Taxlot: Tax Year: Run Date:202211-11-08-CA-01300-00R357311

LINCOLNPROD PROPERTY RECORD CARD

10/5/2022 9:16:54 AM

Page 1 of 3 224



COMMERCIAL COMMENTS

ComImp - 2520048 - ABBEY STREET PIER EXEMPT PORTION

No. Occupancy Class Occ % HgtStories Rank Yr Blt Eff Yr Area Perim Adjustment Code-% NBHD % Total Adj % % Comp RMV

COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

RCNBusiness Name

1.1 353-Retail Store 100 1 2.0 1979 4.100 4.100 651,460

1.2 353-Retail Store 100 1 2.0 1800 2,267 4.100 4.100

Total RMV: 651,460

COMMERCIAL ADDITIONS

No. Type Desc Value

COMMERCIAL BASEMENTS

No. Bsmt Type Area Depth

Property ID: Map and Taxlot: Tax Year: Run Date:202211-11-08-CA-01300-00R357311

LINCOLNPROD PROPERTY RECORD CARD

10/5/2022 9:16:54 AM

Page 2 of 3 225



Situs: 669 SW BAY BLVD

SKETCH VECTORS: A0CR64U23VL11U11L11D4L17U4L8D4VD7L7L10D23,A0L8CR72U23VL11U11L11D4L30U4L20D34

No Image Available

SKETCH COMMENTS:

Property ID: Map and Taxlot: Tax Year: Run Date:202211-11-08-CA-01300-00R357311

LINCOLNPROD PROPERTY RECORD CARD

10/5/2022 9:16:54 AM

Page 3 of 3 226



Property Owner Property Address 2022 In Process Real Market Value

R530584 DEPT OF STATE LANDS OR/CITY OF NEWPORT, LEASE - $141,790
2022 GENERAL INFORMATION

Property Status A Active

Property Type Commercial

Legal Description TWNSHP 11, RNG 11, TRACT ABBEY ST
PIER,LEASE ONLY, M-9700

Alternate Account Number - 

Neighborhood N226: BAY BOULEVARD BAYFRONT
COMMERCIAL

Map Number 11-11-08-CA-01300-L1

Property Use 943: EX - LEASED TO CITY

Levy Code Area 104

Zoning W-2

2022 OWNER INFORMATION

Owner Name DEPT OF STATE LANDS OR/CITY OF
NEWPORT, LEASE

Mailing Address CITY MANAGER 169 SW COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

RELATED PROPERTIES

Linked Properties R357311

EXEMPTIONS/DEFERRALS

EXEMPTION CODE EXEMPTION DESCRIPTION EXPIRATION YEAR

CITY CITY: CITY OWNED -

2022 IMPROVEMENTS  Expand/Collapse All

227

https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R357311


CERTIFIED / IN PROCESS VALUES

YEAR IMPROVEMENTS LAND RMV SPECIAL USE ASSESSED VALUE

2022 (In Process) $141,790 $0 $141,790 $0 $0

2021 $93,380 $0 $93,380 $0 $0

2020 $83,000 $0 $83,000 $0 $0

2019 $83,000 $0 $83,000 $0 $0

2018 $65,710 $0 $65,710 $0 $0

2017 $65,710 $0 $65,710 $0 $0

2016 $62,940 $0 $62,940 $0 $0

TOTAL TAXES DUE

Current Year Due

Past Years Due

Total Due

 Improvement #1 Improvement Type

- C: COMMERCIAL

ID SEGMENT TYPE SEGMENT CLASS YEAR BUILT AREA DETAILS

1 Non-Building - 1800 2,325  Details

228



Payment History for R530584 not found.  
Please contact the Assessor's o�ce if you have further questions.

229



VALUE HISTORY

Year Land RMV Imp RMV Total RMV Total AV LSU Value

ASSESSMENT INFORMATION

Land Non-LSU:

Improvement:

RMV Total:

Prior AV:

AV +3%:

Except RMV:

CPR:

EX. MAV:

New M50 AV:

Land LSU:

LSU:141,790

SALES INFORMATION

BUILDING PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS

PARCEL COMMENTS EXEMPTIONS

Code Exempt RMVGenLink-  R357311-L; GenCom- 2016-17 JV#364 FROM TL1300 (EXN), ENTERED 3-21-16.; Prop-Note- DOCK OF ABBEY STREET PIER

Date Type Sale Price Adj Sale Price Validity Inst. Type Sale Ref

Type Appraiser Issue Date Date Checked % Comp Comment

Prior MAV:

OWNER NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS

DEPT OF STATE LANDS OR
CITY MANAGER
169 SW COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR  97365

PROPERTY SITUS ADDRESS

Maintenance Area: 5-09

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

TWNSHP 11, RNG 11, TRACT ABBEY ST
PIER,LEASE ONLY, M-9700

Acres: 0 Sqft:

Effective Acres: 0

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION

Owner Comment:

Prop Class:

Related Accts:

Zoning:

Code Area:

943

104

NBH Code: N226

Prop Type Code: COM

Last Appr Date:

Appraiser:

Road Access: PVD

Exceptions

Code Amount MethodYear
CITY

LAND SPECIAL USE

Code SAV Unt Pr MSAV Unt Pr LSU

MARKET LAND INFORMATION

Type Table Method Acres Base Value Adjustment Code - % NBHD % Total Adj % Final Value

Property ID: Map and Taxlot: Tax Year: Run Date:202211-11-08-CA-01300-L1R530584

LINCOLNPROD PROPERTY RECORD CARD

10/5/2022 9:19:39 AM

Page 1 of 2 230



COMMERCIAL COMMENTS

ComImp - 2881065 - DOCK AT ABBEY STREET PIER (PORTION OVER DSL
LAND)

No. Occupancy Class Occ % HgtStories Rank Yr Blt Eff Yr Area Perim Adjustment Code-% NBHD % Total Adj % % Comp RMV

COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

RCNBusiness Name

1.1 163-Site Improvements 100 1 2.0 1800 4.100 4.100 141,790

Total RMV: 141,790

COMMERCIAL ADDITIONS

No. Type Desc Value

COMMERCIAL BASEMENTS

No. Bsmt Type Area Depth

Property ID: Map and Taxlot: Tax Year: Run Date:202211-11-08-CA-01300-L1R530584

LINCOLNPROD PROPERTY RECORD CARD

10/5/2022 9:19:39 AM

Page 2 of 2 231



Property Owner Property Address 2022 In Process Real Market Value

R366804 CITY OF NEWPORT/MATHEWS DON & FRAN, LEASE 669 SW BAY BLVD $111,680
2022 GENERAL INFORMATION

Property Status A Active

Property Type Commercial

Legal Description TWNSHP 11, RNG 11, BLOCK BAY
LATTE,LEASE ONLY, PARTIALLY NON-
ASSESSABLE, M-9703

Alternate Account Number - 

Neighborhood N226: BAY BOULEVARD BAYFRONT
COMMERCIAL

Map Number 11-11-08-CA-01300-L2

Property Use 201: C - IMPROVED PROPERTY

Levy Code Area 104

Zoning W-2

2022 OWNER INFORMATION

Owner Name CITY OF NEWPORT/MATHEWS DON &
FRAN, LEASE

Mailing Address 345 SW BAY BLVD NEWPORT, OR 97365

RELATED PROPERTIES

Linked Properties R357311

2022 IMPROVEMENTS  Expand/Collapse All

 Improvement #1 Improvement Type

- C: COMMERCIAL

ID SEGMENT TYPE SEGMENT CLASS YEAR BUILT AREA DETAILS

1 Building - 1979 465  Details

2 Non-Building - 1800 -  Details

232

https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R357311


2022 LAND SEGMENTS

STATE CODE SEGMENT TYPE LAND SIZE

L1 CSBF: COM DEV BAYFRONT SITE 0.02 Acres

L2 CSD: COMMERCIAL SITE DEVELOPMENT -

TOTALS 871.20 Sq. ft / 0.02 acres

CERTIFIED / IN PROCESS VALUES

YEAR IMPROVEMENTS LAND RMV SPECIAL USE ASSESSED VALUE

2022 (In Process) $86,850 $24,830 $111,680 $0 $63,670

2021 $57,200 $23,960 $81,160 $0 $61,820

2020 $50,840 $21,780 $72,620 $0 $60,020

2019 $50,840 $21,780 $72,620 $0 $58,280

2018 $40,240 $21,780 $62,020 $0 $56,590

2017 $40,240 $21,780 $62,020 $0 $54,950

2016 $38,550 $21,780 $60,330 $0 $53,350

2015 $347,070 $112,000 $459,070 $0 $414,370

SALES HISTORY

SALE
DATE

SELLER BUYER INST #
SALE
PRICE

INST TYPE

CITY OF
NEWPORT 

CITY OF NEWPORT/MATHEWS DON & FRAN,
LEASE

M-
9703 - L LEASE (LONG OR SHORT

TERM)

TOTAL TAXES DUE

Current Year Due

Past Years Due
233



Total Due

TAXYEAR RECEIPT NUMBER TRANSACTION DATE PAYMENT AMOUNT

2021 LINC-413 7-7-2022 $382.90

2021 1689031 5-26-2022 $377.86

2021 1685051 2-17-2022 $377.86

2021 1680419 11-29-2021 $377.87

2020 1636720 6-14-2021 $388.77

2020 1635589 5-18-2021 $368.91

2020 1624749 11-24-2020 $368.91

2019 1568625 11-21-2019 $1,027.62

2018 1510836 11-19-2018 $996.17

2017 1461593 11-21-2017 $987.42

2016 1408076 11-22-2016 $966.51

2015 1323961 11-3-2015 $7,168.28

2014 1269399 11-4-2014 $7,007.09

2013 1245179 11-19-2013 $6,547.22

2012 1173764 11-8-2012 $6,569.44

2011 1141562 11-17-2011 $6,368.28

2010 1069323 11-10-2010 $6,205.05

2009 1017858 11-12-2009 $6,015.82

2008 972316 11-13-2008 $5,915.90

2007 911367 11-7-2007 $5,715.96

2006 891825 12-12-2006 $5,685.10
234

https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804


2005 807828 11-3-2005 $5,362.17

2004 802371 6-14-2005 $73.05

2004 801716 5-25-2005 $5,698.24

2003 720747 11-13-2003 $5,196.04

2002 682402 11-18-2002 $5,139.36

2001 630737 11-15-2001 $5,036.18

2000 575262 11-14-2000 $4,911.07

1999 540324 11-18-1999 $4,722.13

1998 501140 12-2-1998 $4,130.35

1997 452188 12-18-1997 $4,219.85

1996 402622 11-15-1996 $4,357.10

1995 376880 12-22-1995 $20.04

1995 376211 12-11-1995 $4,510.00

1994 305030 10-31-1994 $4,461.34

1993 267911 11-9-1993 $4,703.97

235

https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R366804


VALUE HISTORY

Year Land RMV Imp RMV Total RMV Total AV LSU Value

ASSESSMENT INFORMATION

Land Non-LSU:

Improvement:

RMV Total:

24,830

111,680

Prior AV:

AV +3%:

61,820

63,675

Except RMV:

CPR:

EX. MAV:

New M50 AV: 63,670

Land LSU:

LSU:86,850

SALES INFORMATION

BUILDING PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS

PARCEL COMMENTS EXEMPTIONS

Code Exempt RMVGenLink-  R357311-L; GenFlag- 2009 VALUE CHANGE,2016 VALUE CHANGE; GenCom- 2016-17 JV#370 CREATE 3 NEW LEASE ACCTS
FROM TL1300, ENTERED 3-21-16. PARTIALLY NON-ASSESSABLE/NON-A; Prop-Note- ABBEY ST PIER RETAIL;CITY OF
NEWORT;PARTIALLY ADVALOREM/NON-ASSESSABLE

Total LSU:Total Acres: 0.020 Total Market Land Value: 24,830

Date Type Sale Price Adj Sale Price Validity Inst. Type Sale Ref

Type Appraiser Issue Date Date Checked % Comp Comment

Prior MAV: 61,820

OWNER NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS

CITY OF NEWPORT
345 SW BAY BLVD
NEWPORT, OR  97365

PROPERTY SITUS ADDRESS

669 SW BAY BLVD
Maintenance Area: 5-09

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

TWNSHP 11, RNG 11, BLOCK BAY
LATTE,LEASE ONLY, PARTIALLY NON-
ASSESSABLE, M-9703

Acres: 0 Sqft:

Effective Acres: 0

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION

Owner Comment:

Prop Class:

Related Accts:

Zoning:

Code Area:

201

P69095

104

NBH Code: N226

Prop Type Code: COM

Last Appr Date:

Appraiser:

Road Access: PVD,CB,SW

NON_SALE M-9703L LEASE (LONG O

Exceptions

Code Amount MethodYear
RC -362570 42016

LAND SPECIAL USE

Code SAV Unt Pr MSAV Unt Pr LSU

MARKET LAND INFORMATION

Type Table Method Acres Base Value Adjustment Code - % NBHD % Total Adj % Final Value

CSBF: COM DEV BAYFRONT SITE5BFF FF 0.020 171,500 PRO-12 23,460

CSD: COMMERCIAL SITE DEVELOPMENOSC LT 5,000 EFF-200,PRO-12 1,370

Property ID: Map and Taxlot: Tax Year: Run Date:202211-11-08-CA-01300-L2R366804

LINCOLNPROD PROPERTY RECORD CARD

10/5/2022 9:18:54 AM

Page 1 of 2 236



COMMERCIAL COMMENTS

ComImp - 2535587 - MATHEWS LEASE

No. Occupancy Class Occ % HgtStories Rank Yr Blt Eff Yr Area Perim Adjustment Code-% NBHD % Total Adj % % Comp RMV

COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

RCNBusiness Name

1.1 353-Retail Store 100 1 2.0 1979 4.100 4.100 75,340

1.2 163-Site Improvements 100 1 2.0 1800 4.100 0.492 11,510

Total RMV: 86,850

COMMERCIAL ADDITIONS

No. Type Desc Value

COMMERCIAL BASEMENTS

No. Bsmt Type Area Depth

Property ID: Map and Taxlot: Tax Year: Run Date:202211-11-08-CA-01300-L2R366804

LINCOLNPROD PROPERTY RECORD CARD

10/5/2022 9:18:54 AM

Page 2 of 2 237



Property Owner Property Address 2022 In Process Real Market Value

R530598 CITY OF NEWPORT/LATTAS OF OREGON INC, LEASE - $267,360
2022 GENERAL INFORMATION

Property Status A Active

Property Type Commercial

Legal Description TWNSHP 11, RNG 11, BLOCK LATTAS
FUSED GLASS,LEASE ONLY, M-9704

Alternate Account Number - 

Neighborhood N226: BAY BOULEVARD BAYFRONT
COMMERCIAL

Map Number 11-11-08-CA-01300-L3

Property Use 201: C - IMPROVED PROPERTY

Levy Code Area 104

Zoning W-2

2022 OWNER INFORMATION

Owner Name CITY OF NEWPORT/LATTAS OF OREGON
INC, LEASE

Mailing Address 810 SE 5TH ST NEWPORT, OR 97365

RELATED PROPERTIES

Linked Properties R357311

2022 IMPROVEMENTS  Expand/Collapse All

 Improvement #1 Improvement Type

- C: COMMERCIAL

ID SEGMENT TYPE SEGMENT CLASS YEAR BUILT AREA DETAILS

1 Building - 1979 1,108  Details

2 Non-Building - 1800 1,573  Details

238

https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R357311


2022 LAND SEGMENTS

STATE CODE SEGMENT TYPE LAND SIZE

L1 CSBF: COM DEV BAYFRONT SITE 0.02 Acres

L2 CSD: COMMERCIAL SITE DEVELOPMENT -

TOTALS 871.20 Sq. ft / 0.02 acres

CERTIFIED / IN PROCESS VALUES

YEAR IMPROVEMENTS LAND RMV SPECIAL USE ASSESSED VALUE

2022 (In Process) $207,350 $60,010 $267,360 $0 $152,680

2021 $136,540 $57,900 $194,440 $0 $148,240

2020 $121,380 $52,640 $174,020 $0 $143,930

2019 $121,380 $52,640 $174,020 $0 $139,740

2018 $96,090 $52,640 $148,730 $0 $135,670

2017 $96,090 $52,640 $148,730 $0 $131,720

2016 $92,040 $52,640 $144,680 $0 $127,890

TOTAL TAXES DUE

Current Year Due

Past Years Due

Total Due

239



TAXYEAR RECEIPT NUMBER TRANSACTION DATE PAYMENT AMOUNT

2020 1609439 11-17-2020 $12,084.59

2016 1582923 7-15-2020 $0.01

2016 1582922 7-14-2020 $3,694.27

240

https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R530598
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R530598
https://propertyweb.co.lincoln.or.us/Property-Detail/PropertyQuickRefID/R530598


VALUE HISTORY

Year Land RMV Imp RMV Total RMV Total AV LSU Value

ASSESSMENT INFORMATION

Land Non-LSU:

Improvement:

RMV Total:

60,010

267,360

Prior AV:

AV +3%:

148,240

152,687

Except RMV:

CPR:

EX. MAV:

New M50 AV: 152,680

Land LSU:

LSU:207,350

SALES INFORMATION

BUILDING PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS

PARCEL COMMENTS EXEMPTIONS

Code Exempt RMVGenLink-  R357311-L; GenFlag- 2016 VALUE CHANGE; GenCom- 2016-17 JV#370 NEW LEASE FROM TL 1300, ENTERED 3-21-16. JV#370
FOR 16/17; Prop-Note- LATTAS OF OREGON LEASE ABBEY STREET PIER

Total LSU:Total Acres: 0.020 Total Market Land Value: 60,010

Date Type Sale Price Adj Sale Price Validity Inst. Type Sale Ref

Type Appraiser Issue Date Date Checked % Comp Comment

Prior MAV: 148,240

OWNER NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS

CITY OF NEWPORT
810 SE 5TH ST
NEWPORT, OR  97365

PROPERTY SITUS ADDRESS

Maintenance Area: 5-09

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

TWNSHP 11, RNG 11, BLOCK LATTAS FUSED
GLASS,LEASE ONLY, M-9704

Acres: 0 Sqft:

Effective Acres: 0

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION

Owner Comment: TAX PHONE REQUEST

Prop Class:

Related Accts:

Zoning:

Code Area:

201

P528991

104

NBH Code: N226

Prop Type Code: COM

Last Appr Date:

Appraiser:

Road Access: PVD

Exceptions

Code Amount MethodYear
RCC 124170 62016

LAND SPECIAL USE

Code SAV Unt Pr MSAV Unt Pr LSU

MARKET LAND INFORMATION

Type Table Method Acres Base Value Adjustment Code - % NBHD % Total Adj % Final Value

CSBF: COM DEV BAYFRONT SITE5BFF FF 0.020 171,500 PRO-29 56,700

CSD: COMMERCIAL SITE DEVELOPMENOSC LT 5,000 PRO-29,EFF-200 3,310

Property ID: Map and Taxlot: Tax Year: Run Date:202211-11-08-CA-01300-L3R530598

LINCOLNPROD PROPERTY RECORD CARD

10/5/2022 9:20:18 AM

Page 1 of 2 241



COMMERCIAL COMMENTS

ComImp - 2881093 - LATT'S OF OREGON LEASE 1108SQFT

No. Occupancy Class Occ % HgtStories Rank Yr Blt Eff Yr Area Perim Adjustment Code-% NBHD % Total Adj % % Comp RMV

COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

RCNBusiness Name

1.1 353-Retail Store 100 1 2.0 1979 4.100 4.100 179,530

1.2 163-Site Improvements 100 1 2.0 1800 4.100 1.189 27,820

Total RMV: 207,350

COMMERCIAL ADDITIONS

No. Type Desc Value

COMMERCIAL BASEMENTS

No. Bsmt Type Area Depth

Property ID: Map and Taxlot: Tax Year: Run Date:202211-11-08-CA-01300-L3R530598

LINCOLNPROD PROPERTY RECORD CARD

10/5/2022 9:20:18 AM

Page 2 of 2 242



0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

 1/16  COR

MC

 1/16  COR

11

10

2

3

9

1

84.0'

84.0'

84.0'

1

2

3

4

5

6

12

11

10

9

8

7

12

9

8

7

84.0'

84.0'

84.0'

84.0'

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

5

6

9

8

7

12

11

10

9

8

7

84.0'

84.0'

84.0'

84.0'

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

5

6

12

11

10

9

8

7

12

11

10

9

8

7

10'

10'

80
'

80
'

SW  CASE  ST

SW  ABBEY  ST

SW  FALL  ST

6

DV 61-230

PLAN OF NEWPORT

60'

22

19

18

15

16

23

20

17

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'
100'

100'

100' 100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

100'

1

2

3

4

5

67

8

9

10

11

12

3

4

5

67

8

9

10

11

12

1

2

3

4

5

67

8

9

10

11

12

1

2

3

4

5

67

8

9

10

11

12

1

2

3

4

5

67

8

9

10

11

12

1

2

3

4

5

67

8

9

10

11

12

1

2

3

4

5

67

8

9

10

11

12

1

2

3

4

5

67

8

9

10

11

12

VACATEDDV 195-242

93.2'

93.0'

6

7

8

93.15'

55.71'

50'

50'

50'

50'

50'

50'

50'

93.0'

50'

50'

50'

SW
  B

AY
  B

LV
D

SW
  1

3T
H 

 S
T

SW
  1

2T
H 

 S
T

SW
  1

1T
H 

 S
T

SW
  1

0T
H 

 S
T

VACATED 
MF 319-0374

7'

7'

VA
CA

TE
D 

DV
 2

63
-1

33
VACATED

MF 67-1814

2500
2501

VACATED
MF 100-872

2600

1

2

3

4

5

6

7
8

9

10

11

12

27

5'

30'

80'

80
'

R
D

AS

TR
AVE

LLE
D

D
V 

55
-2

77

VAC

M
F 193-632

(F
RO

NT
 S

T)

(F
IR

ST
 S

T)

(S
EC

O
ND

 S
T)

(T
HI

RD
 S

T)

(F
O

UR
TH

 S
T)

SW
  9

TH
  S

T

74

1

2

3

4

5

6

12

11

10

9

8

7

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

100'

100'

100'

100' 100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

100'

DV 86-564

VACATEDMF 77-6

80
'

VACATED
MF 392-157

VA
CA

TE
D

M
F 

18
1-

00
67

60'

60'

VACATED
MF 187-2415

VACATED
MF 60-1085

45'

S2°45'E
 91.3'

VACATED

MF 344-0724

6

SW  12TH  S
T

(SECOND ST)

CASE &

BAYLEY 2ND ADDN

SW
  ALDER  ST

VACATED
MF 351-0920

6.34'

SW
  C

AN
Y

O
N

  W
AY800

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

58
.5

2'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

50
'

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

900

16200

1000

10
0'

1100

1200

50
'

15
0'

80
'

1300

0.17 AC

.02 AC

0.03 AC

1401

14000.03 AC

50
'

47
'

50
'

50
'

1700

.02 AC

.16 AC

1900.06 AC

25
'

1800.05 AC

30
'

2000.05 AC
21000.30 AC

25
'

17
5'

2201

2200
2301

2302

1

2
7100 7200

1200-21

1800-21

2000-21

2800

3400

3700

3300

3600

3500

3100

2201-21

2301-21
2302-21

80'M/L

1900-21

1000-21

1100-22

PIE
RHEAD LI

NE

50
'

50
'

3900

40
'

10
'

WIDTHUNCERTAIN

WIDTHUNCERTAIN

4000

4300

3800

4100

4200

4400

4500

6

15
.5

'

34
.5

'4600

4700

4800

25
'

25
'4900

50004

2

16
.3

3'

33
.6

7'

5 5100

5200

5300
5400

5500

5600

53'

36'
57007

5800

89'

89'

89'

89'

89'

89'

89'

89'

89'

89'

5900

6000
6100

6200

6300

6400

SW

DR

6500

6600

6700

89'

89'

89'

89'

6800

6900

7000

740115
'

7002

20
'

20
'

7001

25
'

7300
10

'
40

'

7500

7400

25
'

25
'7601

7600
9

7700
7900

8300

8301

8302

50
'

 E
AS

T 
BO

UN
DA

RY
 O

F 
ST

RE
ET

 U
NC

ER
TA

IN

R=119'

8400

8500

8600

8700

8800

8801

8901

9000

9100

9200

9300

9400

9500

9600

9601
9800

9900

10000

5'

45
'

10100

4
10300

10200
10400

10500

10600

10700

10800

10900

11000

11100

25
'

25
'

25
'

25
'

8

5

11200

11201

11400

11500

11600

12000

12200

10'

12300

12500

12600

12700

12900

13000

13001

13100

132005'

45
'

13502 13300

13400

5'

45
'

13501

13500

2

1

13600 13700

13800

13900

14
20

0

14
30

0

14400
12

50'

14600

25'
25'

25
'

25
'

14700

25
'

25
'14800

5

15100

15200

10
'

40
'

816100VA
CA

TE
D

M
F 

36
4-

02
55

15300

15400

15600

15700

15800

15900

16000

BAYLEY

& CASE'S

3RD ADDN

BAYLEY

& CASE'S

ADDN

(F
IF

TH
 S

T)

(S
IX

TH
 S

T)

60'

80
'

SW CASE ST

CS 63
CS 268

CS 396

89'

89'

89'

89'

89'

89'

89'

CS 421

84.0'
84.0'

CS 477

CS 526

CS 649

CS 829

CS 1451

CS 1502

CS 1731

CS 1895

CS 2096

CS 1922

CS 2004

SW
  C

O
AS

T 
 H

W
Y

LO
W

 W
AT

ER
LI

NE
PE

R 
DS

L

AP
PR

O
X

M-66
48

APPROX
LO

W
W

AT
ER

LI
NE

PE
R 

M
-6

64
8

CS 2105

CS 2134-A

CS 2379

CS 2413

CS 2419

CS 2461

CS 2511

CS 2607

CS 2610

CS 2631

CS 2646

CS 2749

CS 2860

CS 3533

CS 3678CS 3772

CS 3962

CS 4142

CS 4393

CS 5430

CS 5783

CS 5858

CS 6126

CS 6261

CS 6459

CS 6734

CS 6817

CS 6927 CS 6974

CS 7370

CS 7371

CS 7466

CS 8024

CS 8194

CS 8845

CS 9215

CS 9215

CS 9581

CS 10662

CS 10879

CS 11131

CS 11319

CS 11521

CS 11718

CS 12306

(8
TH

 S
T)

CS 12361

CS 12710

CS 15100

CS 15270

CS 15589

CS 1665050
'

0.18 AC

YAQUINA
BAY

2100-23

60
'

CS
 6

04
1

12

1

2

3

4
5

6

7

89
50'

88'

88'

50'

50'

50'

50'

38'M/L
73'M/L

63.5'

10.4'

6.5'

52'M
/L

1 2

10'

CS 1258

CS 1258
CS 10109 CS 10110

CS 15586

16300

16400

16500

16600

16700

16800

16900

17000

CS 17863

15400-21

CS 18029

CS 18050

40'

44
.6

5'

25.33'

85.6'
N36°40'12"W

VACATED

DOC 200617487

CS 18092

43.50'

78
.7

3'

9.73'

50.06'

16301

32
'

104

CS 18388

44.37'

40.48'
18.13'

15
.2

'

SW
 1

2T
H 

ST
(S

EC
O

ND
 S

T)

VA
CA

TE
D

DO
C 

20
09

10
04

5

DOC 201004619

10
'

VACATED

DOC 201004765

DO
C 

20
10

04
76

5

VA
CA

TE
D

12

70
'

S15°29'42"E

S51°28'12"E

S23°28'18"E

R=165.71'

R=286.35

CS 18683

CS 18684

CS
  1

87
23

CS 18725

CS 18726CS 18936

DV 220-475

70'

70'

70'(65')

CS
 1

90
13

VACATED

ORD 55

1400-24

24'

50
.2

0'

50
.1

8'

24'

24'

CS 19117

PLAT
62.94'CS 18388

CS 20339

VA
CA

TE
D

DO
C 

20
15

11
06

8

40
'

40
'

VA
CA

TE
D 

DO
C 

20
15

11
06

8

VACATED 
DOC 201511068

M
F154-825

115

1300-L11300-L21300-L3

SEESUPP.MAPNO. 2

SEESUPP.MAPNO. 1

SE
E

 M
A

P 
11

 1
1 

08
 C

B

SEE MAP 11 11 08 CD

SEE M
AP 11 11 08 DB

SEE MAP 11 11 08 BD

(UNNAMED BLOCK)

(AKA BLOCK D)

SEEDETAILMAPNO. 1
25

'

H
ARBO

R

CS 20511

CS
 2

05
23

48.84'
40.41'

12
2.

49
'

54.32'

17.53'

42.86'

14.76'

84
.4

2'

N
20

°0
3'

58
"E

S63°41'42"E 89.25'70030.09 AC
0.10AC

P1

P2

PP
2017-02

11601

2302-22

60
'

2100-24

CS 21339

0.71'
21.48'

37.30'

34.38'

73.87'

22.60'

186.30'

103.59'

102.3'

129.2'

N.E.1/4 S.W.1/4 SEC.8 T.11S. R.11W. W.M.
LINCOLN COUNTY

1" = 100'

Cancelled 
1000-22
1100-21
1100-23
1300-21
1300-L4
1400-21
1400-22
1400-23
1500
1600
1600-21
1900-22
2100-21
2100-22
2100-L1
2200-21
2300
2300-21
2400-21
2401
2401-21
2401-22
2401-23
2700
2900
3000
3200
3700-21
3800-21
7402
7800
8000
8100
8200
8900
9700
11300
11700
11800
11900
12100
12301
12400
12800
13800-21
14000
14100
14500
14900
15000
15300-21
15500
15600-42
15700-20

11 11 08 CA
NEWPORT

NEWPORT
11 11 08 CA

Revised: SAO
01/19/2022

0 50 100 150 200 Feet

  

THIS MAP WAS PREPARED FOR
ASSESSMENT PURPOSE ONLY

243



POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 

DEPARTMENT OF STATE LANDS LEASE & RENEWAL 
AGREEMENT 

244



STATE OF OREGON
DIVISION OF STATE LANDS

SUBMERGED AND SUBMERSIBLE LAND LEASE

ML-10492

The Oregon State Land Board and the Division of State Lands (STATE) hereby lease to
the person(s) herein named (LESSEE), the foltowing described lands on the terms and
conditions stated herein, to wit:

NAME of LESSEE: ADDRESS:
City of Newport 810 SW Alder Street

Newport OR 97365

Legal classification of LESSEE is a “Municipal Corporation”,

Land situated in Lincoln County more fully described as follows:

All state-owned submerged lands in the Yaquina Bay in Section 8, Township Ii
South, Range I 1 West, Willamette Meridian, Lincoln County, Oregon, more
particularly described as follows:

Commencing at a point on the intersection of the Southerly tine of Tax Lot I 300
(Lincoln county Assessor’s Map Number 1 1-1 1-8CA Newport) and the tine of
pre-fill Mean High Tide on the right bank of the Yaquina Bay;

thence riverward along a line perpendicular to the thread of the stream to the line

of pre-fill Mean Low Tide and the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING

thence continuing riverward along said perpendicular line a distance of 75 feet;

thence upstream and 75 feet parallel to said line of pre-fifl Mean Low Tide a
distance of 50 feet;

thence shoreward along a tine perpendicular to the thread of the stream a
distance of 75 feet to the line of pie-fill Mean Low Tide;

thence downstream along said fine of pre-fill Mean Low Tide a distance of 509
feet, more or less, to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING, containing 3,750
square feet, more or less and as shown on the attached Exhibit “A”.

Total number of acres: 3,750 square feet more or less.

Hereinafter referred to as “leasehold”.

‘ . ‘ .. . . .

..: . , ,

-: 4LJf1 00

ML-10492
Page lof 15

24
5



SECTiON 1 - LEASE TERM AND RENEWAL

1 . I Term: This Lease shall continue for a period of) years commencing on
November 1 , 2000 the month and date of which shall be known as the LEASE
ANNIVERSARY DATE, and expiring on October 31 , 201 8, the month and date of
which shall be known as the LEASE EXPIRATION DATE.

I .2 Renewal: LESSEE shall have an option to renew this Lease for an additional
period of I 5 years after the original and each renewal lease term provided that
LESSEE has submitted a completed lease renewal application form to the
STATE not less than one hundred and eighty (1 80) days prior to LEASE
EXPIRATION DATE. Upon receipt of such application, this Lease shall be
renewed by the STATE unless:

I .2.1 The STATE determines, in its sole discretion, that the LESSEE has
not complied with the terms of this Lease, the applicable statutes
and Oregon Administrative Rules; or

I .2.2 The LESSEE is no longer the preference right holder as defined by
applicable state law, or

I .2.3 The STATE determines that the renewal of this Lease for all or
portions of the leasehold would be contrary to local, state, or
federal law, or would be inconsistent with the policies set forth in
OAR 141-082-0010.

I .3 STATE shall provide LESSEE two (2) years advance written notice of its intent to
not renew this Lease for all or portions of the leasehold pursuant to the
provisions of this Section. In the event that the STATE determines not to renew
this Lease, but less than two (2) years remain in the Lease term, the STATE
shall utilize the holdover provisions (Section 7.1 1) of this Lease to complete the
two (2) year notice period and to allow the LESSEE sufficient time to vacate the
authorized area and to relocate any sublessees in an orderly fashion.

SECTION 2 - AUTHORIZED USES

2.1 Purpose: This Lease shall grant the LESSEE the right to use the above
described land for the specific purpose(s) described below in accordance with
these LEASE TERMS and CONDITIONS, applicable local (including local
comprehensive land use planning and zoning ordinances), state and federal laws
and the applicable Oregon Administrative Rules.

Commercial and Retail Building
(Non-Marine Use)

ML- 10492
Page 2of15

24
6



SECTION 3 ANNUAL LEASE RENTAL PAYMENT CALCULATION AND
ADJUSTMENTS

3.1 Annual Lease Rental Payment: The Lease rental payment to be paid by
LESSEE to STATE shall be $1 ,313.OO for the first year of the Lease as provided
in Section 3.1.1 based on the Riparian Land Value as shown below. Receipt of
the first year’s Lease rental payment is hereby acknowledged.

3.1.1 The initial annual Lease rent payment shall be calculated as
follows:

Use Class Area (square ft.) Rate Choice Annual Rent
Non Marine Use 3,750 square feet Riparian Land $1,313.00

Value

_____________

TOTAL $1,313.00

3.2 Annual Lease Rental Payment Adjustment: The annual lease rental payment
shall be adjusted annually in accordance with the provisions of the Oregon
Administrative Rule in effect at the time. The second year’s rent shall be
$1 ,353.00. The third year’s rent shalt be $1 393.00. Each payment shall be due
on the Lease Anniversary Date as shown in Section 1 .1.

SECTION 4 - MODIFICATION OF LEASEHOLD AREA OR USE

4.1 Modification of Leasehold Area or Use: LESSEE may request that the STATE
expand or reduce the size, or change the use of the leasehold using a form
provided by the STATE. However, no such change shall occur unless
authorized in writing by the STATE.

4.1 .1 The STATE may amend this Lease to reduce the leasehold area
as requested if the portion of the leasehold is not in use, or does
not contain any leasable structures. Structures and improvements
within the vacated leasehold area shall be treated as in Section
9.3. lfthe modification results in a reduction of rental(s) due
hereunder, such reduction shalt become effective commencing on
the first (1 St) full year after the later of: (1 ) the date of the change of
area or use, or (2) the date of the issuance of the STATE’s written
approval.

4.1 .2 Requests to change an authorized use, or increase the leasehold
shall be processed and reviewed in the same manner as a new
lease application.

SECTION 5 - RESERVATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS

5.1 Compliance: The STATE shall have access to the leasehold at all reasonable
times for the purpose of evaluating and ensuring compliance with the terms and

ML-10492
Page 3of15

24
7



conditions of this Lease. The State shall have the right to examine pertinent
records of LESSEE for the purpose of ensuring compliance with the Lease.

5.2 Reservations: The STATE reserves:

5.2.1 The rightto tease and dispose of all coal, oil, gas, geothermal
resources and other minerals, and all deposits of clay, stone,
gravel and sand valuable for building, mining, or commercial
purposes together with the right to explore, mine, develop, produce
and remove such minerals and other deposits with the right of
ingress and egress thereto, and to terminate this Lease as to all or
any portion of the leasehold when required for these purposes with
one hundred twenty (120) days prior written notice to LESSEE or
as otherwise provided in law.

5.2.2 The right to enter in and upon the leasehold at any time for
purposes of inspection or management.

5.2.3 The right at any time to grant easements across the premises for
tunnels, telephone and fiber optic cable lines, pipelines, power
lines, or other lawful purpose, with right of ingress and egress
thereto. The STATE shall include in any such grant of easement a
requirement that the easement holder take all reasonable
precautions to ensure that exercise of their easement rights does
not unreasonably interfere with LESSEE’s use(s) authorized in the
Lease.

5.2.4 All rights not expressly granted to LESSEE are reserved by the
STATE.

5.3 Public Access and Recreational Use Reservation: All state-owned submerged
and submersible land shalt remain available and open to the public for
commerce, navigation, fishing and recreation unless restricted or closed by the
STATE to public entry pursuant to the provisions of applicable Oregon
Administrative Rules. LESSEE may request the STATE to close the leasehotd to
public entry or restrict recreational use by the public on all or portions of the
leasehold to protect persons or property from harm arising from or in connection
with the LESSEE’s activities.

This reservation shall not grant the public any right to use or occupy LESSEE-
owned property or structures authorized under this lease without LESSEE’s
permission.

5.4 Restriction on Use: In connection with use of the leasehold, the LESSEE shall:

5.4.1 Comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws and
regulations affecting the leasehold and the use thereof, including
local comprehensive land use planning and zoning ordinances, and
correct at the LESSEE’s own expense any failure of compliance

ML- 10492
Page 4of15

24
8



created through the LESSEE’s fault or by reason of the LESSEE’s
use;

5.4.2 Dispose of all waste in a proper manner and not allow debris,
garbage or other refuse to accumulate within the leasehold. If
LESSEE allows debris, garbage or other refuse to accumulate
within the leasehold, the STATE shall have the right to remove the
debris, garbage and other refuse, and collect the cost of such
removal from LESSEE;

5.4.3 Not cut, destroy or remove, or permit to be cut, destroyed or
removed, any vegetation that may be upon the leasehold except
with written permission of the STATE. The LESSEE shall promptly
report to the STATE the cutting or removal of vegetation by other
persons;

5.4.4 Conduct all operations within the leasehold in a manner which
conserves fish and wildlife habitat, protects water quality, and does
not contribute to soil erosion or growth of noxious weeds;

5.4.5 Maintain all buildings, docks, pilings, floats, gangways, similar
structures, and other improvements located within the leasehold in
a good state of repair; and

5.4.6 Not unreasonably interfere with the public’s trust rights of
commerce, navigation, fishing or recreation.

5.5 Waste Water Disçosal: In addition to any other applicable laws and regulations,
LESSEE shall comply with Oregon Department of Environmental Quality and
Oregon State Marine Board requirements for sewage collection and disposal for
on water boat and floating structures.

5.6 Hazardous Materials: LESSEE shall use, place, store or release, or allow to be
used, placed, stored or released, any material that may pose a danger to the
public, wildlife, or its habitat, including, but not limited to, hazardous wastes,
pesticides, or toxic substances only in strict compliance with all laws and
manufacturer’s instructions and shall take all necessary precautions to protect
the leasehold and its soil and vegetation. LESSEE shall keep and maintain
accurate and complete records of the amount of such materials stored and/or
used on the leasehold and shall immediately notify STATE of any potential risk
to the leasehold, adjacent lands, waters, structures or property.

SECTION 6 - REQUIREMENTS

6.1 Assignment and Sublease: Except as noted in Section 6.2, the LESSEE may
not assign or sublease nor enter into any third party agreement without first
obtaining the prior written consent of the STATE pursuant to the requirements of
the applicable Oregon Administrative Rules. Requests must be received by the
STATE, in writing at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the effective date of

ML- 10492
Page 5of15

24
9



sublease or assignment. The STATE shall make a good faith effort to complete
its review of such applications within thirty (30) days. If the application is
incomplete, or if the STATE requests additional information concerning the
proposed assignment or sublease, the time period for reviewing applications
shall be extended. The STATE reserves the right to condition its consent as it
deems reasonably prudent, including the right to require changes to the terms of
this Lease. Each assignee, sublessee, and third party interest shall be required
to comply with all of LESSEE’s obligations under this Lease, and the applicable
Oregon Administrative Rules. LESSEE shall remain liable for the performance
of the obligations under this Lease unless the STATE’s written consent expressly
releases LESSEE from further liability hereunder. For the purposes of this
section, if LESSEE is a corporation or partnership, the transfer of any corporate
stock or partnership interest (including by operation of law) shall be deemed an
assignment subject to the provisions of this Section if the result of said transfer
shall be the change of management control or controlling interest of LESSEE.

6. 1 . 1 LESSEE may not grant a mortgage or security interest in this
Lease without prior written consent of the STATE which shall not
be unreasonably withheld. Any subsequent assignment by the
creditor or civil recovery shall require the prior written approval of
the STATE.

6.2 Permitted Assignments and Subleases: Notwithstanding the provisions of
Section 6. 1 of this Lease, the following assignments, mortgages and security
interests, and subleases of the LESSEE’s interest in the Leased Premises shall
be allowed without further STATE approval:

6.2. 1 Subleases of portions of the LESSEE’s interest in the leasehold
area, in the ordinary course of LESSEE’s business for the
purposes approved underthis Lease as specified in Section 2.1.

6.2.2 Subleases of the entire leasehold for a term that is less than one
yearforthe purpose specified in Section 2.1.

6.2.3 The transfer or ownership of the Lease caused by the death of the
LESSEE shall be considered an assignment requiring the STATE’s
approval. However, a transfer of ownership to a spouse or
immediate family member is an assignment that does not require
the STATE’s prior approval.

6.3 Condition of Premises and Improvements: The leasehold area has been
inspected and is accepted in its present condition, and LESSEE takes the
leasehold and improvements, if any, AS IS. The STATE has made no oral
representations concerning the condition of the leasehold, nor its fitness or
suitability for any purpose.

6.4 Liability: LESSEE agrees to defend and hold STATE harmless from any and all
claims suffered or alleged to be suffered within the leasehold or arising out of the
LESSEEs operations on the premises. Further, LESSEE shall be responsible
for the payment of any fines or penalties charged against the leasehold as a

ML-10492
Page 6of15

25
0



result of LESSEE’s action in not complying with laws or regulations affecting the
leasehold.

6.5 Assessments: LESSEE shall pay all taxes and/or assessments that may be
legally charged on public lands or related improvements which are levied against
the property subject to this Lease, whether or not such taxes and/or
assessments have been levied against the leasehold or STATE by the assessing
agency.

6.6 Bond: The STATE reserves the right to require the LESSEE to furnish to the
STATE a surety bond or an equivalent cash deposit or certificate of deposit
which names the State of Oregon as co-owner to ensure that the LESSEE will
perform in accordance with all terms and conditions of the Lease.

SECTION 7 - MISCELLANEOUS

7.1 No Partnership: The STATE is not a partner nor in a joint venture with LESSEE
in connection with the business carried on under this Lease and shall have no
obligation with respect to LESSEE’s debts or other liabilities.

7.2 Non-Waiver: Waiver by either party of strict performance or any provisions of
this Lease shall not be a waiver nor prejudice the party’s right to require strict
performance of the same provision in the future or of any other provision.

7.3 Binding Interest: This Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties, and the respective heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns of the
parties hereto.

7.4 Notices: Any official STATE notice required under this Lease shall be sent by
certified mail and shalt expressly be deemed to be delivered after the certified
letter is mailed to the address given by the LESSEE in the signature block of this
Lease or as shown on the most recent written notice of record with this Lease.
LESSEE shall provide the STATE with a written notice of any change of address,
change in corporation/partnership/ownership, or change in person(s) authorized
to represent the LESSEE. The STATE shall provide written acknowledgment of
such LESSEE written notices and retain copies of both the LESSEE notice(s)
and STATE acknowledgment(s) with this Lease. LESSEE’s failure to receive
such written acknowledgment within thirty (30) days of the date LESSEE sent the
original notice shall be constructive notice to LESSEE that: (1) the STATE has
not property received the notice, and (2) that such attempted notice shall be of
no force and effect until such time as the notice is actually received and
acknowledged by STATE.

7.5 Liens: In the event liens or other charges are placed on the leasehold premises,
including land or improvements, arising out of LESSEE’s actions directly or
indirectly, the LESSEE shall immediately cause such liens to be discharged.
The STATE may terminate this Lease if LESSEE fails to discharge such liens or
charges or provide the STATE with a sufficient bond covering the full amount of

ML- 10492
Page 7of15

25
1



the lien after ten (1 0) days notice to do so by the STATE. LESSEE shall pay and
indemnify the STATE for all costs, damages or charges of whatsoever nature,
including attorney’s fees, necessary to discharge such liens or charges whether
such costs, damages or charges are incurred prior or subsequent to any
termination of this Lease.

7.6 Default: The following shall be events of default:

7.6.1 Failure of the LESSEE to pay any rent, tax, reimbursement or other
charge or payment due hereunder within twenty (20) days of the
date such payment is due. For the purposes of this subsection, if
the due date for such payment is not otherwise stated in this Lease
or otherwise defined in statute or administrative rule, such payment
shall be due on the date set forth in the notice from the STATE to
the LESSEE informing the LESSEE of its obligation to pay such
charge or payment.

7.6.2 Failure of LESSEE to comply with applicable laws, Oregon
Administrative Rules or any non-payment related terms or
conditions or obligations of the Lease within thirty (30) days after
written notice by the STATE specifying the nature of the deficiency.
Upon timely request from the LESSEE, the STATE may in its good
faith discretion permit the deadline for curing such non-compliance
to be extended if it finds that: (1) the default cannot reasonably be
cured within the thirty (30) day period, (2) the interests of the
STATE will not be harmed by an extension, (3) such default was
not due to the willful acts or gross negligence of the LESSEE, and
(4) the STATE and the LESSEE are able to mutually agree upon a
written plan and timeline for remediation.

7.6.3 Insolvency of LESSEE; the filing by LESSEE of a voluntary petition
in bankruptcy; an adjudication that LESSEE is bankrupt or the
appointment of a receiver of the properties of LESSEE; the filing of
any involuntary petition of bankruptcy and failure of LESSEE to
secure a dismissal of the petition within thirty (30) days after filing;
attachment of or the levying of execution on the leasehold interest
and failure of LESSEE to secure discharge of the attachment or
release of the levy of execution within ten (1 0) days. If LESSEE
consists of two (2) or more individuals or business entities, the
events of default specified in this paragraph shall apply to each
individual unless within ten (1 0) days after an event of default
occurs the remaining individuals produce evidence satisfactory to
STATE that they have unconditionally acquired the interest of the
one causing the default. If the Lease has been assigned in
compliance with Section 6.1 of this Lease, the events of default so
specified in this subsection shall apply only with respect to the one
then exercising the rights of LESSEE under the Lease.

ML- 10492
Page 8of15

25
2



7.6.4 Notwithstanding the above, if the STATE in good faith believes that
a material default has occurred which may imperil the STATE’s
rights in the land or its fiduciary duties under law, the STATE may
declare an immediate default without any right of LESSEE to cure
the deficiency.

7.7 Termination Upon Default: In the event of a default by LESSEE, the STATE
shall have the right to terminate this Lease if it has given LESSEE notice of the
default and of the STATE’s intent to terminate this Lease if the default is not
completely cured by the deadline contained in the notice and if the listed default
has not been cured by the stated deadline. The deadline contained in the notice
must be at least twenty (20) calendar days from the date the notice is sent by
certified mail, or if earlier, the date LESSEE actually receives said notice. The
STATE shall be entitled to recover from LESSEE all costs arising out of the re
entry and all costs of re-letting the premises. The STATE shall be entitled to
recover the amount of unpaid rent required to be paid under the Lease from the
date of default until a new Lease has been, or with the exercise of reasonable
efforts could have been, secured, if the STATE was determined to re-let the
leasehold. All improvements located thereon shall be disposed of as provided by
Section 9.3 of this Lease. lf the LESSEE owns a floating home and has placed
such home on the property pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.1 of this
Lease, the lease termination provisions of ORS 90.630 shall apply to the extent
that they are inconsistent with the provisions of this Lease.

7.8 STATE’s Right to Cure Defaults:

7.8.1 If the LESSEE fails to perform any obligation under this Lease, the
STATE shall have the option to perform the obligation of the Lease
after thirty (30) days written notice to the LESSEE. All of the
STATE’s expenditures to carry out the obligation shall be
reimbursed by the LESSEE on demand with interest at the rate of
one percent (1 %) per month accrued from the date of expenditure
by the STATE.

7.8.2 In the event any violation or breach of the provision of this Lease is
causing damage to the leasehold or the LESSEE is utilizing the
leasehold in a manner not permitted by the provision of this Lease,
or in any case damages are occurring to the leasehold, the STATE
may immediately enter upon the leasehold and take such action as
necessary to cease such damages or use. In the event the
damage or use is occurring by reason of a violation or breach of
the provisions of this Lease, the LESSEE shall be liable for all
costs incurred by the STATE by reasons of such violations. The
STATE, at its option, may send notice to the LESSEE of such
violations and LESSEE shall immediately cease such use or
violation and correct such violation.

7.9 Termination Upon Mutual Consent: ThisLease may also be terminated by
mutual written consent of LESSEE and STATE.

ML-10492
Page 9of15

25
3



7.10 Weed Control: The LESSEE shalt control noxious weeds including aquatic
weeds, plant pests and diseases within the leasehold as directed by the local
county weed control district, the Oregon Department of Agriculture and/or any
other governmental authority which may now or in the future have authority with
regard to the prevention and/or control of noxious weeds, plant pests and/or
diseases, or as may be authorized or directed by the STATE.

7.11 Holdover: If LESSEE does not vacate the leasehold at the time required at
expiration or upon termination of a Lease, STATE shall have the option to treat
LESSEE as a tenant from month to month, subject to all of the provisions of this
Lease except the provisions for term, renewal, and rental. The STATE shall
have the option to unilaterally establish a new rental for the month-to-month
tenancy, with said rental payable in advance. If a month-to-month tenancy
results from holdover by LESSEE under this paragraph, the tenancy shall be
terminable at the end of any monthly rental period upon written notice from
STATE given not less than thirty (30) days prior to the termination date which
shall be specified in the notice.

7.12 Governing Law: This Lease and all matters related to the rights and
responsibilities hereunder are governed by and subject to the laws of the State of
Oregon and the administrative rules of the Division of State Lands and the State
Land Board, as they may change from time to time. The Oregon Administrative
Rules contain terms and conditions which relate to the rights and responsibilities
of the parties hereunder, and such terms and conditions (as they may change
from time to time) are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this
Lease.

7.13 Binding on Successors: This Lease shall be binding on and shall inure to the
benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto, but nothing in this
section shall be construed as a consent by STATE to any disposition or transfer
of the Lease or any interest herein by LESSEE except as otherwise expressly
provided in this Lease.

7.14 Nondiscrimination: The leasehold shall be used in a manner, and for such
purposes, that assure fair and nondiscriminatory treatment of all persons without
respect to race, creed, color, religion, handicap, disability, age, gender, or
national origin.

7.15 Right To Sue More Than Once: STATE may sue periodically to recover
damages for the period corresponding to the remainder of the lease term and no
action for damages shalt bar later actions for damages subsequently accruing.

7.16 Remedies Cumulative: The remedies contained in this Lease shall be in addition
to, and shall not exclude any other remedy available at law or in equity, and
exercise by either party of any one or more of such remedies shall not preclude
the exercise by it at the same or different times of any other such remedies for
the same default or breach by the other party.

ML- 10492
Page 10 of 15

25
4



7.17 Attorney Fees: If suit or action is instituted in connection with any controversy
arising out of or in connection with this Lease, the prevailing party shall be
entitled to recover all costs and disbursements incurred, including such sum as
the court may adjudge reasonable as attorney fees at trial and on any appeal of
the suit or action, and in any bankruptcy case or proceedings.

7.18 Exhibits: All Exhibitsto which reference is made inthis Lease are incorporated
in this Lease by the respective references to them, whether or not they are
actually attached. References to “this Lease” include matters incorporated by
reference.

7. 1 9 Compliance With Applicable Law: The STATE’s performance under this
Contract is conditioned on the LESSEE’s compliance with the provision of ORS
279.312, 279.314, 279.316, 279.320 and 279.555, which are incorporated by
reference herein.

7.20 Late Charges and Interest: It is understood by both parties that late payments by
the LESSEE of rent and other charges due hereunder will cause the STATE to
incur costs not contemplated by this Lease, the exact amount of which will be
difficult to ascertain, including costs associated with administrative processing
and accounting. As such, the parties agree that, notwithstanding other remedies
permitted hereunder, if the LESSEE has not made full payment of amounts due
within twenty (20) days of the date such payment is due, LESSEE shall pay an
additional charge equal to five percent (5%) of the amount of the late rent or
other charge. In addition, all amounts due and owing under this agreement,
including late charges, shall bear interest atthe lower of: (1) the highest interest
rate allowable by law, or (2) twelve percent (12%) per year.

SECTION 8 - INSURANCE

8.1 Commercial General Liability: LESSEE shall obtain at LESSEE’s expense, and
keep in effect during the term of this Lease, comprehensive or commercial
general liability insurance covering bodily injury and property damage with an
insurance company acceptable to the STATE. This insurance shall include
personal injury coverage, contractual liability coverage for the indemnity provided
under this Lease and products/completed operations liability. Combined single
limit per occurrence shall not be less than $1 ,000,000, or the equivalent. Each
annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $1 000,000, when applicable.

8.2 Revisions/Amendments/New Requirements: The amounts and types of
insurance (including those specified in Section 8) and the party responsible for
procuring the insurance shall be established and reviewed when circumstances
warrant. The requirements may be revised or amended by the STATE
periodically at the STATE’s sole discretion after STATE:

(a) consults with its insurance advisor;
(b) consults with LESSEE;
(c) considers the commercial reasonableness of any requirements, amendments

or revisions; and

ML-10492
Page 11 of 15

25
5



(d) considers the STATE’s need for adequate insurance protection and the
STATE’s fiduciary obligations.

Within thirty (30) days notice to LESSEE of the STATE’S revision or amendment
of the insurance requirements, LESSEE shalt provide the STATE with
satisfactory evidence that the LESSEE has obtained new insurance coverage
which conforms with the revised/amended insurance requirements. If mutualty
agreed in writing, LESSEE may have additional time to obtain such insurance.

8.3 Named Insured Parties: The liability insurance coverages required for
performance of the Lease shall include the State of Oregon, the Division of State
Lands and their sections, officers and employees as additional insured but only
with respect to the LESSEE’s activities to be performed under this Lease.

8.4 Certificate(s) of Insurance: As evidence of the insurance coverages required by
this Lease, the LESSEE shall furnish certificate(s) of insurance to the STATE
prior to the issuance of this Lease, and not less often than annually thereafter
and as reasonably requested by STATE. The certificate(s) will specify all of the
parties who are additional insured (or loss payees). Insurance coverages
required under this Lease shall be obtained from acceptable insurance
companies or entities. The LESSEE shall be financially responsible for all
deductibles, self-insured retentions and/or self-insurance included hereunder.

SECTION 9 - IMPROVEMENTS

9. 1 Authorized Improvements or Structures: No improvement that exceeds fifteen
thousand dollars ($15,000) in cost or value may be constructed or placed upon
the leasehold unless the LESSEE shall have first obtained the prior written
authorization of the STATE. Approval for improvements consistent with the
purposes of this Lease shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. All
improvements must be consistent with the authorized use(s) of this Lease as
stated in Section 2.1.

9.2 Unauthorized Improvements or Structures: Unauthorized improvements shall, at
the election of the STATE, either be removed from the leasehold by LESSEE (or
if STATE so elects, by the STATE at LESSEE’s cost and expense), or remain
within the leasehold.

9.3 Removal of Structures and Improvements: Any LESSEE-owned structure or
improvement must be removed within ninety (90) days of the termination of the
Lease or modification of the lease as in Section 4. 1 . I unless otherwise agreed
by the parties as in the case of a structure exempt from authorization under OAR
141-082-0030(4). LESSEE shall be responsible for any damage done to the
leasehold as a result of the removal of the structure improvements. Any
structure or improvements remaining on the leasehold after the ninety (90) day
period may at the option of the STATE become the property of STATE, unless
otherwise agreed by the parties.

ML-10492
Page 12 of 15

25
6



SECTION 10 - ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS AND STiPULATIONS

10.1 None.

SECTION 11 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

I I .1 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: THIS LEASE, TOGETHER WITH THE ATTACHED
EXHIBITS AND ATTACHMENTS, CONSTITUTES THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE PARTIES. NO WAIVER, CONSENT, MODIFICATION OR
CHANGE OF TERMS OF THIS LEASE SHALL BIND EITHER PARTY UNLESS
IN WRITING. SUCH WAIVER, CONSENT, MODIFICATION OR CHANGE, IF
MADE, SHALL BE EFFECTIVE ONLY IN THE SPECIFIC INSTANCE AND FOR
THE SPECIFIC PURPOSE GIVEN, AND SHALL BE VALID AND BINDING
ONLY IF IT IS SIGNED BY EACH PARTY. THEREARE NO
UNDERSTANDINGS, AGREEMENTS OR REPRESENTATIONS, ORAL OR
WRITTEN, NOT SPECIFIED HEREIN REGARDING THIS LEASE. LESSEE, BY
THE SIGNATURE BELOW OF ITS AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE,
HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT LESSEE HAS READ THIS LEASE,
UNDERSTANDS IT AND AGREES TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS AND
CONDITIONS. THIS LEASE SUPERSEDES ALL PRIOR OR EXISTING LEASE
OR RENTAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PARTIES.

II
II
II
II
II
II
II
II
II
II
II
‘I
II
II
II
II
II
/1
II
II
I’
II
II
II
II
II

ML-10492
Page 13 of 15

25
7



The LESSEE expressly agrees to all covenants herein and binds him/herself for the
payment ofthe rental herein before specified.

DIVISION OF STATE LAJLD8-7 LESSEE

(?c%r%;f
.;1;:r >L LA”,

Authori d Siiture ignature/Title
- (Note requirement below)
./ titzr7

%ate 7 Date /

Division of State Lands dt iy ° W T

775 SummerST NE, STE 100 8,o £WA/de,J%.4/,fod€T6lZ 35
Salem, OR 97301-1279 Mailing Address

Note: If the LESSEE is a
corporation, the signer warrants
that s/he has the authority to
sign the lease on behalf of the
corporation by resolution of its
Board of Directors, or through
delegation of authority to the
signer.

STATEOF OeGo )
)ss

Countyof )

T1ie foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 54A day of
20 oc , by Sâ$4 f (officer or agent of corporation),

the (Lr’• /tA#AM’4L&L— (title of officer or agent) of Cr’
corporation, a D?.& O,J (state or place of incorporation) corporation,
on behalf of corporation.

ncti:ission
expires 12%(.

NOTARY PUBLIC - OREGON
......

•1 COMMISSION NO. 339349
.. ...

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES QEC. 15. 2004
•

ML- 10492
Page 14 of 15

25
8



CERTiFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH OREGON TAX LAWS

I, the undersigned, hereby swear or affirm under penalty of perjury that to the best of
my knowledge, I am not in violation of any Oregon Tax Laws.

For the purposes of this certificate, “Oregon Tax LaWs” means those programs tisted in
ORS 305.380(4) which is incorporated herein by this reference. Examples include the
state inheritance tax, personal income tax, withholding tax, corporation income and
excise taxes, amusement device tax, timber taxes, cigarette tax, other tobacco tax, 9-1-
I emergency communications tax, the homeowners and renters property tax relief
program and local taxes administered by the Department of Revenue (Lane Transit
District Self-Employment Tax, Lane Transit District Employer Payroll Tax, Tn-County
Metropolitan Transit District of Oregon (‘Tni-Met”) Employer Payroll Tax, and Tn-Met
Self-Employment Tax).

Signature: ,d%ZU(

Date: /f/zg#;/6r1?

PrintedName: 545Afj

Title:

J:AttachmentAwest\ML Waterway Lease Exhibit A.doc\ML-1 0492.doc

ML- 10492
Page 15 of 15

25
9



&j)’i;:•9sEEt:!?

&&/:‘c’?e:iI

1IS7
/%>

4
L/!(7>S’Lt

%c%7y/c’.f%Jf0/
IryIr%-N%DVIc’I/c’I0)1

%
c‘41.iI\%4v,-b/I0‘1;/•

4I
.)z%

‘bJ
rjç[7INgI /

cS’4‘RZ%%%’ibSI“••/?I
J•1

‘-I%‘O)
CCD

%1;k’i/./
c.

/.

y7t%vck)%cS2/ _&-.I0;I‘riLrII
I’mI°,

.y/:G71çx/
C,’

?I‘/%J7:“
/%C%%%

/
.‘I,c%%%‘%_Je/I•r7Ic;I

%>%

I%i’çi..j1A14%4’4I•!c
%%%

L?q1
I

‘W%.%(h/
‘‘I

‘‘%4%%%%
r>%Is.IiI

•/I

fcvI
P•

I‘1,I
7r*),o£)c%71,/

;L:::I4%pJ;///‘.‘4•1I•/I

‘cJ
,.

%9g)../
‘J:c:7 r,o:..-cc

4,.kz9/çS’S1/
J.

:/ic:a.
>1.

N.-‘
L•c“‘

e
i(I

.
•0•

,(c:Z•Z,P\1
/f,-c .c%%%_)1“‘

C

Pt
%%%%)•,-‘--9>1°0\-

%t/%\‘\k°

I—
7tL)o&.-

,—It-‘
),4‘__._n

s%%:jk‘
Aiv__.

V

JJU-r:3.
z

Z,\•

‘c:• .

c:y
\i

I

N•

U:Zç

SeeMapIIII8

—
Zcir)r%)Ul

‘-

—

OC)0

::Lr

.c)F;Th4-?c72vz—

..
Lkjvccfl

çC’U?ct±
¶\‘‘:ooQo_goQo

I
t/

.t’..

26
0



p

.

?\::iGI

.E:::

0’

000/

/0

26
1



Derrick Tokos

From: TAYLOR Jacob <Jacob.Taylor@state.or.us>
Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2019 4:17 PM
To: Derrick Tokos; ‘TAYLOR Jacob’
Cc: Steven Rich
Subject: RE: Abbey Street Pier Lease (ML-10492/11546-ML)

Derrick,

I looked through my shelf and found your file. l apologize for the delay, there has been some turnover in this

position over the past year. There is a new agreement that is waiting for the appropriate signature before I can send it

out. My supervisor will be back on Monday and ill make sure this is the first thing he sees when he gets back.

I can answer any questions you may have on it. Your first years rent will be $2,304.75 and will increase by 3% each year.

If you would like to you can give me a call and we can discuss it in further detail.

Sincerely,

Jacob Taylor, Proprietary Coordinator

Aquatic Resource Management Program

Oregon Department of State Lands

Phone (503) 986-5303

Field Cell (503) 302-3852

Fax (shared) 503-378-4844

www.oregon.gov/DSL

775 Summer St. NE, Suite 100

Salem, OR 97301

From: Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@ NewportOregon.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2019 3:53 PM
To: ‘TAYLOR Jacob’ <Jacob.Taylor@state.or.us>
Cc: Steven Rich <S.Rich@ NewportOregon.gov>
Subject: Abbey Street Pier Lease (ML-10492/11546-ML)

Hi Jacob,

I received your email regarding the Bay Street pier and will get back to you shortly. On a different note, we submitted a

renewal on the other public access pier back in October of 2018, but have not received an updated agreement. It is the

Abbey Street Pier where we own the adjacent commercial building (see lease numbers above).

Is there a new agreement that you can email? If not, can you tell me if the amount of the annual rent has changed?

1

26
2



I am having a conversation with our elected officials on Monday about whether or not they want to renew the leases in

the commercial building or potentially sell the structure. The lease info is relevant to that discussion.

Thanks,

De-rtCck’I. Toko AICP
Community Development Director
City of Newport
169 SW Coast Highway
Newport, OR 97365
ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644
U .to kos@newportoregon.gov

2

26
3



4.

Waterway Lease

Application Form

www.oregon.ov/ds1

Date Received:

(West of the Cascade Crest) (East of the Cascade Crest)
WESTERN REGION Mail completed application with the applicable EASTERN REGION
Department of State Lands non-refundable application fee, made payable to: Department of State Lands
775 Summer Street NE, Suite 100 1645 NE Forbes Road, Suite 112
Salem, OR 97301-1279

Oregon Department of State Lands.
Bend, OR 97701

503-986-5200 We accept Visa and Master Card, please call 541-388-6112
FAX: 503-378-4844 (503) 986-5200 fAX: 541-388-6480

D Modification 1 $ 375.00 (Reduction in Lease area)

fl $ 750.00 (Increase in Lease area) U New $750.00

Renewal J $ 375.00 (with No Changes)

Existing Department of State Lands No. (16k ‘‘1 1- AGENCY WILL ASSIGN NO.

1 - APPLICANT INFORMATION
Applicant’s Name: (1 /1f)—f Home !Cell Phone:

Address: / c,7 ( 4T //f6/// Business Phone: 5y/, 5?f’Ot3
/j/Qjff ( fax:

5/ £-9v: rno?
Email: 9 ,%Me,—gmcô

Co-Applicant’s Name: Home Cell Phone:

Address: / Business Phone:

fax:

Email:

Authorized Agent’s Name: Home /Cell Phone:

Address: Business Phone:

Fax:

Email:

Riparian Property Owner Name: Home ICell Phone:
(if different than applicant) Business Phone:

Address: Email:

Fax:

2 - PROJECT LOCATION
Street, Road or other descriptive location Legal Description

Township Range Section Quarter

Syer j3/ /1 s si’)
In or Near (City or Town) ounty Tax Map #

AkiP’er // - 1/
Waterway: River Mile: County Property Tax Account #

ui- MY / .L 7:31/,

OREGON DEPARTMENT OF
STATE LANDS

I. /

26
4



3 - PROJECT PURPOSE & DESCRIPTION
Activity Type (Check all that apply): Area requested (length x width)

a) Log rafts/log storage areas

b) [1 Commercial marina and floating home moorages

c) Noncommercial marina and owner-oriented floating home moorages

d) [1 Marine industrial; marine services; fish processing facilities

e) Non-marine uses (restaurant, retail sales, offices, motel, residences, etc.) &óO .SF
f) 1221 Historical vessel moorages

g) Other (Research)

Are you aware of any Endangered Species on the project site?’ NI Yes flNo
Are you aware of any Cultural Resources on the project site? El Yes No
Is the project site near a State Scenic Waterway? If yes t El Yes .—ii No

4- PROJECT PURPOSE & DESCRIPTION
Proposed for Construction

%%ei

Project Description:

Estimated Start Date: Estimated Completion Date:

Existing Facility

Project Purpose and Need:

5 - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Names, addresses and phone numbers for adjacent property owners. 5V/1 5:; €.%g3

c4’ /i]eq,-T y/ t’) (%24s, WA- tT 9 ‘—

fl26 AA/AAX, ,4y/ 13M119) rnA#2//71
%//- 737c;c

Have you applied for Corps of Engineers or Department of State Lands permits for this project? 121 Yes El No

If yes, what identification number(s) were assigned by the respective agencies:

Corps # State of Oregon #

Page 2 of 4

26
5



6- CITY/COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT AFFIDAVIT
(to be completed by local planning official)

lEl 211’s project is not regulated by the local comprehensive plan and zoning ordinance.
‘This project has been reviewed and is consistent with the local comprehensive plan and zoning ordinance.
El This project has been reviewed and is not consistent with the local comprehensive plan and zone ordinance.
El Consistency of this project with the local plarming ordinance cannot be determined until the following local approval(s) are
obtained:

El Conditional Use Approval Development Permit
Plan Amendment El Zone Change

fl Other__________________________________
An licatj.on has has ot bee made for local ap roval,s checked above.

____________

fl%-hS& ta’9-
Signature of local p anning official Title City / County

7o / /,ttf
1inVfype Name Date

7- BUSINESS INFORMATION
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY: Complete the following

Do you have authority from the Oregon Secretary of State to do business in the State of Oregon? LI Yes LI No
Is the LLC presently in good standing with the Oregon Secretary of State? LI Yes LI No
In what state is the LLC primarily domiciled?

_____

Is the LLC name and the Oregon business address the same as stated in this application? LI Yes LI No
If no, state the legal Name:

_____

Address:

Street or Box Number City State Zip Code

Additionally, a LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY must submit the following with the application:
A certified copy of the company’s Articles of Organization
A copy of the company’s operating agreement

CORPORATION: Complete the following:
Do you have authority from the Oregon Secretary of State to do business in the State of Oregon? tIYes LI No
Is the corporation presently in good standin wit]i the Oregon Secretary of State? ‘Yes LI No
In what state are you incorporated? D,2<f6A3
Is the legal corporation name and Oregon business address the same as stated in this application? jYes LI No

If no, state the legal Corporate Name:

_____

Address:

Street or Box Number City State Zip Code

PARTNERSHIP OR JOINT VENTURE: Complete the following
NAME BUSINESS ADDRESS % SHARE DIVISION

TRUST: Complete the following for each beneficiary of the Trust:
NAME BUSINESS ADDRESS

OR identify the Trust document by title, document number, and county where document is recorded:
TITLE DOCUMENT NUMBER COUNTY

A resolution that the individual designated to sign is authorized to act on behalf of the company in this matter.

Page 3 of 4

26
6



8- LESSEE CHOICE

(Refer to OAR 141-082-0305)

LJ’ Calculate my rent under the Flat Rate Method.

LI Calculate my rent based on 5% of the riparian land value.

fl Calculate my rent based on 3% of the gross annual boat slip rental income.
(Attach monthly income statements for all boat slip rental and boat rental income)

9 - FOR A COMPLETE APPLICATION,

PLEASE SUBMIT ALL THE FOLLOWING:

a) A street or highway location map with road directions to the site from the nearest main highway or road.

b) Assessor map that contains the riparian uplands. Do not mark on this map.

c) A copy of the current year’s property tax statement which identifies the present owner’s name(s), land values, land size and
tax account numbers of the riparian uplands.

d) A legal description of the lease area with an accurate delineation of the area relative to the tax lot boundaries of the upland
parcel. (The department may require a survey for this purpose).

e) A separate drawing of all existing and proposed structures for the lease area. Label each separate activity type stated in
Section 3 and show the dimensions of each area by length and width, as stated in Section 3.

f) Lessee Choice for the calculations of the annual lease fee, Section $.

g) Enclose applicable non-refundable application fee, made payable to: Oregon Department of State Lands.

10 - APPLICANT SIGNATURE
I hereby request a state authorization for /c (number) years.

Application is hereby made for the activities described herein. I cert5’ that I am familiar with the information contained
in the application, and, to the best of my knowledge and belief this information is true, complete, and accurate. Ifurther
certfy that Ipossess the authority to undertake the proposed activities. I understand that the granting ofother permits by
local, county, state orfederal agencies does not release me from the requirement of obtaining the authorization requested
before commencing the project. I understand that payment of the required state application fee does not guarantee
authorization.

3p(Ac- £ 1aitfJ&

Print IT e Na Title

___________________

lO
AppuIant Signature Date

I appoint the person named below to act as my duly authorized agent.

Print IType Name Title

Authorized Agent Signature Date

70704-0515

26
7



ATTACHMENT A

LIST OF ENDANGERED SPECIES ON PROJECT SITE

71546-ML

Occurs Regularly

Coho Salmon (Oregon Coast population segment)

Occurs Less Frequently or in Low Numbers

Eulachon Smelt
Green Sturgeon
Marbled Murrelet

Possible

Southern Resident Killer Whale

26
8



R35731 1 Page 1 of 2

Lincoln County Property Report

CITY OF NEWPORT

CITY MANAGER
169 SW COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

669 SW BAY BLVD ;663 SW
BAY BLVD ;673 SW BAY BLVD

MAIN AREA

MAIN AREA 2ND FLOOR

1885 sqft 1979

2267 sq ft

For assessment purposes
only. Lincoln County makes
no warranty as to the
accuracy of the information
provided. Users should
consult with the appropriate
City, County or State
Department or Agency
concerning allowed land
uses, required permits or
licenses, and development
rights on specific properties
before making decisions
based on this information.
Tax data exported 10/2017.

Account # & Prop. Info Account Details Owner & Address

Account#: R357311 Neighborhood: N226 Ownerand

Map Taxlot: 1 1-1 1 -08-CA-01 300-00 Property Class: 942 Mailing Address:

Tax Map: llsl 1wO8CA

Web Map: View Map Site Add ressfes):

Info: TWNSHP 11, RNG 11,ACRES
0.01, PARTIALLY NON-
ASSESSABLE, MISC 8-1 08
M F245-2077

Tax Code: 104

Acres: 0.01

Improvements

Description Area Yr Built Found Heat Plumb BDMS Value

Value History

Foundation Code List Heating/AC Code List Plumbing Code List

$105,440

$0

Yearlmp. Land Total MarketTotal Assessed

2017105,4401 08,500213,940 0

2016101,0001 08,500209,500 0

201 51 39,8901 38,000277,890 0

20141 39,890 1 38,000277,890 0

20131 1 6,8301 1 5,000231,830 0

2012131,430115,000246,430 0

201 1 131,4301 1 5,000246,430 0

Sales History

No Sales Data

Market Special Use
Description Acres

Value Value

Land Related Accounts Disclaimer

0.01 108,500

R366804 R530584 R530598
R530599

COM DEV BAYFRONT

SITE

Today’s Date: 10/16/2018

http://propinfo.co.lincoln.or.us/property/R35731 I 10/16/2018

26
9



0

50
10

0
15

0
2

0
0

F
t1

li
ii

li
ii

1
/1

C
O

R
N

.E
.1

/4
S

.W
1
/4

S
E

C
.8

T
I1

S
.

R
.1

1W
.

W
.M

.
L

IN
C

O
L

N
C

O
U

N
T

Y
1”

=
10

0

S
E

E
M

A
P

11
11

08
E

D

Y
A

Q
U

IN
A

B
A

Y

11
11

08
C

A
N

E
W

P
O

R
T

C
an

ce
8e

d
11

00
-2

1
13

00
-2

1

2
4

0
1

-2
2

24
01

-2
3

2
7

0
0

2
9

0
0

30
00

32
00

37
00

-2
1

38
00

-2
1

74
02

7
8

0
0

80
00

81
00

82
00

89
00

97
00

11
30

0
11

70
0

11
80

0
11

90
0

12
10

0
12

30
1

12
40

0

15
70

0-
20

R
ev

is
ed

:
S

A
C

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

N
E

W
P

O
R

T
11

11
08

C
A

27
0



669 SW Bay Blvd - Google Maps Page 1 of 3

Go’ gte Maps 669 SW Bay Blvd

669 SW Bay Blvd

Daswnby4erdhwn
C

9 €D

tenon t.ndqe

2

Newport, OR 97365

https:Hwww.google.com/maps/place/669+SW+Bay+Blvd,+Newport,+OR+97365/©44.6284254,-124.05724... 10/16/2018

5,
‘9

Mc SParca’4

I

H,4en. Onnrt cold
Nnoçcnl. C’

9

9 9
Ongco Cc,st U

.4
S

S

I
9

a

c 1k,,

9
0

I

9

4

a ft
n, j

9
03MM

4

000,no 9 4 4
I ‘% c0

5 ‘0

0v Cbn;eo
%3, 9 $1

a

I
naoy BodOneinw

I S
I

I
0

a

ko.nnod

9

C1nZyl•j;gC(

Os

I
4

toe Cecir

S
a

Map data ©201 8 Google 200 ft’

JWHV+9X Newport, Oregon

27
1



Department of State Lands Page 1 of 2

Payment Receipt Confirmation
Your payment to the Dept of State Lands was successfully processed.

Transaction Summary

Description Amount

Other Authorizations - APPOO1 1546 Total Amount Paid $375.00

Transaction Detail

SKU Description Unit Price Quantity Amount

I Other Authorizations - APPOO1 1546 $375.00 1 $375.00

Total $375.00

Customer Information

Customer Name Margaret Hawker

Local Reference ID I Last 5 APPOO1 1546

Digits of Application

Number

Receipt Date 10/22/2018

Receipt Time 01:45:22 PM PDT

Payment Information

Payment Type Credit Card

Credit Card Type MASTERCARD

Credit Card Number **** **** 1762

Order ID 79925172

Name On Card Margaret Hawker

Billing Information

Billing Address 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY

Address 2

Billing City, State NEWPORT, OR

ZiPIPostal Code 97365

Country US

https ://apps.oregon.gov/dslleps/success?token=3b27ab4c-f53 1 -454b-9f97-a66ba7bthth8 10/22/2018

27
2



POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 

REGIONAL DESCRIPTION 

273



REGIONAL POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 EXHIBIT 

CENTRAL OREGON COAST - REGIONAL DESCRIPTION 

LOCATION 

 
The Central Oregon Coast Region is located in Lincoln and Lane Counties.  It is bound on 
the north by Tillamook County, the Coast Range to the east, by Highway 126 to the south 
and the Pacific Ocean on the west.  The area can be accessed north/south by Highway 
101, east/west by Highway 20 and Highway 34 providing linkage to the Corvallis area, by 
Highway 126 to the Eugene/Springfield area and by Highway 18 from Roads End to 
McMinnville.  Each of the east/west linkages connect to the Interstate 5 Freeway as it 
passes through the Willamette Valley. Cities/towns in this region of the Coast vary in 
population with some of the largest being Lincoln City, Depoe Bay, Newport, Waldport 
and Yachats. 

GENERAL 
Lincoln City was incorporated in 1965 from the communities of Oceanlake, Delake, Taft, 
Cutler City, and Nelscott.  It has approximately seven miles of beaches and hiking trails.  
Located on the 45th parallel, it is the home of the Chinook Winds Casino Resort owned 
and operated by the Confederated Tribes of the Siletz Indians of Oregon.  It is one of the 
largest Oregon Coastal cities and rests conveniently west of Salem with comparable 
drive time to both Portland and Eugene, at just over two hours.  Its larger city amenities, 
long unobstructed beaches, numerous lodging options, indoor and outdoor activities, 
and proximity to metro areas make it a destination for a variety of visitors. 

  

274



CENTRAL OREGON COAST - REGIONAL DESCRIPTION (continued) 

REGIONAL POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 EXHIBIT 

Depoe Bay offers whale watching tours and deep sea fishing from what is claimed “the 
world’s smallest navigable harbor”.  A sea wall runs almost the full length of town with 
“spouting horns,” rock formations that turn crashing waves into plumes of water, 
sometimes onto Highway 101.   

Newport has many attractions including the Oregon Coast Aquarium, the Hatfield Marine 
Science Center, two historic lighthouses, and bayfront that was previously the canning 
district of the area.  The bay front has a variety of retail and restaurant options and 
includes attractions such as Mariner Square. There is a US Coast Guard Station and a host 
of charter boats offering whale watching and deep sea fishing.  Newport is also home to 
the Pacific Fleet of NOAA (National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration), located 
in the neighborhood of South Beach. 

Waldport offers fishing, clamming and has a free crabbing dock. Numerous state 
recreation areas offer beach access and wildlife viewing.  The drive along Highway 34 
to Corvallis offers a scenic route through the Coast Range.  The Alsea Bay Bridge has a 
clearance of 70 feet with steel and concrete piles reaching more than 100 feet into the 
bedrock below. 

Yachats is considered a village with only 1,010 people, as of 2021.  It is located at the 
mouth of the Yachats River and nestles between the Coast Range and the Pacific 
Ocean.  It has been a vacation destination drawing people who appreciate its unique 
variety of festivals, including the long-running annual “la de da” Parade. 

TOPOGRAPHY 
The area is bisected by the Coast Range with a narrow level area of development along 
the coast.  The Salmon, Siletz and Alsea Rivers flow to the Pacific Ocean; as well as D 
River, the shortest river in the world, flowing a mere 120 feet from Devils Lake to the 
Ocean.  Topography overall is relatively flat, rising to gentle rolling hills from sea level.  This 
allows development, although some areas lie in flood plains, especially along the rivers 
and tend to experience flooding during unusually heavy rainfall. Tsunami areas dot the 
coastline.   

CLIMATE 
The region’s temperate, maritime climate is characterized by moderate year-round 
temperatures. Average summer temperatures range from a breezy 60 to 70 degrees on 
the oceanfront to 80 to 90 degrees a few miles inland. The average winter daytime 
temperature is a mild 50 degrees, dropping to an average 37 degrees at night. Up to 90 
inches of precipitation fall annually, mainly in winter, as cool, moisture-laden Pacific air 
masses pass over the Coast Range. 

POPULATION 
The Central Oregon Coast attracts a large amount of second home buyers from residents 
who live in the Portland, Salem, and Eugene MSAs.  Coast homes are often utilized as 
second homes or vacation rentals. However, the year-round population of the area is 
also reflecting growth.  Population forecasts published by the Portland State University 
Center for Population Research and Census show a general upward trend in permanent 
population for the region.   

  

275



CENTRAL OREGON COAST - REGIONAL DESCRIPTION (continued) 

REGIONAL POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 EXHIBIT 

Growth for the nearby MSAs is summarized in the following chart (most recent data 
available for MSA populations):  

 
Future population growth within the region will be governed in part by the success of 
base industries such as specifically lumber, wood products, fishing, and tourism. Each 
plays a part in achieving some level of stability.  Uncertainty over the amount of timber 
and fish that will ultimately be available for harvest is a major concern. The largest 
employment groups in the region are leisure and hospitality, government, and retail 
trade, with manufacturing a larger employment sector as one moves north toward the 
influence of the Columbia River and Portland.   

Population trends for the Central Coast Region are summarized in the following table: 

 
Population forecasts published by the Portland State University Center for Population 
Research generally show a steady upward trend in permanent population for the region 
between 2012 and 2021.  Oregon experienced tremendous growth between 2000 and 
2007 due to a mass migration of people to the Portland metro region.  However, the 
recession all but stopped population growth between 2008 and 2011. In general, the 
surveyed populations have grown in accordance with markets beginning to recover and 
consumers regaining confidence. 

EMPLOYMENT 
Prior to COVID-19, the Central Oregon Coast had generally recovered from the Great 
Recession.  According to the Oregon Employment Department, the Central Oregon 
Coast economy began to slow in early 2008. Unemployment rates in the Central Coast 
Region, as well as the State of Oregon and United States, peaked in 2009.  Because much 
of the Central Coast’s employment relies on tourism, unemployment rates are higher than 
the rest of the state. However, the unemployment rate has steadily decreased in recent 
years, reaching pre-recession levels over the past few years.  

Prior to the onset of the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Lincoln County unemployment rate 
was at a record low of 3.9% in March 2020 (as reported by https://www.qualityinfo.org/). 
Lane County’s rate was 3.5% as of March 2020. Unemployment in Lincoln County spiked 
to 25.9% in April of 2020, the highest unemployment rate in the state at the time and 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
% 

Change 
2020/21

Avg 
Annual            
Change

Eugene/Springfield MSA 354,200 356,125 358,805 362,150 365,940 370,600 375,120 378,800 383,181 382,647 -0.14% 0.89%
Salem/Keizer MSA 397,120 399,945 403,885 408,340 413,680 420,200 426,135 430,700 434,110 436,098 0.46% 1.09%
Corvallis MSA 86,785 87,725 88,740 90,005 91,320 92,575 93,590 94,360 95,316 93,976 -1.41% 0.92%
Portland/Vancouver/Hillboro 2,266,573 2,292,725 2,326,397 2,307,745 2,348,710 2,454,774 2,491,885 2,522,223 2,517,410 2,539,633 0.88% 1.34%
Source: Population Reseach Center, Portland State, April 2022

MSA POPULATION GROWTH

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
2020-2021       
% Change

Annual Avg. 
% Change

Newport 10,150 10,160 10,095 10,165 10,190 10,215 10,125 10,285 10,400 10,591 1.84% 0.48%

Lincoln City 7,965 8,020 8,400 8,485 8,485 8,665 8,730 8,795 8,865 10,067 13.56% 2.93%

Waldport 2,040 2,050 2,060 2,075 2,080 2,095 2,105 2,110 2,125 2,321 9.22% 1.53%

Yachats 705 715 720 725 740 740 745 760 780 1,010 29.49% 4.81%

Lincoln County 46,295 46,560 46,890 47,225 47,735 47,960 48,210 48,260 48,305 50,903 5.38% 1.11%

Lane County 354,200 356,125 358,805 362,150 365,940 370,600 375,120 378,880 381,365 382,647 0.34% 0.89%

State of Oregon 3,883,735 3,919,020 3,962,710 4,013,845 4,076,350 4,141,100 4,195,300 4,236,400 4,243,851 4,266,620 0.54% 1.10%

Source: Population Reseach Center, Portland State, April 2022

POPULATION TRENDS

276

https://www.qualityinfo.org/


CENTRAL OREGON COAST - REGIONAL DESCRIPTION (continued) 

REGIONAL POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 EXHIBIT 

significantly above the Oregon rate of 14.7%. Lane County’s unemployment spiked to 
16% in April 2020.  

Unemployment rates have 
steadily declined and are 
nearing pre-pandemic levels.  
Lincoln County has seen a 
dramatic decrease in 
unemployment rates from 
pandemic highs and is 
currently 4.9% as of May 2022.  
Lane County has a lower rate 
at 3.9%, slightly higher than the 
State rate of 3.6%. Rates are 
expected to continue to 
decline as the region recovers 
from the economic effects of 
the pandemic. 

The dominant sectors of the Central Coast economy have historically been leisure and 
hospitality, government, trade transportation and utilities. The chart on the following 
page, provided by the State of Oregon Employment Department, summarizes various 
sectors of employment in the Central Coast through May 2022.  

277



CENTRAL OREGON COAST - REGIONAL DESCRIPTION (continued) 

REGIONAL POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 EXHIBIT 

 

 
  

278



CENTRAL OREGON COAST - REGIONAL DESCRIPTION (continued) 

REGIONAL POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 EXHIBIT 

NATURAL RESOURCES 
Traditionally, the Central Coast Region has 
depended heavily upon tourism, fishing, 
timber and wood product industries.  

The majority of commercial marine fishing 
activity for the region occurs in Newport.  
Commercial landings in the Newport 
Group (which includes Depoe Bay) 
account for 38% of the total catch for the 
state (source Economic Contributions of 
Oregon’s Commercial Marine Fisheries, 
October 2019 Update, Oregon 
Department of Fish and Wildlife). 
Competition in the processing industry has 
resulted in consolidation and increased 
competition among processors in recent 
years, resulting in seven new seafood 
processors opening in the state since 2015. 
Economic contribution of the fishing 
industry extends beyond harvesting and 
processing to supporting local retail, tourist, 
industrial, regulatory, and research 
industries. 

Historically, Lane County's economy has 
been based on timber and agriculture. 
Timber is important because the county is on the edge of Oregon's largest stand of timber 
as 90% of Lane County is forestland. However, with the reductions in timber harvesting 
and the continued population growth affecting many agricultural areas, there has been 
a change of emphasis in the economic development of the county. 

Housing related industries, such as the construction sector and Oregon's timber industry, 
have a history of "boom and bust" cycles. The Great Recession and corresponding 
housing crisis put the state's wood products manufacturing sector squarely in the "bust" 
part of that cycle. Since August 2006 Oregon's wood products manufacturing sector 
shed 9,100 jobs or one-quarter of its employment. However, increases in population 
should help spur new development in the Central Coast Region. 

  

279



CENTRAL OREGON COAST - REGIONAL DESCRIPTION (continued) 

REGIONAL POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 EXHIBIT 

NOAA – LINCOLN COUNTY 
The biggest news to hit the Oregon Coast is the relocation of NOAA from Washington to 
the South Beach neighborhood of Newport in Lincoln County. The Port of Newport was 
awarded a lease to the Pacific Fleet of NOAA (National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration) in August 2009. After months of speculation regarding whether the 
relocation would come to fruition, final approval was released at a June 3, 2010 ground-
breaking ceremony, in which an estimated 500 people gathered at the five-acre site, 
according to the Newport News Times. Construction began in January 2010, with the 
facility completed ahead of schedule. The total cost of the project was estimated to be 
$38 million, of which $19.5 million was provided by State of Oregon Lottery funds. NOAA 
is leasing the site from the Port of Newport under a 20-year lease at $2.4 million per year. 
The new facility brought approximately 175 well-paying federal jobs to the area.  

MARINE RESEARCH AND EDUCATION 
The relocation of NOAA to Newport is just one more thread in a continuing blanket of 
aquatic development. Notable projects include the Oregon Coast Aquarium, Aquarium 
Science Program at Oregon Coast Community College, and the new Ocean 
Observatories Initiative. All of this development and initiative has turned Newport into a 
world-class destination for marine research and education. 

The Oregon Coast Aquarium opened in 1992 and is located in the South Beach 
neighborhood of Newport. The facility sits on 23 acres along Yaquina Bay near the Pacific 
Ocean. A campus map is presented below, per the Aquarium website 
(www.aquarium.org). 

USA Today considers the Oregon Coast Aquarium world-class and Coastal Living 
magazine ranks it among the top 10 aquariums in North America. The Aquarium is an 
American Zoo and Aquarium Association (AZA) accredited institution, and is considered 
a “living classroom,” with over 40,000 students visiting the campus each year.  

The aquarium was home to Keiko, the orca who starred in the movie Free Willy, from 
January 1996 until September 9, 1998, when he was shipped to Vestmannaeyjar, Iceland.  

280

http://www.aquarium.org/


CENTRAL OREGON COAST - REGIONAL DESCRIPTION (continued) 

REGIONAL POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 EXHIBIT 

The Hatfield Marine Science 
Center (HMSC) in Newport 
serves as Oregon State 
University’s coastal campus 
and an oceanographic 
research base for state and 
federal agencies.  Opened 
in 1965, the HMSC conducts 
research programs 
dedicated to whales, 
wildlife refuges, fisheries, 
underwater volcanoes, and marine animal genetics. In the summer of 2020, the $61.7 
million Gladys Valley Marine Studies Building at HMSC opened.  The 72,000 SF building 
includes 6,000 SF of office space, a 250-seat auditorium, three additional classrooms, two 
meeting rooms, a café, and a 2,563 SF lab space.  The facility accommodates more than 
300 researchers and students, plus six state and federal agencies.  The building also serves 
as an emergency assembly site able to accommodate more than 900 people.  The 
building was designed to withstand a 9+ earthquake and XXL tsunami event.  

The Aquarium Science (AQS) Building, 
used for the Aquarium Science program 
at Oregon Coast Community College, 
was constructed in 2010 and was opened 
for classes in the fall of 2011. This 9,500 SF 
facility, located at the Central Oregon 
Coast Community College campus in 
Newport was built with State and Lincoln 
County funds. The AQS building is 
designed to be a teaching facility and 
laboratory that mimics the organization 
and set-up of working spaces typical of a 

public aquarium facility. Spaces include a water quality lab, teaching lab, animal holding 
lab, food preparation lab, life support room and workshop. The facility was built with 
operational and energy efficiency in mind through the use of recirculating heat and solar 
panels. The key intention of the AQS facility is to provide an environment for Aquarium 
Science students to gain knowledge and hands-on skills that will assist them in the 
Aquarium Science industry. 

The Pacific Northwest component of the coastal observatory of the Ocean Observatories 
Initiative, called the Endurance Array, operated by Oregon State University, places a 
series of long-term moorings off the Northwest coast. It includes a network of under-sea 
gliders that are programmed to patrol the near-shore waters and collect a variety of 
data. Gliders transmit data from each of their instruments onshore several times a day. 
OQI’s Cyber-Infrastructure will be able to make data from all Endurance Array Instruments 
available online in near real time. The construction of the infrastructure began September 
1, 2009 and lasted six years. Current operations and maintenance planning is based on 
a 25-year life span.    

281



CENTRAL OREGON COAST - REGIONAL DESCRIPTION (continued) 

REGIONAL POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 EXHIBIT 

TOURISM 
The Central Coast Region is well positioned to attract tourists with numerous public parks 
and plentiful public beach access.  Festivals draw travelers throughout the year. In 2021, 
the tourism sector accounted for approximately 8,033 jobs for the Central Coast region.  
Historical employment figures are illustrated in the chart below. (Source: Travel Oregon, 
https://www.travelstats.com/impacts/oregon): 

 
Direct travel spending for 2021 totaled approximately $826.9 million, up significantly from 
$579.6 million in 2020, but similar to the 2019 figure of $823.2 million. Reduced spending in 
2020 was likely due to the COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent stay home orders issued 
by Governor Kate Brown.  Historical tourist spending figures are displayed below (Source: 
Travel Oregon, https://www.travelstats.com/impacts/oregon): 

 

282

https://www.travelstats.com/impacts/oregon
https://www.travelstats.com/impacts/oregon


CENTRAL OREGON COAST - REGIONAL DESCRIPTION (continued) 

REGIONAL POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 EXHIBIT 

PROPERTY TAXES 
In November 1996, Oregon voters approved a property tax limitation measure (Measure 
47) which went into effect during the 1997/98 tax year.  Under the provisions of this 
measure, property taxes at July 1, 1997 will be reduced to the smaller of the 1994/95 tax, 
or the 1995/96 tax less ten percent.  Tax increases for subsequent years are limited to 
three percent per year, with exceptions for new construction, major remodeling, 
annexations and rezoning. 

On May 21, 1997, voters approved a re-write of Measure 47 in the form of Measure 50.  
This revision effectively rolls back assessed values and tax levies freezing tax rates to 
1995/96 levels.  In addition, appreciation is capped at three percent per year.  
Ramifications of this revision are yet to be interpreted by county assessors. 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
Lincoln County has over forty-thousand residents around the coastal and inland 
communities such as Lincoln City, Depoe Bay, Newport, Waldport, Yachats, Toledo, Siletz 
and Eddyville. Its school district serves about 5,400 students from Kindergarten through 
Twelfth grade, with a total of approximately 520 employees, according to the district 
website (www.lincoln.k12.or.us). Each incorporated city has an adequate education 
system for its K-12 students. The principal industries of Lincoln County are lumber, fishing, 
agriculture and tourism.   

GENERAL SERVICES 
General and professional services in the region include a number of accounting/tax firms, 
attorneys/legal firms, banks, insurance companies, real estate sales and title companies. 
Hospital services are available in each county. Police and fire protection are provided 
by the incorporated cities. Both organizations make use of full, part-time, and volunteer 
workers. 

The region enjoys a variety of cultural and recreational attractions including libraries, 
clubs, fraternal organizations, art groups, fishing, hunting, golfing, factory tours, casinos, 
resorts, golfing, Hatfield Marine Science Center, and various outdoor activities. 

MEDICAL SERVICES 
In Lincoln City, Samaritan North Lincoln Hospital currently operates within the North 
Lincoln Health District. The mission of the North Lincoln Health District is to deliver high 
quality health care services to the residents and visitors of the District and its surrounding 
communities. Samaritan North Lincoln Hospital is an accredited 25-bed hospital located 
in a peaceful setting on Devils Lake in Lincoln City. The non-profit hospital, originally 
constructed in 1967, is the only hospital serving Lincoln City. It has a licensed professional 
staff of more than 20 local physicians, physician assistants and nurse practitioners. In 
addition, many consulting physicians and specialists provide services at Samaritan North 
Lincoln Hospital on a regular basis. Currently, a replacement hospital is under 
construction.    

283



CENTRAL OREGON COAST - REGIONAL DESCRIPTION (continued) 

REGIONAL POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 EXHIBIT 

The following information was 
published by Samaritan Health 
Services on September 27, 2017. 
“Samaritan North Lincoln Hospital 
administrators and the local 
community gathered on 
September 12, 2017 for a 
ceremonial ground breaking for the 
new replacement hospital slated 
for completion in late 2019. The new structure will feature many new and updated 
services and facilities incorporating several high tech and next generation medical 
advances.” The new hospital is being constructed on the site of the main parking lot 
located in the southeast corner of the 12-acre campus. According to the Samaritan 
Health Services website, construction began on July 9, 2018 and was completed in 
October 2019, with the new Samaritan North Lincoln Hospital opening February 10, 2020. 
Samaritan Health Services is funding the $42 million facility, which is being planned with 
future expansion capabilities in mind. The preceding rendering illustrates the planned 
front elevation of the proposed hospital. 

In Newport, voters passed Ballot Measure 21-163 
in 2015, which issued a 20-year bond for up to 
$57 million for the construction of a new hospital, 
to be built on the same site as the existing 
Samaritan Pacific Communities Hospital, a 25-
bed critical access hospital located at the 
corner of SW 9th and SW Abbey Streets. 
Construction began in early summer 2017 
(pictured at right, nearing completion of Phase 
1 construction); the project included the 
remodel of 40,000 SF of the existing facility and 
construction of a new 86,000 SF, three-story 
addition. 

Samaritan Health, which operates the hospital, was slated to contribute another $11 
million toward the project, which was completed in winter 2020. The City of Newport plans 
a new signalized intersection at SW Abbey Street and Coast Highway in response to 
expected increased traffic to the hospital campus.  

TRANSPORTATION 
The primary mode of transportation throughout the region is the private automobile, 
which is supplemented by private bus carriers and taxi services.  Local airports, usually a 
general aviation facility, offer charter and scenic flights, and flight instruction.  There are 
bus carriers in each County along the coast as well. The Lincoln County Transit is based 
in Newport and the Lane Transit District is in Eugene.   
  

Photo taken Dec. 20, 2017, #11581-65 (Photo 12011-32 taken 1/5/2019) 

284



CENTRAL OREGON COAST - REGIONAL DESCRIPTION (continued) 

REGIONAL POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 EXHIBIT 

SUMMARY 
In summary, the Central Coast Region is characterized as a series of small coastal 
communities relying primarily on fishing, agriculture, forest products and tourism.   Overall, 
the economic outlook for the area is good; however, the Great Recession forced many 
second homeowners to sell their properties and developers were caught with partially 
developed projects that were no longer feasible.  A slow recovery occurred over the 
past several years. As the market continues to recover, growth should increase and 
property values will begin to rise again.  The long-term outlook for the region is good. 

285



POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 

APPRAISER QUALIFICATIONS 

286



Financial: 

AKT, LLP 

Bank of America 

Bank of the Pacific 

Bank of the West 

Banner Bank 

Church Extension Plan 

Citizens Bank 

CitiGroup 

CIT Small Business Lending 

Continental Bank 

Evangelical Christian Credit Union 

First Bank 

First Community Credit Union 

First Federal, McMinnville 

First Interstate Bank, N.A. 

HomeStreet Bank 

JPMorgan Chase Bank, NA 

Northwest Community Credit Union 

OnPoint Community Credit Union 

Oregon Coast Bank 

OSU Federal Credit Union 

Pioneer Trust Bank, N.A. 

Regents Bank 

Riverview Community Bank 

Siuslaw Bank 

Umpqua Bank 

Washington Federal  

Wells Fargo Bank 

Willamette Community Bank 

Willamette Valley Bank 

Governmental: 

Benton County 

Bonneville Power Administration 

City of Albany 

City of Coos Bay 

City of Corvallis 

City of Eugene 

City of Lincoln City 

City of Newport 

City of Salem 

City of Silverton 

City of Sweet Home 

City of Woodburn 

Dallas School District 

Douglas County  

FDIC 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Klamath County 

Lane County 

Marion County 

Military Dept. - State of Oregon 

Mount Angel School District 

Oregon Attorneys General 

Oregon Dept. of Parks & Recreation 

Oregon Dept. of Transportation 

Oregon Division of State Lands 

Oregon Dept. of General Services 

Polk CDC 

Port of Portland 

Riverdale School District 

Salem/Keizer School District 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 

U.S. Bureau of Land Management 

U.S. Dept. of Interior 

U.S. Marshall's Office 

U.S. Forest Service 

Washington Dept. of Fish & Wildlife 

Woodburn School District 

Yamhill County Housing Authority 

Insurance/Medical: 

Corvallis Clinic 

Good Samaritan Hospital (Corvallis) 

SAIF 

Salem Health 

Samaritan Albany General Hospital 

Samaritan Health Services 

St. Paul Fire & Marine 

General: 

Arnold, Gallagher, PC 

Catholic Community Services  

Martinis & Hill 

McDonalds Corporation 

Roth’s Fresh Market 

MDH Management LLC 

Saalfeld Griggs PC 

Feibleman & Case, PC 

First American Title 

Morrow Equipment 

Sherman, Sherman, Johnnie & Hoyt 

Mtn. West Development Corp. 

State Farm Insurance Co. 

GHR Lawyers 

FIRM RESUME | POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 

The firm concentrates on complex commercial, industrial and multi-family valuation assignments for 

government, corporations and individuals.  Work has been performed on a national scale. This is a 

sample of clients served: 

287



POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

Katherine Powell Banz, MAI is a Principal and 
Certified General Appraiser with Powell Banz 
Valuation, LLC. Katie is licensed in Oregon and  
Washington and has performed a diverse range of 
commercial valuation assignments throughout the 
Northwest since joining the firm in 2002.  In 2014 
Katie and her husband, Jonathan Banz, MAI, AI-
GRS purchased the business and rebranded the 
company Powell Banz Valuation, LLC.  

Katie’s professional experience includes a wide 
variety of valuation-related work, including 
consultation, appraisal, expert witness testimony, 
appraisal review, and feasibility analysis of income 
producing properties; including retail, office, 
development land, industrial, single and multi-
family residential, and special use properties such 
as churches and schools. 

Katie was the 2018 President of the Greater Oregon 
Chapter of the Appraisal Institute (GOCAI). She 
was an active GOCAI Board Member from 2012-
2020. Katie also volunteered as a Region 
Representative for the Appraisal Institute Region 1 
from 2017-2020, and is serving on the 2021 Region 
1 Nominating Committee.   

Katie graduated from Linfield College (McMinnville, 
Oregon) in 1997 with a Bachelor of Arts degree. 
Following college, she worked as a graphic artist 
and project manager with the Boeing Company in 
Seattle until joining Powell Valuation Inc in 2002. 

In her spare time, Katie enjoys reading, gardening, 
striving to live a creative life, and spending time 
with her husband and Great Danes. 

EXPERTISE & SERVICES 
 

• Real Estate Valuation 

o Professional & Medical Office 

o Retail 

o Industrial 

o Subdivision Analysis 

o Multi-Family  

o Lodging 

o Special Purpose Properties 

• Expert Witness Testimony 

• Eminent Domain and Condemnation 

• Market Analysis & Feasibility Studies 

• Appraisal Review 

 

 
 

kbanz@powellbanz.com 

503-371-2403 

 

AFFILIATIONS 

• State of Oregon Certified General 

Appraiser, #C000897  
 

• State of Washington Certified 

General Appraiser (#1101856)  
 

• Designated Member of the 

Appraisal Institute (#480999)  
 

• State of Oregon Supervising 

Appraiser  
 

• Greater Oregon Chapter of 

the Appraisal Institute - 

GOCAI: 

o 2019/2020 Region 1 

Representative 

o 2019 Past President 

o 2018 President 

o 2017 Vice President 

o 2016 Treasurer 

o 2015 Secretary 

o 2012- 2014 Board 

Member  
 

• Board Member –Deepwood 

Museum & Gardens, Salem, 

OR (2014-2019) 

 

EDUCATION / DESIGNATION 

• MAI - Appraisal Institute 

• B.A. - Linfield College 

288

mailto:kbanz@powellbanz.com


POWELL BANZ VALUATION, LLC © 2022 

APPRAISER CERTIFICATION 

289



290



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: December 4, 2023 
 
Agenda Item: 
Public Hearing and Possible Action to Determine Whether Certain City-Owned Parcels of 
Tideland Property are Surplus to the City’s Needs and Should Be Sold to the Yakona 
Nature Preserve and Placed in Conservancy. 

 
Background: 
Bill Barton, on behalf of the Yakona Nature Preserve, has expressed an interest in 
purchasing City-owned tidelands that are located in the vicinity of the Yakona Nature 
Preserve, for incorporation into the preserve. Newport Municipal Code chapter 2.25 sets 
out the processes the City must follow for the sale of property. Under this provision the 
tidelands qualify as “substandard undeveloped property” which are defined as “lots or 
parcels without structures that are not of minimal buildable size for the zone in which they 
are located and cannot be developed for other reasons.” 
 
The Code provides that notice must be given to all property owners within 300 feet of the 
subject property ten days prior to the hearing, and to any parties who have inquired about 
purchases within one year prior to the date of the Council meeting. This has been done. 
To date, Community Development Director, Derrick Tokos, has received one inquiry 
regarding this matter. Following the public hearing, the Council will need to determine that 
the title and property are surplus to the city’s needs and are no longer needed for public 
use, and that it is in the public interest to sell the property. 
 
If this determination is made, the City Council will schedule a hearing to consider potential 
terms of sale. This could be done at the January 2, 2024 City Council meeting. 
 
The property in question are the parcels that are submersible lands located near Poole 
Slew and Yaquina Bar outside of the city limits and the city's urban growth boundary. 
These properties were donated by Jack and Lily Stocker who donated five parcels to the 
City of Newport in 1995. The Council accepted these parcels with the thought that they 
may have potential mitigation value, or value as future inventory land that the City could 
trade. In 2008, one of the parcels was conveyed to the Central Coast Land Conservancy 
as a match for North American Wetlands Conservation funds. The remaining four parcels 
still remain in city ownership. If the properties are conveyed, the properties would be 
placed in a Conservancy and deed restricted. 
 
If Council determines the properties are surplus, the Council will then need to provide 
directions of how the sale of the property should proceed. The property has nominal value 
with the Lincoln County assessor's office placing a value of $5,870 on the four parcels 
existing of 9.23 acres in total size. Mr. Barton has indicated that he is comfortable with 

291



paying that amount. Following the public hearing, the City Council will need to determine 
how the property should be sold. The public hearing will provide an opportunity should 
there be any interest in the title and property from other property owners. The second 
motion provides instructions to the City Manager to coordinate conveyance documents 
with the Yakona Nature Preserve and schedule a public hearing on these documents so 
Council may consider, and potentially approve, the proposed terms of sale. Notice of the 
second hearing will be provided in the same manner as it was for the first hearing.  
 
Recommendations: 
I recommend that the Mayor conduct a public hearing to determine if four parcels of city-
owned tidelands consisting of a total of 9.23 acres located outside the city's urban 
boundary should be deemed surplus to the city’s needs and sold to the Yakona Nature 
Preserve and placed in conservancy. Following the public hearing, and considering any 
comments made, I recommend the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to determine that four tideland parcels, identified as tax lots 11 – 11 – 21 – 00 – 
01190 – 00; 11 – 11 – 22 – CO – 04200 – 00; 11 – 11 – 27 – 00 – 03100 – 00; and, 11 – 11 – 28 
– 00 – 00201 – 00 which are collectively 9.23 acres located outside the urban growth 
boundaries of the city, in the proximity of the Yakona Nature Preserve, are no longer 
needed for public use and that it is in the public interest to sell the property. 
 
If this motion is approved, I recommend the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to direct the City Manager to coordinate the preparation of land conveyance 
documents with the Yakona Nature Preserve, and schedule a public hearing on these 
documents for Tuesday, January 2, 2024.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
Any proceeds received from the sale of land will go into the City's Land Reserve Fund.  
 
Alternatives:  
If public comment is received as part of this hearing, those comments should be 
considered prior to recommending either motion above. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

292



Page 1 of 2 

        

         
 
        
        
            Date:  December 4, 2023 

 
Title: Public Hearing to Determine if Certain City-Owned Tidelands are Surplus to the City’s Needs and 
Should be Sold to the Yakona Nature Preserve and Placed in a Conservancy 
 

Prepared by: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Director 
 

Recommended Motions:  
 
Motion 1, Determination that the Tidelands are Surplus to the City’s Needs:   I move to find that the 
tidelands the City of Newport owns by virtue of a warranty deed recorded in Book 311, at Page 119 of the 
Lincoln County Book of Records, are no longer needed for public use, and that it is in the public interest to 
sell the property. 
 
Motion No. 2, Schedule a Hearing to Consider the Potential Terms of Sale:  I move to direct the City 
Manager to coordinate the preparation of conveyance documents with the Yakona Nature Preserve, and 
to schedule a public hearing once they are finalized so that the Council may consider and potentially 
approve the proposed terms of sale. Notice of the hearing shall be provided in the same manner as it was 
for this meeting. 
 

Background Information:  In December of 1995, Jack and Lily Stocker donated five tideland parcels to 
the City of Newport (ref: Warranty Deed, Book 311, Page 119, Lincoln County Book of Records). At its 
January 2, 1996 meeting, the Newport City Council adopted a motion accepting the donation of real 
property.  The minutes reflect that the Council viewed these these submerged and submersible lands 
near Poole Slough as having potential mitigation value, or value as future inventory land that the City 
could trade.  In 2008 the City conveyed one of the parcels to the Central Coast Land Conservancy 
(Ref: Deed Instrument #200803360).  The property is adjacent to other land owned by the 
Conservancy and was provided as match for North American Wetlands Conservation Fund funds 
pursuant to a grant agreement between the Conservancy and U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.  A deed 
restriction was placed on the conveyed parcel requiring that it be conserved in order to protect the 
ecological values of the salt marsh and fish and wildlife species that depend upon it.  The City of 
Newport retains ownership of the four remaining parcels.  Bill Barton, on behalf of the Yakona Nature 
Preserve, has approached the City to acquire the four parcels with the intent of placing them into a 
conservancy to protect the tidelands in a manner similar to what was done in 2008.   
 
Newport Municipal Code (NMC) Chapter 2.25 sets out the process the City must follow for the potential 
sale of the property.  The tidelands qualify as “substandard undeveloped property,” which are defined as 
lots or parcels without structures that are not of minimum buildable size for the zone in which they are 
located or that cannot be developed for other reasons (NMC 2.25.020(A)).  A hearing is required to 
provide members of the public an opportunity to testify as to whether or not it is in the public interest to 
sell the property.  The City must mail notice to property owners within 300-feet of the subject property 10-
days prior to the hearing and to any parties who have inquired about purchase within one year prior to the 
date of the Council meeting.  A copy of the required notice is enclosed.  At the close of the hearing, the 
Council must decide whether or not to authorize the sale of the property.  The  Council may offer a 
property for sale only if it determines it is surplus to the city’s needs (NMC 2.25.030(A)). 
 
If the Council decides to sell the property, it shall direct the City Manager to proceed with the sale, with 
directions as to how the sale should proceed. The directions should include the extent to which the sale 
should be publicized. The City Manager, consistent with the direction of Council, would then determine 
the existence of interested prospective purchasers and negotiate for the sale of the property to achieve 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

293



Page 2 of 2 

the best results for the City, considering the sale price and the anticipated use of the property (NMC 
2.25.030(B)).  Once details of the sale have been negotiated, the negotiated agreement for the sale of the 
property must be submitted for Council action at a regularly scheduled Council meeting (NMC 
2.25.030(C)). 
 
The four tideland parcels, identified as Tax Lots 11-11-21-00-01190-00, 11-11-22-C0-04200-00, 11-11-
27-00-03100-00, and 11-11-28-00-00201-00), are collectively 9.23 acres in size.  Tax Lot 1190 is 
rectangular in shape on the west side of the Yakona Nature Preserve, extending into King Slough.  The 
other three parcels are located immediately east of the Preserve along the Yaquina River.  These 
tideland properties are situated along the bank of the river between the mean low and mean high water 
lines.  The Lincoln County Assessor’s Office has assigned real market values to the properties, the total 
value of which is $5,870.  It would be reasonable for the Council to view this as a representative value, 
and Bill Barton has indicated that he is comfortable with paying that amount.  The properties would be 
placed in a conservancy and deed restricted.  A sample deed restriction from the 2008 conveyance is 
attached. 
 
Fiscal Notes:  There are no fiscal impacts associated with this agenda item.  If the property is sold, 
then the proceeds would be directed to the City land account for future land purchases, unless an 
alternative use of the funds is identified by Council. 
 

Alternatives:  Move forward with the potential sale in a manner different then outlined above, hold off 
on pursuing a potential sale, or as suggested by Council. 
 

Attachments:   
Tidelands Map 
Tax Lot Property Records 
Vesting Deed 
Council Minutes Excerpt for 1.6.96 Meeting 
Barton Proposal 
Yakona Backgrounder 
Sample Deed Restriction 
Hearing Notice 

294



YAQUINA BAY RD

SOUTH BAYRD

HARBORTONRD

0 1,600 3,200800
Feet ¯This map is for informational use only and has not been prepared for, nor is it suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It

includes data from multiple sources. The City of Newport assumes no responsibility for its compilation or use and users of this
information are cautioned to verify all information with the City of Newport Community Development Department.

City of  Newport
Community Development Department
169 SW Coast Highway              Phone:1.541.574.0629
Newport, OR 97365                    Fax:1.541.574.0644 Image Taken July 2018

4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos
Quantum Spatial, Inc. Corvallis, OR 

City of Newport Owned Tidelands
(Bk. 311, Pg. 0119) 

Previously Conveyed
to a Conservancy

TL 1190

TL 4200

TL 3100

TL 201

TL 100

Yakona Nature Preserve

295



29
6



29
7



29
8



29
9



30
0



301



30
2



30
3



30
4



30
5



30
6



30
7



30
8



30
9



31
0



31
1



31
2



31
3



31
4



31
5



31
6



31
7



31
8



31
9



32
0



32
1



32
2



32
3



32
4



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: December 4, 2023 
Agenda Item: 
From Erik Jensen, Jensen Strategies – Discussion of Schedule for Executive Recruitment 
of the City Manager.  
 
Background: 
The City Council has retained Jensen Strategies to assist Council in the executive search 
processes for a new city manager upon my retirement at the end of the fiscal year. Erik 
Jensen will be providing an update on the city manager executive search at Monday’s 
Council meeting. The tentative schedule impacting the Council is as follows: 
 

• December 4, 2023 Regular Council Meeting – Review of the proposed recruitment 
schedule. 

• Beginning the Week of December 4 – Jensen Strategies will be doing stakeholder 
interviews of Council members and Department Heads. In addition, notice of an 
online survey will be provided to all City employees and to community members to 
provide feedback regarding the qualities that are important in the next city 
manager. 

• December 12, 2023 - Virtual Community Input Meeting from 6-7pm (This is for 
public input. Council should not attend or participate in this session. An 
announcement is attached for your review. As an alternative, community members 
will be able to submit feedback via online survey)  

• January 8, 2024 Special Work Session – Jensen Strategies has requested that the 
Council meet in a special work session to draft the position and community profile 
based on the feedback obtained in December. (Jensen Strategies will participate 
virtually in this meeting) 

• January 16, 2024 Regular Council Meeting – Council adopts profile/hiring process. 

• January 29 through February 19, 2024 – Position advertised. (Jensen Strategies 
will then screen applications, conduct preliminary Zoom interviews in preparation 
to discuss potential candidates with the Council at an executive session) 

• March 18, 2024 Regular Council Work Session Jensen Strategies will review 
applications in executive session with Council to select finalists for interviews. 
(Jensen Strategies will participate in person with the executive session.) 

• April 2-3, 2024 – Candidate receptions and panel interviews. 

• April 4 Special Council Executive Session to interview candidates. This is a 
Thursday and Council should plan on the entire day for the interview process. 
(Jensen Strategies will be on site for the interviews.) 

• April 5 Executive Session for Council Deliberation on hiring a City Manager. This 
will likely be in the morning and Council should allow a couple of hours for this 
meeting.(Jensen Strategies will be onsite for this executive session.) 

325



Please review your calendars to make sure that you will be able to participate in the 
Council meetings outlined above. Please note the three meetings highlighted in  blue fall 
outside of regularly scheduled meetings. These are the January 8, 2024 work session. 
This could be at noon or 4:00pm on that day, the full Council interviews that would be held 
all day on Thursday April 4, 2024 and the executive session to deliberate on hiring a City 
Manager Friday April 5 in the morning. Council will need to confirm or modify the schedule 
at Monday’s Council meeting to finalize these dates. 
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend the city Council consider the following motion: 
 

I move to confirm the schedule as presented by Jensen Strategies for the city manager 
executive search. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None. 
 
Alternatives:  
Modify the schedule, or as suggested by the City Council.  
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 

326



327



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: December 4, 2023 
Agenda Item: 
Communication from the Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee -- Annual Progress 
Report on the Parks System Master Plan. 
 
Background: 
The Newport Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee has provided an annual report 
to the City Council on the status of projects related to the implementation of the Parks 
Master Plan. The report identifies completed projects that are being removed or de-
emphasized at this time and projects that have seen a change or have progressed this 
year. The report identifies opportunities for the future. I will include a copy of this report in 
the materials for the annual goal setting session that Council will be holding after the first 
of the year. I appreciate the efforts of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee and 
staff in continuing to utilize the Parks Master Plan as a basis for future projects to enhance 
the quality of life in the City of Newport.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to accept the annual report of the Newport Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Committee on the status of the Parks Master Plan projects for 2023.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None.  
 
Alternatives:  
None recommended.   
 
Respectfully submitted,  

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 

328



MEMORANDUM 

To:  Newport City Council 

 Newport City Manager Spencer Nebel 

From: Nancy Steinberg, Chair, Newport Parks & Recreation Advisory Committee 

Date:  

RE: Tracking of Parks Master Plan implementation, 2023 

 

In consultation with city staff in the Community Development and Parks and Recreation 

Departments, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee annually tracks the status of 

projects outlined in the 2019 Parks Master Plan (PMP). This memo serves as both an update on 

progress made on PMP projects and recommendation for where there are opportunities for 

future funding and support for pending projects. 

 

Completed project: 

T-B: 13th St. & Spring St. beach access – this project has been completed. 

 

Removed or de-emphasized projects: 

S-08: Community gardens and trails at the airport 

The property suggested for this project in the PMP is now being leased for industrial 

use. The department is considering other locations for community gardens. 

S-B: Marine Science Drive non-motorized boat launch 

Another project in the PMP recommends a non-motorized boat launch at the South 

Beach Marina; all that is needed to complete this project is signage as the boat launch 

already exists. Conversations are underway to create and install that signage. Once that 

project is complete, it is probably not necessary to pursue creation of another non-

motorized launch in such close proximity, especially with the complication of the 

limited-access NOAA facility nearby.  

P-C: Improved beach access at Jump-off Joe 

 A landslide in this area has made beach access unsafe. 

 

Projects that have seen a change or progress this year: 

P-01: Agate Beach playground & dog park 

329



Funding has been acquired from ORPA for this project! This project will go forward in 

the coming calendar year. 

P-09: Frank Wade Park improvements 

Community garden fence has been installed. Funding is in hand to rehabilitate the 

pickleball/tennis courts. 

S-05: Nye Beach Turnaround universal beach access 

 This project is less urgent now that David’s Chair has been brought to Don & Ann Davis 

Park. 

T-H/T-I: Ocean to Bay Trail improvements and T-K: Ocean to Bay Trail completion 

 An extensive signage and kiosk project is near completion for the Ocean to Bay Trail. 

X-08: Forest Park trail improvements 

NEWTS (Newport Trail Stewards) might be interested in taking this on after Big Creek 

trails are done. 

T-G: Big Creek Reservoir trail system 

The NEWTS have made great progress on this project, and continue to write successful 

grant proposals. Phases I and II of the trail system are done, including a skills park area; 

Phase III is underway. The group organizes volunteer trail work days to maintain the 

trails.  

T-O: Chestnut Street open space 

South Beach Church is a willing partner in this project – they are currently building a 

new church structure and the city will work with them, the Wilder housing development 

and OSU to finish the trail and connect it to the new OSU housing. Funds are needed on 

the city side to complete the trail. 

T-C: Agate Beach neighborhood & Ernest Bloch Wayside trail connection 

This project has now been federally funded (Federal Lands Access Program) and work 

will probably start next calendar year (after a public input process). 

P-05: Coast Park improvements 

Hillside improvements have been made. Some play equipment has been repaired. The 

slide will be replaced soon, but not connected to the pirate ship. The Whaler Motel 

construction project will include addition of a new trail. 

P-13: Mombetsu Park improvements 

330



 Some vegetation has been replanted, and the park has received more maintenance 

attention. 

P-K: Additional Wilder neighborhood park 

New development at Wilder will include a new pocket park to be managed as a city 

park. 

S-02 Wilder dog park improvements 

Some upgrades have been completed at the dog park, but a new fence is still needed. 

The park will not be moved, as had been previously discussed. 

 

Opportunities for the future: 

The committee agreed that rather than request funding or other resources for additional 

priority projects this year, it would be best for departmental staff to focus on the many projects 

for which funding was recently acquired, as outlined above.   

However, the committee did discuss which Parks Master Plan projects should be prioritized 

next, after the ones listed above are underway or close to completion. We agreed that the 

following projects represent important opportunities for the department in the medium term: 

Sam Moore Parkway and playground 

This playground (6th Street near the skate park) should be the next one in the city to be 

renovated, and some funding might be able to be moved from the Agate Beach project 

to be dedicated to renovations here. In addition, Sam Moore Parkway needs 

rehabilitation, including adding lighting, which might increase its use and make the path 

feel safer. The committee agreed that this project should be made a priority soon. 

Chestnut Street – funding for city part of trail 

The presence of a willing partner in South Beach Church for realizing the long-held vision 

for paths and boardwalks in this area of Idaho Point represents an important 

opportunity for the city. Some funding will be needed to complete the city’s 

contribution to this new trail system and to connect it to the church property, Wilder 

and OSU housing when it is built. 

Pollinator corridors 

The PMP calls for a pollinator corridor to be constructed using plantings along Highway 

101, but the 101 corridor in Newport has been determined to be suboptimal for this 

type of project. Another such project was proposed for Marine Science Drive, but it has 

not moved forward. The Parks and Recreation Committee suggests that any new parks 

331



and transportation projects undertaken in the city – with a prime example being the 

federally-funded project that will take place on the west side of 101 near Yaquina Head 

– include pollinator-friendly plantings to the extent possible. 

Community gardens 

The committee is extremely supportive of continuing discussions to find new locations 

for community gardens in the city and suggests continued/renewed emphasis be placed 

on CG projects. 

332



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: December 4, 2023 
Agenda Item: 
Communication from the City Attorney -- Request for Payment of up to 40 Hours of 
Accrued Vacation Time . 
 
Background: 
City policy places a cap on the amount of vacation time that can be carried over from one 
calendar year to the next, which is 240 hours. The City policy also provides for payment 
of up to 40 hours of accrued vacation time in excess of the 240 hours allowed to be carried 
over. City Attorney David Allen is requesting that the Council consider this payout for the 
2023 calendar year. This is a policy that is utilized for other employees who request 
reimbursement for vacation hours that would otherwise be lost at the end of the calendar 
year.  
 
Recommendation: 
None by me since the city attorney is directly employed by Council. This request is 
consistent with how other requests are handled within the City organization when vacation 
time exceeds the carryover limits. An appropriation motion for Council to consider is as 
follows:  
 
I move to authorize payment of up to 40 hours of accrued vacation time in excess of the 
240 hours allowed to be carried over one calendar year to the next for city attorney David 
Allen subject to completion of the vacation carryover exception request form.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
Additional compensation will be paid up to the 40 hours as requested in the vacation 
carryover exception request. 
 
Alternatives:  
As suggested by the City Council.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 

333



 
-----Original Message----- 
From: David Allen <D.Allen@NewportOregon.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, November 28, 2023 3:45 PM 
To: Jan Kaplan <J.Kaplan@NewportOregon.gov>; Dietmar Goebel <D.Goebel@NewportOregon.gov> 
Cc: Erik Glover <E.Glover@NewportOregon.gov>; Spencer Nebel <S.Nebel@NewportOregon.gov>; 
Barbara James <B.James@NewportOregon.gov> 
Subject: Dec. 4 council meeting 
 
Jan and Dietmar - 
In follow-up to what we went over yesterday (Mon. 11/27), attached is the city's form for a vacation 
carryover exception request.  At this point and as we discussed, I have a considerable amount of accrued 
vacation time, even without the additional three days (24 hours) of annual vacation leave that I declined 
to include in my employment agreement (which was part of previous agreements with city 
attorneys/managers). 
 
As noted at the top of the attached request form, city policy does provide for payment of up to 40 hours 
of accrued vacation time in excess of the 240 hours allowed to be carried over from one calendar year to 
the next.  For my position, this would require mayor/council approval, which you both indicated you 
would recommend at the Dec. 4 council meeting. 
 
Through the end of the Dec. 2023 pay period, I will have accrued 330 hours of vacation leave, assuming I 
take no further vacation days this calendar year (although I will try to do so).  I currently receive 14 
hours per month, which is the same as dept. heads with less than five years of service with the city.  Up 
to this point, I've taken seven vacation days this calendar year.  Along with the 15 paid holidays offered 
to city employees (including three selectable holidays), I've found that to be sufficient for my purposes 
this calendar year. 
 
Erik - you can include this e-mail along with the attached request form as a Dec. 4 council agenda item, 
and I've also cc'd Spencer and Barb on this as a FYI. --David 
 

334



33
5



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: December 4, 2023 
Agenda Item: 
Consideration of Adoption of Resolution No. 4001, a Resolution Relating to the 
Application of System Development Charges to the Conversion of Commercial Building 
to Residential Uses. 
 
Background: 
At the November 20, 2023 City Council meeting, a report was provided on the impact that 
House Bill 2984 will have on the City’s System Development Charges (SDCs). House Bill 
2984 was approved by the legislature in 2023 and requires Cities to permit conversion of 
a building from commercial to residential use without requiring a zone change or 
conditional use permit. It does not apply to lands zoned for heavy industrial use. The 
Planning Commission is working on the land-use component of this legislation.  
 
In addition, there is a component of the bill specific to system development charges that 
is time sensitive. This requires the City Council to adopt a resolution at its December 4 
meeting confirming that the City's existing system development charge methodology 
applies to conversion of commercial properties for residential use. This is not a common 
situation; however, the legislation was structured in such a way that requires local 
governments to affirm the existing policy regarding collection of SDC fees when 
commercial properties are converted to residential use. Please note that the City’s policy 
provides a credit in SDC fees for any prior use of the property that has occurred within the 
prior ten-year period as it relates to the calculation of SDC fees for new projects.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 4001, a resolution relating to the application of SDCs to 
the conversion of commercial property to residential use.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
Adoption of the resolution will continue the City’s current policy of collecting SDC fees 
on these types of conversions.  
 
Alternatives:  
Do not approve the resolution, or as suggested by the City Council. 
  
  

336



Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 

337



Page 1 of 1 

       
       

   
 
              Meeting Date: December 4, 2023 

 
 

 

Title:  Consideration of Resolution No. 4001, Relating to the Application of SDC Charges to the 
Conversion of Commercial Buildings for Residential Use 
 
Prepared by: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Director 
  
Recommended Motion:  I move adoption of Resolution No. 4001, a resolution relating to the 
application of SDC charges to the conversion of commercial buildings for residential use. 
 
Background Information:  At its November 20, 2023 meeting, the City Council received a copy of 
HB 2984 (2023), a housing related bill passed in the last legislative session that requires cities 
allow conversion of a building from commercial to residential use without requiring a zone change 
or conditional use permit.  Additionally, and to the point of this draft resolution, the bill prohibits 
cities from requiring the payment of SDC charges for commercial to residential conversions unless 
they have adopted a specific policy requiring such payment on or before December 31, 2023. 
 
Newport’s SDC methodology, last amended in 2017, requires that all new development or 
redevelopment, including commercial to residential conversions, pay system development 
charges for impacts that they have on the City’s water, wastewater, transportation, storm 
drainage, and parks public systems.  Credit is given for any prior use of a property within the past 
10 years.  The methodology does not carve out exceptions for particular types of development. 
This was intentional, to ensure equitable application of the rules. That is, all new development or 
redevelopment pays for its proportional share of any impact it has on the public systems. 
 
The Council requested that a resolution be prepared for this meeting so that it may consider 
whether or not it wishes to confirm that it is the City’s policy to apply its existing SDC methodology 
to the conversion of commercial buildings for residential use.  If the resolution is adopted, then 
the City will have met the December 31, 2023 deadline in the bill and it can continue to apply its 
SDC methodology as drafted.  If the Council does not want to adopt the resolution, then it should 
direct staff to amend the City’s SDC methodology to add commercial to residential conversions 
as a listed exemption.  This would require an amendment to NMC Section 12.15.060. 
 
Fiscal Notes:  It is rare for the City to see commercial to residential conversions, namely because 
there are few commercial structures in the City that are suitable. When it does occur, it tends to 
be small scale, such as adding a single apartment into an upper story office space.  SDCs payable 
from such conversions are likely to be modest, if they are not off-set entirely, given that such 
projects receive a credit for the prior use. 
 
Alternatives:  Seek changes to the resolution, forgo executing the resolution, or as suggested by 
Council. 
 
Attachments: 
Draft Resolution No. 4001 
HB 2984 Enrolled 
NMC Chapter 12.15 System Development Charges 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

338



 

 

 Res. No. 4001 –Application of SDC Charges to the Conversion of Commercial Buildings to Residential Use 1 
 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4001 
 

A RESOLUTION RELATING TO THE APPLICATION 
OF SDC CHARGES TO THE CONVERSION OF  

COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS FOR RESIDENTIAL USE 
 
 

WHEREAS, HB 2984 is a housing related bill adopted in the 2023 legislative session that 
relates to the conversion of commercial buildings for residential use; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 6(c) of the bill prohibits cities from requiring the payment of a System 

Development Charge (SDC) for commercial to residential conversions unless the charge is 
calculated pursuant to a specific adopted policy for commercial to residential conversions 
adopted on or before December 31, 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, Newport’s SDC methodology, last amended in 2017, requires that all new 

development or redevelopment, including commercial to residential conversions, pay 
system development charges for impacts that they have on the City’s water, wastewater, 
transportation, storm drainage, and parks public systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, credit is given for the impact of any use of property in the past 10 years so, 

for example, if a prior commercial use had a greater impact on a particular public system 
then the new residential use, an SDC charge would not be assessed; and 

 
WHEREAS, conversely, if a commercial to residential conversion results in a greater 

impact, such as an increased demand on water or wastewater systems, then an SDC charge 
would be assessed for the additional impact; and 

 
WHEREAS, Newport’s SDC methodology does not carve out exceptions for particular 

types of development, ensuring equitable application of the rules and that all new 
development or redevelopment pays for its proportional share of any impact it has on the 
public systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Newport City Council wishes to confirm that it intends to continue to 

assess SDC charges in accordance with its duly adopted SDC methodology, including in 
circumstances where commercial buildings are converted to residential use. 

 
THE CITY OF NEWPORT RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 
The Newport City Council hereby declares that it is the City’s specific policy to apply its 

System Development Charge Methodology, last amended in 2017, to all new development 

or redevelopment, including commercial to residential conversions, that impact the City’s 

water, wastewater, transportation, storm drainage, and parks public systems. 

 

339



 

 

 Res. No. 4001 –Application of SDC Charges to the Conversion of Commercial Buildings to Residential Use 2 
 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Newport this 4th day of December, 2023. 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Jan Kaplan, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Erik Glover, City Recorder 

340



82nd OREGON LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY--2023 Regular Session

Enrolled

House Bill 2984
Sponsored by Representative MARSH; Representatives ANDERSEN, DEXTER, FAHEY, HELM,

MCLAIN, Senators ANDERSON, DEMBROW, GOLDEN, JAMA, PATTERSON (Presession
filed.)

CHAPTER .................................................

AN ACT

Relating to housing; amending ORS 197.308.

Be It Enacted by the People of the State of Oregon:

SECTION 1. ORS 197.308, as amended by section 4, chapter 47, Oregon Laws 2022, is amended

to read:

197.308. (1) As used in this section[,]:

(a) “Affordable housing” means residential property:

[(a)] (A) In which:

[(A)] (i) Each unit on the property is made available to own or rent to families with incomes

of 80 percent or less of the area median income [as determined by the Oregon Housing Stability

Council based on information from the United States Department of Housing and Urban

Development]; or

[(B)] (ii) The average of all units on the property is made available to families with incomes of

60 percent or less of the area median income; and

[(b)] (B) Whose affordability [is enforceable], including affordability under a covenant as de-

scribed in ORS 456.270 to 456.295, is enforceable for a duration of no less than 30 years.

(b) “Area median income” means the median income for the metropolitan statistical area

in which housing is located as determined by the Housing and Community Services Depart-

ment and adjusted for household size based on information from the United States Depart-

ment of Housing and Urban Development.

(2) A local government shall allow affordable housing[, and may not require a zone change or

conditional use permit for affordable housing,] if the proposed affordable housing is on property that

is:

(a) Owned by:

(A) A public body, as defined in ORS 174.109; or

(B) A nonprofit corporation that is organized as a religious corporation; or

(b) Zoned:

(A) For commercial uses;

(B) To allow religious assembly; or

(C) As public lands.

(3) A local government shall allow the conversion of a building or a portion of a building

from a commercial use to a residential use.

[(3)] (4) [Subsection (2)] Subsections (2) and (3) of this section:

Enrolled House Bill 2984 (HB 2984-B) Page 1

341



[(a) Does not apply to the development of housing not within an urban growth boundary.]

(a) Prohibit the local government from requiring a zone change or conditional use permit

before allowing the use.

(b) [Does] Do not trigger any requirement that a local government consider or update an anal-

ysis as required by a statewide planning goal relating to economic development.

[(c) Applies on property zoned to allow for industrial uses only if the property is:]

[(A) Publicly owned;]

[(B) Adjacent to lands zoned for residential uses or schools; and]

[(C) Not specifically designated for heavy industrial uses.]

[(d)] (c) [Does] Do not apply on lands where the local government determines that:

(A) The development on the property cannot be adequately served by water, sewer, storm water

drainage or streets, or will not be adequately served at the time that development on the lot is

complete;

(B) The property contains a slope of 25 percent or greater;

(C) The property is within a 100-year floodplain; or

(D) The development of the property is constrained by land use regulations based on statewide

land use planning goals relating to:

(i) Natural disasters and hazards; or

(ii) Natural resources, including air, water, land or natural areas, but not including open spaces

or historic resources.

(5) The development of housing under subsection (2) of this section may occur only:

(a) Within an urban growth boundary; and

(b) On lands zoned to allow for industrial uses only if the property is:

(A) Publicly owned;

(B) Adjacent to lands zoned for residential uses or schools; and

(C) Not specifically designated for heavy industrial uses.

(6) The development of housing under subsection (3) of this section:

(a) Applies only within an urban growth boundary of a city with a population of 10,000

or greater;

(b) May not occur on lands zoned to allow industrial uses;

(c) May require the payment of a system development charge as defined in ORS 223.299

only if:

(A) The charge is calculated pursuant to a specific adopted policy for commercial to

residential conversions adopted on or before December 31, 2023; or

(B) The charge is for water or wastewater and includes an offset for at least 100 percent

of the water or wastewater system development charges paid when the building was ori-

ginally constructed; and

(d) May not be subject to enforcement of any land use regulation that establishes a

minimum number of parking spaces that is greater than the lesser of:

(A) The amount that may be required for the existing commercial use; or

(B) The amount that may be required in lands zoned for residential uses that would allow

the converted development.

[(4)] (7) A local government shall approve an application at an authorized density level and

authorized height level, as defined in ORS 227.175 (4), for the development of affordable housing, at

the greater of:

(a) Any local density bonus for affordable housing; or

(b) Without consideration of any local density bonus for affordable housing:

(A) For property with existing maximum density of 16 or fewer units per acre, 200 percent of

the existing density and 12 additional feet;

(B) For property with existing maximum density of 17 or more units per acre and 45 or fewer

units per acre, 150 percent of the existing density and 24 additional feet; or

Enrolled House Bill 2984 (HB 2984-B) Page 2

342



(C) For property with existing maximum density of 46 or more units per acre, 125 percent of the

existing density and 36 additional feet.

[(5)(a)] (8)(a) Subsection [(4)] (7) of this section does not apply to housing allowed under sub-

section (2) of this section in areas that are not zoned for residential uses.

(b) A local government may reduce the density or height of the density bonus allowed under

subsection [(4)] (7) of this section as necessary to address a health, safety or habitability issue, in-

cluding fire safety, or to comply with a protective measure adopted pursuant to a statewide land

use planning goal. Notwithstanding ORS 197.350, the local government must adopt findings sup-

ported by substantial evidence demonstrating the necessity of this reduction.

SECTION 1a. If House Bill 3442 becomes law, section 1 of this 2023 Act (amending ORS

197.308) is repealed and ORS 197.308, as amended by section 4, chapter 47, Oregon Laws 2022,

and section 1, chapter ___, Oregon Laws 2023 (Enrolled House Bill 3442), is amended to read:

197.308. (1) As used in this section[,]:

(a) “Affordable housing” means residential property:

[(a)] (A) In which:

[(A)] (i) Each unit on the property is made available to own or rent to families with incomes

of 80 percent or less of the area median income [as determined by the Oregon Housing Stability

Council based on information from the United States Department of Housing and Urban

Development]; or

[(B)] (ii) The average of all units on the property is made available to families with incomes of

60 percent or less of the area median income; and

[(b)] (B) Whose affordability [is enforceable], including affordability under a covenant as de-

scribed in ORS 456.270 to 456.295, is enforceable for a duration of no less than 30 years.

(b) “Area median income” means the median income for the metropolitan statistical area

in which housing is located as determined by the Housing and Community Services Depart-

ment and adjusted for household size based on information from the United States Depart-

ment of Housing and Urban Development.

(2) A local government shall allow affordable housing[, and may not require a zone change or

conditional use permit for affordable housing,] if the proposed affordable housing is on property that

is:

(a) Owned by:

(A) A public body, as defined in ORS 174.109; or

(B) A nonprofit corporation that is organized as a religious corporation; or

(b) Zoned:

(A) For commercial uses;

(B) To allow religious assembly; or

(C) As public lands.

(3) A local government shall allow the conversion of a building or a portion of a building

from a commercial use to a residential use.

[(3)] (4) [Subsection (2)] Subsections (2) and (3) of this section:

[(a) Does not apply to the development of housing not within an urban growth boundary.]

(a) Prohibit the local government from requiring a zone change or conditional use permit

before allowing the use.

(b) [Does] Do not trigger any requirement that a local government consider or update an anal-

ysis as required by a statewide planning goal relating to economic development.

[(c) Applies on property zoned to allow for industrial uses only if the property is:]

[(A) Publicly owned;]

[(B) Adjacent to lands zoned for residential uses or schools; and]

[(C) Not specifically designated for heavy industrial uses.]

[(d)] (c) Except as provided in paragraph [(e)] (d) of this subsection, [does] do not apply on lands

where the local government determines that:

Enrolled House Bill 2984 (HB 2984-B) Page 3

343



(A) The development on the property cannot be adequately served by water, sewer, storm water

drainage or streets, or will not be adequately served at the time that development on the lot is

complete;

(B) The property contains a slope of 25 percent or greater;

(C) The property is within a 100-year floodplain; or

(D) The development of the property is constrained by land use regulations based on statewide

land use planning goals relating to:

(i) Natural disasters and hazards; or

(ii) Natural resources, including air, water, land or natural areas, but not including open spaces

or historic resources.

[(e)] (d) [Does] Do apply to property described in paragraph [(d)(C)] (c)(C) and (D)(i) of this

subsection if more than 60 percent of the lands within the urban growth boundary that the property

is within are located within a tsunami inundation zone or if more than 30 percent of the lands within

the urban growth boundary that the property is within are located within a 100-year floodplain.

(5) The development of housing under subsection (2) of this section may occur only:

(a) Within an urban growth boundary; and

(b) On lands zoned to allow for industrial uses only if the property is:

(A) Publicly owned;

(B) Adjacent to lands zoned for residential uses or schools; and

(C) Not specifically designated for heavy industrial uses.

(6) The development of housing under subsection (3) of this section:

(a) Applies only within an urban growth boundary of a city with a population of 10,000

or greater;

(b) May not occur on lands zoned to allow industrial uses;

(c) May require the payment of a system development charge as defined in ORS 223.299

only if:

(A) The charge is calculated pursuant to a specific adopted policy for commercial to

residential conversions adopted on or before December 31, 2023; or

(B) The charge is for water or wastewater and includes an offset for at least 100 percent

of the water or wastewater system development charges paid when the building was ori-

ginally constructed; and

(d) May not be subject to enforcement of any land use regulation that establishes a

minimum number of parking spaces that is greater than the lesser of:

(A) The amount that may be required for the existing commercial use; or

(B) The amount that may be required in lands zoned for residential uses that would allow

the converted development.

[(4)] (7) The development of housing allowed under subsection [(3)(e)] (4)(d) of this section may

only occur:

(a) Within an urban growth boundary located no more than 10 miles from the Pacific Ocean;

(b) In areas that require compliance with minimum federal regulations under the National Flood

Insurance Program or with local floodplain development regulations adopted by the applicable local

government, provided that the local regulations are equal to or more stringent than the minimum

federal regulations;

(c) In locations that do not include floodways or other areas with higher risks of greater water

velocity and debris flow;

(d) In communities with emergency response, evacuation and post-disaster plans that have been

updated for the housing development; and

(e) In areas that are not public parks.

[(5)] (8) A local government may prohibit affordable housing or require a zone change or con-

ditional use permit to develop affordable housing in areas described in subsection [(3)(e)] (4)(d) of

this section.

Enrolled House Bill 2984 (HB 2984-B) Page 4

344

d.tokos
Highlight



[(6)] (9) A local government shall approve an application at an authorized density level and

authorized height level, as defined in ORS 227.175 (4), for the development of affordable housing, at

the greater of:

(a) Any local density bonus for affordable housing; or

(b) Without consideration of any local density bonus for affordable housing:

(A) For property with existing maximum density of 16 or fewer units per acre, 200 percent of

the existing density and 12 additional feet;

(B) For property with existing maximum density of 17 or more units per acre and 45 or fewer

units per acre, 150 percent of the existing density and 24 additional feet; or

(C) For property with existing maximum density of 46 or more units per acre, 125 percent of the

existing density and 36 additional feet.

[(7)(a)] (10)(a) Subsection [(6)] (9) of this section does not apply to housing allowed under sub-

section (2) of this section in areas that are not zoned for residential uses.

(b) A local government may reduce the density or height of the density bonus allowed under

subsection [(6)] (9) of this section as necessary to address a health, safety or habitability issue, in-

cluding fire safety, or to comply with a protective measure adopted pursuant to a statewide land

use planning goal. Notwithstanding ORS 197.350, the local government must adopt findings sup-

ported by substantial evidence demonstrating the necessity of this reduction.

Passed by House March 28, 2023

Repassed by House June 23, 2023

..................................................................................

Timothy G. Sekerak, Chief Clerk of House

..................................................................................

Dan Rayfield, Speaker of House

Passed by Senate June 21, 2023

..................................................................................

Rob Wagner, President of Senate

Received by Governor:

........................M.,........................................................., 2023

Approved:

........................M.,........................................................., 2023

..................................................................................

Tina Kotek, Governor

Filed in Office of Secretary of State:

........................M.,........................................................., 2023

..................................................................................

Secretary of State

Enrolled House Bill 2984 (HB 2984-B) Page 5

345



Page 1 of 15 

CHAPTER 12.15 SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 
 

12.15.005  Purpose 
 
This chapter is intended to authorize system development 
charges (“SDCs”) to impose a portion of the cost of capital 
improvements for water, wastewater, storm drainage, 
transportation, and parks on developments and 
redevelopments that create the need for or increase the 
demands on capital improvements, consistent with state law. 
The provisions of this chapter are to be interpreted consistent 
with state law. 
 

12.15.010 Scope and Interpretation 
 
The SDCs authorized by this ordinance are separate from and 
in addition to any applicable tax, assessment, charge, or fee. 
SDCs are not taxes on property or on a property owner as a 
direct consequence of ownership of property within the 
meaning of Article XI Section 11B, of the Oregon Constitution 
or the legislation implementing that section and are not 
subject to the limitations imposed by that section.  
 

12.15.015 Definitions 
 
The following definitions apply in this chapter. 
 
A. Applicant means the person who applies for a residential, 

commercial, industrial, or other connection to the city’s 
water supply system or sanitary sewer system and/or who 
develops property within the city or within the city’s Urban 
Growth Boundary.  

 
B. Building means any structure, either temporary or 

permanent, built for the support, shelter, or enclosure of 
persons or property of any kind and for any public, 
commercial, industrial, or other use. This term shall not 
include temporary construction sheds or trailers erected to 
assist in construction and maintenance during the term of 
a building permit.  

 
C. Capital Improvements means public facilities or assets 

used for: 
 

1. Wastewater collection, transmission, treatment and 
disposal, or any combination. 

346



Page 2 of 15 

2. Water supply, treatment, distribution, storage, 
metering, fire protection, or any combination. 

 
 3. Drainage and flood control. 
 

4. Transportation facilities including vehicle and 
pedestrian. 

 
 5. Parks and recreation. 
 
D. Development means any construction of improvements on 

a site, including buildings, other structures, parking and 
loading areas, landscaping, paved or graveled areas, and 
water and sewer fixtures. Development includes 
redevelopment of property requiring a building permit. 
Development includes improved open areas such as 
plazas and walkways. 

 
E. Equivalent Dwelling Unit or EDU means the base element 

of the formula by which systems development charge rates 
are determined for various buildings or developments.  

 
F. Owner means the owner or owners of record title or the 

purchaser(s) under a recorded land sales agreement, and 
other persons having an interest of record in the described 
real property. 

 
G. Permittee means the person to whom a building permit, 

development permit, a permit or plan approval to connect 
to the sewer system, or right-of-way access permit is 
issued. 

 
H. Qualified Public Improvement means a capital 

improvement that is: 
 
 1. Required as a condition of development approval; 
 
 2. Included in an adopted SDC project list and: 
 

a. Not located on or contiguous to a parcel of land this 
is the subject of the development approval; or 

 
b. Located in whole or in part on or contiguous to 

property that is the subject of development approval 
and required to be built larger or with greater 
capacity than is necessary for the particular 

347



Page 3 of 15 

development project to which the improvement fee 
is related. 

 
For the purposes of this definition, “contiguous” includes 
improvements within a right of way that abuts the parcel. 
 

12.15.020 System Development Charged Imposed; Method for Establishment 
 
A. The amount of system development charges may be set 

and revised by resolution of the City Council. Any 
resolutions setting or amending the amount of any SDC 
shall state the amount of the charge and the methodology 
used to set the amount of the charge.  

 
B. Unless otherwise exempted, SDCs for water, wastewater, 

storm water, transportation and parks are imposed on all 
development within the city, on all development outside 
the city that connects to the water and/or sewer facilities of 
the city, and on all other development which increases the 
usage of the water and/or sewer system or that contributes 
to the need for additional or enlarged capital 
improvements. This shall include new construction and the 
alteration, expansion or replacement of a building or 
development if such alteration, expansion or replacement 
results in a change in any of the components of the formula 
for determining the amount of SDCs to be paid. For 
redevelopment, the amount of the SDC to be paid shall be 
the difference between the rate for the proposed 
redevelopment and the rate that would be applicable to the 
existing development.  

 

12.15.025 Methodology 
 
A. The methodology used to establish or modify a 

reimbursement fee shall be based on the cost of then-
existing facilities including without limitation, design, 
financing and construction costs; prior contributions by 
then-existing users; gifts or grants; the value of unused 
capacity available to future system users, rate-making 
principles employed to finance publicly owned capital 
improvements; and other relevant factors identified by the 
City Council. The methodology shall promote the objective 
that future systems users shall contribute an equitable 
share of the cost of then-existing facilities. 

 
B. The methodology used to establish or modify the 

improvement fee shall consider the cost of projected 

348



Page 4 of 15 

capital improvements needed to increase the capacity of 
the systems to which the fee is related and other relevant 
factors identified by the Council. The methodology shall be 
calculated to obtain the cost of capital improvements for 
the projected need for available system capacity for future 
users. 

 
C. The methodology used to establish or modify improvement 

fees or reimbursement fees, or both, shall be adopted and 
may be amended by Council resolution. 

 

12.15.030 Authorized Expenditures 
 
A. Reimbursement fees shall be applied only to capital 

improvements associated with the system for which the 
fees are assessed, including expenditures relating to 
repayment of debt for such improvements.  

 
B. Improvement fees shall be spent only on capacity 

increasing capital improvements associated with the 
system for which the fees are assessed, including 
expenditures relating to repayment of indebtedness. An 
increase in system capacity occurs if a capital 
improvement increases the level of performance or service 
provided by existing facilities or providing new facilities. 
The portion of the capital improvements funded by 
improvement fees must be related to demands created by 
current or projected development.  

 
C. SDC proceeds may be expended only on projects 

identified in the SDC capital improvement project list or on 
the direct costs of complying with the provisions of this 
chapter, including the costs of developing SDC 
methodologies, system planning, providing an annual 
accounting of SDC expenditures and other costs directly 
related to or required for the administration and operation 
of this SDC program. 

 

12.15.035 Expenditure Restrictions 
 
A. SDCs shall not be expended for costs associated with the 

construction of administrative office facilities that are more 
than an incidental part of other capital improvements. 

 
B. SDCs shall not be expended for costs of the operation or 

routine maintenance of capital improvements. 
 

349



Page 5 of 15 

12.15.040 SDC Projects Plan 
 
A. The Council shall adopt and may amend by resolution an 

SDC Projects Plan for each type of SDC that lists: 
 

1. The capital improvements that the city intends to fund 
in whole or in part with the improvement fee revenues; 
and 

 
2. The estimated cost of each improvement and the 

percentage of that cost eligible to be funded with 
improvement fee revenues. 

 
B. In adopting the SDC Projects Plan, the city may 

incorporate by reference all or a portion of any public 
facilities plan, master plan, capital improvements plan or 
similar plan that contains the information required by this 
section. 

 
C. If the amount of SDC charges will be increased by a 

proposed modification to the SDC Projects Plan, the city 
shall:  

 
1. Provide at least 30 days’ notice prior to adopting the 

modification to those who have requested notice; and 
 

2. Hold a public hearing if a written request for a hearing 
is received at least seven days prior to the date 
scheduled for adoption of the proposed modification. 

 

12.15.045 Adoption or Amendment of Methodology 
 
A. The Council shall hold a public hearing prior to adopting or 

amending the methodology on which any SDC is based. 
 
B. The Council shall provide written notice to persons who 

have requested notice of any adoption or modification of 
SDC methodology at least 90 days before the hearing. If 
no one has requested notice, the city shall publish notice 
in a newspaper of general circulation in the city at least 90 
days before the hearing. 

 
C. The revised methodology shall be available to the public 

at least 60 days before the first public hearing of the 
adoption or amendment of the methodology. The failure of 
a person on the list to receive a notice that was mailed 
does not invalidate the action of the city. If the city fails to 

350



Page 6 of 15 

provide sufficient notice, it can cure the defect by issuing a 
new notice and holding a new hearing. The city may 
consider comments submitted at improperly noticed 
hearings. 

 
D. A change in the amount of a reimbursement fee or an 

improvement fee is not a modification of the SDC 
methodology if the change is based on a change in project 
costs, including cost of materials, labor and real property, 
or on a provision for a periodic adjustment included in the 
methodology or adopted by separate ordinance or 
resolution, consistent with state law.  

 
E. A change in the amount of an improvement fee is not a 

modification of the SDC methodology if the change is the 
result of a change in the SDC Projects List adopted in 
accord with this chapter.  

 

12.15.050 Collection of Charge 
 
A. The SDC is payable on: 
 

1. Issuance of a building permit or any construction 
activity for which a building permit is required but not 
obtained. 

 
2. Issuance of a development permit or approval for 

development not requiring the issuance of a building 
permit. A permit or approval to connect to the water 
and/or sewer system; 

 
3. Issuance of a permit to connect to the water system or 

actual connection to the water system if a permit is not 
obtained. 

 
4. Issuance of a permit to connect to the sewer system or 

actual connection to the sewer system if a permit is not 
obtained. 

 
B. SDCs are payable only for those types of improvements 

affected by the development, permit or connection. For 
example, a permit to connect an existing structure to the 
sewer system does not necessarily trigger an obligation to 
pay Parks, Transportation, Water or Stormwater SDCs. 

 
C. The amount of SDC payable shall be established by 

resolution relying on an approved methodology and SDC 

351



Page 7 of 15 

project plan. The SDC project plan, methodology and 
amount of charge may be adopted in a single resolution, 
and more than one type of SDC (water, sewer, storm, 
transportation and park) can be included in a single 
resolution. 

 
D. No permit listed in Subsection A. may be issued unless 

applicable SDCs have been paid or an agreement entered 
to pay over time as allowed by this chapter.  

 

12.15.055 Installment Payments 
 
A. The owner of the parcel of land subject to a systems 

development charge may apply for payment in twenty 20 
semi-annual installments, to include interest on the unpaid 
balance, in accordance with state law. A shorter payment 
plan is acceptable if approved by the city. The parcel of 
land shall be subject to a lien for the unpaid balance. 

 
B. The city manager shall provide application forms for 

installment payments which shall include a waiver of all 
rights to contest the validity of the lien, except for the 
correction of computational errors. 

 
C. An applicant for installment payment shall have the burden 

of demonstrating the applicant’s authority to assent to the 
imposition of a lien on the parcel and that the property 
interest of the applicant is adequate to secure payment of 
the lien. 

 
D. The city manager shall docket the lien in the city’s lien 

docket. From that time the city shall have a lien upon the 
described parcel for the unpaid balance, together with 
interest on the unpaid balance. The lien shall be 
enforceable in any manner authorized or permitted by 
state law.  

 

12.15.060 Exemptions 
 
A. The following actions are exempt from payment of SDCs:  

 

1. Additions to multi-family and other dwelling units that 
 are assessed SDCs on an Equivalent Dwelling Unit 
 basis, provided the addition does not result in a new 
 dwelling unit. 
 

2. An alteration, addition, replacement, change in use or permit 
or connection that does not increase the parcel’s or 

352



Page 8 of 15 

structure’s use of a public improvement system is exempt 
from payment for the SDC payment applicable to that type of 
improvement. Some redevelopment may be subject to some 
types of SDCs and not to others. 

 

3. Temporary and seasonal uses, including special events, 
mobile food units (other than pods), and patio or deck seating 
associated with eating or drinking establishments. 

 
 (Chapter 12.15.060(A) was amended by Ordinance No. 2187, adopted on 

September 7, 2021; effective October 7, 2021.) 

 
B. If all SDCs were paid at the time of the first action that 

triggered the obligation to pay, no additional payment is 
required at the time of other actions that would trigger the 
obligation to pay, even if the amount payable has increased, 
unless there has been a change in the design or use that 
would affect the amount payable. 

 

12.15.065  Credits  
 
A. When a development occurs that is subject to SDCs, the 

SDC for the existing use(s), if applicable, shall be calculated 
and if it is less than the SDC for the use that will result from 
the development, the difference between the SDC for the 
existing use and the SDC for the proposed use shall be the 
SDC that is assessed.  If the change in the use results in the 
SDC for the proposed use being less than the SDC for the 
existing use, no SDC shall be required; however, no refund 
or credit shall be given.   

1. For the purpose of this section, “existing use” is any use 
or structure on a property within the last 10 years.  If 
more than one use or structure was on a property within 
this timeframe than the existing use shall be that which 
placed the greatest demand on the capital system during 
this period of time. 

2. Credits shall not be transferable from one development 
to another, except as provided in NMC 
12.15.065(D)(6).* 

3. Credits shall not be transferable from one type of 
capital improvement to another. 

Examples:  
 

353



Page 9 of 15 

 SDCs had been paid for three dwelling units on a property 
and the property is redeveloped with five dwelling units. A 
credit for three dwelling units’ worth of SDCs will be 
provided, so the amount payable would be the amount for 
two dwelling units.  

 
 SDCs had been paid for two dwelling units and the 

property is redeveloped with a large retail use, with both 
residential units eliminated. The SDCs would be the 
difference between the SDCs payable for the new 
commercial structure and use and the SDCs that would be 
charged for two dwelling units. 

 
 SDCs were paid based on restaurant use, but then the 

property was converted to another retail use with lower 
SDCs. The property is then reconverted back to restaurant 
use within 10 years of the date a restaurant was last 
operating, using exactly the same configuration as the 
original restaurant. At the time of the conversion to retail 
use, no SDCs are payable, because the amount payable 
is less than the credit. The credit for restaurant use 
remains with the property, so at the time of reconversion 
to restaurant use, no additional SDCs are payable, 
because the credit remained in effect and the credit for the 
original use is exactly the same as the amount that is 
owed, so no payment is required, even if the SDC rates 
have increased in the interim. 
 

B. For credit certificates issued under prior SDC ordinances, 
such credits are to be used by the deadline specified in the 
ordinance in effect on the date they were issued. 
Certificates issued without a deadline shall automatically 
terminate if not used by December 31, 2020. 

 
C. Notwithstanding subsection (A), credit given against storm 

drainage SDC assessments for existing use(s) shall be 
limited to circumstances where SDCs were previously paid 
or the impervious surfaces existed as of January 1, 2008. 
A credit may be provided for new development that 
incorporates improvements designed to reduce the impact 
of runoff on the storm drainage system (e.g. cisterns, 
detention facilities, pervious surface technology, etc.). In 
each case, the city will review the proposed mitigation 
measures and determine an appropriate storm drainage 
SDC credit for impervious surface reduction. 

 

354



Page 10 of 15 

D. A credit of the improvement fee portion of the SDC only 
shall be given to the permittee against the cost of the SDC 
charged, for the cost of a qualified public improvement 
incurred by the permittee, upon acceptance by the city of 
the public improvement. The credit shall not exceed the 
amount of the improvement fee even if the cost of the 
capital improvement exceeds the improvement fee. 

 
1. If a qualified public improvement is located in whole or 

in part on or contiguous to the property that is the 
subject of the development approval and is required to 
be built larger or with greater capacity than is 
necessary for the particular development project, a 
credit shall be given for the cost of the portion of the 
improvement that exceeds the city’s minimum standard 
facility size or capacity needed to serve the particular 
development project or property. The applicant shall 
have the burden of demonstrating that a particular 
improvement qualifies for credit under this subsection. 
The request shall be filed in writing no later than 60 
days after acceptance of the improvement by the city. 
The city may deny the credit provided for in this section 
if the city demonstrates that the application does not 
meet the requirements of this section or if the 
improvement for which credit is sought is not included 
in the SDC Project List.  

 
2. When construction of a qualified public improvement 

located in whole or in part or contiguous to the property 
that is the subject of development approval  gives 
rise to a credit amount greater than the improvement 
fee that would otherwise be levied against the project, 
the credit in excess of the improvement fee for the 
original development project may be applied against 
improvement fees that accrue in subsequent phases of 
the original development project or otherwise imposed 
on the same property. 

 
3. Credits for qualified public improvements may be used 

for future phases of development, redevelopment, a 
change in use of the property, or transferred to another 
property as provided in NMC 12.15.065(D)(6).*  

 
1. Credit for qualified public improvements shall not be 

transferable from one type of capital improvement to 
another. 

 

355



Page 11 of 15 

2. Credits for qualified public improvements shall be used 
within 10 years from the date the credit was given. 

 
3. Credits for qualified public improvements may be 

transferred from one property to another within the 10 
year period the credits are valid if (a) the receiving 
property is being developed with a residential use and 
(b) the amount of credit transferred is less than or equal 
to 50% of the total SDC assessment that would 
otherwise be payable.* 
 

4. If the public improvement for which a credit is sought is 
not on the SDC Project List, the applicant may submit 
an application for both the credit and for the placement 
of the improvement on the SDC project list. If the city 
manager determines that the project is of a type and 
location that is appropriate for inclusion, the project 
shall be added to the SDC Project List and a credit may 
be given, but the additional of the project shall not 
change the SDC amount payable by others. 
 

5. The City Council shall conduct a public hearing no later 
than August 21, 2023, to evaluate the impact of 
transferred SDC credits on the City’s ability to fund 
qualified public improvements and determine if 
changes should be made to provisions of this section 
related to the transfer of SDC credits.* 

 
D. The extent of the property to be considered in computing 

and allocating credits shall be stated by the applicant, and 
the applicant must have written authorization from the 
property owner(s). If properties under different ownership 
are developed together, the city may require the applicants 
to specify where any credits for the provision of capital 
improvements may be used and under which 
circumstances. Two or more contiguous properties may 
pool existing SDC credit rights as part of a common 
scheme for redevelopment of the contiguous properties. 

 
E. For all credits under any portion of this section, the 

property owner is responsible for providing the facts 
justifying a credit. 

 

12.15.070 Notice 
 
A. The city shall maintain a list of persons who have made a 

written request for notification prior to adoption or 

356



Page 12 of 15 

modification of a methodology for any SDC. Written notice 
shall be mailed to persons as provided in this chapter. The 
failure of a person on the list to receive notice that was 
mailed does not invalidate the action of the city. 

 
B. The city may periodically delete names from the list, but at 

least 30 days prior to removing a name from the list, the 
city must notify the person whose name is to be deleted 
that a new written request for notification is required if the 
person wishes to remain on the notification list. 

 

12.15.075 Segregation and Use of Revenue  
 
A. All funds derived from an SDC are to be segregated by 

accounting practices from all other funds of the city. That 
portion of the SDC calculated and collected on account of 
a specific facility system shall be used for no purpose other 
than those set forth allowed in this chapter. 

 
B. The city manager shall provide the City Council with an 

annual accounting, based on the city’s fiscal year, for 
SDCs showing the total amount of SDC revenues 
collected for each type of facility and the projects funded 
from each account in the previous fiscal year. A list of the 
amounts spent on each project funded in whole or in part 
with SDC revenues shall be included in the annual 
accounting. 

 
C. The moneys deposited into the SDC account shall be used 

solely as allowed by this chapter and state law, including, 
but not limited to: 

 
 1. Design and construction plan preparation; 
 
 2. Permitting and fees; 
 

3. Land and materials acquisition, including any cost of 
acquisition or condemnation, including financing, legal 
and other costs; 

 
 4. Construction of capital improvements; 
 

5. Design and construction of new water facilities required 
by the construction of capital improvements and 
structures; 

 

357



Page 13 of 15 

6. Relocating utilities required by the construction of 
improvements; 

 
 7. Landscaping; 
 
 8. Construction management and inspection; 
 
 9. Surveys, soils, and material testing; 
 
 10. Acquisition of capital equipment; 
 

11. Repayment of moneys transferred or borrowed from 
any budgetary fund of the city which were used to fund 
any of the capital improvements as herein provided; 

 
12. Payment of principal and interest, necessary reserves 

and cost of issuance under bonds or other 
indebtedness issued by the city to fund capital 
improvements. 

 

12.15.080 Refunds 
 
A. Refunds may be given by the city upon finding that there 

was a clerical error in the calculation of the SDC. 
 
B. Refunds shall not be allowed if the applicant fails to timely 

claim a credit or fails to timely seek an alternative SDC rate 
calculation.  

 
C. Refunds may be given on application of a permittee if the 

development did not occur and the all permits for the 
development have been withdrawn. 

 

12.15.085 Appeal Procedure 
 
A. A person challenging the propriety of an expenditure of 

SDC revenues may appeal the decision of the expenditure 
to the City Council by filing a written request with the city 
manager describing with particularity the decision and the 
expenditure from which the person appeals. An appeal of 
the expenditure must be filed within two years of the date 
of the alleged improper expenditure. 

 
B. Appeals of any other decision required or permitted to be 

made by the city manager under this ordinance must be 
filed in writing with the city manager within 10 days of the 
decision. 

358



Page 14 of 15 

 
C. After providing notice to the appellant, the City Council 

shall determine whether the city manager’s decision or the 
expenditure is in accordance with this ordinance and state 
law. The Council may affirm, modify, or overrule the 
decision. If the Council determines that there has been an 
improper expenditure of SDC revenues, the Council shall 
direct that a sum equal to the misspent amount shall be 
deposited within one year to the credit of the account or 
fund from which it was spent. The decision of the Council 
shall be reviewed only by writ or review.  

 
D. A legal action challenging the methodology adopted by the 

City Council shall not be filed later than 60 days after 
adoption and shall use the writ of review process.  

 

12.15.090 Prohibited Connection 
 
No person may connect to the water or sewer system of the 
city or obtain a building permit unless the appropriate SDCs 
have been paid, or the installment payment method has been 
applied for and approved. 
 

12.15.095  Severability 
 
The provisions of this ordinance are severable, and it is the 
intention to confer the whole or any part of the powers herein 
provided for. If any clause, section, or provision of this 
ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional or invalid for any 
reason or cause, the remaining portion of this ordinance shall 
be in full force and effect and be valid as is such invalid portion 
thereof had not been included. It is the City Council’s intent 
that this chapter would have been adopted if the 
unconstitutional provision not been included. 
 

12.15.100 Penalty 
 
Violation of this chapter is a civil infraction. 
 
(*Chapter 12.15 was amended by Ordinance No. 2135, adopted on July 16, 2018; 
effective August 15, 2018.)  
(Chapter 12.15 was amended by Ordinance No. 2113; adopted on August 7, 2017; 
effective September 6, 2017.) 

 
  

359



Page 15 of 15 

 

360



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: December 4, 2023 
Agenda Item:   
Consideration of Adoption of Order Number 2023–2, an Order Acknowledging the 
Withdrawal of Conditional Use Permit Application No. 7CUP-21 for the Lincoln County 
Animal Shelter.  
 
Background: 
As you are aware, the Newport Planning Commission approved a conditional use permit 
application from Lincoln County to construct an animal shelter on a five-acre site at the 
Newport Municipal Airport. This item was appealed to the City Council and then to the 
Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) by Dan McCrea who is a hanger owner at the 
airport. Both Mr. McCrae and Lincoln County stipulated to suspend the appeal while 
Lincoln County searched for alternate location for the animal shelter. Lincoln County has 
formally requested withdrawal of the conditional use permit application since they have 
identified an alternate site for the animal shelter in Waldport. In order to close out this 
appeal, it is appropriate for the City Council to adopt an order acknowledging withdrawal 
of the Lincoln County conditional use permit to construct an animal shelter at the Newport 
Municipal Airport.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to adopt order number 2023–2, an order acknowledging the withdrawal of Lincoln 
County’s conditional use permit application to construct an animal shelter at the Newport 
Municipal Airport, and that no further action will be taken on this matter.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None.  
 
Alternatives:  
Modify the order, or as suggested by the City Council. 
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 

361



 

Page 1 of 1 

       
       

   
 
             
   
          Date:  December 4, 2023 

 
 
Title: Final Order Acknowledging Lincoln County’s Withdrawal of Conditional Use Permit 
Application No. 7-CUP-21 for the Lincoln County Animal Shelter 
 
Prepared by: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Director    
 
Recommended Motion:  I move to adopt Order No. 2023-2, an order acknowledging the 
withdrawal of Lincoln County’s conditional use permit application to construct an animal 
shelter at the Newport Municipal Airport, and that no further action will be taken in this 
matter. 
 
Background Information:  The Newport City Council, by Order No. 2022-1 on April 18, 
2022 (File No. 7-CUP-21), affirmed the Newport Planning Commission’s decision to 
approve a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application from Lincoln County to construct a 
12,000+/- sq. ft. animal shelter and 10,000+/- sq. ft. of storage on a 5-acre site at the 
Newport Municipal Airport.  The City’s decision to approve the CUP application was 
appealed to the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) by Dan McCrea who owns a 
hangar at the airport.  The parties then stipulated to suspend the appeal while Lincoln 
County searched for an alternative location for the animal shelter.  After the County 
secured a new site for the animal shelter, the parties stipulated to a voluntary remand, 
which LUBA ordered on September 27, 2023.  Pursuant to the stipulation for voluntary 
remand, Lincoln County has formally requested withdrawal of its CUP application.  This 
final order is needed to bring the matter to closure.  Copies of the June 30, 2023 stipulation 
to suspend the appeal and October 20, 2023 request by Lincoln County to withdraw the 
conditional use permit application are enclosed with the draft order. LUBA’s final order 
remanding the City’s decision so that the permit application could be withdrawn is also 
enclosed. 
 
Fiscal Notes:  There are no fiscal impacts associated with this agenda item. 
 
Alternatives:  Adopt the final order, request modifications to the order, or as suggested by 
Council. 
 
Attachments:   
Draft Final Order 2023-2 with attachments 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

362



 

 

 Order No. 2023-2 - Withdrawal of Conditional Use Permit Application (File No. 7-CUP-21) 1 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEWPORT, 
COUNTY OF LINCOLN, STATE OF OREGON 

 
In the Matter of: 
 
WITHDRAWAL OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION ) ORDER NO. 
(FILE NO. 7-CUP-21)              ) 2023-2 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
WHEREAS: 

 
 A. The Newport City Council, by Order No. 2022-1 on April 18, 2022 (File No. 7-
CUP-21), affirmed the Newport Planning Commission’s decision to approve a conditional 
use permit (CUP) application from Lincoln County to construct a 12,000+/- sq. ft. animal 
shelter and 10,000+/- sq. ft. of storage on a 5-acre site at the Newport Municipal Airport; 
and 
 
 B. Order No. 2022-1 was appealed to the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals 
(LUBA) in LUBA No. 2022-046.  The parties then stipulated to suspend the appeal and 
later stipulated to a voluntary remand, which LUBA ordered on Sept. 27, 2023; and 
 
 C. Pursuant to the stipulation for voluntary remand, Lincoln County has formally 
requested withdrawal of its CUP application (attached are copies of Oct. 20, 2023 and 
June 30, 2023 correspondence with enclosures). 
 
The City of Newport orders as follows: 
 
1. The foregoing recitals are hereby confirmed and adopted in support of this order. 
 
2. The Newport City Council hereby enters this order acknowledging the withdrawal of 
Lincoln County’s conditional use permit application (File No. 7-CUP-21).  No further 
action will be taken in this matter. 
 
So ordered this 4th day of December, 2023. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Jan Kaplan, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Erik Glover, City Recorder 

363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: December 4, 2023 
Agenda Item:   
Report and Appropriation of Funding for Repairs for the Oceanview Drive Slide Under 
Limited Emergency 2023 – 2. 
 
Background: 
On November 1, 2023 a limited emergency declaration was issued to address slide issues 
on Oceanview Drive. Preliminary efforts to stabilize the sanitary sewer line were 
unsuccessful with that sewer line breaking, creating additional settlement in the rock that 
was placed in the slide area. The collapsed piece of pipe was replaced and the sanitary 
sewer line has been operating normally since that time. In order to proceed with the 
balance of repairs to Oceanview Drive, a 24-inch storm pipe that is located in the bottom 
of the canyon will be replaced with approximately 100 linear feet of new 24-inch pipe. The 
new pipe will be placed approximately 10 feet below the surface versus the 27-foot depth 
of the existing pipe. In addition, six-inch rock armoring will be placed on the edge of 
pavement to the bottom of the ravine, over an approximate length of 150 feet to stabilize 
the balance of the road that was impacted by the slide. The existing storm lines(27 feet 
deep) will be abandoned, filling those pipes with flowable low strength concrete, as well 
as filling two existing manholes to create a new bottom where the raised pipes will be 
located. Roads and curb repair will be completed after the new storm pipe is in place. If 
all goes well, the road could be reopened prior to the holiday.  
 
Under the limited emergency, the City Manager has authority to spend up to $250,000 to 
address the work needing repairs or a replacement. The estimated cost of the work 
outlined in this report is $305,000. I am proposing that $147,000 be re-appropriated from 
the Big Creek Bridge Abutment project, and $158,000 be re-appropriated from the Street 
Repair and Improvement Program to address the emergency repairs. If additional funding 
is needed it will come from Street contingency funds.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to re-appropriate $147,000 from the Big Creek Bridge Abutment project (17009) 
and $158,000 from the Street Repair and Improvement Program (25-23010) to address 
necessary repairs to Oceanview Drive under limited emergency declaration 2023-2 and 
authorize the use of contingency funds in the Street Fund if additional funding is 
necessary to complete this work. I authorize the City Manager to proceed with the 
necessary contracts to complete these repairs. 
 
  

371



Fiscal Effects: 
There are sufficient funds in these two projects to complete this work. This may delay 
initiation of those projects until the next fiscal year. In addition, $115,000 is available in 
the Street Fund should there be any cost overruns.  
 
Alternatives:  
None recommended. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 

372



37
3



374



37
5



*At the November 6, 2023 meeting the City Council extended the limited emergency to November 21, 
2023. 
*At the November 20, 2023 meeting the City Council extended the limited emergency to January 3, 2024. 

376



 

 

       
       

   
 
        Meeting Date: December 4, 2023 
       

 
 
Title: Oceanview Drive Slide Repair Update 
 
Prepared by:  Chris Beatty – Acting City Engineer 
  
Recommended Motion: None 
 
Background Information:  
 
The roadway slide on Ocean View Drive occurred in October 2023.  The temporary slide 
repair, consisting of placing rock armoring on the slope in the immediate area of the 
slide along with replacing a damaged sanitary sewer pipe, has been completed. 
 
The permanent repair is underway and consists of the following tasks: 
 

1.  Replacing the 24” storm pipe under Oceanview Drive with approximately 100 
lineal feet of new 24” pipe.  The existing pipe is approximately 27-feet deep, 
perhaps damaged, and has been identified in the Stormwater Master Plan as 
needing repair or replacement.  During our investigation and development of a 
plan to remedy the storm pipe issue, raising the pipe to a depth of approximately 
10-feet was possible.  This could be done by replacing additional approximately 
65 lineal feet of pipe upstream to an existing manhole. (Refer to Attachment C).   
 

2. Initially, the plan was to bore a new pipe underneath Oceanview Drive but it was 
discovered during potholing of existing utilities that there were significant utilities, 
not field marked, where the bore pit needed to be placed.  Open trenching of the 
pipe became the only plausible option.  Construction-Building-Road, LLC (CBR) 
will be performing the storm pipe work. 
 

3. Placing 6” rock armoring from the edge of pavement to the bottom of ravine over 
an approximate length of 150-feet.  This amount to approximately 1,500 cubic 
yards of rock.  This repair will be in accordance to the recommendations from the 
City’s Geotechnical Engineer of Record, Foundation Engineering, Inc. (FEI).  The 
Geotechnical Engineer will be on-site during construction to provide guidance to 
the Contractor, Road & Driveway (R&D).  An access road parallel to Oceanview 
Drive will need to be constructed for construction equipment to access the bottom 
of the ravine.  This work also required permitting with Oregon State Parks (OSP) 
as the ravine is within their property.  Coordination with (OSP) is taking place by 
city staff.  (Refer to Attachments A & B for limits and cross section).   
 

4. In order to construct the above-mentioned tasks, tree removal and trimming will 
be required.  Oregon Coast Tree Company will be performing this work. 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

377



 

 

 
5. The existing storm lines to be replaced will require abandonment.  This will 

consist of filling the pipe with flowable, low-strength concrete along with filling two 
(2) existing manholes to create a new bottom where the raised pipes will be 
located.  This work will be performed by either CBR or Ryan Wyles Excavating 
(RWE). 
 

6. Sidewalk, curb, and asphalt repair will be required where new storm pipe will be 
placed and where asphalt was removed to complete the temporary repair.  This 
work will be completed by R&D and RWE. 
 

The tentative schedule is as follows: 
 
Tree removal and trimming   Thursday, November 30 
Rock armoring of slope   Friday, December 1 
Storm pipe replacement    Monday, December 4 
Existing pipe abandonment  Following storm pipe replacement 
Surface restoration     Following all work above, weather dependent 
 
If all goes as planned the work should be completed prior to Christmas, perhaps sooner.  
At that point, the road could be re-opened to vehicular traffic. 
 
Fiscal Notes:   
 
Based on the Declaration of a Limited Emergency the cost of an emergency repair 
should not exceed $250,000.  If the cost exceeds this amount, the City Manager will 
schedule a meeting of the City Council to discuss additional funding.  In this case it 
appears that the total will exceed $250k as outlined below: 
 
Installing approximately 165 lineal feet of new 24” storm pipe -  $100k 
Placing 6” rock armoring on from top of slope to bottom of ravine -   $150k 
Tree cutting/trimming services -        $    5k 
Abandoning existing 24” and 12” storm pipes, misc., OSP permits -             $  15k 
Geotechnical services during construction -      $    5k 
Previous temporary slide repair already completed -     $  30k  
         
Approximate Estimated Total -        $305k  
        
Alternatives: 
 
None 
 
Attachments: 
 
A – Rock Armoring Limits 
B - Rock Armoring Cross Section 
C – Storm Pipe Replacement 
 

 

378



379

C.Beatty
Text Box
Attachment A - Rock Armoring Limits

C.Beatty
Rectangle



380

C.Beatty
Text Box
Attachment B - Rock Armoring Cross Section

C.Beatty
Rectangle



381

C.Beatty
Text Box
        Attachment C Storm Pipe Replacement

C.Beatty
Ellipse

C.Beatty
Ellipse

C.Beatty
Line

C.Beatty
Rectangle

C.Beatty
Line

C.Beatty
Text Box
10' DEEP

C.Beatty
Arrow

C.Beatty
Text Box
REPLACE 12" STORM PIPE

C.Beatty
Rectangle

C.Beatty
Arrow

C.Beatty
Text Box
12" STORM PIPEFROM WALMART

C.Beatty
Text Box

C.Beatty
Text Box

C.Beatty
Rectangle

C.Beatty
Arrow



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: December 4, 2023 
Agenda Item:   
Report and Possible Action on SAIF Dividend for Workers Compensation. 
 
Background: 
Annually, SAIF provides a dividend based on the overall worker’s compensation 
performance. This is based on the premium loss ratio and a premium dividend factor to 
determine the amount that goes to each employer. In the current fiscal year, the City 
received a dividend from SAIF in the amount of $35,419. The City provides an employee 
safety program to encourage employees to act safely and responsibly when performing 
their work duties for the City. When injuries on the job are limited, the workers comp fund 
performs better. As a financial encouragement and reward, I am suggesting to Council 
that the dividend be shared among all employees who were employed by the City 
continuously from January 1 through December 4, 2023, with the dividend amount being 
divided equally for full-time employees with part-time employees working continually this 
11-month period receiving 50% of the individual dividend amount. If the Council is 
comfortable with this plan, we will proceed with this prior to the end of the year.  
 
Disclosure -- Please note as city manager I would also be an employee who would receive 
part of this dividend on an equal basis with all other full-time employees.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 

I move to allocate the 2023 dividend from SAIF of $35,419 by providing equal shares to 
all full-time employees, with part-time employees receiving 50% of that share, provided 
that all employees were continuously employed by the City from January 1 through 
December 4, 2023.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
This amount would be paid out as payroll for all eligible employees in amount equaling 
$35,419  
  
Alternatives:  
Do not distribute the dividend amount, or as suggested by the City Council. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 

382



City Manager 

383



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: December 4, 2023 
Agenda Item:   
Report and Possible Action for Conversion to a Four-Day, Ten-Hour Work Week for 
General Office and Other Departmental Work.  
 
Background: 
At the November 20 City Council meeting, the Council heard a report on the 
recommendations to strengthen workplace culture within the City of Newport. One of 
these issues is consideration shifting to a 4/10 work week for various offices and 
workplaces in the city currently working a 5/8 shifts or other schedules. This does not 
necessarily apply to operations that provide services six or seven days a week, such as 
the Library, Newport Recreation Center and airport, and there are a number of other 
departments who have been working a 4/10 schedule prior to this time. It would directly 
impact operations such as City Hall and office functions in other departments. There are 
number of issues we need to work through in order to implement this work week, I am 
asking for Council authorization to consider implementing this schedule on the first of the 
year for those offices and locations where this schedule would be appropriate.  
 
One of the key operational issues that Council needs to consider, is that the City Hall 
operations would be shifted to a four-day week versus a five-day week. This is mitigated 
somewhat by the closure of City Hall to the public on Fridays; however, most offices have 
been readily available by appointment on Fridays for folks with scheduling difficulties. The 
proposed City Hall hours would be from 8 AM till 6 PM and the normal work schedule 
would be from 7:30 AM till 6 PM with a half-hour lunch for folks working the 4/10 schedule. 
We have had a number of requests for an alternate schedule for certain employees that 
have other mitigating circumstances, again, if there are alternate work schedules that 
would not affect the open hours for City Hall.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to authorize the City Manager to establish a four-day ten-hour work week in certain 
offices with City Hall offices being open to the public from 8 AM to 6 PM Monday through 
Thursday effective the first of the year.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
There may be some minor cost savings for lighting, heat, and other actions. There will be 
a reduction of costs for employees commuting four days versus five days a week, 
reducing miles traveled, and there would be expanded public hours from our current 
schedule.  
 

384



Alternatives:  
Do not make this change at this time, look at other alternatives, or as suggested by the 
City Council. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 

385



 

 

        

         
 
                          
                                                                    Meeting Date: December 04, 2023  
      
 
 
Title: Report on Conversion to Compressed Work Week and Adoption of Hours of 
Operation for Various City Facilities and Departments 
 
Prepared by: Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 
  
Recommended Motion: I move to approve the transition to a compressed schedule 4/10 
for applicable City facilities, and Departments where appropriate, effective January 1, 
2024.   
 
Background Information:  
 
Since 2021 the City has been undergoing a work place culture review. This included a 
review of various organizational workplace culture items, such as benefits, schedule, 
holidays, awards, education incentives, and compensation/pay, to ensure that Newport 
operates as an employer of choice, which is especially important given the “Great 
Resignation” which occurred during/after the Covid-19 pandemic. The end result of this 
effort was the creation of a strategic plan for strengthening workplace culture. Through 
much of 2022 and 2023 the City has operated with a vacancy rate in the order for 20%.  
 
These actual vacancies and retirements included some key department head positions, 
to include Tim Gross- Public Works Director, Mike Murzynsky- Finance Director, Aaron 
Collett- City Engineer, Richard Dutton- IT Director, David Powell- Public Works Director, 
Judy Mayhew- Recreation Superintendent, Peggy Hawker- City Recorder/Special 
Projects Director, Clare Paul- Assistant City Engineer, Andrew Grant-Waste Water 
Treatment Plant Supervisor.   
 
In addition to the above, various staff level positions have been experiencing vacancy and 
turnover. Many of these positions have had to undergo multiple recruitment cycles to 
result in a successful hire. While good from a budgetary impact, these vacancies have 
resulted in other staffers having to wear multiple hats to attempt to mitigate service 
delivery disruptions.  
 
The Department Heads through the workplace culture planning sessions arrived at a 
variety of strategies to ensure Newport operates as an employer of choice. One such 
strategy was the idea to convert City facilities which could do so, to a 4-10 or compressed 
work week schedule. City Hall for example, has been closed on Fridays, except by 
appointment since the Covid-19 pandemic, to provide for staff work time.  
 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

386



 

 

A survey was developed and drafted, which was sent out to Department Heads who 
shared it with their applicable staff members to obtain feedback on the conversion. A 
variety of responses were received, but 77% of the surveyed members reported they were 
interested in a 4/10 compressed work week.  
 
Staff contacted multiple entities around the State of Oregon, who currently operate on a 
4/10 work week to learn the pros and cons of the conversion. The entities included but 
were not limited to: Tigard, Happy Valley, Cascade Locks, Sweet Home, MWVCOG, 
Beaverton, Central Point (some departments), Lowell, Bandon, Estacada, Clackamas 
County, Burns, Brookings, Hubbard and Oakridge.    
 
Typical responses for pros included that employees like better/more hours for public 
engagement (outside of standard work hours) encouraging work life balance, it helps to 
facilitate recruitment/allow their entity to stand out, reduced financial spend on facility 
utilities, increasing organizational sustainability due to one entire less commuting day for 
employees, and reduced sick time use with employees using standard Friday off for 
appointments.  
Typical responses for cons included there is one less day a week to schedule meetings, 
holidays which fall on a Friday/standard off day is a concern, the aspect of whether to pay 
8/hours or 10 hours for a holiday, childcare difficulties, and ergonomic strain for longer 
work hours.  
 
At the December 5, 2022 City Council meeting and the November 20, 2023 City Council 
meeting drafts of the entire workplace culture strategic plan were presented and feedback 
solicited. At the November 20, 2023, general discussion was held on a variety of the 
strategies, but discussion relating to 4/10s conversion indicated that the proposed 
transition date was January 1, 2024, and primarily centered around possible 
hybrid/remote changes, extended hours for public engagement, reduced utility expenses. 
No motions were made, but no major concerns were expressed by the City Council.  
 
Following this meeting Departments were contacted with additional 4/10 work schedule 
questions, to determine the possibility to convert to 4/10’s on January 1, 2024.  
 
See the attached breakdown below: 

387



 

 

 
 
Fiscal Notes: None  
 
Alternatives: None recommended 
 
Attachments: Various 

Location Existing New Schedule 

City Hall

City Manager 8-5 Monday-Thursday. Friday appointment only. 4/10s M-Th 7:30-6. Open hours to public 8-6. 

Human Resources 8-5 Monday-Thursday. Friday appointment only. 4/10s M-Th 7:30-6. Open hours to public 8-6. 

Community Development 8-5 Monday-Thursday. Friday appointment only. 4/10s M-Th 7:30-6. Open hours to public 8-6. 

Engineering

8-5 Monday-Thursday. Friday appointment only. Some staff work 

4/10's already. 

Staffed. M-Th 730-6. Existing 4/10 staff will remain on 4/10's one 

works m-th, the other will work tu-Friday. Exec assistant 5/8's or 9/80. 

Finance 8-5 Monday-Thursday. Friday appointment only. 

4/10's M-TH 7:30-6. Open hours to public 8-6. Flex schedules for 

certain positions for monthly functions. 

Police Department

Patrol No change to existing schedule. No Change

Records No change to existing schedule. No change from 9/80s 

Admin 8-5 Monday-Thursday, with call outs. Friday appointment only. 

Staffed-7:30-6 M-Th 4/10's Chief works M-TH, Lt. already on 4/10's, 

will stay on 4/10s Tu-Friday

Airport 8-5, 7 days a week No change. 8-5 P.M 7 days a week. 

Library Tu-Sat 9-6 or 10am to 7 pm. No change. Tu-Sat 9-6 or 10am to 7 pm.

Fire Department

Firefighter No change to existing schedule. No change to existing schedule. 

Admin Staff M-F 8-5, with callouts. 7:30-6 PM 4/10's. Chief will work M-Th, Assistant Chief will work Tu-Friday

Exec Assistant Part time No Change to existing schedule. 

Emergency Management Coordinator M-F 8-5, with callouts. 

Recreation/Parks Department

Senior Center M-F 8-5

Facility hours 830-530 m-f. 4/10s M-Th 745 to 615 with 30 minute 

lunch. 

Aquatic Center M-F 8-5

Tu-Fri 7-7, Sat 8-6, Sunday Monday Closed. Move to 9/80s 8am-530 

w 30 minute lunch 

Recreational Center M-F 830-530

TU-Fri 7am to 8pm. Sat 8-7, Sunday Monday Closed. Move to 9/80s 

for most positions, exception being financial specialist who cannot 

change due to schedule. 

Parks/Custodial Crew M-F 730-4 4/10s. Need to determine schedule for 7 day coverage. 

Admin M-F 830-530 Move to 9/80s, 8am to 530 w 30 minute lunch. 

Public Works

Streets M-Th 630-5. call out as needed. No change. 

Water Dist M-Th 630-5. call out as needed. No change. 

Wastewater Plant

No change from existing schedule for operators. 

Supervisor/Admin/Environmental compliance may be able to 

work 4/10s. 

No change from existing schedule for operators. 

Supervisor/Admin/Environmental compliance may be able to work 

4/10s. 

Wastewater Collections M-Th 630-5. call out as needed. No change. 

Water Plant No change from existing schedule for operators No change. Supervisor/Admin may be possible to go with 4/10's. 

Facilities M-F 8-5, call out as needed. 4/10's with City Hall hours. 

PW SHOP/Admin M-F 8-5 call out as needed. 4/10s. Exec Assistant 6-4:30 P.M. OPS Supervisor 6:30-5:00 PM. 

Information Technology

Admin M-F 8-5, calls/evenings weekends as needed. 4/10 or 5/8's until support roles are filled. 

Gis Tech M-F 8-5 5/8's. 

Sys Admin 1 None 4/10s

Sys Admin 2 None 4/10s

IT Temp None Schedule flexible by nature. 

388



 

Spencer R. Nebel 
City Manager 
CITY OF NEWPORT 
169 S.W. Coast Hwy. 
Newport, OR 97365 
s.nebel@newportoregon.gov 

 
 

 

Staff Memo 

 

Date: November 21, 2023 
To: Department Heads  

From: Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 
Re: Conversion to 4/10 Work Week and Schedule Questions 
 

Hello Everyone, 
 
 

At the November 20, 2023 City Council meeting the concept of a conversion to 4/10’s, or a 
compressed work week was presented to Council for feasible departments/divisions. The 
Council did not voice any objection to the concept. The goal would be to implement these 
revised hours of operation effective January 1, 2024.  
 
Please review the following questions and return an email with your responses to me by 
December 1, 2023 at noon.  Please return an answer for each facility/division within your 
department, with the goal of January 1, 2024 being the transition date.  Please break out your 
responses such as: Dept Head, Admin Staff, Line staff, as may be appropriate for the division or 
department.  
 

• Would any employees have an option of working a five-day schedule or other alternative 

schedule instead of a four-day schedule, even if offices are closed. 

• If yes, which positions could work an alternative schedule.   

• Effective January 1, 2024 what divisions/departments/staff roles can be moved to 4/10’s.  

• Is there a concern with defining the standard work week as M-Th 7:30 am to 6:00 pm with 

a half-hour lunch? (Other proposed start/end times would be considered). Offices would 

not be open to the public until 8:00 AM.  

I have attached the workplace culture report shown to Council, for your review.  I have also 
attached the previous 4/10 survey which went out a number of months ago, which showed a 
77% support for the conversion to 4/10’s.  
 
Thank you for your time. If you have any questions please let me know.  

 
Sincerely, 
 

Erik Glover 

 
Erik Glover 
Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 389

mailto:s.nebel@newportoregon.gov


 

1 
 

   

Spencer R. Nebel 

City Manager 

CITY OF NEWPORT 

169 S.W. Coast Hwy. 
Newport, OR  97365 
s.nebel@newportoregon.gov 

 
 

 
January 6, 2022 
 
 
TO:  City Council 
 
FROM: Spencer R. Nebel 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion on Current Staffing Levels and Capacity Issues 

As part of the goal-setting process, it is important for Council to be aware of some of the 
challenges that the City of Newport is facing from a personnel standpoint. In the news we 
have all heard about the “great resignation” and the challenges that almost all employers 
are having in hiring and retaining employees during this period of time. The City is no 
exception. Human Resources Director, Barb James, has put together a report specifically 
outlining the impact that these issues have had on the City of Newport. 
 
For this past calendar year, the City had 40 terminations (retirements, resignations, etc.) 
and 30 new hires. This, coupled with the fact that we had vacancies at the beginning of 
2021, impacts our ability to do certain things in certain departments. Later in this report 
there is a listing of the number of times we have had to post certain positions before filling 
it, or for positions that are still vacant. For your information, I have also enclosed a 
personnel report showing vacancies in various departments. It also should be noted, that 
in departments where we lose experienced individuals, there is a period of time in which 
the employees hired to fill those positions need to get up to speed before they can be fully 
functional for that department. The attached report shows vacancies or jobs that will 
become vacant. These are highlighted in yellow for departments impacted by vacancies. 
Those positions with “PT” listed after them are part-time positions, meaning they are less 
than 30 hours per week positions.   
 
The impact of vacancies varies from department to department. Departments impacted 
by vacancies have challenges moving forward with new tasks, and in some cases, 
keeping up with existing obligations. For example, in the Finance Department, the position 
of Account Technician-Utility Billing has remained open for six months. The remaining 
individuals in that department have had to fill-in for that critical vacant position. This then 
impacts other various efforts that the Finance Department provides to the City. Another 
department that is significantly impacted is Engineering. Engineering will be replacing an 
Engineering Tech, Administrative Assistant, and Senior Project Manager. This, coupled 
with having a new City Engineer in place, will have an impact on the work that this 

390

mailto:s.nebel@newportoregon.gov


 

2 
 

department can undertake. Parks and Recreation has had challenges in filling many of its 
part-time positions, as well as undergoing changes with key personnel, including the 
replacement of a Parks Maintenance Supervisor, still vacant after three recruitment 
efforts; the retirement of Kathy Crews who was Aquatic Supervisor (this has been filled 
by Keely Naughton, which now means Keely’s former position as Assistant Aquatic 
Supervisor is vacant); and the retirement of Peggy O’Callaghan has recently been filled 
by Sonia Graham. These significant changes, as well as the Parks Maintenance ongoing 
vacancies, have limited the work that the Parks and Recreation Department can do. 
Finally, in Public Safety, both Police and Fire, have been working short-handed due to 
retirements and resignations throughout the entire calendar year. This results in additional 
overtime, and can create a burnout situation for employees during these times. This also 
impacts the level of service that can be provided. These stories are repeated in a number 
of departments, including my own, which has operated without a Deputy City Recorder 
for half of last year.  
 
The following is a report compiled by Human Resources Director, Barb James, showing 
the level of activity HR has been involved with during the 2021 calendar year. I have also 
attached a list of obligations for staff to support various advisory work group and other 
support efforts on behalf of the City of Newport. While the time obligations for each of 
these commitments vary, anytime staff supports a “public body” there are requirements 
to generate agendas and background materials, conduct the meetings, including 
technical support, and follow-up by the development of minutes for those meetings, along 
with the tasks that are recommended for staff to try to accomplish from the committees. 
The support of these various committees, work groups, and participation in other outside 
groups, requires a significant amount of time to do them effectively. Council needs to be 
careful about not over-committing staff resources so that we have volunteers participating 
in these groups that cannot be adequately supported by City staff to accomplish their 
tasks effectively.  
 

Status of Personnel Activity January 1, 2021 – December 22, 2021 

Terminations  

Total = 40 

Retirements = 8 (included in the total above) 

EMPLOYEE   DEPARTMENT    YEARS OF   

          SERVICE  

Kathy Crews   P&R –Aquatic Center     21 

Greg Evans   Public Works       26 

Mitch France   Police        13 

James Guenther  Public Works       45 

Jeffery Ingram  Library        31 

391



 

3 
 

Bert Johnson   Fire       20 

Peggy O’Callaghan  P&R -60+ Center      17 

Doug Moss   Engineering        4 

 

Terminations by Department 

Airport     1 

City Manager’s Office   3 

Community Development  1 

Engineering    2 

Finance    1 

Fire     1 

IT     0 

Library    2 

Parks and Recreation  21 

➢ 60+ Center   2 

➢ Aquatic Center  8 

➢ Recreation Center  10 

➢ Parks Maintenance  1 

➢ Sports    0 

Police     4 

Public Works    4 

➢ Water Distribution  2 

➢ Streets   1 

➢ Wastewater Collections 1 

➢ Water Trmnt. Plant  0 

➢ Wastewater Trmnt. Plant 0  

 

New Hires 

Total = 30 

  

392



 

4 
 

New Hires by Department  

Airport     1 

City Manager’s Office   2 

Community Development  1 

Engineering     1 

Finance    0 

Fire     1 

IT     0 

Library    0 

Parks & Recreation   18 

➢ 60+ Center   1 

➢ Aquatic Center  5 

➢ Recreation Center   11 

➢ Parks Maintenance   0 

➢ Sports    1 

Police     2 

Public Works    4 

➢ Water Distribution   1 

➢ Streets   0 

➢ Wastewater Collections 1 

➢ Water Treatment Plant  0 

➢ Wastewater Trmnt. Plant 1 

 

Recruitments  

Total requisitions opened for the year – 102 

Open Requisitions – 48 (includes some that have not been closed due to recent or 

upcoming hires or positions are on hold. These positions are listed below.) 

➢ Emergency Preparedness Coordinator  

➢ Librarian I  

➢ Deputy City Recorder (PT) 

➢ Executive Assistant –Police 

➢ Firefighter/EMT 

➢ Police Officer  

➢ Utility Worker I – Wastewater Collections  

393



 

5 
 

➢ Recreation Leader 

➢ Building Attendant 

➢ Lifeguard  

➢ Reserve Police Officer (on hold) 

 

Current Open Requisitions/Vacancies – 37 

60+ Center Office Clerk 

Accounting Technician – Utility Billing 

Airport Specialist 

Assistant Aquatic Supervisor 

Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 

Assistant Fire Chief-Fire Marshal 

AV Technician 

Bi-lingual Community Resource Specialist 

Building Attendant x 2 

Custodial Worker  

Deputy City Recorder - FT 

Engineering Technician 

Fire Engineer 

GIS Technician 

Librarian I 

Lifeguard x 6 

Parks Maintenance Supervisor 

Parks Maintenance Worker x 2 

Police Officer x 6 

Public Works Operations Superintendent 

Public Works Office Assistant  

Recreation Leaders x 2 

Senior Utility Worker – Water Distribution  

Utility Worker I - Streets 

394



 

6 
 

Positions posted multiple times 

Police Officer     Ongoing  

Police Sergeant     2 

Fire Captain      3 

Accounting Technician – Utility Billing  2 

Public Works Operations Superintendent  3 

Lifeguard     Ongoing  

Building Attendant    Ongoing  

Recreation Leader    Ongoing  

Seasonal Recreation Leader   3 

Control Desk      2 

Assistant Aquatic Supervisor   2 

Bi-lingual Community Resource Specialist 2 

Parks Maintenance Supervisor   3 

60+ Center Office Clerk    2 

Deputy City Recorder    2 

Library Specialist I-II    3 

Utility Worker I – Wastewater Collections  3 

Utility Worker – Water Distribution   2 

Senior Utility Worker – Water Distribution  2 

Safety Officer     5 

Sports Program Coordinator   2 

Year 2021 has been an extremely challenging year for recruitment and staffing. Early in 

2021, it seemed childcare, fear of infection, and unemployment benefits were some of 

the main catalysts behind the staffing crisis. Economists say changing demographics 

like ageing and retiring workers are also a factor behind the shortages.   

Multiple openings occurred at the City in 2021 due to staff turnover and retirements.  

There has been a reduced applicant pool across the organization for most of our posted 

positions. Positions needed to be posted multiple times due to a lack of qualified 

applicants, individuals unable to successfully pass the pre-employment process after 

receiving a contingent job offer, and/or a lack of commitment from the candidate once a 

contingent job offer was extended.  

395



 

7 
 

Examples include the Fire Captain recruitment. The position was posted three times 

before we were successful in filling the position. The recruitment process was lengthy 

due to a combination of issues; 1) having a limited pool of qualified applicants, 2) two 

contingent job offers were made, with both candidates failing to successfully pass the 

background, and 3) having to post the position multiple times because of the first two 

issues listed above.  

Other examples are the Police Officer and Sergeant recruitments. Law enforcement 

agencies across the United States are struggling to recruit and hire police officers. 

Newport is no different. The City has lost a number of police officers in 2020/2021 for 

various reasons, creating five vacancies at its highest point. The Police Officer 

recruitment has been posted multiple times, and is one of the City’s ongoing 

recruitments for 2021. There has been a limited pool of qualified candidates, an inability 

for candidates to successfully pass the pre-employment background process, and a lack 

of commitment on the part of candidates once a contingent job offer was made. Similar 

issues that we have encountered for other recruitments.   

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Spencer R. Nebel  
City Manager 

396



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: December 4, 2023 
Agenda Item: 
Report on Per -- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) Litigation. 
 
Background: 
Attorney David Allen will give an update on the proposed class action settlement 
regarding the impact of Per - and polyfluoroalkyl (PFAS) has had on public water 
systems in the United States. The City of Newport is a member of a class of claimants in 
the class action lawsuits filed against manufacturers of products containing PFAS. The 
City Council has an option to opt out of the settlement. Based on information available at 
this time, City Attorney David Allen does not believe that would be in the City's best 
interest. 
 
 
 
PFAS are widely-used, long-lasting chemicals that have components which break down 
very slowly over time. PFAS components are found in the blood of people and animals all 
over the world, and are present at low levels in a variety of food products and in the 
environment. According to the Environmental Protection Agency website, there are still a 
lot of questions about how harmful PFAS are to people and the environment, how much 
exposure there is to PFAS, and how to effectively detect and measure PFAS in the air, 
water, soil, fish and wildlife.  
 
The water treatment plant has begun testing for PFAS in the finished drinking water. This 
is now being done on a quarterly basis. As of this date, we have taken three quarterly 
samples of our finished drinking water and submitted it for testing. The first two quarters 
showed PFAS as nondetectable in our finished drinking water. The last quarter test results 
have not been received yet. We have not tested our raw water to determine PFAS levels 
in the reservoir.  
 
Recommendation: 
No action is required by the City Council at this time unless Council wants to opt out of 
the two settlements with 3M and DuPont. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
Undetermined at this point.  
 
Alternatives:  
Council could opt out of the settlement agreements; however, Council would then have 
to attain legal counsel to move forward.  
 
  

397



Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 

398



You can include the following summary along with the two attached summary notices for the Dec. 4 

council agenda packet, which will be an informational item: 

 

The city of Newport is a member of a class of claimants in class action lawsuits filed against the 

manufacturers of certain products containing PFAS, otherwise known as 'forever chemicals'.  The 

lawsuits claim that PFAS manufactured by these defendants contaminated public drinking water 

sources. 

 

Two of the defendants - 3M and DuPont - have agreed to settle the claims filed against them in these 

lawsuits in return for payments to impacted water systems.  No action is required at this time in order to 

participate in the settlements.  Participating in the settlements would qualify claimants for payments to 

offset the costs of remediating impacted drinking water sources, but in return would release certain 

future claims against 3M and DuPont.  According to the public works department, the city did not test 

positive for PFAS in its May 2023 test, and its prior test in April 2021 was also non-detect. 

 

In a recent inquiry to the Oregon city attorneys listserv, the city of Portland, and also another city in the 

Portland area, responded as to opting out of the settlements.  Other cities that responded to the inquiry 

indicated they are participating in the settlements, which is a position that the city attorney supports 

after conferring with city staff on this matter. 

 

399



 
SUMMARY NOTICE OF PROPOSED CLASS ACTION SETTLEMENT  

AND COURT-APPROVAL HEARING 
 

In re: Aqueous Film-Forming Foams Products Liability Litigation, MDL No. 2:18-mn-02873 
This Document relates to: City of Camden, et al., v. 3M Company, No. 2:23-cv-03147-RMG 

 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, DISTRICT OF SOUTH CAROLINA, CHARLESTON DIVISION 

 

TO THE SETTLEMENT CLASS:  All Active Public Water Systems in the United States of America that have 
one or more Impacted Water Sources as of June 22, 2023; and all Active Public Water Systems that do not have 
one or more Impacted Water Sources as of June 22, 2023 and  

(i) are required to test for certain PFAS under U.S. EPA’s UCMR-5, or  
(ii) serve more than 3,300 people, according to U.S. EPA’s SDWIS data system. 

 
All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Settlement Agreement, 
available for review at www.PFASWaterSettlement.com.  
 
Active Public Water System means a Public Water System whose activity-status field in SDWIS states that the 
system is “Active.” 
 
Impacted Water Source means a Water Source that has a Qualifying Test Result showing a Measurable 
Concentration of PFAS. 
 
As used above, Public Water System means a system for the provision to the public of water for human 
consumption through pipes or other constructed conveyances, if such system has at least fifteen (15) service 
connections or regularly serves an average of at least twenty-five (25) individuals daily at least sixty (60) days 
out of the year, consistent with the use of that term in the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. § 300f(4)(A), and 
40 C.F.R. Part 141.   
 
Public Water System includes (i) any collection, treatment, storage, and distribution facilities under control of 
the operator of such system and used primarily in connection with such system, and (ii) any collection or 
pretreatment storage facilities not under such control which are used primarily in connection with such system.  
Solely for purposes of the Settlement Agreement, the term “Public Water System” refers to a Community Water 
System of any size or a Non-Transient Non-Community Water System that serves more than 3,300 people, 
according to SDWIS; or any Person (but not any financing or lending institution) that has legal authority or 
responsibility (by statute, regulation, other law, or contract) to fund or incur financial obligations for the design, 
engineering, installation, operation, or maintenance of any facility or equipment that treats, filters, remediates, or 
manages water that has entered or may enter Drinking Water or any Public Water System; but does not refer to a 
Non-Transient Non-Community Water System that serves 3,300 or fewer people, according to SDWIS, or to a 
Transient Non-Community Water System of any size.  It is the intention of the Settlement Agreement that the 
definition of “Public Water System” be as broad, expansive, and inclusive as possible. 
 
What Is the Purpose of this Notice?  The purpose of this Notice is (i) to advise you of a proposed settlement of 
certain Claims against 3M Company (“3M” or “Defendant”) in the United States District Court for the District of 
South Carolina (the “Court”); (ii) to summarize your rights in connection with the Settlement; and (iii) to inform 
you of a Court hearing to consider whether to grant final approval of the Settlement (the “Final Fairness Hearing”), 
to be held on February 2, 2024. at 10:00 a.m. EST in Charleston Courtroom #1, J. Waties Waring Judicial Center, 
before the Honorable Richard M. Gergel, United States District Judge of the United States District Court for the 
District of South Carolina, located at 85 Broad Street, Charleston, South Carolina 29401. 
 
What Are the Key Terms of the Proposed Settlement?  3M has agreed to pay an amount not less than 

400



 

2 

$10,500,000,000 and not more than $12,500,000,000, inclusive (the “Settlement Amount”), subject to final 
approval of the Settlement by the Court and certain other conditions specified in the Settlement Agreement.  
3M shall additionally pay up to $5,000,000 to cover costs incurred by the Notice Administrator in the course of 
executing the Notice Plan. Together, these payments constitute the “Settlement Funds.” In no event shall 3M be 
required under the Settlement Agreement to pay any amounts above the Settlement Funds.  Any fees, costs, or 
expenses payable under the Settlement Agreement shall be paid out of, and shall not be in addition to, the 
Settlement Funds.  Each Settlement Class Member that has not excluded itself from the Class will be eligible to 
receive a settlement check(s) from the Claims Administrator based on the Allocation Procedures developed by 
Class Counsel, which are subject to final approval by the Court as fair and reasonable and whose administration 
is under the oversight of the Special Master. 
 
What Are My Options? 
 

YOU CAN PARTICIPATE IN THE SETTLEMENT.  You must file a Claims Form to be eligible to 
receive a payment under the Settlement.  You can submit your Claims Form online at 
www.PFASWaterSettlement.com, or you can download, complete, and mail your Claims Form to the 
Claims Administrator at AFFF Public Water System Claims, P.O. Box 4466, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
70821.  The deadline for a Phase One Settlement Class Member to submit a Phase One Public Water 
System Settlement Claims Form is 60 days following the Effective Date, and the deadline for a Phase 
Two Settlement Class Member to submit a Phase Two Action Fund Claims Form is July 31, 2026. 
 
Regardless of whether you file a Claims Form or receive any distribution under the Settlement, unless 
you timely opt out as described below, you will be bound by the Settlement and any judgment or other 
final disposition related to the Settlement, including the Release set forth in the Settlement Agreement, 
and will be precluded from pursuing claims against 3M separately if those Claims are within the scope 
of the Release.  
 
YOU CAN OPT OUT OF THE SETTLEMENT.  If you do not wish to be a Settlement Class Member 
and do not want to participate in the Settlement and receive a settlement check, you may exclude yourself 
from the Class by completing and mailing a notice of intention to opt out. Any Person within the 
Settlement Class that wishes to opt out of the Settlement Class and Settlement must serve a written and 
signed statement entitled “Request for Exclusion” on the Notice Administrator, the Special Master, the 
Claims Administrator, 3M’s Counsel, and Class Counsel no later than December 11, 2023.   
 
YOU CAN OBJECT TO THE SETTLEMENT.  Any Settlement Class Member that has not successfully 
excluded itself (“opted out”) may object to the Settlement.  Any Settlement Class Member that wishes to 
object to the Settlement or to an award of fees or expenses to Class Counsel must file a written and signed 
statement designated “Objection” with the Clerk of the Court and provide service on 3M’s Counsel and 
Class Counsel no later than November 11, 2023. 
 

VISIT WWW.PFASWATERSETTLEMENT.COM FOR COMPLETE INFORMATION 
ABOUT YOUR RIGHTS 

 
The Court’s Final Fairness Hearing.  The Court will hold the Final Fairness Hearing in Charleston 
Courtroom #1, J. Waties Waring Judicial Center of the United States District Court for the District of South 
Carolina, located at 85 Broad Street, Charleston, South Carolina 29401, on February 2, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. 
EST. At that time, the Court will determine, among other things, (i) whether the Settlement should be 
granted final approval as fair, reasonable, and adequate, (ii) whether the Litigation should be dismissed 
with prejudice pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, (iii) whether the Settlement Class should 
be conclusively certified, (iv) whether Settlement Class Members should be bound by the Release set forth 
in the Settlement Agreement, (v) the amount of attorneys’ fees and costs to be awarded to Class Counsel, 
if any, and (vi) the amount of the award to be made to the Class Representatives for their services, if any.  

401



 

3 

The Final Fairness Hearing may be postponed, adjourned, or continued by Order of the Court without 
further notice to the Class. 
 
How Do I Get More Information? Please visit www.PFASWaterSettlement.com or call toll free 1-855-714-
4341.  You may also contact Class Counsel or the Notice Administrator for more information: 
 

 Class Counsel Class Counsel 
Scott Summy 

Baron & Budd, P.C. 
3102 Oak Lawn Ave., Ste. 1100 

Dallas, TX 75219 
Email: ssummy@baronbudd.com  

Michael A. London  
Douglas & London 

59 Maiden Lane, 6th Fl. 
New York, NY 10038 

Email: mlondon@douglasandlondon.com  
Paul J. Napoli  

Napoli Shkolnik 
1302 Avenida Ponce de Leon 

San Juan, PR 00907 
Email: pnapoli@NSPRlaw.com 

Elizabeth A. Fegan 
Fegan Scott LLC 

150 S. Wacker Drive, 24th Floor 
Chicago, IL 60606 

beth@feganscott.com 
Joseph F. Rice 

Motley Rice LLC 
28 Bridgeside Blvd. 

Mt. Pleasant, SC 29464   

 
 

 

Notice Administrator Claims Administrator 
In re: Aqueous Film-Forming Foams Products 

Liability Litigation 
c/o 3M Notice Administrator 
1650 Arch Street, Suite 2210 

Philadelphia, PA 19103 
Email: PFASSettlement@AngeionGroup.com 

AFFF Public Water System Claims 
PO Box 4466 

Baton Rouge, LA 70821 
Email: Info@pfaswatersettlement.com 

 

402

mailto:beth@feganscott.com


 

 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED CLASS ACTION SETTLEMENT  

AND COURT-APPROVAL HEARING 

 

In re: Aqueous Film-Forming Foams Product Liability Litigation, MDL No. 2:18-mn-02873 
This Document relates to: City of Camden, et al., v. E.I. DuPont de Nemours and Company, et al., 

No. 2:23-cv-03230-RMG 

 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, DISTRICT OF SOUTH CAROLINA, CHARLESTON DIVISION  

 

TO THE SETTLEMENT CLASS:  All Public Water Systems in the United States of America that draw or 
otherwise collect from any Water Source that, on or before June 30, 2023, was tested or otherwise analyzed for 
PFAS and found to contain any PFAS at any level; and  
 
All Public Water Systems in the United States of America that, as of June 30, 2023, are (i) subject to the 
monitoring rules set forth in the U.S. EPA’s Fifth Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule (“UCMR 5”) (i.e., 
“large” systems serving more than 10,000 people and “small” systems serving between 3,300 and 10,000 people), 
or (ii) required under applicable state or federal law to test or otherwise analyze any of their Water Sources or the 
water they provide for PFAS before the deadline of sample collection under UCMR 5. 
 
All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Settlement Agreement 
and the Allocation Procedures, available for review at www.PFASWaterSettlement.com. 
 
As used above, “Public Water System” means a system for the provision of water to the public for human 
consumption through pipes or other constructed conveyances, if such system has at least fifteen (15) service 
connections or regularly serves at least twenty-five (25) individuals.  A “Public Water System” shall include the 
owner and/or operator of that system and any public entity that is legally responsible for funding (by statute, 
regulation, other law, or contract), other than a State or the federal government, a Public Water System described 
in such Paragraph or has authority to bring a claim on behalf of such a Public Water System. 

 
 

What Is The Purpose of This Notice?  The purpose of this Notice is (i) to advise you of a proposed settlement 
of certain claims against The Chemours Company, The Chemours Company FC, LLC, DuPont de Nemours, Inc., 
Corteva, Inc., and E.I. DuPont de Nemours and Company n/k/a EIDP, Inc. (collectively the “Settling Defendants”) 
in the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina (the “Court”); (ii) to summarize your rights 
in connection with the Settlement; and (iii) to inform you of a Court hearing to consider whether to grant final 
approval of the Settlement (the “Final Fairness Hearing”), to be held on December 14, 2023 at 10:00 a.m., before 
the Honorable Richard M. Gergel, United States District Judge of the United States District Court for the District 
of South Carolina, located at 85 Broad Street, Charleston, South Carolina 29401. 
 
What Are The Key Terms of the Proposed Settlement?  The Settling Defendants have agreed to pay one billion 
one hundred eighty-five million dollars ($1,185,000,000)(the “Settlement Amount”), subject to final approval 
of the Settlement by the Court and certain other conditions specified in the Settlement Agreement.  In no 
event shall the Settling Defendants be required to pay any amounts under the Settlement Agreement above the 
Settlement Amount.  Any fees, costs, or expenses payable under the Settlement Agreement shall be paid out of, 
and shall not be in addition to, the Settlement Amount.  Each Settlement Class Member who has not excluded 
itself from the Class will be eligible to receive a settlement check(s) from the Claims Administrator based on the 
Allocation Procedures developed by Class Counsel, which are subject to final approval by the Court as fair and 
reasonable and which are under the oversight of the Special Master. 
 
What Are My Options? 
 

YOU CAN PARTICIPATE IN THE SETTLEMENT.  You must file a Claims Form to be eligible to 

403



 

 

receive a payment under the Settlement. You can submit your Claims Form online at 
www.PFASWaterSettlement.com, or you can download, complete and mail your Claims Form to the 
Claims Administrator at AFFF Public Water System Claims, PO Box 4466, Baton Rouge, LA 70821. 
The deadlines to submit a Claim Forms are illustrated below.  Regardless of whether you file a Claims 
Form or receive any distribution under the Settlement, unless you timely opt out as described below, you 
will be bound by any judgment or other final disposition of the Released Claims, including the Release 
set forth in the Settlement Agreement, and will be precluded from pursuing claims against the Settling 
Defendants separately if those Claims are within the scope of the Release.  
 

Deadline Description Deadline Date 

Phase One Public Water System Claims Form 60 Days after the Effective Date 

Phase One Special Needs Claims Form 
45 Days after the Phase One Public 

Water System Claims Form 
Deadline 

Phase Two Testing Claims Form 1/1/2026 

Phase Two Public Water System Claims Form 6/30/2026 

Phase Two Special Needs Claims Form 8/1/2026 

Phase One Supplemental Fund Claims Form 12/31/2030 

Phase Two Supplemental Fund Claims Form 12/31/2030 

 
YOU CAN OPT OUT OF THE SETTLEMENT. If you do not wish to be a Settlement Class Member, 
and do not want to participate in the Settlement and receive a Settlement Benefit Check, you may exclude 
yourself from the Class by completing and mailing a notice of intention to opt out. Any Person within the 
Settlement Class who wishes to opt out of the Settlement Class and Settlement must file a written and 
signed statement entitled “Request for Exclusion” with the Notice Administrator and provide service on 
all Parties no later than DECEMBER 4, 2023.   
 
YOU CAN OBJECT TO THE SETTLEMENT.  Any Settlement Class Member who has not 
successfully excluded itself (“opted out”) may object to the Settlement.  Any Settlement Class Member who 
wishes to object to the Settlement or to an award of fees or expenses to Class Counsel must file a written 
and signed statement designated “Objection” with the Clerk of the Court and provide service on all Parties 
in no later than NOVEMBER 4, 2023. 
 

VISIT WWW.PFASWATERSETTLEMENT.COM FOR COMPLETE INFORMATION 

ABOUT YOUR RIGHTS 
 
The Court’s Final Fairness Hearing.  The Court will hold the Final Fairness Hearing in Hon. Sol Blatt, Jr., 
Courtroom of the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina, located at 85 Broad Street, 
Charleston, South Carolina 29401, on December 14, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. At that time, the Court will 
determine, among other things, (i) whether the Settlement should be granted final approval as fair, 
reasonable, and adequate, (ii) whether the Released Claims should be dismissed with prejudice pursuant to 
the terms of the Settlement Agreement, (iii) whether the Settlement Class should be conclusively certified, 
(iv) whether Settlement Class Members should be bound by the Release set forth in the Settlement 
Agreement, (v) the amount of attorneys’ fees and costs to be awarded to Class Counsel, if any, and (vi) the 
amount of the award to be made to the Class Representatives for their services, if any. The Final Fairness 
Hearing may be postponed, adjourned, or continued by Order of the Court without further notice to the 
Class. 

404



 

 

 
How Do I Get More Information? Please visit www.PFASWaterSettlemeent.com or call toll free 1-855-714-
4341.  You may also contact Class Counsel or the Notice Administrator for more information: 
 

 Class Counsel Class Counsel Class Counsel 

Scott Summy 
Baron & Budd, P.C. 

3102 Oak Lawn Ave., Ste. 
1100 

Dallas, TX 75219 
Email: 

summy@baronbudd.com  

Michael A. London  
Douglas & London 

59 Maiden Lane, 6th Fl. 
New York, NY 10038 

Email: 
london@douglasandlondon.com  

 
Paul J. Napoli  

Napoli Shkolnik 

1302 Ponce de Leon 
Santurce, PR 00907 

Email: 
pnapoli@NSPRLaw.com  

 

 
 

 

Notice Administrator Claims Administrator 

In re: Aqueous Film-Forming Foams 
Products Liability Litigation 

c/o Notice Administrator 
1650 Arch Street, Ste 2210 

Philadelphia, PA 19103 
PFASSettlement@AngeionGroup.com 

AFFF Public Water System 
Claims 

PO Box 4466 
Baton Rouge, LA 70821 

Email: 
info@pfaswatersettlement.com 

 

 

The paragraphs above provide only a general summary of the terms of the settlement. In the event of a conflict between 
this Notice and the Settlement Agreement, the terms of the Settlement Agreement control. You can review the Settlement 
Agreement itself for more information about the exact terms of the settlement. The Settlement Agreement is available at 
www.PFASWaterSettlement.com. 

405



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: December 4, 2023 
Agenda Item:   
Report on the Budget Calendar for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2024 and Ending 
June 30, 2025. 
 
Background: 
The process is underway to develop a budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024. 
Key dates impacting the City Council are as follows:  
 
January 2, 2024 – appoint Budget Committee members (vacancies will be filled by 
interviews conducted prior to the preliminary budget meeting on March 5, 2024) 
 
February 12, 2024 – City Council goal setting session from 9 AM till 4 PM. 
 
February 20, 2024 – Council-approved draft goals. 
 
March 5, 2024 – beginning at 6 PM is the preliminary Budget Committee meeting. 
 
March 18, 2024 – public hearing and adoption of the goals for the fiscal year beginning 
July 1, 2024. 
 
April 23, 2024 – beginning at 5 PM is the first Budget Committee meeting. 
 
May 14, 2024 – beginning at 5 PM is the second Budget Committee meeting. 
 
May 28, 2024 – beginning at 6 PM at is the third Budget Committee meeting. 
 
June 17, 2024 – budget adoption (URA at 5:45 PM and City Council at 6 PM).  
The meetings in red are meetings held outside of a regularly scheduled City Council 
meeting.  
 
In addition, Mayor Kaplan and I have had discussions about the format for the goal setting 
session that will take place in February. We are looking at changing this process since 
this set of goals will be critical to help the new city manager understand what the City 
priorities are as identified by the City Council. I will be recommending to the Council that 
the list of goals be substantially simplified in order to make it comprehensible and 
meaningful for the manager hired to implement those goals. These goals can also be 
critical as Council goes through the interview process in evaluating the skill sets of 
candidates, as compared to the priority goals as established by City Council. In addition, 
I am proposing more detailed departmental presentations to Council as these top priorities 
are identified. I would also like to have a greater focus to explain the core functions and 

406



time commitments that individual departments have, particularly as it relates to new 
initiatives moving forward. I think this process would be very helpful to fine tune and clearly 
prioritize the City Council wants the new manager and staff to focus on as the City 
embarks with new manager leadership at the beginning of the next fiscal year. We will set 
up a time to talk in more detail about the format for the goal setting session at a work 
session in January. 
 
Recommendation: 
No action is required on this report. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None.  
 
Alternatives:  
Please review the dates of the Budget Committee meetings and goal setting session. We 
may be able to work around any conflicts with those dates, particularly for the goal setting 
session. It is important to have everyone present at this meeting that day. 
 
Let me know if you have any questions or conflicts with any of the dates  
 
Modify the dates, or as suggested by the City Council. 
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 

407



 

 

       
       

   
 
         Meeting Date: 12/04/24 
       

 
 

 
 
Title:  Budget calendar for fiscal year 2024-2025. 
 
Prepared by:  Steve Baugher 
  
Recommended Motion: None 
 
Background Information:  
 
Attached is the proposed budget and goal calendar for fiscal year 2024-25.  On the 
budget calendar schedule, the items in red impact the City Council, items in blue impact 
the Department Heads, and items in black impact the City Manager and/or Finance 
Department. 
 
The budget calendar includes the following dates that Budget Committee and Council 
members will meet: 
 
Preliminary Budget Meeting     6pm, 03/05/24 
First Budget Committee Meeting     5pm, 04/23/24 
Second Budget Committee Meeting    5pm, 05/14/24 
Third Budget Committee Meeting     6pm, 05/28/24 
 
City Council Meeting – City Budget Public Hearing  6pm, 06/17/24 
NURA Council Meeting – NURA Budget Public Hearing  5:45pm, 6/17/24 
 
Fiscal Notes:  None. 
 

Alternatives: 
 
Please review the budget calendar to determine if there is any Council scheduling 
conflicts or recommended changes to the budget calendar. 
 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

408



 ** Revised 11/29/2023 3:36 PM 

CITY OF NEWPORT 

 

Budget Calendar - Detailed for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 

Finance:  Distribute Capital Project Request Form and Equipment Request Form 
    to Department Heads ................................................................................................... 12/04/23 
CM:  Preliminary Budget and Fee Schedule Review at Staff Meeting ............................. 12/04/23 
CM/City Recorder:  Notice for Budget Committee Appointments .................................... 12/05/23 

Finance:  Distribute Fee Schedule to Department Heads ................................................. 12/08/23 

Department Heads:  Capital Project Request Forms Due to Finance .......................... 12/18/23 
City Council:  Appoint Budget Committee Members ........................................................ 01/02/24 

Finance:  Distribute Received Capital Project Requests to Engineering ........................... 01/02/24 
Department Heads:  Submit any Corrections to Fee Schedules to Finance..................... 01/05/24 

Finance:  Distribute Preliminary Personnel Schedule to Department Heads 

    for Personnel Request Changes (Additions, Eliminations, or Modifications) ................. 01/08/24 

Finance:  Supplemental Budget to Council to Correct Beginning Balances on  

    Capital Projects         .................................................................................................... 01/16/24 
Finance:  Distribute Preliminary Budget Worksheets (Six Months Actuals) 
    to Department Heads for Review Only– Nothing to be Returned  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  01/17/24 
CM/Engineering/Finance Meeting on Capital Projects ...................................... 1pm-5pm 01/17/24 
Department Heads:  Preliminary Personnel Schedule with Requested 
    Changes Due to Finance ........................................................................................ 01/22/24 
Department Heads:  Equipment Requests ($5,000 and up) Due to Finance ..................... 01/29/24 
Department Head Meeting on Overall Budget ............................................... 10am-12pm 02/12/24 
Engineering:  Distribute Reviewed Capital Project Requests to Finance .......................... 02/16/24 
Finance:  Budget Committee Agenda Available by  ................................................  5pm, 02/20/24 
Department Heads:  Submit Fee Schedule with Additions, Eliminations, 
    or Modifications to Finance .......................................................................................... 02/23/24 
Budget Committee:  Preliminary Budget Meeting ................................................ 6pm, 03/05/24 

 Appoint/Elect Presiding Officer 
Finance:  Distribute Preliminary Budget Worksheets (Eight-Months Actuals) 
    to Department Heads to fill out Budget Requests ......................................................... 03/05/24 
Department Heads:  Submit Budget Requests and Narratives to Finance ........................ 03/11/24 
Department Heads Meeting on Capital Projects ................................................. 9am-1pm 03/13/24 
Finance:  Submit Preliminary Budgets to Budget Officer ..................................................  03/18/24 

CM/Finance:  Department Heads’ Meetings with Budget Officer to Review, 
    Revise and Balance Budgets .................................................................. 03/19/24 thru 03/21/24 
Finance:  Publish First Notice of Budget Committee Meetings (City and NURA) ................ 03/29/24 

 (Finance Only: To Paper on 03/20/24) 
CM/Finance/Engineering Final (Wrap-Up) Meeting on Capital Projects ................. 1-5pm 04/02/24 
CM:  Budget Officer Completes Budget Message ............................................................. 04/10/24 

Finance:  Publish Second Notice of Budget Committee Meetings (City & NURA) ............ 04/10/24 

 (Finance Only: City Website on 04/10/24) 
Finance:  Completed Proposed Budget to Printer .......................................................... 04/10/24 

Finance:  Distribute Proposed Budgets to Budget Committee & Department Heads ......... 04/16/24 

Budget Committee:  First Budget Committee Meeting .................................. 5pm, 04/23/24 

 Receive City and NURA Budgets and Budget Message 
 Public Hearing on Possible Uses of State Shared Revenues 
 Review Budget Documents and Discuss Relevant changes 
 Respond to Questions from the Budget Committee 
 Provides for Members of the Public time for Input, Questions and Comments 

409



 ** Revised 11/29/2023 3:36 PM 

 Present Report on Financial Policy of UEFBs and Contingencies 

Finance:  Budget Committee Agenda Package Available by  .................................  5pm, 05/09/24 
 

 

Budget Committee:  Second Budget Committee Meeting .................................... 5pm, 05/14/24 

 Budget Committee Deliberations 
 Respond to Questions from First Meeting 

Finance:  Budget Committee Agenda Package Available by  .................................  5pm, 05/24/24 
Budget Committee:  Third Budget Committee Meeting  ........................................ 6pm, 05/28/24 

 Respond to Questions from Second Meeting 
 Budget Committee Approval of the Budget Documents (City and NURA) 
 Approval of Ad Valorem Property Tax Amount or Rate  
     for City General Fund, City Debt Service Funds and the NURA 
Finance:  Publish Notice of Budget Hearing (One Notice Required) (City and NURA) ....... 06/07/24 
 (Finance Only…. To paper on 05/29/24) 
 Publish Financial Summaries (Separate City and NURA) 
City Council:  City Budget Public Hearing ............................................................ 6pm, 06/17/24 

NURA Council:  NURA Budget Public Hearing ................................................. 5:45pm, 06/17/24 
 Public Hearing on Proposed Uses of State Shared Revenues 
 Separate Public Hearings on City Budget and NURA Budget 
 Adopt Budgets and Make Appropriations (City and NURA)  
 Impose and Categorize Taxes for City and NURA 
Finance:  Transmit Tax Certification Documents .............................................................. 07/05/24 
 To County Assessor by 07/12/24 
Finance:  File Budget Document with County Recorder and Designate 

 

 

Goal Calendar - Detailed for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 

Notice Sent to Departments and Staff for the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Goal Setting Session .........  10/10/23 

Update Status of Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Department and Committee Goals on the Website .......  11/06/23 
2040 Vision Advisory Committee Presents Annual Report to the City Council .................. 01/02/24 

Update Status of Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Department and Committee Goals on the Website ........ 01/05/24 
Enter Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Goals on the Website .................................................... 01/10/24 
City Council Goal Setting Meeting .............................................................................. 02/12/24 

Council approves draft goals ........................................................................................... 02/20/24 

2040 Vision Advisory Committee Provides a Report on Draft Goals to the City Council  ... 03/04/24 
Public Hearing and Adoption of the Goals    .................................................................. 03/18/24 

Update the Status of Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Department and Committee Goals on the Website ..  04/03/24 

 

410



CM Hall's City Council Report, 11/20 - 12/3, 2023 

 

11/20/23: League of Oregon Cities - Equity Lens Policy Review 

11/20/23: City Council Work Session 

11/20/23: City Council Meeting 

11/30/23: Attended Victory Institute LGBTQ+ Elected Leaders Conference 

• Meeting with US Senator Tammy Baldwin (WI) 

• Workshop: LGBTQ+ Issues in Education 

• Social Security and the LGBTQ Community 

• How to Deliver an Effective Speech 

• Inflation Reduction Act - Tax Incentive Considerations for Local Government with US 

Representative Joyce Beatty (OH) 

• Political Strategies for Confronting anti-LGBTQ+ Colleagues 

 

12/1/23: Attended Victory Institute LGBTQ+ Elected Leaders Conference Sessions: 

• Back in the Political Playbook: LGBTQ+ Issues and Candidates in the 2024 Elections 

• Countering the Global Anti-LGBTQ Movement 

• “We’re Still Here”: LGBTQ+ Indigenous Leaders and the Continued Fight for Equality 

• Running in Hostile Regions 

 

12/2/23: Attended Victory Institute LGBTQ+ Elected Leaders Conference Sessions: 

• The Politics of Hate: Understanding and Combating Anti-Trans Political Attacks 

• Building Accessible and Inclusive Campaigns 

• From Burden to Fulfillment: Learning to Love Fundraising… and Succeed 

• “Queer LGBTQ+ Political Hall of Fame InductionEnoug 

 

411


	City Council Agenda
	2018-8503 - Video Links for Minutes to be approved 12-04-2023.pdf
	2018-8501 - 11-06-2023 City Council Work Session Minutes- Final.pdf
	2018-8501 - 11-06-2023 City Council Minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8501 - 11-20-2023 City Council Work Session Minutes- Final.pdf
	2018-8501 - 11-20-2023 City Council Minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8502 - 60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 01-23-23.docx.pdf
	2018-8502 - 60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 02-27-23.pdf
	2018-8502 - 60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 03-27-23.docx.pdf
	2018-8502 - 60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 05-22-23.docx.pdf
	2018-8502 - 60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 06-26-23.pdf
	2018-8502 - 60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 08-28-23.docx.pdf
	2018-8502 - 60+ Advisory Committee Minutes 09-25-23.docx.pdf
	2018-8502 - 10-17-2023 water supply conservation and management minutes-final.pdf
	2018-8469 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8469 - Staff Report.pdf
	2018-8469 - Draft Commercial Real Estate Sales Agreement.pdf
	2018-8469 - Abbey Street Dock  Access Easement_120423.pdf
	2018-8469 - Abbey Street Pier Fire Supression Easement_120423.pdf
	2018-8469 - Hearing Notice.pdf
	2018-8469 - DSL Lease 11546-ML.pdf
	2018-8469 - DSL License 23348-LI.pdf
	2018-8469 - Abbey St Pier Legal Descriptions and Exhibits.pdf
	2018-8469 - P221296 Appraisal_Addenda.pdf
	2018-8470 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8470 - Staff Report.pdf
	2018-8470 - Tidelands Map.pdf
	2018-8470 - Tax Lot Property Records.pdf
	2018-8470 - City Vesting Deed.pdf
	2018-8470 - Excerpt of Council Meeting Minutes 1.6.96.pdf
	2018-8470 - Barton Proposal.pdf
	2018-8470 - Yakona Backgrounder.pdf
	2018-8470 - Sample Deed Restriction.pdf
	2018-8470 - Hearing Notice No. 1.pdf
	2018-8470 - Testimony from Mark Arnold.pdf
	2018-8492 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8492 - Community Meeting graphic.png
	2018-8471 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8471 - 2023 PMP Update from P&R Committee
	2018-8493 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8493 - Allen Email Vacation Carryover.pdf
	2018-8493 - David Allen Vacation carryover exception request.pdf
	2018-8421 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8421 - Staff Report.pdf
	2018-8421 - Draft Resolution No. 4001 - SDCs for Commercial to Residential Conversions.pdf
	2018-8421 - HB2984 Enrolled.pdf
	2018-8421 - NMC Chapter 12.15 - System Development Charges.pdf
	2018-8473 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8473 - Staff Report.pdf
	2018-8473 - Draft Order 2023-2 - Withdrawal of CUP application.pdf
	2018-8499 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8499 - 2023-02_Declaration Original.pdf
	2018-8499 - 2023-02_Declaration Updated with Extensions.pdf
	2018-8499 - Staff Report (12-4-23).pdf
	2018-8499 - MITIGATION LIMITS (Attachment A).pdf
	2018-8499 - Rock Armoring Cross Section (Attachment B).pdf
	2018-8499 - Storm Replacement (Attachment C).pdf
	2018-8505 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8491 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8491 - Staff Report.pdf
	2018-8491 - 11-20-2023 Memo Regarding 4-10-Compressed Work Week.pdf
	2018-8491 - 1.6.22_Memo_to_Council_-_Discussion_on_Current_Staffing_Levels.pdf
	2018-8488 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8488 - David Allen Email PFAS Rev.pdf
	2018-8488 - 3M - Summary Notice.pdf
	2018-8488 - DuPont - Summary Notice.pdf
	2018-8490 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8490 - Staff Report on Budget Calendar for 2024-25.pdf
	2018-8490 - 2024-25 Budget Calendar  11-29-23.pdf
	2018-8495 - Hall Council Report .pdf



